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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Customers Bancorp, Inc. (“the Bancorp”), may framet to time make written or oral “forward-lookintagements,” including statements
contained in the Bancorp’s filings with the Sedadtand Exchange Commission (including this AnRegbort on Form 10-K and the exhibits
hereto and thereto), in our reports to shareholdedsin other communications by the Bancorp, whighmade in good faith by the Bancorp
pursuant to the “safe harbor” provisions of thev&e Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

These forward-looking statements include statemwittsrespect to the Bancorp’s beliefs, plans, ciijes, goals, expectations, anticipations,
estimates and intentions, that are subject to fétgunit risk and uncertainties, and are subjech&nge based on various factors (some of whict
are beyond the Bancorp’s control). The words “be&” “expects,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “plans,™intends,” or “anticipatestr the negativ
thereof or comparable terminology, or discussidngrategy that involve risks and uncertaintiegniify forward-looking statements which
generally are not historical in nature. These fodalaoking statements are only predictions anchestés regarding future events and
circumstances and involve known and unknown risksgrtainties and other factors, including thegidkscribed under “Risk Factors” that
may cause actual results, levels of activity, penimce or achievements to be materially differeminfany future results, levels of activity,
performance or achievements expressed or implieslibly forward-looking statements. This informati®based on various assumptions that
may not prove to be correct.

In addition to the risks described in the “Risk teas” section of this Annual Report on Form KQimportant factors to consider and evaluai
such forward-looking statements include:

. Changes in the external competitive market fadtoas might impact results of operatic

. Changes in laws and regulations, including witHonitation changes in capital requirements urBlasel Il and federal prompt
corrective action regulations;

. Changes in business strategy or an inability t@weateestrategy due to the occurrence of unantiaipatents
. Ability to identify potential candidates for, andrisummate, acquisition or investment transact

. Timing of acquisition or investment transactic

. Constraints on our ability to consummate araeative acquisition or investment transaction beeaidssignificant competition for these
opportunities;

. Failure to complete any or all of the transactidascribed herein on the terms currently contemgb

. Local, regional and national economic conditiond aments and the impact they may have on the Bprarat its customel

. Ability to attract and retain appropriate levelsdefposits and other sources of liquic
. Changes in the financial performance and/or ttimmdof the Bank$ borrowers
. Changes in the level of non-performing and défesbassets and chargsfs;

. Changes in estimates of future loan loss resemeirements based upon the periodic review ttieneder relevant regulatory and
accounting requirements;

. Changes in capital structure resulting from futtapital offerings or acquisitior
. Inflation, interest rate, securities market and etary fluctuation:

. Timely development and acceptance of new banginducts and services and perceived overall vafltieese products and services by
users;

. Changes in consumer spending, borrowing and sdabgs

. Technological change

. Ability to increase market share and control expsi

. Continued volatility in the credit and equity matkand its effect on the general econc

. Effect of changes in accounting policies andtficas, as may be adopted by the regulatory ageresewell as the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board, the Financial AccougtBtandards Board and other accounting standaetset
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. Ability to integrate contemplated and future aisition targets may be unsuccessful, or may beerddficult, time consuming or costly
than expected;

. Material differences in the actual financialuks of merger and acquisition activities compangith expectations, such as with respect to
the full realization of anticipated cost savingsl @@venue enhancements within an expected timesfrand

. Deposit attrition, customer loss and busineseugiion following the merger, including, withoirnitation, difficulties in maintaining
relationships with employees being greater thareetqul.

These forward-looking statements are subject toifsé@nt uncertainties and contingencies, many liclv are beyond the control of the
Bancorp. Although the expectations reflected infthrevard-looking statements are currently beliet@te reasonable, future results, levels of
activity, performance or achievements cannot beaguaed. Accordingly, there can be no assurantettaal results will meet expectations or
will not be materially lower than the results cantdated in this document and the attachments heYeto are cautioned not to place undue
reliance on these forwaldeking statements, which speak only as of the dathis document or, in the case of documentsmedeto, the date

of those documents. Neither the Bancorp nor Custe®ank undertakes any obligation to release plytdicotherwise provide any revisions
these forward-looking statements to reflect eventsrcumstances after the date of this reporbaeflect the occurrence of unanticipated
events, except as may be required under applitable

CUSTOMERS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
PART |

Item 1. Busines:!

Unless stated otherwise or the context otherwigeires, references in this Form 10-K to “Custoniamcorp” or the “Bancorp” refer to
Customers Bancorp, Inc., a Pennsylvania corporatizhits consolidated subsidiaries for all periodsor after September 17, 2011 and
Customers Bank for all periods before SeptembeRQX]1. References in this Form 10-K to “CustomeaskB or the “Bank” refer to
Customers Bank, a Pennsylvania state-chartereddrahkvholly owned subsidiary of Customers Banc@tpshare and per share information
has been retrospectively restated to reflect thmrdRenization (as defined below), including the dorethree consideration (i.e., each three
shares of Customers Bank was exchanged for one sh@ustomers Bancorp) used in the reorganization.

Business Summary

Customers Bancorp, through its wholly owned subsydCustomers Bank, provides financial products serdices to small businesses, not-for
profits, and consumers through its branches aridesfin Southeastern Pennsylvania (Bucks, Berkesteh, Delaware and Philadelphia
Counties), Rye Brook and New York, New York (Wesster and New York Counties), Hamilton, New Jefdégrcer County), Providence,
Rhode Island (Providence County) and Boston, Mdmssaatts (Suffolk County). Customers Bank also mresiliquidity to the mortgage marl
nationwide through the operation of its loans tatgmge banking companies. At December 31, 2014tothess Bancorp had total assets of
$6.8 billion, including net loans (including heldrfsale loans) of $5.7 billion, total deposits df%billion, and shareholders’ equity of $0.4
billion.

Customers Bancorp’s strategic plan is to beconeadihg regional bank holding company through orggnowth and value-added
acquisitions. Customers Bancorp differentiatedfifsem its competitors through its focus on exéepal customer service supported by stai
the art technology. The primary customers of CusisnBank are privately held businesses, consuresiess customers, and not-for-profit
organizations. Customers Bank also focuses onindow&-cost, low-risk specialty lending areas sashmulti-family/commercial real estate
lending and lending to mortgage banking businesges Bank’s lending activities are funded by defsosom its branch model, which seeks
higher deposit levels per branch than a typicakbaambined with lower branch operating expenséhont sacrificing exceptional customer
service. Customers Bancorp also creates franchise ¥hrough its disciplined approach to acquisgidooth in terms of identifying targets and
structuring transactions. Enterprise risk managémseam important part of the strategies CustorBarscorp employs.

The management team of Customers Bancorp consisigperienced banking executives led by its Chairigwad Chief Executive Officer, Jay
Sidhu, who joined Customers Bank in June 2009.9¥thu brings 40 years of banking experience, inoly@0 years as the Chief Executive
Officer and Chairman of Sovereign Bancorp. In dddito Mr. Sidhu, many of the members of the curreanagement team have experience
working together at Sovereign with Mr. Sidhu. Matiier team members joining the Customers Bancormgeament team have significant
experience helping build and lead other banking
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organizations. Combined, the Customers Bancorp geanant team has significant experience in builditignking organization, completing
and integrating mergers and acquisitions, and deugl valuable community and business relationsinifiis core markets.

Background and History

Customers Bancorp was incorporated in Pennsyhiargril 2010 to facilitate a reorganization intdank holding company structure purst

to which Customers Bank became a wholly owned slidoyi of Customers Bancorp (the “Reorganizationi)September 17, 2011. Pursuant tc
the Reorganization, all of the issued and outstamndhares of Voting Common Stock and Class B NotingdCommon Stock of Customers
Bank were exchanged on a one-for-three basis mestof Voting Common Stock and Class B Non-Vo@agnmon Stock, respectively, of
Customers Bancorp. Customers Bancorp’s corporadduarters are located at 1015 Penn Avenue, WyonmgjdRennsylvania 19610. The
main telephone number is (610) 933-2000.

The deposits of Customers Bank, which was chartesddew Century Bank in 1994, are insured by thlieFa Deposit Insurance Corporation.
Customers Bank’s home office is located at 99 BriBtyeet, Phoenixville, Pennsylvania 19460. Thenrtedephone number is (610) 933-2000.

Executive Summary
Customers Bancorp’s Markets
Market Criteria

Customers Bancorp looks to grow organically as aglthrough selective acquisitions in its curremt prospective markets. Customers
Bancorp believes that there is significant oppdtyuto both enhance its presence in its currenketarand enter new complementary markets
that meet its objectives. Customers Bancorp focarenarkets that it believes are characterizedbyesor all of the following:

» Population densit

» Concentration of business activ

e Attractive deposit base

e Large market share held by large ba

» Advantageous competitive landscape that providesmpnity to achieve meaningful market prese
» Lack of consolidation in the banking sector aodresponding opportunities for add-transaction

» Potential for economic growth over tir

* Management experience in the applicable ma

Current Markets

Customers Bancorp’s target market is broadly ddfixeextending from the greater Washington, D.€a & Boston, Massachusetts roughly
following Interstate 95. As of December 31, 20h& €ompany had bank branches or limited purposeesf{*LPOs") in the following cities:

Market Offices Type

Berks County, PA 4 Branch
Boston, Massachusetts 1 LPO
Mercer County, NJ 1 Branch
New York, NY 1 LPO
Philadelphia-Southeastern PA 8 Branch/LPC
Providence, RI 1 LPO
Westchester County, NY 1 Branch/LPC
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Customers Bancorp believes its target market lggmyhattractive demographic, economic and competilynamics that are consistent witr
objectives and favorable to executing its orgaméwgh and acquisition strategies.

Prospective Market

The organic growth strategy of Customers Bancocpdes on expanding market share in its existingcantiguous markets by generating
deposits, loan and fee based services throughthigtir personalized service supported by stateeoéthtechnology for the Bank’s
commercial, consumer, not-for-profit, and speceditending markets. The acquisition strategy oft@usrs Bancorp has traditionally focused
on undervalued and troubled community banks in Bdaania, New Jersey, New York, Maryland, Virgiaiad New England, where such
acquisitions further the Bancorp’s objectives arektrits critical success factors. As Customers Bignevaluates potential acquisition and
asset purchase opportunities, it believes therenargy banking institutions that continue to facedirchallenges, capital constraints and
liquidity issues and that lack the scale and mamag expertise to manage the increasing regulétangen.

Competitive Strengths

» Experienced and respected management tAn integral element of the business strategy ot@usrs Bancorp is to capitalize
on and leverage the prior experience of its exeeutianagement team. The management team is letidiyn@n and Chief
Executive Officer, Jay Sidhu, who is the former &lttxecutive Officer and Chairman of Sovereign BapcIn addition to
Mr. Sidhu, many of the members of the current mansnt team of Customers Bancorp have experiendangaiogether at
Sovereign with Mr. Sidhu, including Richard Ehstegtdent and Chief Operating Officer of CustomeasBand Warren Taylor,
President of BankMobile and Chief Marketing Offi¢éer Customers Bank. During their tenure at Sowgreihese individuals
established a track record of producing strongniiie results, integrating acquisitions, managisg, working with regulators
and achieving organic growth and expense contednT leaders Timothy Romig, Steve Issa, and GeoryeWis head the
Pennsylvania, Boston/Providence, and New York coroiadending areas, respectively, with 31, 38, 28d/ears of experience,
respectively. Ken Keiser leads the commercial estdte and multi-family lending group and bringsenhan 38 years of
experience including oversight of the Mid Atlantemmercial real estate group at Sovereign. In exdgithe residential lending
group, which includes mortgage loans to individuald commercial loans (warehouse facilities) tedegial mortgage
originators, is led by Glenn Hedde, President ofé&dause Lending who brings more than 24 years pégance in this sector.
This team has significant experience in successhulllding a banking organization as well as erigtvaluable community and
business relationships in our core markets.

» Unique Asset and Deposit Generation Stratediestomers Bancorp focuses on local market lendimgbined with relatively
low-risk specialty lending segments. Local markesed generation provides various types of busieeskng products and
consumer lending products, such as mortgage loahb@me equity loans. The Bank has also establiahedlti-family and
commercial real estate product line that is focumethe MidAtlantic region, particularly New York City. Therategy is to focu
on refinancing existing loans with conservative emetiting and to keep costs low. Through the miatiily and commercial real
estate product, Customers Bank earns interesteanithéome and generates commercial deposits. Casd@ank also maintains
a specialty lending business, commercial loansddgage originators, which is a national busineksne the Bank provides
liquidity to nondepository mortgage companies to fund their mosgaigelines and meet other business needs. Thithedgban:
to mortgage bankers business, Customers Bank idensst and fee income and generates core deposits

« Attractive risk profile Customers Bancorp has sought to maintain high gssdity and moderate credit risk by using constve:
underwriting standards and early identificatiorpofential problem assets. The Bancorp has alsodfdmspecial assets
department to both manage the covered assets lpmefal to review other classified and non-perfargnassets. As of
December 31, 2014, only $422.3 million, or 7.3%thef Bank’s loans (by dollar amount) were acquioashs. Additionally,
36.2% of the Bank's non-performing loans and 6106%e Bank’s other real estate owned (“OREQ”) febg dollar amount),
are covered by a loss sharing arrangement witREHE in which the FDIC will reimburse the Bank f80% of its losses on the
assets.

Please refer to the Asset Quality tables regaridiggcy and acquired loans appearing in the Managesrgiscussion and
Analysis section.

e Superior Community Banking Mod€ustomers Bancorp expects to drive organic growtarbploying its “concierge banking”
strategy, which provides specific relationship ngara or private bankers for all customers, delhggn appointment banking
approach available 12 hours a day, seven days la Whes allows the Bank
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to provide services in a personalized, conveniedtexpeditious manner. This approach, coupled sitrerior technology,
including remote account opening, remote deposgitira and mobile banking, results in a competididgantage over larger
institutions, which management believes contribttethe profitability of its franchise and allowsetBank to generate core
deposits. The “high-tech, high-touch,” model of @users Bancorp requires less staff and smallerdbréocations to operate,
thereby significantly reducing operating costs.

» Acquisition ExpertiseThe depth of Customers Bancorp’s management tedrtheir experience working together and
successfully completing acquisitions provides uriqsight in identifying and analyzing potentialnkets and acquisition targe
The experience of Customers Bancorp’s team, whicludes the acquisition and integration of oveiri3ditutions, as well as
numerous asset and branch acquisitions, providégtBancorp a substantial advantage in pursuidgcansummating future
acquisitions. Additionally, management believesBla@corp’s strengths in structuring transactionknd its risk, its experience
in the financial reporting and regulatory procesated to troubled bank acquisitions, and its omgoisk management expertise,
particularly in problem loan workouts, collectivedpable it to capitalize on the potential of trenfrhises it acquires. With the
Bancorp’s depth of operational experience in cotioeavith completing merger and acquisition traniars, it expects to be able
to integrate and reposition acquired franchises-efigiently and with a minimum disruption to coster relationships.

Customers Bancorp believes its ability to operé#ieiently is enhanced by its centralized risk mgemnent structure, its access to attractive
labor and real estate costs in its markets, andfeastructure that is unencumbered by legacy systé-urthermore, Customers Bancorp
anticipates additional expense synergies fromritegration of its acquisitions, which it believesl wnhance its financial performance.

Acquisitions

Since July 2010, Customers Bancorp completed thrgaisitions, two of which were FDIC-assisted teantions. Customers Bancorp believes
it has structured acquisitions that limit its cta@k, which has positioned it for attractive Haljusted returns. A summary of these acquisit
appears below.

2011 Acquisition
Berkshire Bancorp Acquisition

On September 17, 2011, Customers Bancorp acquiddBire Bancorp, Inc. and its subsidiary BerksBiamk. Berkshire Bancorp served
Berks County, Pennsylvania through five branchesth@ closing date, Berkshire Bancorp had totadtassf approximately $132.5 million,
including total loans of $98.4 million, and totalbilities of approximately $122.8 million, includ total deposits of $121.9 million. Under the
terms of the merger agreement, each outstandirrg sfi@erkshire Bancorp common stock was exchafged.1534 shares of Customers
Bancorp’s Voting Common Stock, resulting in theumsce of 623,686 shares of Customers Bancorp’siy@obmmon Stock. The total
purchase price was approximately $11.3 millionrespnting a price to tangible book value of BenkesBiancorp common stock of 1.25%. T
transaction was immediately accretive to earnings.

In addition, as part of the transaction, CustonBanscorp exchanged shares of its preferred stocthéopreferred stock that was issued by
Berkshire Bancorp as part of the U.S. Treasurytaubled Asset Relief Program. Those shares wereequbstly redeemed. In addition,
warrants to purchase shares of Berkshire Bancarpram stock were converted into warrants to purcshaees of Customers Bancorp’s
Voting Common Stock.

Berkshire Bancorp’s operating results are incluide@ustomers Bancorp’s financial results from tlagedf acquisition.

2010 Acquisitions
FDIC-Assisted TransactiotlSA Bank Acquisition

On July 9, 2010, Customers Bank acquired substhmaithof the assets and assumed all of the naikdned deposits and substantially all othe
liabilities of USA Bank from the FDIC, as receiv@he transaction consisted of assets with a fdirevaf $221.1 million, including $124.7
million of loans (with a corresponding unpaid prpal balance (“UPB”), of $153.6 million), a $22.7llon FDIC loss sharing receivable and
$3.4 million of foreclosed assets. Liabilities wiHair value of $202.1 million were also assumedyuding $179.3 million of non-brokered
deposits. Customers Bank also received cash coatimte from the FDIC of $25.6 million. Furthermof@ustomers Bank recognized a bargair
purchase gain before taxes of $28.2 million, whighresented 12.2% of the fair value of the totaktsacquired.
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Concurrently with the acquisition of USA Bank, thBIC agreed to absorb a portion of the future ¢riedises and workout expenses through
loss sharing agreements that cover certain legsssts, including the entire loan portfolio and otieal estate owned. At July 9, 2010, the
covered assets consisted of assets with a book @&l$126.7 million. The total UPB of the coveredets at July 9, 2010 was $159.2 million.
Customers Bank acquired other USA Bank assetsitbia not covered by the loss sharing agreementstiét FDIC including cash and cert
investment securities purchased at fair marketevalihe loss sharing agreements do not apply teesuiesitly acquired, purchased, or
originated assets. Customers Bank entered intdrdmsaction to expand its franchise into a lueeatiew market, accrete its book value per
share, and add significant capital.

Pursuant to the terms of the loss sharing agreemttet FDIC reimburses Customers Bank for 80% sxdds, calculated, in each case, based ¢
UPB plus certain interest and expenses. Customaank Bimburses the FDIC for its share of recovesiils respect to losses for which the
FDIC has paid Customers Bank in reimbursement utigeloss sharing agreements. The FBIQiarantee for commercial loans expires in
2015 and for residential mortgage loans in July®@% of December 31, 2014, Customers’ remainingoed loans from the USA Bank
Acquisition totaled $27.6 million, of which $10.1ilion was not paying in accordance with the coatwoal provisions.

Customers Bank has received an aggregate of $2Bi@nfrom the FDIC in reimbursements under thedasharing agreements for claims filec
for losses incurred through December 31, 2014.

FDIC-Assisted TransactiohSN Bank Acquisition

On September 17, 2010, Customers Bank acquiredasuladly all of the assets and assumed all ofibve-brokered deposits and substantially
all other liabilities of ISN Bank from the FDIC, asceiver. The transaction consisted of assetsavitir value of $83.9 million, including
$51.3 million of loans (with a corresponding UPB$&B.2 million), a $5.6 million FDIC loss sharingceivable and $1.2 million of foreclosed
assets. Liabilities with a fair value of $75.8 moifl were also assumed, including $71.9 million ofibrokered deposits. Customers Bank
received cash consideration from the FDIC of $5ilan. Furthermore, Customers Bank recognized @&a purchase gain before taxes of
$12.1 million, which represented 14.4% of the failue of the total assets acquired.

Concurrently with the acquisition of ISN Bank, thBIC agreed to absorb a portion of all future drémises and workout expenses through
sharing agreements that cover certain legacy asselisding the entire loan portfolio and otherlrestate owned. At September 17, 2010, the
covered assets consisted of assets with a book @&l$52.6 million. The total UPB of the coveredets at September 17, 2010 was $58.2
million. Customers Bank acquired other ISN Banletsthat were not covered by the loss sharing agrets with the FDIC including cash,
certain investment securities purchased at faiketaralue, and other tangible assets. The lossrghagreements do not apply to subsequentl
acquired, purchased or originated assets. Custdaars entered into this transaction to enhance lvatike per share, add capital, and ente
New Jersey market in a more efficient manner ttenalo expansior

Pursuant to the terms of the loss sharing agreemttet FDIC reimburses Customers Bank for 80% sdds, calculated, in each case, based ¢
UPB plus certain interest and expenses. Customaank Bimburses the FDIC for its share of recovesiils respect to losses for which the
FDIC has paid Customers Bank in reimbursement utigeloss sharing agreements. The FDIC’s guardateammmercial loans expires in
September 2015 and for residential mortgage laaseptember 2020. As of December 31, 2014, Cusg®mremaining covered loans from the
ISN Bank Acquisition totaled $14.6 million, of whi&1.6 million was not paying in accordance with tontractual provisions.

Customers Bank has received an aggregate of $1i0i&nfrom the FDIC in reimbursements under th&llB®ss sharing agreements for claims
filed for losses incurred through December 31, 2014

Acquisition of Loan Portfolios

On January 15, 2014, Customers Bank purchased $#iillion of residential adjustable-rate jumbo ngage loans (indexed to one-year
LIBOR) from Flagstar Bank. The purchase price wa8.75% of loans outstanding.

On March 28, 2013, Customers Bank completed thehase of certain commercial loans from MichiganelbaBlagstar Bank. Under the terms
of the agreement, Customers Bank acquired $182l®min commercial loan commitments, of which $15million was drawn at the date of
acquisition. Also, as part of the agreement, CustsrBank assumed the leases for two of Flagstarswercial lending offices, one in Boston,
MA and one in Providence, RI. The purchase price 9&7% of loans outstanding.
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Acquisition of Manufactured Housing Loans

During the years 2010, 2011, and 2012, Customenk Barchased manufactured housing loans from Tanthaéting Corporation
(“Tammac”). These purchases were opportunistichmses and may not be indicative of future strasegig@urchases.

On August 6, 2010, Customers Bank purchased fromrfac Holding Corporation (“Tammac”) a $105.8 miflimanufactured housing loan
portfolio for a purchase price of $105.8 milliorhése loans were supported by a cash reserve balafit6.5 million at the date of purchase
that covered all estimated losses and delinquéertdst, and is maintained in a demand deposit at@iuihe Bank.

On September 30, 2011, Customers Bank purchasedTesnmac $19.3 million of manufactured housing foand a 1.50% interest- ondyrip
security with an estimated value of $3 million seclby a pool of $70 million of loans originated Bgmmac for a total purchase price of $13
million.

On July 24, 2012, Customers Bank paid $63.2 millmacquire manufactured housing loans from Vantldvtortgage and Finance Inc. at par.
These loans were originated by Tammac Holding Qattmn, and secure the interest-only-strip secuhiit was purchased in September 2011
The loans carry an 11.3% coupon rate, where Tane@iats a 2.0% servicing fee and also retains tsrigp a 2.0% 10 Strip in relation to this

pool of loans. The full recourse for losses ondhly 2012 loan purchase resides with Tammac.

Total Manufactured Housing loans were $126.7 milémd $139.5 million as of December 31, 2014 arkB2@spectively.

Segment:

Customers Bancorp has one reportable segment, “GaiityrBanking.” All of the Company’s activities amgterrelated, and each activity is
dependent and assessed based on how each ofitliteaadf the Company supports the others. Fongla, lending is dependent upon the
ability of the Company to fund itself with deposdtsd borrowings while managing interest rate aeditrisk. Accordingly, all significant
operating decisions are based upon analysis @ddn& as one segment or unit.

Products

Customers Bancorp offers a broad range of traditiman and deposit banking products and finarsgalices, and more recently non-
traditional products and services through the ssgfoéPhase 1 launch of BankMobile in January 284 %s commercial and consumer
customers. Customers Bank offers an array of lendinducts to cater to its customers’ needs, inetudmall business loans, mortgage
warehouse loans, multi-family and commercial resshte loans, residential mortgage loans and othesumer loans. Customers Bank also
offers traditional depository products, includingramercial and consumer checking accounts, nonestdrearing demand accounts, money
market deposit accounts, savings accounts andd@pesit accounts and cash management servicestd@dianuary 2015, deposits products
were available to customers only through brancii€ustomers Bank. With the successful Phase 1 laoh8ankMobile, Customers is able to
provide fee free banking to millennials, middlesslgAmerican families and underserved consumersighiaut the United States.

Lending Activities
Customers Bank focuses its lending efforts on elewiiing lending areas:

* Commercial Lending — Includes Business Bankoag(mercial and industrial lending), Small BusinBasiking, including small
business administration (SBA) loans, Multi-familydgCommercial Real Estate lending, and commereéid to mortgage
originators; and

»  Consumer Lending kocal market mortgage lending and home equity leg

Commercial Lending

The Bank’s commercial lending is divided into falistinct groups: Business Banking, Small BusineasKkihg, Multi-family and Commercial
Real Estate Lending, and mortgage banking lendihgs grouping is designed to allow for greater tgse deployment, higher standards of
management, strong asset quality, lower interéstrisk and higher productivity levels.
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The Business Banking lending group focuses on campavith annual revenues ranging from $5.0 milio$50.0 million, which typically
have credit requirements between $0.5 million ab@l® million. This division is serviced by very exgenced local relationship managers or
private bankers who are supported by a centraliredit function.

The Small Business Banking platform originates famcluding SBA loans, through the branch netwsales force and a team of dedicated
Small Business relationship managers. The suppontrastration of the platform for this lending agty is centralized including risk
management, product management, marketing, perfarentaacking and overall strategic planning. Cradi sales training has been
established for the sales force, ensuring thaBdre&k has small business experts in place providpopriate financial solutions to the small
business owners in its communities. A division apph focuses on industries that offer high assalityuand are deposit rich to drive
profitability.

The goal of the Bank’s multi-family lending groupto build a portfolio of high-quality multi-familgnd commercial real estate loans within its
covered markets, while cross selling its other potsl and services. This business line primarilyi$as on refinancing existing loans, using
conservative underwriting. The primary collatei@ these loans is a first-lien mortgage on the nfathily property, plus an assignment of all
leases related to such property. During the yeaited December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Bank origiregtproximately $1.5 billion and $72¢
million, respectively, of multi-family loans.

The goal of mortgage banking lending is to provalns to mortgage companies. The loans are preddetyrshort-term facilities used by
mortgage companies to fund their pipelines fronsiclg of individual mortgage loans until their salto the secondary market. Most of the
loans are insured or guaranteed by the U.S. gowarhthrough one of their programs such as FHA, &tAare conventional loans eligible for
sale to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac. The Bank i®ntly expanding its product offerings to mortgégmks to meet a wider array of business
needs. During the years ended December 31, 2012Gi#8] the Bank funded $18.1 billion and $20.6dmillof mortgage loans, respectively, to
mortgage originators and warehouses.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Bank had §iBi& and $2.9 billion, respectively, in commeidoans outstanding, composing
approximately 92.5% and 90.2%, respectively, ofdtal loan portfolio, which includes loans held &ale. During the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Bank originate®l iilion and $0.4 billion, respectively, of commil loans, exclusive of multi-family
loan originations and loans to mortgage originasord warehouses.

Consumer Lending

The Bank provides home equity and residential nagggoans to customers. Underwriting standardhdare equity lending are conservative
and lending is offered to solidify customer relaghips and grow relationship revenues in the lengnt This lending is important in the Bank’s
efforts to grow total relationship revenues fordssumer households. These areas also suppodn@arstBancors commitment to lower ar
moderate income families in its market area. ThekBaans to expand its product offerings in regéhessecured consumer lending.

Beginning in 2013, Customers Bank launched a conitynontreach program in Philadelphia to encouragéber percentage of
homeownership in urban communities. As part of pheggram, the Bank is offering an “Affordable Maatge Product”. This community
outreach program is penetrating the underservedlatpn, especially in lovand moderate income neighborhoods. As part ofcthiismitment
a loan production office was opened at ProgreszaPlE501 North Broad Street, Philadelphia, PA. pitegram includes homebuyer seminars
that prepare potential homebuyers for homeownetshiigaching money management and budgeting skitikjding the financial
responsibilities that come with having a mortgage awning a home. The “Affordable Mortgage Produstdffered throughout Customers
Bank’s CRA assessment areas.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Bank had.248#lion and $315.7 million, respectively, in camer loans outstanding, composing
7.5% and 9.8%, respectively, of the Bank’s totahlgortfolio, which includes loans held for salewring the years ended December 31, 2014
and 2013, the Bank originated $77.0 million and.$4illion of consumer loans, respectively. As afd@mber 31, 2014, consumer loans
included a balance of $102.9 million of residenii@ns acquired from Flagstar in January 2014.

Private Banking

Beginning in 2013, Customers Bank introduced adeBanking model for its commercial clients in thajor markets within its geographical
footprint. This unique model provides unparallesedvice to customers through an in-market teanxpégenced private bankers. Acting as a
single-point-of-contact for all the banking neefishe Bank’s commercial clients, these private kaskvill deliver the whole bank — not only
to its clients, but to their families, their managmt teams, and their employees, as well. With ddaalass suite of sophisticated cash
management products, these private bankers willetedbn Customers Bancorp’s “high-tech, high-toustrategy and provide real value to its
mid-market commercial clients.
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Customers Bank opened its first private bankingasgntative office in Manhattan in second quar@r32 and eventually, all of its markets \
be served by private bankers.

Deposit Products and Other Funding Sourc

Customers Bank offers a variety of deposit prodtwits customers, including checking accountsinggs/accounts, money market deposit
accounts and other deposit accounts, includinglfrege, fixed-maturity retail time deposits rangingerms from 30 days to five years,
individual retirement accounts, and non-retail tidegosits consisting of jumbo certificates grettian or equal to $100,000. Using its high
touch supported by high tech model, the Bank hasrenced significantly higher above average grawitore deposits in all of its markets.
Customers Bank also utilizes wholesale depositywts] money market and certificates of depositinbththrough listing services and
borrowings from the FHLB as a source of fundinge3dé funding sources offer attractive funding costomparison to traditional sources of
funding given the low interest rate environment.

Financial Products and Services

In addition to traditional banking activities, Costers Bank provides other financial services tautstomers, including: mobile phone banki
internet banking, wire transfers, electronic bdlyment, lock box services, remote deposit capméces, courier services, merchant
processing services, cash vault, controlled dighuents, positive pay and cash management seruicdsding account reconciliation,
collections and sweep accounts). In January 205Bank successfully launched BankMobile, Ameritiess mobile platform based full
service consumer bank.

Competition

Customers Bank competes with other financial in8tihs for deposit and loan business. Competitwekide other commercial banks, savings
banks, savings and loan associations, insuranceamies, securities brokerage firms, credit unifinance companies, mutual funds, money
market funds, and certain government agenciesnEiakinstitutions compete principally on the qtabf the services rendered, interest rates
offered on deposit products, interest rates chaogeldans, fees and service charges, the convenirzanking office locations and hours of
operation, and in the consideration of larger comesiaéborrowers, lending limits.

Many competitors are significantly larger than ©@usérs Bank, and have significantly greater findn@sources, personnel and locations from
which to conduct business. In addition, CustomexskBs subject to regulation, while certain ofdtsnpetitors are not. Non-regulated
companies face relatively few barriers to entry ithte financial services industry. Customers Bafd‘ger competitors enjoy greater name
recognition and greater resources to finance wadging advertising campaigns. Customers Bank caesget business principally on the be

of high-quality, personal service to customerst@ugr access to Customers Bank’s decision makedsc@mpetitive interest and fee structure
Customers Bank also strives to provide maximum eaience of access to services by employing innesatelivery vehicles such as internet
banking, and the convenience of concierge banking.

Customers Bank’s current market is primarily sergdarge national and regional banks, with a famgér institutions capturing more than
50% of the deposit market share. Customers Baakiglcompetitors utilize expensive, branch-basedetsdo sell products to consumers and
small businesses, which requires our larger congpstio price their products with wider margins @hdrge more fees to justify their higher
expense base. While maintaining physical brancatioes remains an important component of Custof@ark’s strategy, Customers Bank
utilizes an operating model with fewer and lessesgive locations, thereby lowering overhead castisadlowing for greater pricing flexibility.

Employees

As of December 31, 2014, Customers Bancorp hadultdme and 12 part-time employees.

Available Information

Customers Bancorp’s internet website address is wustomersbank.com. Information on Customers Bar'eovebsite is not part of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. Investors can obtaipies of Customers Bancorp’s annual report on FdfK lquarterly reports on Form XQ;
current reports on Form 8-K, and any amendmernttsase reports filed or furnished pursuant to Sectid(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, on Customersagaisavebsite (accessible under “About Us” — “IneRelations” — “SEC Filings”) as
soon as reasonably practicable after CustomersdBainas filed such materials with, or furnishechthte, the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”). Customers Bancorp will also
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furnish a paper copy of such filings free of chaumgen request. Investors can also read and copynatsrials filed by Customers Bancorp v

the SEC at the SEC'’s Public Reference Room whitdceted at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 205#8rmation about the operation of
the Public Reference Room can be obtained by galtia SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. Customers Bancotlpiggican also be accessed at the

SEC's internet website: www.sec.gov.

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION
GENERAL

Customers Bancorp is subject to extensive regulagramination and supervision by the PennsylvBeigartment of Banking and Securities
and, as a member of the Federal Reserve Systetheliyederal Reserve Board. Federal and state laafairs and regulations govern, among
other things, the scope of a bank’s business niestments a bank may make, the reserves agapssitkea bank must maintain, terms of
deposit accounts, loans a bank makes, the intextest it charges and collateral it takes, the aietsvof a bank with respect to mergers and
consolidations and the establishment of branches.

PENNSYLVANIA BANKING LAWS

Pennsylvania banks that are Federal Reserve memiagrestablish new branch offices only after aparbdy the Pennsylvania Department of
Banking and Securities and the Board of GovernbtseoFederal Reserve System (the “Federal Re&waed”). Approval by these regulators
can be subject to a variety of factors, including tonvenience and needs of the community, whétleenstitution is sufficiently capitalized
and well managed, issues of safety and soundrnesg)dtitution’s record of meeting the credit neetlés community, whether there are
significant supervisory concerns with respect mittstitution or affiliated organizations, and wihnt any financial or other business
arrangement, direct or indirect, involving banksiiglers” (directors, officers, employees and 10%g@ater shareholders) which involves term:s
and conditions more favorable to the insiders thauold be available in a comparable transaction witrelated parties.

Under the Pennsylvania Banking Code, Customers Bankbank subsidiary is permitted to branch thfmug Pennsylvania. Pennsylvania law
also provides Pennsylvania state-chartered institsitelective parity with the power of national kenfederal thrifts, and state-chartered
institutions in other states as authorized by th&(; subject to a required notice to the Pennsybv&epartment of Banking and Securities.
Pennsylvania Banking Code also imposes restrictiongayment of dividends, as well as minimum cépéquirements.

On October 24, 2012, Pennsylvania enacted thredavesvknown as the “Banking Law Modernization Pagk&all of which became effectiv
on December 24, 2012. The intended goal of thelaawwhich applies to Customers Bank, is to modermfennsylvania’s banking laws and
to reduce regulatory burden at the state level &/pessible, given the increased regulatory demantise federal level as described below.

The new law also permits banks to disclose form&dreement actions initiated by the Pennsylvanipddement of Banking and Securities,
clarifies that the Department has examination aridreement authority over subsidiaries as wellféikades of regulated banks and bolsters
Department’s enforcement authority over its regdanstitutions by clarifying its ability to remowirectors, officers and employees from
institutions for violations of laws or orders or fany unsafe or unsound practice or breach of fadyaduty. Changes to existing law also allow
the Department to assess civil money penaltiepdd$25,000 per violation.

The new law also sets a new standard of care fuk bicers and directors, applying the same stechtfzat exists for novanking corporatior

in Pennsylvania. The standard is one of perforrdunies in good faith, in a manner reasonably belieto be in the best interests of the
institutions and with such care, including reasdaaiquiry, skill and diligence, as a person ofinagly prudence would use under similar
circumstances. Directors may rely in good faithrdormation, opinions and reports provided by ddfis, employees, attorneys, accountants, c
committees of the board, and an officer may ndtddd liable simply because he or she served affigeroof the institution.

Interstate Branchin(. Federal law allows the Federal Reserve and FBx@,the Pennsylvania Banking Code allows the Pédvarsa
Department of Banking and Securities, to approvamplication by a state banking institution to doginterstate branches. For more
information on federal law, see the discussion ufiflederal Banking Laws — Interstate Branching'ttfedlows.
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Pennsylvania banking laws authorize banks in Pdwaisia to acquire existing branches or branch derio other states, and also permits out-
of-state banks to acquire existing branches ordbrae novo in Pennsylvania.

In April 2008, Banking Regulators in the StatedNefv Jersey, New York, and Pennsylvania enteredattemorandum of Understanding (the
“Interstate MOU”) to clarify their respective roless home and host state regulators, regardingsiate branching activity on a regional basis
pursuant to the Riegle-Neal Amendments Act of 199 Interstate MOU establishes the regulatoryaesibilities of the respective state
banking regulators regarding bank regulatory exations and is intended to reduce the regulatorgdmuon state-chartered banks branching
within the region by eliminating duplicative hosate compliance exams.

Under the Interstate MOU, the activities of brarecBeistomers Bancorp established in New Jersey wrY¢ek would be governed by
Pennsylvania state law to the same extent thatdétav governs the activities of the branch oba-of-state national bank in such host state:
Issues regarding whether a particular host statédgpreempted are to be determined in the firstiaince by the Pennsylvania Department of
Banking and Securities. In the event that the Pdwnasia Department of Banking and Securities amdabplicable host state regulator disagre
regarding whether a particular host state law ésgmpted, the Pennsylvania Department of BankidgSaturities and the applicable host stat
regulator would use their reasonable best effortonsider all points of view and to resolve theadreement.

FEDERAL BANKING LAWS

Interstate Branching The Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branchiffgcieéncy Act of 1994 (called the “Interstate Act'gmong other
things, permits bank holding companies to acquamekb in any state. A bank may also merge with & lmaanother state. Interstate acquisiti
and mergers are subject, in general, to certainertration limits and state entry rules relatinghte age of the Bank. Under the Interstate Act,
the responsible federal regulatory agency is péethib approve the acquisition of less than athefbranches of an insured bank by an out-of
state bank or bank holding company without the sitipn of an entire bank, only if the law of thea&® in which the branch is located

permits. Under the Interstate Act, branches otstatartered banks that operate in other statesoaered by the laws of the chartering state,
rather than the host state. The Dodd-Frank WalledtReform and Consumer Protection Act (“Dodd-FraoK) created a more permissive
interstate branching regime by permitting banksdtablish branches de novo in any state if a baakered by such state would have been
permitted to establish the branch. For more infdioneon interstate branching under Pennsylvania & “Pennsylvania Banking Laws —
Interstate Branching” above.

Prompt Corrective Actio. Federal banking law mandates certain “promptamtive actions,” which Federal banking agenciesegeired to
take, and certain actions which they have disandtictake, based upon the capital category intahvhiFederally regulated depository
institution falls. Regulations have been adoptedhsyFederal bank regulatory agencies setting fitethiled procedures and criteria for
implementing prompt corrective action in the caSary institution that is not adequately capitadizender the rules, an institution will be
deemed to be “adequately capitalized” or bettérékceeds the minimum Federal regulatory capéglirements. However, it will be deemed
“undercapitalized” if it fails to meet the minimucapital requirements, “significantly undercapiteti? if it has a total risk-based capital ratio
that is less than 6.0%, a Tier 1 risk-based camtéd that is less than 3.0%, or a leverage ttht is less than 3.0%, and “critically
undercapitalized” if the institution has a ratiotafigible equity to total assets that is equalrtess than 2.0%. The rules require an
undercapitalized institution to file a written cegirestoration plan, along with a performance gogyr by its holding company or a third

party. In addition, an undercapitalized institutlmecomes subject to certain automatic restrictiocisiding a prohibition on the payment of
dividends, a limitation on asset growth and expamsand in certain cases, a limitation on the payrn&bonuses or raises to senior executive
officers, and a prohibition on the payment of dartananagement fees” to any “controlling persomstitutions that are classified as
undercapitalized are also subject to certain amfthli supervisory actions, including increased répghburdens and regulatory monitoring, a
limitation on the institution’s ability to make adigitions, open new branch offices, or engage im liges of business, obligations to raise
additional capital, restrictions on transactionthveiffiliates, and restrictions on interest rata&ly the institution on deposits. In certain case
bank regulatory agencies may require replacemesgmibr executive officers or directors, or sal¢hefinstitution to a willing purchaser. If an
institution is deemed to be “critically undercaptad” and continues in that category for four daes, the statute requires, with certain
narrowly limited exceptions, that the institutioa placed in receivership.

Safety and Soundness; Regulation of Bank Manageriéet Federal Reserve Board possesses the powmtibit a bank from engaging in
any activity that would be an unsafe and unsoumdkibg practice and in violation of the law. MoreoyvEederal law enactments have expar
the circumstances under which officers or directdra bank may be removed by the institution’s Faldseupervisory agency; restricted and
further regulated lending by a bank to its exeautfficers, directors, principal shareholders datesl interests thereof; restricted managemen
personnel of a bank from serving as directors or in
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other management positions with certain depositmsiitutions whose assets exceed a specified anwuwahich have an office within a
specified geographic area; and restricted managepeesonnel from borrowing from another institutibat has a correspondent relationship
with the bank for which they work.

Capital Rules Federal banking agencies have issued certak-bBased capital” guidelines, which supplementedteg capital
requirements. In addition, the Federal Reserve Bwaposes certain “leverage” requirements on merbhaks. Banking regulators have
authority to require higher minimum capital ratfos an individual bank or bank holding company iaw of its circumstances.

The risk-based capital guidelines require all baarkd bank holding companies to maintain capitadlein compliance with “risk-based capital”
ratios. In these ratios, the on-balance sheetsaasetoff balance sheet exposures are assignski-aeight based upon the perceived and
historical risk of incurring a loss of principabfn that exposure. For periods ending prior to Jgnlia2015 the first is a minimum ratio of total
capital (“Tier 1” and “Tier 2" capital) to risk-wghted assets equal to 8.0%, and the second isimuamnratio of “Tier 1” capital to risk-
weighted assets equal to 4.0%. Assets are assigrie@ risk categories, with higher levels of dapbeing required for the categories
perceived as representing greater risk. In makiegcalculation, certain intangible assets mustdakicted from the capital base. The rdgsec
capital rules are designed to make regulatory abmtjuirements more sensitive to differencessk profiles among banks and bank holding
companies and to minimize disincentives for holdiggid assets.

The risk-based capital rules also may considerasteate risk. Institutions with interest ratkréxposure above a normal level would be
required to hold extra capital in proportion totttiak. The Bank currently monitors and manageastsets and liabilities for interest rate risk,
and management believes that the interest rateuiek which have been implemented and proposédahatiimaterially adversely affect its
operations.

The Federal Reserve Board's “leverage” ratio rodegiire member banks which are rated the highgbeiromposite areas of capital, asset
quality, management, earnings and liquidity to rteaina ratio of “Tier 1” capital to “adjusted to@$sets” of not less than 3.0%. For banks
which are not the most highly rated, the minimuewvdrage” ratio will range from 4.0% to 5.0%, ortreg at the discretion of the Federal
Reserve Board, and is required to be at a levehvensurate with the nature of the level of riskief Bancorp's condition and activities.

For purposes of the capital requirements, “Tieotl"core” capital is defined to include common sarlders’equity and certain noncumulat
perpetual preferred stock and related surplus.rZier “qualifying supplementary” capital is deéid to include a bank’s allowance for loan
losses up to 1.25% of risk-weighted assets, pluasiceypes of preferred stock and related surplagain “hybrid capital instruments” and
certain term subordinated debt instruments.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, management leelithat the Bank and Bancorp met all capital adegueguirements to which they were
subject. For additional information on the Compamggulatory ratios, refer to “NOTE 18 — REGULATORMTTERS.”

New Capital Rule<On July 2, 2013, the Federal Reserve approved fiifas that substantially amend the regulatory-biaked capital rules
applicable to the Bancorp and the Bank. The FDI€tae OCC have subsequently approved these rubestiffal rules were adopted followil
the issuance of proposed rules by the Federal Regedune 2012 and implement the “Basel III” regoty capital reforms and changes
required by the Dodd-Frank Act. “Basel IlI” refdrstwo consultative documents released by the Baseimittee on Banking Supervision in
December 2009, the rules text released in Dece@iH¥, and loss absorbency rules issued in Jan@dry, vhich include significant changes
to bank capital, leverage and liquidity requirensent

The rules include new risk-based capital and leyeratios, which will be phased in from 2015 to 204nd refine the definition of what
constitutes “capital” for purposes of calculatihgse ratios. Effective January 1, 2015, the newrmim capital level requirements applicable
to the Bancorp and the Bank under the final rutes a

(i) a new common equity Tier 1 capital ratio of %5

(ii) a Tier 1 Risk based capital ratio of 6% (inased from 4%);

(iii) a Total Risk based capital ratio of 8% (unngad from current rules); and
(iv) a Tier 1 leverage ratio of 4% for all instiions.

The final rules also establish a “capital conséovabuffer” above the new regulatory minimum cahiegjuirements, which must consist
entirely of common equity Tier 1 capital.
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The capital conservation buffer will be phasederdfour years beginning on January 1, 2016, dsvisl the maximum buffer will be 0.625%
of risk-weighted assets for 2016, 1.25% for 20187%% for 2018, and 2.5% for 2019 and thereaftensitiering the capital conservation
buffer, to avoid limitations on certain actionsamtivities, banks will be required to maintain fb#owing ratios beginning in 2019:

(i) a common equity Tier 1 capital ratio of 7.0%;
(ii) a Tier 1 Risk Based capital ratio of 8.5%;
(i) a Total Risk based capital ratio of 10.5%gdan

(iv) a Tier 1 leverage ratio of 6.5% for all instibns.

Under the final rules, institutions are subjeclin@itations on paying dividends, engaging in shapurchases, and paying discretionary bon
if its capital level falls below the minimum capitavel plus buffer amount. These limitations efisiba maximum percentage of eligible
retained income that could be utilized for suclhiosst

Basel Il provided discretion for regulators to ioge an additional buffer, the “countercyclical leuff of up to 2.5% of common equity Tier 1
capital to take into account the macro-financialiemment and periods of excessive credit growtbwever, the final rules permit the
countercyclical buffer to be applied only to “adead approach banks” (i.e., banks with $250 billlomore in total assets or $10 billion or
more in total foreign exposures), which currenttglades the Bancorp and the Bank. The final rules smplement revisions and clarifications
consistent with Basel 1l regarding the various poments of Tier 1 capital, including common equityrealized gains and losses, as well as
certain instruments that will no longer qualifyEer 1 capital, some of which will be phased outiotime. However, the final rules provide
that small depository institution holding companigth less than $15 billion in total assets as eE@mber 31, 2009 (which includes the
Bancorp) will be able to permanently include norlifying instruments that were issued and inclubtedier 1 or Tier 2 capital prior to

May 19, 2010 in additional Tier 1 or Tier 2 capitatil they redeem such instruments or until tretrimments mature.

In addition, the final rules provide for smallemiiang institutions (less than $250 billion in cotidated assets) an opportunity to make a one-
time election to opt out of including most elemeritaccumulated other comprehensive income in e¢guoy} capital. Importantly, the opt-out
excludes from regulatory capital not only unrealigains and losses on available-for-sale debt g&sybut also accumulated net gains and
losses on cash-flow hedges and amounts attributaldlefined benefit postretirement plans. The aftatection must be elected on the first
Call Report filed for periods ending after Januayp015.

The final rules also contain revisions to the prbogrective action framework, which is designegliace restrictions on insured depository
institutions, including the Bank, if their capitalels begin to show signs of weakness. Theseioegtook effect on January 1, 2015. Under
the prompt corrective action requirements, whighdesigned to complement the capital conservatifiiet) insured depository institutions w
be required to meet the following increased capéted| requirements in order to qualify as “welpitalized:”

(i) a new common equity Tier 1 capital ratio of %5

(i) a Tier 1 Risk based capital ratio of 8% (inesed from 6%);

(i) a Total Risk based capital ratio of 10% (uaolged from current rules); and

(iv) a Tier 1 leverage ratio of 5% (increased fré%).
The final rules set forth certain changes for thakewation of risk-weighted assets, which were fesglito be utilized as of January 1, 2015. The
standardized approach final rule utilizes an inseelanumber of credit risk exposure categories mhkdareights, and also addresses:

(i) an alternative standard of creditworthinesssistent with Section 939A of the Dodd-Frank Act;

(ii) revisions to recognition of credit risk mitijan;

(iii) rules for risk weighting of equity exposuraad past due loans;

(iv) revised capital treatment for derivatives aafdo-style transactions; and

(v) disclosure requirements for top-tier bankingamizations with $50 billion or more in total ass#tat are not subject to the “advance
approach rules” that apply to banks with greatant$i250 billion in consolidated assets.
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DoddFrank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Ahe DoddFrank bill was enacted by Congress on July 15, 2840 was signe
into law by President Obama on July 21, 2010. Ammaapy other provisions, the legislation:

» established the Financial Stability Oversighu@ail, a federal agency acting as the financiatesyss systemic risk regulator with
the authority to review the activities of signifitébank holding companies and non-bank financraidi to make
recommendations and impose standards regardintatdeverage, conflicts and other requirementdif@ancial firms and to
impose regulatory standards on certain financied§ideemed to pose a systemic threat to the finbhealth of the U.S.
economy;

« created a new Consumer Financial Protection &8uvethin the U.S. Federal Reserve, which has salise rulemaking authorit
over a wide variety of consumer financial serviaed products, including the power to regulate untceptive, or abusive acts
or practices;

e permitted state attorneys general and othee stafiorcement authorities broader power to enfoocesumer protection laws
against banks;

» authorized federal regulatory agencies to ban cosgi®n arrangements at financial institutions thae employees incentives
engage in conduct that could pose risks to th@natfinancial system;

» granted the U.S. government resolution authaatjquidate or take emergency measures with tegatroubled financial
institutions, such as bank holding companies, fldabutside the existing resolution authority bétFederal Deposit Insurance
Corporation;

» gave the FDIC substantial new authority andifigity in assessing deposit insurance premiumsgctvimay result in increased
deposit insurance premiums for us in the future;

* increased the deposit insurance coverage loniinsurable deposits to $250,000 generally, ambres the limit entirely for
transaction accounts;

* permitted banks to pay interest on business derdepdsit account
» extended the national bank lending (or loanefieborrower) limits to other institutions like 1

» prohibited banks subject to enforcement actismhsas a memorandum of understanding from charbaigcharter without the
approval of both their existing charter regulatod éheir proposed new charter regulator; and

e imposed new limits on asset purchase and salesithoss between banks and their insic

Many of these provisions are subject to furthee mbking and to the discretion of regulatory bodiesuding Customers Bank’s primary
federal banking regulator, the Federal Resenis.rbt possible to predict at this time the extenwhich regulations authorized or mandated b
the Dodd-Frank Act will impose requirements or ieibns on Customers Bank in addition to or diéfiet from the provisions summarized
above.

Deposit Insurance Assessme. Customers Bank’s deposits are insured by the RIPI® the limits set forth under applicable lavd @me
subject to deposit insurance premium assessmeamsk-IDIC imposes a risk-based deposit premium assggsystem, which was amended
pursuant to the Federal Deposit Insurance RefortroA2005 (the “Act”). Under this system, the ambahFDIC assessments paid by an
individual insured depository institution, like Gamers Bank, is based on the level of perceivddinisurred in its activities. The FDIC places
a depository institution in one of four risk cateige determined by reference to its capital leaeld supervisory ratings. In addition, in the cas
of those institutions in the lowest risk categdhg FDIC further determines its assessment ratsscban certain specified financial ratios.

On February 7, 2011, the FDIC adopted a final nuglifying the risk-based assessment system aridgsétitial base assessment rates
beginning April 1, 2011, ranging from 2.5 to 45 isgsoints of Tier | capital.

In addition to deposit insurance assessments, aeksubject to assessments to pay the interdshancing Corporation bonds. The Financ
Corporation was created by Congress to issue horfitsance the resolution of failed thrift instiioms. The FDIC sets the Financing
Corporation assessment rate every quarter.

Community Reinvestment Adtinder the Community Reinvestment Act of 1977 (ACR the record of a bank holding company and its
subsidiary banks must be considered by the ap@tepiederal banking agencies, including the FedResérve Board, in reviewing and
approving or disapproving a variety of regulatopplications including approval of a branch or otdeposit facility, office relocation, a mert
and certain acquisitions of bank shares. Federd{ibg agencies have recently demonstrated an isede@adiness to deny applications basec
on unsatisfactory CRA performance. The Federal Redgoard is required to assess our record to mhéterif we are meeting the credit needs
of the community (including low
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and moderate neighborhoods) that we serve. Then€imdnstitutions Reform, Recovery, and Enforcetriset of 1989 amended the CRA to
require, among other things, that the Federal Red@oard make publicly available an evaluationhef Bank’s record of meeting the credit
needs of its entire community including low- anddarate-income neighborhoods. This evaluation iredual descriptive rating (outstanding,
satisfactory, needs to improve, or substantial nomgdiance) and a statement describing the basihéorating.

Consumer Protection Lawghe Bancorp is subject to a variety of consunmetgetion laws, including the Truth in Lending Atite Truth in
Savings Act adopted as part of the Federal Depasitrance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 (“EDA”), the Equal Credit Opportunity
Act, the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act, the Elecitdfrunds Transfer Act, the Real Estate Settlememtdiures Act and the regulations
adopted thereunder. In the aggregate, complianitetiese consumer protection laws and regulationsives substantial expense and
administrative time on the part of the Bancorp.

Bank Holding Company Regulation

As a bank holding company, the Bancorp is alsoextthp additional regulation.

The Bank Holding Company Act requires the Bancorpdcure the prior approval of the Federal ResBoard before it owns or controls,
directly or indirectly, more than five percent (5%6)the voting shares or substantially all of teseds of any bank. It also prohibits acquisition
by the Bancorp of more than five percent (5%) efibting shares of, or interest in, or all or sahsally all of the assets of, any bank located
outside of the state in which a current bank suasids located unless such acquisition is spealiffcauthorized by laws of the state in which
such bank is located. A bank holding company isiited from engaging in or acquiring direct oriiregt control of more than five percent
(5%) of the voting shares of any company engagewimbanking activities unless the Federal ResBoagd, by order or regulation, has found
such activities to be so closely related to bankingnanaging or controlling banks as to be a prapsdent thereto. In making this
determination, the Federal Reserve Board consudieesher the performance of these activities byrkthlding company would offer benefits
to the public that outweigh possible adverse effe&pplications under the Bank Holding Company #watl the Change in Control Act are
subject to review, based upon the record of compéaof the applicant with the CRA.

The Bancorp is required to file an annual repothwulie Federal Reserve Board and any additionatrimdtion that the Federal Reserve Board
may require pursuant to the Bank Holding Company Rarther, under Section 106 of the 1970 amendsnerthe Bank Holding Company
Act and the Federal Reserve Board'’s regulatiotsrk holding company and its subsidiaries are pitgd from engaging in certain tie-in
arrangements in connection with any extension editror provision of credit or provision of any pegty or services. The so-called “anti-tie-
in” provisions state generally that a bank mayexdend credit, lease, sell property or furnish sewice to a customer on the condition that thi
customer provide additional credit or service tptaghe Bank or to any other subsidiary or ondbedition that the customer not obtain other
credit or service from a competitor, the Bank, oy ather subsidiary.

The Federal Reserve Board permits bank holding emmeg to engage in non-banking activities so cjosshted to banking or managing or
controlling banks as to be a proper incident tleeratnumber of activities are authorized by Fed®waderve Board regulation, while other
activities require prior Federal Reserve Board apgl The types of permissible activities are satfje change by the Federal Reserve Board.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors
Risks Related to the Bancorp’s Banking Operations

If our allowance for loan losses is insufficient tabsorb losses in our loan portfolio, our earningsuld decrease

Lending money is a substantial part of our businasd each loan carries a certain risk that it moll be repaid in accordance with its terms or
that any underlying collateral will not be suffiotdo assure repayment. This risk is affected yorag other things:

» the financial condition and cash flows of the bareo and/or the project being financ

» the changes and uncertainties as to the futurealthe collateral, in the case of a collateralilcan

» the discount on the loan at the time of its actjoisiand capital, which could have regulatory irogtions
» the duration of the loa

» the credit history of a particular borrower; |

» changes in economic and industry conditi

At December 31, 2014, the Bancarpillowance for loan losses totaled $30.9 milliwhich represents 0.72% of total loans held for gtrent.
Management makes various assumptions and judgrakaotg the collectability of our loan portfolio, inding the creditworthiness of our
borrowers and loans covered under the Loss Shagngements that did not exhibit evidence of detation in credit quality on the acquisiti
date and the probability of making payment, as aglihe value of real estate and other assets\gaasicollateral for the repayment of man
our loans. Loans covered under the loss sharinepagents totaled $42.2 million at December 31, 20hé.FDIC loss sharing agreements for
commercial loans expire in third quarter 2015. Tdss sharing agreements for single family loansrexp third quarter 2020.

In determining the amount of the allowance for lé@sses, significant factors considered include Bgperience in particular segments of the
portfolio, trends and absolute levels of classified criticized loans, trends and absolute levetielinquent loans, trends in risk ratings, trend:
in industry charge-offs by particular segments eimahges in existing general economic and busiresditions affecting our lending areas and
the national economy. If our assumptions are irearour allowance for loan losses may not be Gefit to cover losses inherent in our loan
portfolio, resulting in additions to the allowance.

Management reviews and re-estimates the allowandedn losses quarterly. Additions to our allowafar loan losses as a result on
management's review and estimate could materiallyedise net income. Our regulators, as an intpgrabf their examination process,
periodically review our allowance for loan lossesl aay require us to increase our allowance fan loases by recognizing additional
provisions for loan losses charged to expensa detrease our allowance for loan losses by rezognioan charge-offs, net of recoveries.
Any such additional provisions for loan losses lwarge-offs, as required by these regulatory agenc@ild have a material adverse effect on
our financial condition and results of operations.

Our emphasis on commercial, multi-family/commerciaal estate and mortgage warehouse lending mayosepus to increased lending
risks.

We intend to continue emphasizing the originatibnanmercial loans and specialty loans, includimanis to mortgage banking businesses.
Commercial loans, including multi-family and comitiaf real estate loans, can expose a lender tmfiakbn-payment and loss because
repayment of the loans often depends on the sdateperation of a business or property and thedweer’'s cash flows. Such loans typically
involve larger loan balances to single borrowergroups of related borrowers compared to one-to-family residential mortgage loans. In
addition, we may need to increase our allowancéofm losses in the future to account for an ireeaa probable credit losses associated with
such loans. Also, we expect that many of our consrakborrowers will have more than one loan outdiag with us. Consequently, an adve
development with respect to one loan or one cretfitionship can expose us to a significantly grnegsk of loss compared to an adverse
development with respect to a one- to four-famélgidential mortgage loan.

As a lender to mortgage banking businesses, wadedwmancing to mortgage bankers by purchasingjes to resale under a master
repurchase agreement, the underlying residentigigages on a shotérm basis pending the ultimate sale of the morgadg investors. We a
subject to the risks associated with such lendimgjuding, but not limited to, the risks of fraughnkruptcy and possible default by the
borrower, closing agents, and the residential veeran the underlying mortgage, any of which caelslilt in credit losses. The risk of fraud
associated with this type of lending includes, ibutot limited to, settlement process risks, tls& df financing nonexistent loans or fictitious
mortgage loan transactions, or the risk that calidtdelivered is fraudulent or naxistent, creating a risk of loss of the full ambfimanced or
the underlying residential
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mortgage loan, or in the settlement processesistsissed in Note 21 — “LOSS CONTINGENCY?”, in Mar2b13, a suspected fraud was
discovered in the Bank’s loans held-for-sale pdidfcAdditional fraudulent transactions could havenaterial adverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations.

Our lending to mortgage businesses is a signifiparitof our assets and earnings. This businesshjgct to cyclicality of the mortgage lend
business, and volumes are likely to decline ifre¢rates increase, generally. A decline in tihe ofgrowth, volume or profitability of this
business unit, or a loss of its leadership coulceegkly affect our results of operations and fir@nmondition.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Bank had§iBi& and $2.9 billion, respectively, in commeidoans outstanding, composing
approximately 92.5% and 90.2%, respectively, ofdtal loan portfolio, which includes loans held &ale.

Decreased origination, volume and pricing decisioolscompetitors may adversely affect our profitatyil

The Bank currently operates a residential mortdsgeking business but plans to expand our originasale, and servicing of residential
mortgage loans in the future. The Bank also begdimg recent multi-family loan originations to tHiparties in the third quarter of 2014.
Changes in market interest rates and pricing dmtssby our loan competitors may adversely affeotated for our residential mortgage and
multi-family loan products, the revenue realizedtlom sale of loans and revenues received fromaegvsuch loans for others, and ultimately
reduce our net income. New regulations, increasgdlatory reviews, and/or changes in the struatfithe secondary mortgage markets whick
we would utilize to sell mortgage loans or othdethanges that could affect the multi-family resalarket may be introduced and may
increase costs and make it more difficult to opeeatesidential mortgage origination business lbnadti-family loans.

Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh may not payiiends or repurchase capital stock in the future.

On December 23, 2008, the Federal Home Loan Ba#ktsburgh (“FHLB”) announced that it would volanity suspend the payment of
dividends and the repurchase of excess capitalt statil further notice. The FHLB announced at thigte that it expected its ability to pay
dividends and add to retained earnings to be sigmifly curtailed due to low shotérm interest rates, an increased cost of maimgilguidity,
other than temporary impairment charges, and caingil access to debt markets at attractive ratege\ie FHLB resumed payment of
dividends and capital stock repurchases in 20]#talastock repurchases from member banks areweden a quarterly basis by the FHLB,
and there is no guarantee that such dividends apitht stock repurchases will continue in the fatuks of December 31, 2014, we held $71.6
million of FHLB capital stock.

The fair value of our investment securities can éitwate due to market conditions. Adverse econoracfprmance can lead to adverse
security performance and oth-than-temporary impairment.

As of December 31, 2014, the fair value of our staeent securities portfolio was approximately $Z1@illion. We have historically followed
a conservative investment strategy, with conceptratin securities that are backed by governmemtsgred enterprises. In the future, we may
seek to increase yields through more aggressiategies, which may include a greater percentagenpiorate securities, structured credit
products or non-agency mortgage backed securfisgors beyond our control can significantly inflae the fair value of securities in our
portfolio and can cause potential adverse charmteetfair value of these securities. These fadtaniside, but are not limited to, rating agency
actions in respect of the securities, defaultshigyissuer or with respect to the underlying seiessitand changes in market interest rates and
continued instability in the capital markets. Arfitliese factors, among others, could cause otlr-tdamporary impairments and realized
and/or unrealized losses in future periods andmExin other comprehensive income, which coulcetewmaterial adverse effect on us. The
process for determining whether impairment of aiggcis other-than-temporary usually requires c@rpsubjective judgments about the
future financial performance and liquidity of thesuer and any collateral underlying the securityrider to assess the probability of receiving
all contractual principal and interest paymentstansecurity.

Changes to estimates and assumptions made by mamagein preparing financial statements could advehg affect the Bancorp’s
business, operating results, reported assets aafblilities, financial condition, and capital levels.

Changes to estimates and assumptions made by nmaeagi@ connection with the preparation of the Bapts consolidated financial
statements could adversely affect the reported ats@f assets and liabilities and the reported ansoof income and expenses. The
preparation of the Bancorp’s consolidated finansiatements requires management to make certéiteteccounting estimates and
assumptions that could affect the reported amaafrassets and liabilities and the reported amoohitscome and expense during the reporting
periods. For example, as of December 31, 2018B#meorp reported $2.3 million as a receivable ftbenFDIC pursuant to certain loss sha
arrangements. This amount was derived using manag&sm
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best estimate of expected future cash flows basedaent performance and expectations of futurtopaance of the covered portfolio. To the
extent the covered assets perform better than teghebe Bancorp may not be able to collect alk portion of, the receivable balance repa
as of December 31, 2014. In the event the covessets perform better than originally estimatedattime of acquisition, the Bancorp coulc
required to reimburse all, or a portion of, itsodisnted purchase price to the FDIC. Further infaionaregarding the FDIC loss sharing
receivable, and other accounting policies subjesidnificant judgment and estimates, is includetManagement’s Discussion and Analysis -
Critical Accounting Policies.” Changes to managetisesissumptions or estimates could materially ahaesely affect the Company’s
business, operating results, reported assets alitities, financial condition, and capital levels.

Changes in accounting standards and policies candiicult to predict and can materially impact howe record and report our financial
results.

Our accounting policies and methods are fundaménmtadw we record and report our financial conditamd results of operations. From time
to time, the FASB or the SEC changes the finaramabunting and reporting standards or the politiasgovern the preparation of our
financial statements. These changes can be difticydredict and can materially impact how we relcand report our financial condition and
results of operations. We could be required toyappiv or revised guidance retrospectively, whicly megult in the revision of prior period
financial statements by material amounts. The impletation of new or revised accounting guidancédchave a material adverse effect on
financial results or net worth. Notably, the FASRcurrently considering changes to the frameworleftimating the allowance for loan and
lease losses which could significantly alter therent estimate as well as other elements of théaitking model.

Downgrades in U.S. Government and federal agenoyusities could adversely affect Customers Bancomahe Bank.

The long-term impact of the downgrade of the U.8v&nment and federal agencies from an AAA to arrAfedit rating is still uncertain.
However, in addition to causing economic and fianmarket disruptions, the downgrade, and anyreutiowngrades and/or failures to raise
the U.S. debt limit if necessary in the future, ldpamong other things, materially adversely afteetmarket value of the U.S. and other
government and governmental agency securities obpétlistomers Bank, the availability of those siiesras collateral for borrowing, and
our ability to access capital markets on favorabtens, as well as have other material adversetsftecthe operation of our business and our
financial results and condition. In particularc@uld increase interest rates and disrupt paymetesis, money markets, and long-term or sho
term fixed income markets, adversely affectingabst and availability of funding, which could negety affect profitability. Also, the adverse
consequences as a result of the downgrade cowddaei the borrowers of the loans the Bank makdsasa result, could adversely affect its
borrowers’ ability to repay their loans.

We may not be able to maintain consistent earnimgrofitability.

Customers Bank and predecessor entities have hadipén which we experienced operating lossesduding in 2009, portions of 2010 and
the first quarter of 2011. Although we made a prfwfi the years of 2011 through 2014, there candassurance that we will be able to remait
profitable in future periods, or, if profitable afhour overall earnings will remain consistentrarease in the future. Our earnings also may be
reduced by increased expenses associated witragentessets, such as additional employee compEmsapense, and increased interest
expense on any liabilities incurred or deposit&cgel to fund increases in assets. If earningaatagrow proportionately with our assets or
equity, our overall profitability may be adverselffected.

Continued or worsening general business and econoronditions could materially and adversely afferg.

Our business and operations are sensitive to gdmeseness and economic conditions in the UnitedeSt If the U.S. economy experiences
worsening conditions such as a recession, we dmuldaterially and adversely affected. Weak econ@migditions may be characterized by
deflation, instability in debt and equity capitahirkets, a lack of liquidity and/or depressed pricethe secondary market for mortgage loans,
increased delinquencies on loans, residential andreercial real estate price declines and lower hsates and commercial activity. Adverse
changes in any of these factors would be detrinhémiaur business. Our business is also signifigaffected by monetary and related policies
of the U.S. federal government, its agencies angiganent-sponsored entities. Adverse changes imogeic factors or US government
policies could have a negative effect on CustorBarscorp.
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The geographic concentration in the Northeast anddvAtlantic region makes our business susceptitbedownturns in the local economies
and depressed banking markets, which could matdyiand adversely affect us.

Our loan and deposit activities are largely basettié Northeast and Mid-Atlantic regions. As a teswr financial performance depends upon
economic conditions in this region. This region baperienced deteriorating local economic condginthe past economic cycle and a
downturn in the regional real estate market coalarhour financial condition and results of openagidbecause of the geographic concentratio
of loans within this region and because a largeqrgage of the loans are secured by real progéthere is decline in real estate values, the
collateral value for our loans will decrease andmwobability of incurring losses will increasetage ability to recover on defaulted loans by
selling the underlying real estate will be lessened

Additionally, Customers has made significant inwestt in commercial real estate loans. Often inraroercial real estate transaction,
repayment of the loan is dependent on the progrmerating sufficient rental income to servicelt@n. Economic conditions may affect the
tenant’s ability to make rental payments on a tintelsis, and may cause some tenants not to reméwehses, each of which may impact the
debtor’s ability to make loan payments. Furtheexpenses associated with commercial propertiesase dramatically, the tenant’s ability to
repay, and therefore the debtor’s ability to makeely loan payments, could be adversely affectddofthese factors could increase the
amount of non-performing loans, increase our piowi$or loan losses and reduce our net incomendceethe loan.

Our business is highly susceptible to credit risk.

As a lender, we are exposed to the risk that ositooners will be unable to repay their loans acemydo the contractual terms and that the
collateral securing the payment of their loangi§) may not be sufficient to assure repayment.ridks inherent in making any loan include
risks with respect to the ability of borrowers épay their loans and, if applicable, the periotim& over which the loan is repaid, risks relat
to proper loan underwriting and guidelines, risksulting from changes in economic and industry @@, risks inherent in dealing with
individual borrowers and risks resulting from uria@tties as to the future value of collateral. $ny, we have credit risk embedded in our
securities portfolio. Our credit standards, procedwand policies are designed to reduce the riskadlit losses to a low level, but may not
prevent us from incurring substantial credit losses

Additionally, we may restructure originated or aicqd loans if we believe the borrowers are expeiinproblems serving the debt pursuar

current terms and we believe the borrower is likelfully repay their restructured obligations. \Weay also be subject to legal or regulatory

requirements for restructured loans. With respecéstructured loans, we may grant concessionsrtowers experiencing financial difficulti

in order to facilitate repayment of the loan by @duction of the stated interest rate for the iiaing life of the loan to lower than the current
market rate for new loans with similar risk or E&ension of the maturity date.

We depend on our executive officers and key persrin implement our strategy and could be harmedtbg loss of their services.

We believe that the implementation of our stratedliydepend in large part on the skills of our extaee management team and our ability to
motivate and retain these and other key persoAwebrdingly, the loss of service of one or moreof executive officers or key personnel
could reduce our ability to successfully implemeuat growth strategy and materially and adversdigcaius. Leadership changes will occur
from time to time, and if significant resignatiomscur, we may not be able to recruit additionallifjed personnel. We believe our executive
management team possesses valuable knowledgethbdagnking industry and that their knowledge amdtionships would be very difficult
to replicate. Although our Chief Executive Offic@resident, and Chief Financial Officer have erténéo employment agreements with us, it
is possible that they may not complete the tertheir employment agreement or may choose not teweénupon expiration. Our success also
depends on the experience of our branch managéremading officers and on their relationships whk customers and communities they
serve. The loss of these key personnel could naggatimpact our banking operations. The loss of &egior personnel, or the inability to
recruit and retain qualified personnel in the fafurould have a material adverse effect on us.

We face significant competition from other finandiastitutions and financial services providers, W may materially and adversely affect
us.

Consumer and commercial banking is highly competitOur markets contain a large number of commuanity regional banks as well as a
significant presence of the counsytargest commercial banks. We compete with ottage sind national financial institutions, includisaving:
and loan associations, savings banks and credihanfor deposits and loans. In addition, we compeéth financial intermediaries, such as

consumer finance companies, mortgage banking coegan
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insurance companies, securities firms, mutual ftamdkseveral government agencies, as well as medgiters, in providing various types of
loans and other financial services. Some of thesgpetitors may have a long history of successfelajons in our markets, greater ties to
local businesses and more expansive banking resdtips, as well as better established deposit@sb&0ompetitors may also have greater
resources and access to capital and may possessadilantages such as operating more ATMs and ctindwextensive promotional and
advertising campaigns or operating a more develdpiednet platform. Competitors may also exhibiraater tolerance for risk and behave
more aggressively with respect to pricing in ordeincrease their market share.

The financial services industry could become evenencompetitive as a result of legislative, regutatind technological changes and
continued consolidation. Increased competition agrforancial services companies due to the recemaalation of certain competing
financial institutions may adversely affect ourlipito market our products and services. Technialmigadvances have lowered barriers to €
and made it possible for banks to compete in ouketavithout a retail footprint by offering comptéte rates, as well as non-banks to offer
products and services traditionally provided byksa©ur ability to compete successfully dependa ommber of factors, including, among
others:

» the ability to develop, maintain and build ugong-term customer relationships based on highity@lersonal service, effective
and efficient products and services, high ethitadards and safe and sound assets;

» the scope, relevance and competitive pricing oflpets and services offered to meet customer ngetldemand:

» the ability to provide customers with maximum comesice of access to services and availability okbay representative
« the ability to attract and retain highly qualifiechployees to operate our busin

» the ability to expand our market positi

* customer access to our decision makers, and cussatigfaction with our level of service; ¢

» the ability to operate our business effectively affitiently.
Failure to perform in any of these areas couldiiantly weaken our competitive position, whichubd materially and adversely affect us.

Like other financial services institutions, our agsand liability structures are monetary in natur&uch structures are affected by a vari
of factors, including changes in interest rates, igh can impact the value of financial instrumentseld by us.

Like other financial services institutions, we hagset and liability structures that are essentiatinetary in nature and are directly affected b
many factors, including domestic and internati@@inomic and political conditions, broad trendblsiness and finance, legislation and
regulation affecting the national and internatiomasiness and financial communities, monetary &uwaff policies, inflation, currency values,
market conditions, the availability and terms (urdihg cost) of short-term or long-term funding axaghital, the credit capacity or perceived
creditworthiness of customers and counterpartiestiaa level and volatility of trading markets. Sdahbtors can impact customers and
counterparties of a financial services institutgmd may impact the value of financial instrumerakl by a financial services institution.

Our earnings and cash flows largely depend upotetred of our net interest income, which is theatiénce between the interest income we
earn on loans, investments and other interestrgpaassets, and the interest we pay on interesinigdabilities, such as deposits and
borrowings. Because different types of assets iahdities may react differently and at differemhées to market interest rate changes, change:
in interest rates can increase or decrease oumtee¢st income. When interest-bearing liabilitieature or reprice more quickly than interest
earning assets in a period, an increase in inteatest would reduce net interest income. Similaddyen interest earning assets mature or re
more quickly, and because the magnitude of reggiofrinterest earning assets is often greater ititenest bearing liabilities, falling interest
rates would reduce net interest income.

Accordingly, changes in the level of market interases affect our net yield on interest earnirgetsand liabilities, loan and investment
securities portfolios and our overall results. Giemin interest rates may also have a signifigapact on any future loan origination revenues
Changes in interest rates also have a significapact on the carrying value of a significant petaga of the assets, both loans and investmer
securities, on our balance sheet. We may incuridehbt future and that debt may also be sensitiveterest rates and any increase in interes
rates could materially and adversely affect ugrkgt rates are highly sensitive to many factoyeibe our control, including general economic
conditions and policies of various
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governmental and regulatory agencies, particuthdyFederal Reserve. Adverse changes in the Fegesalrve’s interest rate policies or other
changes in monetary policies and economic conditemuld materially and adversely affect us.

We are dependent on our information technology atetecommunications systems and third-party serviceand systems failures,
interruptions or breaches of security could haveveaterial adverse effect on us.

Our business is highly dependent on the succeastulininterrupted functioning of our informatiocheology and telecommunications
systems and third-party servicers. We outsourceyrofnur major systems, such as data processiag,dervicing and deposit processing
systems. The failure of these systems, or the textioin of a third-party software license or senageeement on which any of these systems i
based, could interrupt our operations. Becausénbommation technology and telecommunications gystinterface with and depend on third-
party systems, we could experience service deifidéamand for such services exceeds capacity dr gurd-party systems fail or experience
interruptions. If significant, sustained or repeate system failure or service denial could compserour ability to operate effectively, damage
our reputation, result in a loss of customer busshand/or subject us to additional regulatorytstywand possible financial liability, any of
which could have a material adverse effect on us.

In addition, we provide our customers with the iptb bank remotely, including online, over thedmet and over the telephone. The secure
transmission of confidential information over timernet and other remote channels is a criticahetd of remote banking. Our network could
be vulnerable to unauthorized access, computesedphishing schemes and other security breadtemay be required to spend significant
capital and other resources to protect againdhtieat of security breaches and computer viruges, alleviate problems caused by security
breaches or viruses. To the extent that our aig$vidr the activities of our customers involve sterage and transmission of confidential
information, security breaches and viruses coufgbeg us to claims, regulatory scrutiny, litigataord other possible liabilities. Any inability
prevent security breaches or computer viruses aastulcause existing customers to lose confidemoaii systems and could materially and
adversely affect us.

Additionally, financial products and services h&deEome increasingly technology-driven. Our abiiityneet the needs of our customers
competitively, and in a cost-efficient manner, &dndent on the ability to keep pace with techriold@dvances and to invest in new
technology as it becomes available. Certain contggstimay have greater resources to invest in tdogg@nd may be better equipped to
market new technology-driven products and serviths.ability to keep pace with technological chaisgienportant, and the failure to do so
could have a material adverse impact on our busiaed therefore on our financial condition and ltesaf operations.

Loss of, or failure to adequately safeguard, cordittial or proprietary information may adversely &t the Bancor’s operations, net
income or reputation.

The Bancorp regularly collects, processes, trassamtl stores significant amounts of confidentitdrimation regarding its customers,
employees and others. This information is necedsauthe conduct of the Bancorp’s business acésitincluding the ongoing maintenance of
deposit, loan, investment management and othewuatcelationships for our customers, and receiuistructions and affecting transactions
those customers and other users of the Bancorpupts and services. In addition to confidentidimation regarding its customers,
employees and others, the Bancorp compiles, presegansmits and stores proprietary, non-pubfarimation concerning its own business,
operations, plans and strategies. In some casegahfidential or proprietary information is calted, compiled, processed, transmitted or
stored by third parties on behalf of the Bancorp.

Information security risks have generally increasegtcent years because of the proliferation @f technologies and the increased
sophistication and activities of perpetrators di@yattacks. A failure in or breach of the Bancemerational or information security systems
or those of the Bancorp’s third-party service pdevs, as a result of cyber-attacks or informateeusity breaches or due to employee error,
malfeasance or other disruptions could adverségcabur business, result in the disclosure or sesaf confidential or proprietary informatic
damage our reputation, increase our costs andisedasses. As a result, cyber security and théreed development and enhancement o
controls and processes designed to protect thedBaiscsystems, computers, software, data and nksafosm attack, damage or unauthorized
access remain a priority for the Bancorp.

If this confidential or proprietary information weto be mishandled, misused or lost, the Bancoufrddze exposed to significant regulatory
consequences, reputational damage, civil litigagind financial loss. Mishandling, misuse or lostha$ confidential or proprietary information
could occur, for example, if the confidential opprietary information were erroneously provideghéaties who are not permitted to have the
information, either by fault of the systems or eaygles of the Bancorp, or the systems or employktbsrd parties which have collected,
compiled, processed, transmitted or stored the
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information on the Bancorp’s behalf, where the infation is intercepted or otherwise inappropriataken by third parties or where there is a
failure or breach of the network, communicationgnéormation systems which are used to collect, piten process, transmit or store the
information.

Although the Bancorp employs a variety of physipatcedural and technological safeguards to protésttonfidential and proprietary
information from mishandling, misuse or loss, theafeguards do not provide absolute assurancenishtindling, misuse or loss of the
information will not occur, or that if mishandlinmisuse or loss of the information did occur, thegents would be promptly detected and
addressed. Additionally, as information securigksi and cyber threats continue to evolve, the Bgnoay be required to expend additional
resources to continue to enhance its informatienréy measures and/or to investigate and remediagyanformation security vulnerabilities.

Our directors and executive officers can influentlee outcome of shareholder votes and, in some casleareholders may not have the
opportunity to evaluate and affect the investmermictsion regarding a potential investment or acqtign transaction.

As of December 31, 2014, the directors and exeeutfficers of Customers Bancorp as a group ownetbhof 1,682,185 shares of Voting
Common Stock and exercisable warrants to purchase an additional 350,858 shares of Voting Comi@tock, which potentially gives the
as a group, the ability to control approximately % of the issued and outstanding Voting Common Stbtkddition, directors of Customers
Bank who are not directors of Customers Bancorp awadditional 47,583 shares of Voting Common Staruk exercisable warrants to
purchase up to an additional 8,233 shares of Vd@ioagimon Stock, which if combined with the directarsl officers of Customers Bancorp,
potentially gives them, as a group, the abilitgdmtrol approximately 8.04% of the issued and auiding Voting Common Stock. We believe
ownership of stock causes directors and officefsaiee the same interests as shareholders, bsbigales them the ability to vote as
shareholders for matters that are in their persioatest, which may be contrary to the wishestbépshareholders. Shareholders will not
necessarily be provided with an opportunity to ea## the specific merits or risks of one or morgetinstitutions. Any decision regarding a
potential investment or acquisition transactiorl v made by our board of directors. Except int@dicircumstances as required by applicable
law, consummation of an acquisition will not reguihe approval of holders of Voting Common Stockcdrdingly, the shareholder may not
have an opportunity to evaluate and affect thestient decision regarding potential investmentoguasition transactions.

We intend to engage in acquisitions of other bussses from time to time. These acquisitions may praduce revenue or earnings
enhancements or cost savings at levels, or withimeframes, originally anticipated and may result imforeseen integration difficulties.

We regularly evaluate opportunities to strengthenonrrent market position by acquiring and invegtin banks and in other complementary
businesses, or opening new branches, and whenm@jgisoopportunities arise, subject to regulatgpyraval, we plan to engage in acquisitions
of other businesses and in opening new branches$. teansactions could, individually or in the aggate, have a material effect on our
operating results and financial condition, inclglghort and longerm liquidity. Our acquisition activities could beaterial to our business. F
example, we could issue additional shares of Vo@ingymon Stock in a purchase transaction, whichdcdillite current shareholders’ value or
ownership interest. These activities could requs¢o use a substantial amount of cash, othedligssets and/or incur debt. In addition, if
goodwill recorded in connection with acquisitionsre determined to be impaired, then we would beired to recognize a charge against our
earnings, which could materially and adverselycftrir results of operations during the period ol the impairment was recognized. Our
acquisition activities could involve a number ofldaibnal risks, including the risks of:

* incurring time and expense associated with ifiéng and evaluating potential acquisitions andatéting the terms of potential
transactions, resulting in our attention being d&@ from the operation of our existing business;

» using inaccurate estimates and judgments taatakredit, operations, management and market wigtk respect to the target
institution or assets;

» being potentially exposed to unknown or contindetilities of banks and businesses we acq

» being required to expend time and expense to iateghe operations and personnel of the combinsihésse:
« experiencing higher operating expenses relatiaptrating income from the new operatic

e creating an adverse shoerm effect on our results of operatic

» losing key employees and customers as a resuit atquisition that is poorly received; i
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e incurring significant problems relating to thenwersion of the financial and customer data ofethiity being acquired into our
financial and customer product systems.

Additionally, in evaluating potential acquisitiopmortunities we may seek to acquire failed banksuth FDIC-assisted acquisitions. While
the FDIC may, in such acquisitions, provide asamstao mitigate certain risks, such as sharingcposure to loan losses, and providing
indemnification against certain liabilities, of tfeled institution, we may not be able to accusaéstimate our potential exposure to loan lo
and other potential liabilities, or the difficulof integration, in acquiring such institutions.

Depending on the condition of any institutions ssets that are acquired, any acquisition may aat lae the near term, materially adversely
affect our capital and earnings and, if not sudodlgsntegrated following the acquisition, may d¢ome to have such effects. We cannot assur
you that we will be successful in overcoming thesles or any other problems encountered in conoratiith pending or potential acquisitiol
Our inability to overcome these risks could havedwverse effect on levels of reported net incomieyrn on equity and return on assets, an
ability to achieve our business strategy and maintearket value.

We are subject to certain risks related to FDIC-&sed acquisitions.

The success of past FDIC-assisted acquisitionsaapd-DIC-assisted acquisitions in which we mayipigate in the future, will depend on a
number of factors, including our ability to:

- fully integrate, and to integrate successfully, bin@nches acquired into bank operati

« limit the outflow of deposits held by new custns in the acquired branches and to successfuiinrand manage interest-
earning assets (loans) acquired in FDIC-assistqdisitions;

e retain existing deposits and to generate negrést-earning assets in the geographic areas psiyiserved by the acquired
banks;

» effectively compete in new markets in which we da previously have a preser

» successfully deploy the cash received in theG=Bdsisted acquisitions into assets bearing seifilyi high yields without
incurring unacceptable credit or interest rate;risk

» control the incremental ndnterest expense from the acquired branches inrmerahat enables us to maintain a favorable oh
efficiency ratio;

* retain and attract the appropriate personnel fothia acquired branches; ¢

» earn acceptable levels of interest and md@rest income, including fee income, from thelacefd bank

As with any acquisition involving a financial instiion, particularly one involving the transferafarge number of bank branches (as is often
the case with FDIC-assisted acquisitions), therg beahigher than average levels of service disomgtthat would cause inconveniences or
potentially increase the effectiveness of compefiimgncial institutions in attracting our customdrgegrating the acquired branches could
present unique challenges and opportunities beazfitbe nature of the transactions. Integratiooresfwill also likely divert our managemesit’
attention and resources. It is not known whethemiliebe able to integrate acquired branches swafaélg, and the integration process could
result in the loss of key employees, the disruptibangoing business or inconsistencies in starglahtrols, procedures and policies that
adversely affect our ability to maintain relatioipghwith clients, customers, depositors and empsya to achieve the anticipated benefits of
the FDIC-assisted acquisitions. We may also enavuntexpected difficulties or costs during inteigrathat could materially adversely affect
our earnings and financial condition. Additionallye may be unable to compete effectively in thekeisareas previously served by the
acquired branches or to manage any growth restftiimy FDIC-assisted acquisitions effectively.

Our willingness and ability to grow acquired braesliollowing FDIC-assisted acquisitions dependeresal factors, most importantly the
ability to retain certain key personnel that weetor transfer in connection with FDIC-assisted #itians. Our failure to retain these
employees could adversely affect the success oE€Fd3kisted acquisitions and our future growth.
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Our ability to continue to receive benefits of oupss Sharing Agreements with the FDIC is conditich@pon compliance with certain
requirements under the Purchase and Assumption Agreents.

Pursuant to the Purchase and Assumption Agreemenssgned in connection with our FDIC-assisted &itions of USA Bank and ISN Bank
(“Purchase and Assumption Agreements”), we ard#meficiary of loss sharing arrangements with tB&d~(the “Loss Sharing Agreements”)
that call for the FDIC to fund a portion of its &5 on a majority of the assets acquired in cororeetith the transactions. Our ability to
recover a portion of losses and retain the losergh@rotection is subject to compliance with cert@quirements imposed on us in the
Purchase and Assumption Agreements. The requiresnoéthie Loss Sharing Agreements relate primagilipan servicing standards
concerning the assets covered by the Loss Shagngefents (the “Covered Assets}, well as obtaining the consent of the FDIC tcagegr
certain corporate transactions that may be deemeéeruhe agreements to constitute a transfer dbdsesharing benefits. For example, FDIC
approval will be required for any merger we undetthat would result in the pre-merger shareholdéssich entity owning less than sixty-six
and twof/thirds percent (66.66%) of the equity & $lurviving entity.

As the loan servicing standards evolve, we may gapee difficulties in complying with the requirents of the Loss Sharing Agreements,
which could result in Covered Assets losing somalloof their loss sharing coverage. In accordanite the terms of the Loss Sharing
Agreements, we are subject to audits by the FDiGuigh its designated agent. The required termeof.bss Sharing Agreements are
extensive and failure to comply with any of thedglines could result in a specific asset or grdugssets losing their loss sharing coverage.

In such instances in which the consent of the FidI@quired under the Purchase and Assumption Ageats, the FDIC may withhold its
consent to such transactions or may conditionatsent on terms that we do not find acceptabletéTban be no assurance that the FDIC will
grant its consent or condition its consent on tettmag we find acceptable. If the FDIC does not gitsnconsent to a transaction we would like
to pursue, or conditions its consent on termswieatio not find acceptable, this may cause us nehg@mge in a corporate transaction that migt
otherwise benefit shareholders or to pursue suddingaction without obtaining the FDIC’s conserftjak could result in termination of the
Loss Sharing Agreements with the FDIC.

FDIC-assisted acquisition opportunities may not lmeoe available and increased competition may makeadre difficult for us to bid on
failed bank transactions on terms considered todueeptable

Our nearterm business strategy includes consideration i@l acquisitions of failing banks that the FOitans to place in receivership. 1
FDIC may not place banks that meet our strategieatibes into receivership. Failed bank transactiare attractive opportunities in part
because of loss sharing arrangements with the FERdQimit the acquirer's downside risk on the fhased loan portfolio and, apart from our
assumption of deposit liabilities, we have sigmrifitdiscretion as to the non-deposit liabilitiesttwe assume. In addition, assets purchased
from the FDIC are marked to their fair value andanany cases there is little or no addition to goildwising from an FDIC-assisted
acquisition. The bidding process for failing backsild become very competitive, and the increaseapetition may make it more difficult for
us to bid on terms we consider to be acceptablkehé&y all FDIC-assisted acquisitions would requiseto obtain applicable regulatory
approval.

If we do not open new branches as planned, or dé achieve targeted profitability on new branchesreings may be reducec

We plan to open approximately four to six new brescannually for the next several years in andrat@ur target markets of southeastern
Pennsylvania, New Jersey, New York, Maryland, Caotinet, Virginia and Delaware. These plans may geaihe opening of new branche
subject to regulatory approvals. We cannot pregiatther the banking regulators will agree with grtowth plans or if or when they will
provide the necessary branch approvals. Numeratarfacontribute to the performance of a new brasghh as the ability to select a suitable
location, competition, our ability to hire and rietgualified personnel, and the effectiveness afroarketing strategy. It takes time for a new
branch to generate significant deposits and lodumnve to offset expenses, some of which, like saegagind occupancy expense, are relatively
fixed costs. The initial cost, including capitabaspurchases, for each new branch to open would &eange of approximately $200,000 to
$250,000. Additionally, there can be no assurahaedny of these new branches will ever becomdtpbdé. During the period of time befor:
branch can become profitable, operating a branéimegatively impact net income.

To the extent that we are unable to increase lodmough organic loan growth, we may be unable tocsgssfully implement our growth
strategy, which could materially and adversely affess.

In addition to growing our business through strategquisitions, we also intend to grow our bussntbsough organic loan growth. While loan
growth has been strong and our loan balances haveaised over the past two fiscal years, mucheo2€13 and 2014 loan growth came from
multi-family and commercial real estate lendingthié bank is unsuccessful with
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diversifying its loan originations or if we do ngitow the existing business lines, our results @rapons and financial condition could be
negatively impacted.

We may not be able to effectively manage our grawth

Our future operating results and financial condititepend to a large extent on our ability to susfcdly manage our growth. Our growth has
placed, and it may continue to place, significaerhdnds on our operations and management. Whetloeigthadditional acquisitions or orga
growth, our current plan to expand our businesiegendent upon our ability to:

e continue to implement and improve our operatiocredit underwriting and administration, finarci@ccounting, enterprise risk
management and other internal and disclosure dergral processes and our reporting systems andquoes in order to manage a
growing number of client relationships;

e comply with changes in, and an increasing nunofidaws, rules and regulations, including thotarny national securities exchange
on which any of our securities become listed;

e scale our technology and other systeptatforms
e maintain and attract appropriate staff
» operate profitable or raise cap

* support our asset growth with adequate depdsitgling and liquidity while maintaining our netémest margin and meeting our
customers’ and regulators’ liquidity requirements.

We may not successfully implement improvementstantegrate, our management information and cosirstems, credit underwriting and
administration, internal and disclosure controtg] arocedures and processes in an efficient oftimanner and may discover deficiencies in
existing systems and controls. In particular, camtmls and procedures must be able to accommaedaitecrease in loan volume in various
markets and the infrastructure that comes with bamking centers and banks. Our growth strategy diart management from our existing
business and may require us to incur additiona¢edjiures to expand our administrative and operatimfrastructure and, if we are unable to
effectively manage and grow our banking franchiseluding to the satisfaction of our regulators, eeeild be materially and adversely
affected. In addition, if we are unable to manageaurrent and future expansion in our operatisresmay experience compliance, operationa
and regulatory problems and delays, have to slavwpace of growth or even stop our market and prodxgansion, or have to incur additional
expenditures beyond current projections to supgpoeh growth, any one of which could materially adlgersely affect us. If we experience
difficulties with the development of new businestaties or the integration process of acquiredibasses, the anticipated benefits of any
particular acquisition may not be realized fully,at all, or may take longer to realize than expeécAdditionally, we may be unable to
recognize synergies, operating efficiencies aneitpected benefits within expected timeframes arstl pmjections, or at all. We also may not
be able to preserve the goodwill of an acquiredrfaial institution. Our growth could lead to incsea in our legal, audit, administrative and
financial compliance costs, which could materialhd adversely affect us.

We may not be able to meet the cash flow requiretaeri our loan funding obligations, deposit withdnals, or other business needs and
fund our asset growth unless we maintain sufficidiquidity.

Customers Bank must maintain sufficient liquidibyftind its balance sheet growth in order to be shkiccessfully grow our revenues, make
loans and to repay deposit and other liabilitiethase mature or are drawn. This liquidity can aagred in both wholesale and non-wholesale
funding markets. Our asset growth over the pastyfeavs has been funded with various forms of dépasid wholesale funding, including
brokered and wholesale time deposits, FHLB advarases Federal funds line borrowings. Total wholestdposits including brokered depo
were 35.3% and 10.6% of total deposits as of Deeer@b, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Our gross foateposit ratio was 126.8% at
December 31, 2014 and 108.5% at December 31, 2018w loan to deposit ratios excluding the moregagrehouse portfolio funded by
short term FHLB borrowings were 97.4% and 83.5%fd3ecember 31, 2014 and 2013, respectiv#liholesale funding can cost more than
deposits generated from our traditional branchesgsind customer relationships and is subject taiogpractical limits such as our liquidity
policy limits, our available collateral for FHLB brewings capacity and Federal funds line limitshadur lenders. Additionally, regulators
consider wholesale funding beyond certain pointsetamprudent and might suggest that future agsetth be reduced or halted. In the
absence of appropriate levels and mix of funding might need to reduce earning asset growth thrétheyheduction of current production,
sales of loans and/or the sale of participatioarggts in future and current loans. This might cedaur future growth and net income.
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The amount loaned to us is generally dependerii@nadlue of the eligible collateral pledged and fmancial condition. These lenders could
reduce the percentages loaned against variougarall@ategories, eliminate certain types of cetiatand otherwise modify or even terminate
their loan programs, if further disruptions in ttegpital markets occur. Any change or terminationwfborrowings from the FHLB or
correspondent banks could have an adverse effemtioprofitability and financial condition, incluaj liquidity.

We may not be able to develop and retain a stroogeadeposit base and other low-cost, stable fundsogrces.

Customers Bank depends on checking, savings andymoarket deposit account balances and other fofrogstomer deposits as a primary
source of funding for our lending activities. Wepekt that our future loan growth will largely depgesn our ability to retain and grow a strong,
low-cost deposit base. Because 37.8% of our depasé# as of December 31, 2014 was time depositsyitprove harder to maintain and grow
our deposit base than would otherwise be the esgecially since many of these deposits currerafyipterest at above-market rates. As of
December 31, 2014, $976.1 million (57.0%) of odalttime deposits are scheduled to mature througteber 31, 2015. We are working to
transition certain of our customers to lower coatlitional bank deposits as higher cost fundinghsas time deposits, mature. If interest rates
increase, whether due to changes in inflation, naygeoolicy, competition or other factors, we woelkpect to pay higher interest rates on
deposits, which would increase our funding costs@mpress our net interest margin. We may notesetn moving our deposits to lower
yielding savings and transactions products, whalid materially and adversely affect us. In additiwvith concerns about bank failures o

the past several years and the end of the FDIGimterest transaction deposit guarantee prograDemember 31, 2012, customers,
particularly those who may maintain deposits inemscof insured limits, have become concerned ahewxtent to which their deposits are
insured by the FDIC. Customers may withdraw depdsiensure that their deposits with us are fulfured, and may place excess amounts ir
other institutions or make investments that aregiged as being more secure and/or higher yieldiogher, even if we are able to maintain
and grow our deposit base, deposit balances carazwhen customers perceive alternative invessisuch as the stock market, will
provide a better risk/return tradeoff. If customersve money out of bank deposits, we could losgatively low cost source of funds,
increasing our funding costs and reducing our metrést income and net income. Additionally, anghsiess of funds could result in lower Ig
originations and growth, which could materially aadizersely affect our results of operations andrfaial condition, including liquidity.

Our acquisitions generally will require regulatorgpprovals, and failure to obtain them would restriour growth.

We intend to complement and expand our businegailguing strategic acquisitions of community bagKianchises and other businesses.
Generally, any acquisition of target financial ingtons, banking centers or other banking assgtssbwill require approval by, and cooperai
from, a number of governmental regulatory agengessibly including the Federal Reserve, the OC€tha FDIC, as well as state banking
regulators. In acting on applications, federal iagkegulators consider, among other factors:

» the effect of the acquisition on competiti

» the financial condition, liquidity, results of opgions, capital levels and future prospects ofagmglicant and the bank(s) involv
» the quantity and complexity of previously consumadadcquisition:

» the managerial resources of the applicant andahk&(b) involvec

» the convenience and needs of the communityudict the record of performance under the CommuRéinvestment Act
(‘CRA);

» the effectiveness of the applicant in combating eydaundering activities; al

« the extent to which the acquisition would resulgieater or more concentrated risks to the stglmfithe United States banking
financial system.

Such regulators could deny our application basethermbove criteria or other considerations, whichild restrict our growth, or the regulat
approvals may not be granted on terms that argtaizle to us. For example, we could be requiresktbbanking centers as a condition to
receiving regulatory approvals, and such a contliti@y not be acceptable to us or may reduce thefibehany acquisition.
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The success of future transactions will depend amr ability to successfully identify and consummatequisitions of banking franchises thi
meet our investment objectives. Because of theriséecompetition for acquisition opportunities ande limited number of potential targets,
we may not be able to successfully consummate aitjons on attractive terms, or at all, that are cessary to grow our business.

Our acquisition history should be viewed in theteahof the recent opportunities available to ua assult of the confluence of our access to
capital at a time when market dislocations of istd proportions resulted in attractive asset &itjan opportunities. As conditions change,
we may prove to be unable to execute our acquis#tirategy, which would materially and adversefeetfus. The success of future
transactions will depend on our ability to succekgidentify and consummate transactions with ¢étganking franchises that meet our
investment objectives. There are significant riz&sociated with our ability to identify and sucéeky consummate these acquisitions. There
are a limited number of acquisition opportuniti@sd we expect to encounter intense competition fstrar banking organizations competing
for acquisitions and also from other investmentfiand entities looking to acquire financial indtdns. Many of these entities are well
established and have extensive experience in fgigngtiand consummating acquisitions directly ootigh affiliates. Many of these competit
possess ongoing banking operations with greatantial, technical, human and other resources arekado capital than we do, which could
limit the acquisition opportunities we pursue. @ampetitors may be able to achieve greater coggs\vthrough consolidating operations or
otherwise, than we could. These competitive lirota give others an advantage in pursuing ceriguiaitions. In addition, increased
competition may drive up the prices for the acdiges we pursue and make the other acquisitiongenore onerous, which would make the
identification and successful consummation of thaxsguisitions less attractive to us. Competitory bwwilling to pay more for acquisitions
than we believe are justified, which could resaltis having to pay more for them than we preféodorego the opportunity. As a result of the
foregoing, we may be unable to successfully idgratifd consummate acquisitions on attractive teamat all, that are necessary to grow our
business.

We will generally establish the pricing of transaes and the capital structure of banking franchisebe acquired by us on the basis of
financial projections for such banking franchidesgeneral, projected operating results will bedobsn the judgment of our management tean
In all cases, projections are only estimates afritesults that are based upon assumptions male tne that the projections are developed
and the projected results may vary significantbnfractual results. General economic, political aratket conditions can have a material
adverse impact on the reliability of such projensioln the event that the projections made in cotimre with our acquisitions, or future
projections with respect to new acquisitions, areatcurate, such inaccuracies could materiallyaahetrsely affect us.

We may suffer losses due to minority investment®iher financial institutions or related companies.

From time to time, we may make or consider makimgomity investments in other financial institutioastechnology companies in the
financial services business. If we do so, we maybeaable to influence the activities of companmeshich we invest, and may suffer losses
due to these activities. Investments in foreign panies could pose additional risks as a resultsthdce, language barriers and potential lack
of information (for example, foreign institutiorincluding foreign financial institutions, may nag bbligated to provide as much information
regarding their operations as those in the UnitateS). Our investment in Religare Enterprises témhior Religare), which is a diversified
financial services company and is applying for akirag license in India, represents such an investnihere is no assurance of the timing or
Religare’s ability to obtain a banking license nlia, which is important to our anticipated investrnand crosseferral strategy, and the rest

of this strategy and the levels of new businesweéerfrom such referrals, cannot be predicted. &l@sl other factors may result in lower-than
expected returns, or a loss, on our investmentiigRre. We do not expect to receive any dividesrdsur investment in Religare securities. In
addition, our investment in Religare may not haneerharket liquidity needed to realize a gain oridlmsses on our investment and any
dispositions of our Religare common stock may betéd or delayed by market conditions or the nesddgulatory or other approvals in Inc
and the value of our investment will be subjedtdotuations in the currency exchange rates betvileenndian rupee and the United States
dollar. On December 31, 2013, we announced thaineestment in Religare would be capped at $23Iami(4.1 million common shares).
We had the ability to purchase warrants to acquiréo an additional $28.0 million of Religare stdik decided not to acquire the warrants or
otherwise increase our holdings of Religare st@ak. current holdings represent 2.8% of currenttantling Religare shares.

We will be required to hold capital for United St bank regulatory purposes to support our investinia Religare securities.

Under the newly adopted U.S. capital adequacy rwbgh became effective as of January 1, 2015hawe to hold risk based capital based ol
the amount of Religare common stock we own. Theaichpf the final capital adequacy rules is stilingeevaluated. Based upon the
implementation of the final U.S. capital adequadgs, these investments are potentially subjedskoweighting of 300% of the amount of the
investment; however, to the extent future aggrebeterying value of certain
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equity exposures exceed 10% of the Bancorp's titahdapital, risk weightings of 300% may apply.yAcapital that is required to be used to
support our Religare investment will not be avdgéatb support our United States operations or Gusts Bank, if needed.

Some institutions we could acquire may have dissed assets and there can be no assurance that Wéevable to realize the valt
predicted from these assets or that we will maké#isient provision for future losses in the valuef,cor accurately estimate the future wr-
downs taken in respect of, these assets.

Loan portfolios and other assets acquired in tretias may experience increases in delinquenciddasses in the loan portfolios, or in
amounts that exceed initial forecasts developethduhe due diligence investigation prior to acogrthose institutions. In addition, asset
values may be impaired in the future due to fadteas cannot currently be predicted, including detation in economic conditions and
subsequent declines in collateral values and coggility indicators. Any of these events could adey affect the financial condition, liquidit
capital position and value of institutions acquiesd of our business as a whole. Further, as atezgl bank holding company, if we acquire
bank subsidiaries, they may become subject to @oaranty liability under applicable banking lafiwie do so and any of the foregoing
adverse events occur with respect to one subsjdizey may adversely affect other subsidiariesefsgaluations are estimates of value and
there is no certainty that we will be able to ssets of target institutions at the estimatedeyaduen if it is determined to be in our best
interests to do so. The institutions we may tangay have substantial amounts of asset classediichwhere is currently limited or no
marketability.

As a result of an investment or acquisition trangam, we may be required to take wr-downs or write-offs, restructuring and impairment
or other charges that could have a significant ndye effect on our financial condition and resulisf operations.

We conduct due diligence investigations of targstiiutions we intend to acquire. Due diligencérige consuming and expensive due to the
operations, accounting, finance and legal profesggowho must be involved in the due diligence pssc Even if extensive due diligence is
conducted on a target institution with which we nbaycombined, this diligence may not reveal alleriat issues that may affect a particular
target institution, and factors outside our contoolthe control of the target institution, mayelaarise. If, during the diligence process, weftfa
identify issues specific to a target institutiontlee environment in which the target institutioreogtes, we may be forced to later write down ol
write off assets, restructure operations or inoysdirment or other charges that could result imrépg losses. These charges may also occur
we are not successful in integrating and manadiagperations of the target institution with whiga combine. In addition, charges of this
nature may cause us to violate net worth or otbeeiants to which we may be subject as a resassiiming preexisting debt held by a target
institution or by virtue of obtaining debt finangin

Resources could be expended in considering or eatihg potential investment or acquisition transaetis that are not consummated, whi
could materially and adversely affect subsequerteatpts to locate and acquire or merge with anotlersiness.

We anticipate that the investigation of each spetafrget institution and the negotiation, draftengd execution of relevant agreements,
disclosure documents and other instruments williregsubstantial management time and attentiorsabdtantial costs for accountants,
attorneys and others. If a decision is made nobtoplete a specific investment or acquisition teatisn, the costs incurred up to that point for
the proposed transaction likely would not be recalke. Furthermore, even if an agreement is reastlating to a specific target institution,
we may fail to consummate the investment or actjostransaction for any number of reasons, inecigdhose beyond our control. Any such
event will result in a loss of the related costauimed, and could result in additional costs orezges, which could materially and adversely
affect subsequent attempts to locate and acquimgeoge with another institution and our reportechieas.
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Risks Relating to the Regulation of Our Industry

The enactment of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refoand Consumer Protection Act of 2010 may have a matedverse effect on our
business.

On July 21, 2010, President Obama signed into feaaDiodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Btiote Act of 2010 (which we refer
to as the “Dodd-Frank Act”), which imposes sigrdifit regulatory and compliance changes. The keytsffgf the Dodd-Frank Act on our
business are:

» changes to regulatory capital requireme
» exclusion of hybrid securities, including trust fiereed securities, issued on or after May 19, 20d tier 1 capita

» creation of new government regulatory agenaeslt{ as the Financial Stability Oversight Couneljch will oversee systemic
risk, and the Consumer Financial Protection Buraduich will develop and enforce rules for bank amah-bank providers of
consumer financial products);

e potential limitations on federal preempti

» changes to deposit insurance assessn

» regulation of debit interchange fees we €

» changes in retail banking regulations, includingeptial limitations on certain fees we may cha@m&

» changes in regulation of consumer mortgage loagir@iion and risk retentic

In addition, the Dodd-Frank Act restricts the dbibf banks to engage in certain proprietary trgdinto sponsor or invest in private equity or
hedge funds. The Dodd-Frank Act also contains gioms designed to limit the ability of insured dsipary institutions, their holding
companies and their affiliates to conduct certaiagss and derivatives activities and to take cepaimcipal positions in financial instruments.

Some provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act became dffeémmediately upon its enactment. Many provisjdrevyever, still require regulations
to be promulgated by various federal agenciesdermto be implemented, some of which have beengsexpby the applicable federal agen:
The provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act may have weridied effects, which will not be clear until implkemation. The changes resulting from
the Dodd-Frank Act could limit our business act@st require changes to certain of our businessipes, impose upon us more stringent
capital, liquidity and leverage requirements orestfise materially and adversely affect us. Thesanghs may also require us to invest
significant management attention and resourcesdtuate and make any changes necessary to comghlynesv statutory and regulatory
requirements. Failure to comply with the new regents could also materially and adversely affeciumy changes in the laws or regulations
or their interpretations could be materially adeetis investors in our Voting Common Stock. For aendetailed description of the Dodldank
Act, see “Supervision and Regulation — Changesaiwd, Regulations or Policies and the Dodd-Frank”Act

New regulations could adversely impact our earningige to, among other things, increased complianosts or costs due to noncompliant

The Consumer Financial Protection Bureau has isauetk, effective as of January 14, 2014, desigoetarify for lenders how they can av
monetary damages under the Dodd-Frank Act, whichlidvbold lenders accountable for ensuring a borrsaability to repay a mortgage.
Loans that satisfy this “qualified mortgage” sateritor will be presumed to have complied with the iadility-to-repay standard. Under the
Consumer Financial Protection Bureau’s rule, a lifjed mortgage” loan must not contain certain sfied features, including but not limited
to: (i) excessive upfront points and fees (thosmeerling 3% of the total loan amount, less “bona ficsccount points” for prime loans);

(ii) interest-only payments; (iii) negative-amodiion; and (iv) terms longer than 30 years. Alsajualify as a “qualified mortgage,” a
borrower’s total monthly debt service-to-incoméaaahay not exceed 43%. Lenders must also verifydomiment the income and financial
resources relied upon to qualify the borrower far iban and underwrite the loan based on a fullgréiming payment schedule and maximum
interest rate during the first five years, takintpiaccount all applicable taxes, insurance anelsassents. The Consumer Financial Protection
Bureau’s rule on qualified mortgages could limit ability or desire to make certain types of loan$oans to certain borrowers, or could make
it more expensive and/or time consuming to makeeheans, which could adversely impact our growthrofitability.

Additionally, on December 10, 2013, five finanaiagulatory agencies, including our primary fedeegjulator, the Federal Reserve, adopted
final rules (the “Final Rules”) implementing the-salled Volcker Rule embodied in Section 13 of Bank
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Holding Company Act, which was added by Section 6flthe Dodd-Frank Act. The Final Rules prohibihkig entities from, among other
things, (1) engaging in short-term proprietary imgdor their own accounts, and (2) having ceraimership interests in and relationships witt
hedge funds or private equity funds (“covered fupdehe Final Rules are intended to provide greatarity with respect to both the extent of
those primary prohibitions and of the related exeoms and exclusions. The Final Rules also reqeah regulated entity to establish an
internal compliance program that is consistent withextent to which it engages in activities cedeby the Volcker Rule, which must include
(for the largest entities) making regular repolisu those activities to regulators. Community tsrskich as Customers Bancorp, have been
afforded some relief under the Final Rules. If sbhahks are engaged only in exempted proprietadyrigasuch as trading in U.S. government,
agency, state and municipal obligations, they aesmpt entirely from compliance program requiremellisreover, even if a community bank
engages in proprietary trading or covered fundvas under the rule, they need only incorporaferences to the Volcker Rule into their
existing policies and procedures. The Final Rulesveffective April 1, 2014, but the conformanceghas been extended from its statutory
end date of July 21, 2014 until July 21, 2016, tredFederal Reserve has announced its intentifurttter extend the conformance period until
July 21, 2017. Management is currently evaluatirggRinal Rules, which are lengthy and detailed.

We operate in a highly regulated environment andetlaws and regulations that govern our operatiomesrporate governance, executive
compensation and accounting principles, or changaghem, or our failure to comply with them, coulehaterially and adversely affect us.

We are subject to extensive regulation, supervjsiod legislation that govern almost all aspectsusfoperations. Intended to protect
customers, depositors and the FDIC’s Deposit Imstgdund (the “DIF”) and not our shareholders, éHas/s and regulations, among other
matters, prescribe minimum capital requirementpase limitations on our business activities, lithi dividends or distributions that we can
pay, restrict the ability of our subsidiary bankettgage in transactions with the Company, and impestain specific accounting requirements
on us that may be more restrictive and may resutéater or earlier charges to earnings or redtin our capital than GAAP. Compliance
with laws and regulations can be difficult and bgsind changes to laws and regulations often im@aklitional compliance costs, and may
make certain products impermissible or unecono@ig. failure to comply with these laws and regulasioeven if the failure follows good fa
effort or reflects a difference in interpretati@ould subject us to restrictions on our businesigities, reputational harm, fines and other
penalties, any of which could materially and adebrsiffect us. Further, any new laws, rules andilisgns could make compliance more
difficult or expensive and also materially and adedy affect us.

Our 2013 Community Reinvestment Act rating couldveaa negative effect on the Federal Reserve'’s nevié certain banking applications.

In early 2013, our primary federal regulator, tleel€ral Reserve, conducted a regularly scheduladiagtion covering 2011 and 2012 to
determine the Bank’s compliance with the CRA. CRW gelated regulations require banks, such as @wstBank, to help meet the credit
needs of their communities, including low and matieincome neighborhoods. During the fourth quant@013, the Federal Reserve issued
the Bank’s CRA Performance Evaluation. The Banlkirezd a rating of “needs to improve” (which is lawlean the “satisfactory” rating
received in the 2010 examination) principally assult of alleged fair lending issues associatetl wir limited mortgage origination activities
during 2011 and 2012. The Federal Reserve consiaersng other factors, a bank’s compliance withGR& in reviewing corporate
applications, such as applications to establishdiras or conduct mergers and acquisitions, anting izelow “satisfactory” can result in the
denial of such applications. The failure to receivating of “satisfactory” or better can also ftesuother restrictions on activities. Such
restrictions may last until such time as the Bagdeives a rating of “satisfactory” or better wiispect to CRA, and a new review of the Bank’
compliance may not occur for several months. TrdeF# Reserve recently completed an examinatidgheoBank's compliance with CRA, a
the Bank's CRA performance evaluation rating iscgrdted to be received during the first quarteP015.

We are subject to numerous laws and governmentgjulations and to regular examinations by our regutas of our business and
compliance with laws and regulations, and our faieito comply with such laws and regulations or tdeqjuately address any matters
identified during our examinations could materiallgnd adversely affect us.

Federal banking agencies regularly conduct commpstie examinations of our business, including ammpliance with applicable laws,
regulations and policies applicable to the Ban@org the Bank. Examination reports and ratings (wbiten are not publicly available) and
other aspects of this supervisory framework carenaty impact the conduct, organic and acquisitiwowth, and profitability of our business.
Our regulators have extensive discretion in thgresvisory and enforcement activities and may irepsariety of remedial actions, conditi
or limitations on our business operations if, assalt of an examination, they determined thatfimamcial condition, capital resources, asset
quality, earnings prospects, management, liqulitgther aspects of any of our operations had beaamsatisfactory, or that the Company or
its
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management was in violation of any law, regulatiopolicy. Examples of those actions, condition$iraitations include enjoining “unsafe or
unsound” practices, requiring affirmative actionsorrect any conditions resulting from any asskvielation of law, issuing administrative
orders that can be judicially enforced, directingreases in our capital, assessing civil monetanalties against our officers or directors,
removing officers and directors and, if a conclusizas reached that the offending conditions cahaatorrected or there is an imminent ris
loss to depositors, terminating our deposit inscea®ther actions, formal or informal, that mayirbposed could restrict our growth, including
regulatory denials to expand branches, relocatésabsidiaries and affiliates, expand into newrfoial activities or merge with or purchase
other financial institutions. The timing of thesaminations, including the timing of the resolutioinany issues identified by our regulators in
the examinations and the final determination byrtlwgth respect to the imposition of any remedidlats, conditions or limitations on our
business operations, is generally not within ountie®. We also could suffer reputational harm ia #vent of any perceived or actual
noncompliance with certain laws and regulationsvdfbecome subject to such regulatory actions,auddre materially and adversely
affected.

The FDIC's restoration plan and the related incread assessment rate could materially and adversélcaus.

The FDIC insures deposits at FDIC-insured depogsitwstitutions up to applicable limits. The amouwifia particular institution’s deposit
insurance assessment is based on that institutisi’slassification under an FDIC risk-based assent system. An institution’s risk
classification is assigned based on its capitadlfesnd the level of supervisory concern the iatstih poses to its regulators. Market
developments have significantly depleted the DIEhefFDIC and reduced the ratio of reserves toretsdeposits. As a result of recent
economic conditions and the enactment of the DadeMEAct, the FDIC has increased the deposit imsig@assessment rates and thus raised
deposit insurance premiums for insured depositastitutions. If these increases are insufficiemttfie DIF to meet its funding requirements,
there may need to be further special assessmeirtsreases in deposit insurance premiums. We arerghy unable to control the amount of
premiums that we are required to pay for FDIC iasge. If there are additional bank or financiatitotion failures, we may be required to pay
even higher FDIC premiums than the recently inerddavels. Any future additional assessments, as@e or required prepayments in FDIC
insurance premiums may materially and adversebcatfis, including by reducing our profitability loniting our ability to pursue certain
business opportunities.

Federal banking agencies periodically conduct exaraiions of our business, including compliance withws and regulations, and our
failure to comply with any supervisory actions tdiigh we become subject as a result of such examora could materially and adverse
affect us.

Federal banking agencies periodically conduct eratiuns of our business, including our compliandté vaws and regulations. If, as a result
of an examination, a federal banking agency wedetermine that the financial condition, capitalaerces, asset quality, earnings prospects,
management, liquidity or other aspects of any ofaperations had become unsatisfactory, or thaCtirapany or its management was in
violation of any law or regulation, it may take anmber of different remedial actions as it deemg@miate. These actions include the power tt
enjoin “unsafe or unsound” practices, to requiferahtive actions to correct any conditions resigtfrom any violation or practice, to issue an
administrative order that can be judicially enfatce direct an increase in our capital, to restiier growth, to assess civil monetary penalties
against our officers or directors, to remove officend directors and, if it is concluded that soohditions cannot be corrected or there is an
imminent risk of loss to depositors, to terminate deposit insurance. If we become subject to seghlatory actions, we could be materially
and adversely affected.

The Federal Reserve may require us to commit capiésources to support our subsidiary banks.

As a matter of policy, the Federal Reserve, whidm@nes us and our subsidiaries, expects a baukngotompany to act as a source of
financial and managerial strength to a subsidiamnkband to commit resources to support such suwrgibank. Under the “source of strength”
doctrine, the Federal Reserve may require a balthrigopcompany to make capital injections into aibled subsidiary bank and may charge
bank holding company with engaging in unsafe arsbund practices for failure to commit resourcesuch a subsidiary bank. In addition, the
Dodd-Frank Act directs the federal bank regulatonequire that all companies that directly or redily control an insured depository
institution serve as a source of strength for tisitution. Under this requirement, we could beuregf to provide financial assistance to
Customers Bank or any other subsidiary banks weaaayin the future should they experience finandiatress.

A capital injection may be required at times whendo not have the resources to provide it and thiereve may be required to borrow the
funds or raise additional equity capital from thirarties. Any loans by a holding company to itssidilary bank are subordinate in right of
payment to deposits and to certain other indebtdlokthe subsidiary bank. In the event of a baslillihg company’s bankruptcy, the
bankruptcy trustee will assume any commitment lgyttblding company to a federal bank regulatory egém maintain the capital of a
subsidiary bank. Moreover, bankruptcy law provittest claims based on any
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such commitment will be entitled to a priority afypnent over the claims of the holding company’segahunsecured creditors, including the
holders of its indebtedness. Any financing that niesdone by the holding company in order to makeréquired capital injection may be
difficult and expensive and may not be availableatiractive terms, or at all, which likely wouldvgea material adverse effect on us.

The short-term and long-term impact of the new rdgtory capital standards and the forthcoming newytal rules on U.S. banks is
uncertain.

On September 12, 2010, the Basel Committee on Bgrikiipervision, announced an agreement to a stremed set of capital requirements
internationally active banking organizations in theited States and around the world, known as Bis®&asel 11l narrows the definition of
capital, introduces requirements for minimum Tieroinmon capital, increases requirements for minirign 1 capital and total risk-based
capital, and changes risk-weighting methodolodsasel 11l is scheduled to be phased in over timd fully phased in by January 1, 2019.

On July 2, 2013, the Federal Reserve adopted briitregarding new capital requirements purstamasel Ill. These rules, which became
effective on January 1, 2015 for community banksila increase the required amount of regulatorytabnat we must hold and lead to
limitations on the dividend payments to us by Costcs Bank.

Various provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act incredse ¢apital requirements of bank holding comparsiesh as Customers Bancorp, and non-
bank financial companies that are supervised by#ueral Reserve. The leverage and risk-basedatagips of these entities may not be
lower than the leverage and risk-based capitadgdtr insured depository institutions. While thasBl Il changes and other regulatory capital
requirements will likely result in generally highegulatory capital standards, we are evaluatiegiw rules and their effect on us and our
bank subsidiaries.

We face a risk of noncompliance and enforcementiaotwith the Bank Secrecy Act and other anti-monkeyindering statutes and
regulations.

The federal Bank Secrecy Act, the Uniting and Sjteening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Riegd to Intercept and Obstruct
Terrorism Act of 2001 (the “PATRIOT Act”) and othlaws and regulations require financial instituspamong other duties, to institute and
maintain an effective anti-money laundering progeard file suspicious activity and currency tranigarcteports as appropriate. The federal
Financial Crimes Enforcement Network, establishethle U.S. Treasury Department to administer thekBsecrecy Act, is authorized to
impose significant civil money penalties for viatats of those requirements, and has recently engageoordinated enforcement efforts with
the individual federal banking regulators, as waslthe U.S. Department of Justice, Drug Enforcerdntinistration, and Internal Revenue
Service. There is also increased scrutiny of coanmgk with the rules enforced by the Office of FgmeAssets Control (the “OFAC”"). If our
policies, procedures and systems are deemed defai¢he policies, procedures and systems ofittané€ial institutions that we have already
acquired or may acquire in the future are deficiemt would be subject to liability, including finasd regulatory actions (such as restrictior
our ability to pay dividends and the necessitylitam regulatory approvals to proceed with certapects of our business plan, including our
acquisition plans), which could materially and adedy affect us. Failure to maintain and implemeftquate programs to combat money
laundering and terrorist financing could also haggous reputational consequences for us.

Federal, state and local consumer lending laws mragtrict our ability to originate certain mortgagans or increase our risk of liability
with respect to such loans and could increase oostof doing business.

Federal, state and local laws have been adoptédrhantended to eliminate certain lending prasiconsidered “predatory.” These laws
prohibit practices such as steering borrowers dwayg more affordable products, selling unnecessayrance to borrowers, repeatedly
refinancing loans and making loans without a reablanexpectation that the borrowers will be ablesfmay the loans irrespective of the value
of the underlying property. It is our policy notritake predatory loans, but these laws create ttenfial for liability with respect to our lendi
and loan investment activities. They increase ost of doing business and, ultimately, may prewsnfrom making certain loans and cause us
to reduce the average percentage rate or the uidtéees on loans that we do make.

Reviews performed by the Internal Revenue Servind &tate Taxing Authorities for the fiscal yearsahremain open for investigation me
result in a change to income taxes recorded in aansolidated financial statements and adverselyeaffour results of operations.

The Bancorp and its subsidiaries are subject to fddral income tax as well as income tax of uaistates primarily in the mid-Atlantic
region of the United States. Years that remain dpepotential review by (1) the Internal Revenw\ice are
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2011 through 2013, and (2) state taxing authoréres2010 through 2013. The results of these rev@wld result in increased recognition of
income tax expense in our consolidated financekstents as well as possible fines and penalties.

Our financial results may be adversely affecteddhanges in U.S. and non-U.S. tax and other laws aedulations.

The U.S. Congress and the Administration have atditt an interest in reforming the U.S. corporaterine tax code. Possible approaches
include lowering the 35 percent corporate tax natedifying the taxation of income earned outsidethS. and limiting or eliminating various
other deductions, tax credits and/or other taxquezfces. Also, the Governor of New York has issuptbposal to reform the New York state
corporate income tax. It is not possible at thigetito quantify either the one-time impacts fromrémmeasurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities that might result upon tax reform emaent or the ongoing impacts reform proposals migive on income tax expense.

Regulatory action that may be taken by the Feddraserve against one of our business partners mayeaskly affect our results ¢
operations.

Customers Bank provides deposit accounts and sarticcollege students, utilizing the technologseakices and relationships of Higher One
Inc. (“Higher One”) with colleges and universitiesthe United States. Higher One and a predecéssu that Customers Bank replaced in
August 2013 have announced that the Federal Rebeliewes that certain disclosures and operatinggsses of these entities may have
violated certain laws and regulations, and maylté@sdines and restitution. The predecessor baaskdonsented to a cease and desist order
pursuant to which it must discontinue certain pcastand has agreed to pay a total of $4.1 millidimes to federal and state authorities an
additional amount that it may be required to pagestitution to students in the event Higher Oneniable to pay the restitution obligations
imposed on Higher One, if any. The Federal Reskagenotified Customers Bank that it is reviewing talationship between Customers Bank
and Higher One to determine whether there have Wiedtions of certain laws and regulations. CustesrBank believes that the circumstal

of its relationship with Higher One are differehaih the relationship between the predecessor bahkmher One, with Customers Bank
having identified the alleged deficiencies withih @ays of forming a relationship with Higher Onedaausing such deficiencies to be
remediated within 120 days of initiating its reteaship with Higher One. However, it is possiblet ttie Federal Reserve may determine that
Customers Bank may have violated certain laws agdlations, and Customers Bank may be subjectadtéase and desist order and may be
fined by the Federal Reserve and the CommonwefReonsylvania and may be required to pay regtituv students who opened accounts
between the time Customers Bank formed its relatignwith Higher One and the deficiencies were miated. While Customers Bancorp is
presently unable to reasonably estimate whethéheoamount of, fines or penalties that might bpdsed by the Federal Reserve or other
regulatory agencies, Customers Bancorp does nséptlg believe that any such fines or penaltiesmoich it may ultimately be responsible
would have a material impact on Customers Banca’ssolidated results of operations.

Risks Relating to Our Voting Common Stock

Customers Bancorp stock, listed on the New YorkcRBt&xchange, is thinly traded and market liquiditpay decrease in the event of adverse
performance or changing market condition

Customers Bancorp, Inc. shares are traded on theWek Stock Exchange. Adverse news or a markehieeeuld affect the liquidity for
Customers stock. Accordingly, shareholders maybeatble to sell their shares of our Voting CommtotiSat the volume, price and time
desired. A public trading market having the destkdracteristics of depth, liquidity and orderlisedepends upon the presence in the
marketplace of willing buyers and sellers of outtilg Common Stock at any given time, which presemitiebe dependent upon the individual
decisions of investors, over which we have no @nlitiquidity of the stock market, or Customersuiorp’s stock traded on the New York
Stock Exchange, could have a material adverseteifethe value of our Voting Common Stock.

We do not expect to pay cash dividends on our V@@ommon Stock in the foreseeable future, and obilidy to pay dividends is subject to
regulatory limitations.

We have not historically declared nor paid caslidéiwds on our Voting Common Stock and we do noeek{p do so in the near future. Any
future determination relating to dividend policyiMie made at the discretion of our board of divexiand will depend on a number of factors,
including earnings and financial condition, liquydand capital requirements, the general econondcragulatory climate, ability to service &
equity or debt obligations senior to the Voting Goom Stock, and other factors deemed relevant bipalaed of directors.

In addition, as a bank holding company, we areextlip general regulatory restrictions on the paynoé cash dividends. Federal bank
regulatory agencies have the authority to proliaitk holding companies from engaging in unsafensound
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practices in conducting their business, which ddp&non the financial condition and liquidity ofetinolding company at the time, could
include the payment of dividends. Further, varifagderal and state statutory provisions limit theoant of dividends that our bank subsidiaries
can pay to us as its holding company without regwaapproval. See “Market Price of Common Stoc#f Bividends — Dividends on Voting
Common Stock” below for further detail regardingtrestions on our ability to pay dividends.

We may issue additional shares of our common stotkhe future which could adversely affect the vawr voting power of the Voting
Common Stock.

Actual or anticipated issuances or sales of subatamounts of our common stock in the future dozduse the value of our Voting Common
Stock to decline significantly and make it mordidiflt for us to sell equity or equity-related seties in the future at a time and on terms that
we deem appropriate. The issuance of any shamsrafommon stock in the future also would, and gguglated securities could, dilute the
percentage ownership interest held by sharehopt@sto such issuance. Actual issuances of oumgaCommon Stock could also
significantly dilute the voting power of the Votit@@mmon Stock. In 2013, we issued 6,791,514 sluirgsting Common Stock in a public
offering, as adjusted for a 2014 10% stock dividend

We have also made grants of restricted stock anitisstock options with respect to shares of VoGiegimon Stock and Class B Non-Voting
Common Stock to our directors and certain emplaydésmay also issue further equity-based awardlsariuture. As such shares are issued
upon vesting and as such options may be exercigdtha underlying shares are or become freely &lsldethe value or voting power of our
Voting Common Stock may be adversely affected andability to sell more equity or equitglated securities could also be adversely affe

Except for 635,274 warrants held by certain invesstd December 31, 2014, we are not required teeiasy additional equity securities to
existing holders of our Voting Common Stock on egmnptive basis. Therefore, additional common sisskances, directly or through
convertible or exchangeable securities, warrantgptions, will generally dilute the holdings of cexisting holders of Voting Common Stock
and such issuances or the perception of such isssanay reduce the market price of our Voting Com@mck. Our preferred stock, if issu
would likely have a preference on distribution payms, periodically or upon liquidation, which co@liiminate or otherwise limit our ability to
make distributions to holders of our Voting Comn&inck. Because our decision to issue debt or egeityrities or incur other borrowings in
the future will depend on market conditions anceoflactors beyond our control, the amount, timmature or success of our future capital
raising efforts is uncertain. Thus, holders of ¥oting Common Stock bear the risk that our futwsuances of debt or equity securities or our
incurrence of other borrowings will negatively afféhe value of our Voting Common Stock.

Future issuances of debt securities, which woulchkasenior to our Voting Common Stock upon our ligiation, and future issuances of
equity securities, which would dilute the holding$ our existing holders of Voting Common Stock anthy be senior to our Voting Commu
Stock for the purposes of making distributions, pedically or upon liquidation, may negatively affethe market price of our Voting
Common Stock.

In the future, we may issue debt or equity se@sitir incur other borrowings. Upon our liquidatibnlders of our debt securities and other
loans and preferred stock will receive a distribntof our available assets before holders of ouimgaCommon Stock. If we incur debt in the
future, our future interest costs could increasd, adversely affect our liquidity, cash flows aedults of operations.

Provisions in our articles of incorporation and bglvs may inhibit a takeover of us, which could discage transactions that woul
otherwise be in the best interests of our shareteykiand could entrench management.

Provisions of our articles of incorporation andaws$, and applicable provisions of Pennsylvaniadad the federal Change in Bank Control
Act may delay, inhibit or prevent someone from gaircontrol of our business through a tender offesiness combination, proxy contest or
some other method even though some of our shametsaldight believe a change in control is desirabhey might also increase the costs of
completing a transaction in which we acquire anofimancial services business, merge with anotimamntial institution, or sell our business to
another financial institution. These increased<ostuld reduce the value of the shares held bgloaireholders upon completion of these type:
of transactions.

Shareholders may be deemed to be acting in congedtherwise in control of us and our bank subsidies, which could impose pric
approval requirements and result in adverse regolat consequences for such holders.

We are a bank holding company regulated by theriaé&eserve. Any entity (including a “groupdmposed of natural persons) owning 25¢
more of a class of our outstanding shares of vattogk, or a lesser percentage if such holderaupgotherwise exercises a “controlling
influence” over us, may be subject to regulatiom dlsank holding company” in
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accordance with the Bank Holding Company Act of@,%s amended (the “BHCA”). In addition, (1) anykdolding company or foreign
bank with a U.S. presence is required to obtairagigroval of the Federal Reserve under the BHC#ctpire or retain 5% or more of a clas
our outstanding shares of voting stock, and (2)@ergon other than a bank holding company may dpgined to obtain prior regulatory
approval under the Change in Bank Control Act tguére or retain 10% or more of our outstanding ebaif voting stock. Any shareholder t
is deemed to “control” the Company for bank reguiapurposes would become subject to prior apprr@lirements and ongoing regulation
and supervision. Such a holder may be requiredvestiamounts equal to or exceeding 5% of the gatimares of investments that may be
deemed incompatible with bank holding company steguch as an investment in a company engagecdifimancial activities. Regulatory
determination of “control” of a depository institor or holding company is based on all of the rate\facts and circumstances. Potential
investors are advised to consult with their legalrssel regarding the applicable regulations andirements.

Our common stock owned by holders determined bgrék begulatory agency to be acting in concert winaldhggregated for purposes of
determining whether those holders have controlledrak or bank holding company. Each shareholdezioipg control that is a “company”
would be required to register as a bank holdingmammy. “Acting in concert” generally means knowirgytiripation in a joint activity or
parallel action towards the common goal of acqgidontrol of a bank or a parent company, whetherobpursuant to an express agreement.
The manner in which this definition is applied mdlividual circumstances can vary and cannot alve@ygredicted with certainty. Many factors
can lead to a finding of acting in concert, inchglivhere: (i) the shareholders are commonly cdetiar managed; (ii) the shareholders are
parties to an oral or written agreement or undeditey regarding the acquisition, voting or trangfecontrol of voting securities of a bank or
bank holding company; (iii) the shareholders eagh etock in a bank and are also management offictaintrolling shareholders, partners or
trustees of another company; or (iv) both a shddeln@nd a controlling shareholder, partner, tristemanagement official of such sharehc
own equity in the bank or bank holding company.

The FDIC's policy statement imposing restrictionsi@ criteria on private investors in failed bank aatgitions will apply to us and our
investors.

On August 26, 2009, the FDIC issued a policy stat@nmposing restrictions and criteria on privateeistors in failed bank acquisitions. The
policy statement is broad in scope and both comatekpotentially ambiguous in its application. Inghcases it would apply to an investor
with more than 5% of the total voting power of an@red depository institution or its holding compgabut in certain circumstances it could
apply to investors holding fewer voting shares. phkcy statement will be applied to us if we maldalitional failed bank acquisitions from -
FDIC or if the FDIC changes its interpretation lo€ fpolicy statement or determines at some future that it should be applied because of our
circumstances.

Investors subject to the policy statement coulgtahibited from selling or transferring their ingsts for three years. They also would be
required to provide the FDIC with information abdl investor and all entities in the investor'snenship chain, including information on the
size of the capital fund or funds, its diversifioat its return profile, its marketing documentsdats management team and business model.
Investors owning 80% or more of two or more banksavings associations would be required to pledge proportionate interests in each
institution to cross-guarantee the FDIC againsgtdsgo the Deposit Insurance Fund.

Under the policy statement, the FDIC also couldhirid investment through ownership structures iniray multiple investment vehicles that
are owned or controlled by the same parent comgamgstors that directly or indirectly hold 10%rapre of the equity of a bank or savings
association in receivership also would not be klégto bid to become investors in the deposit ligé$ of that failed institution. In addition, an
investor using ownership structures with entitlest tare domiciled in bank secrecy jurisdictions idawt be eligible to own a direct or indirect
interest in an insured depository institution usltee investor’s parent company is subject to cefmgmsive consolidated supervision as
recognized by the Federal Reserve and the investers into certain agreements with the U.S. bagllators regarding access to information
maintenance of records and compliance with U.Skibgraws and regulations. If the policy statemapplies, we (including any failed bank
we acquire) could be required to maintain a ratidier 1 common equity to total assets of at Id&@8# for a period of 3 years, and thereafter
maintain a capital level sufficient to be well dafized under regulatory standards during the reamgiperiod of ownership of the investors.
Bank subsidiaries also may be prohibited from editegnany new credit to investors that own at |48t of our equity.
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Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

The table below summarizes our leased branch améhésdrative office properties, by county and stat® of December 31, 2014. We do not
currently own any real property.

Bank Branches

County State Leased
Berks (1) PA 4
Bucks PA 3
Chester (2) PA 3
Delaware PA 2
Westchester NY 1
Mercer NJ 1
14
Administrative Offices
County State Leased
Berks (3) PA 3
Bucks (6) PA 1
Chester (2) PA 2
Delaware (7) PA 1
Philadelphia (8) PA 1
Fairfax (9) VA 1
Mercer (4) NJ 1
New York (10) NY 1
Westchester (5) NY 2
Suffolk (13) NY 1
Providence (11) RI 1
Suffolk (12) MA 1
1€

(1) Includes the full service branch at 1001 Pa&wenue, Wyomissing, PA as well as three branchgsised through the Berkshire
Bancorp, Inc. acquisition. The lease on this l@ratxpires in 2020.

(2) Includes the corporate headquarters of Cus®Bank and a full service branch located in ast@eding building at 99 Bridge St.,
Phoenixville, PA 19460, wherein we lease approxatyad1,054 square feet on 4 floors. The lease rdhation expires in 2022. Also
includes the lease of 5,523 square feet of prorbl3 Kimberton Road in Phoenixville, Pennsylaanhere we maintain a full servi
commercial bank branch and corporate offices. €asd on this location expires in 2018.

3) Includes the corporate headquarters of CusteBancorp and a full service branch located ab1®dnn Avenue, Wyomissing, PA. The
leased space covers a total of 17,407 squareTfeistlease expires in 2020. Also, includes the adstrative offices for the corporate
lending group which is housed within the Exetemioralocation and two other administrative offices €ompany personnel.

(4) We lease 7,327 square feet of space in Hamiliew Jersey from which we conduct our mortgagesthvause and retail lending
activities. The lease on this location expiresGid2

(5) Represents administrative offices for Company pereb The lease on this location expires in 2

(6) Represents administrative office for Company peanstrThe lease on this location expires in 2

@) Represents administrative office for Company peanstrThe lease on this location expires in 2
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(8) Represents loan office for Company personnel. €hed on this location expires in 2(

(9) Represents administrative offices. The space iently sublet to a third party. The lease on tbiation expires in 201
(10) Represents loan office for Company personnel. €asd on this location expires in 2(

(11) Represents administrative office for Company peanstnThe lease on this location expires in 2

(12) Represents administrative office for Company pemstrThe lease on this location expires in 2

(13) Represents office space currently unoccupied. &agd on this location expires in 2(

The Bank branch locations, which range in size fepproximately 1,800 to 3,900 square feet, havgelean these locations which expire
between 2018 and 2023.

The total minimum cash lease payments for our otiseanches, administrative offices and mortgageeh@use lending locations amount to
approximately $320,000 per month.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

On August 7, 2013, the Bancorp received a letanfthe Federal Reserve Bank of Philadelphia (“ResBank”) of its determination, in
connection with its consumer compliance and ComigliReinvestment Act examinations of the Bank far pleriod of 2011 and 2012, to me
a referral to the Department of Justice. The ResBank informed us that it made the referral baseds belief that Customers Bank has not
complied with certain provisions of the Equal Ctedpportunity Act (‘ECOA"), Fair Housing Act (“FHA"and Regulation B with regard to
the City of Philadelphia. Customers Bank receivetification as of September 24, 2013 that the Dipant of Justice has initiated an
investigation of the Bancorp under the ECOA and FHA

On August 22, 2014, the Department of Justice méat the Bancorp that it had completed its revied that the circumstances of this matter
did not require enforcement action by the Departoédustice at this time. The matter has beennedeback to the Federal Reserve. The
Bancorp is not able to determine whether furthéioaavill be taken at this point with respect te thitimate resolution of this matter.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not Applicable.

PART Il

Item 5. Market For Registrant’ s Common Equity, Related Shareholder Matters and kuer Purchases of Equity Securitie
Trading Market for Voting Common Stock

Since December 30, 2014, the common stock of Cua®Bancorp has been listed for quotation on the Xerk Stock Exchange under the
symbol “CUBI.” The common stock of Customers Bamcaas listed for quotation on the Nasdaq Globat&dllarket under the symbol
“CUBI” from May 16, 2013 through December 29, 20P4ior to May 16, 2013, bid quotations for the coomstock of Customers Bancorp
were listed on the OTC Pink Sheets under the syf#@idUU.”
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Market Price of Voting Common Stock

The chart below displays the high and low closialg prices of the common stock of the Bancorp psrted on the Nasdag Global Select
Market and New York Stock Exchange (effective Delben80, 2014) between May 16, 2013 and Februarg@05. From January 1, 2013
until May 15, 2013, the chart displays the high bwd sale prices of the common stock of Customensddrp known by management to have
occurred or bid quotations on the OTC Pink Shddises have been adjusted to reflect the 10% stivittend declared on May 15, 2014 and
issued on June 30, 2014.

High Low

2015

First quarter (through February 20, 2015) $ 224 $ 17.9¢
2014

Fourth quarter $ 20.1¢ $ 17.1(
Third quarter 20.6¢ 17.71
Second quarter 21.2¢ 18.2¢
First quarter 20.0¢ 17.25
2013

Fourth quarter $ 21.0¢ % 14.3¢
Third quarter 16.3¢ 14.1:
Second quarter 16.3¢ 13.7
First quarter 16.8: 12.25

As of February 20, 2015, there were: (1) approxatya®04 shareholders of record of our Voting ComrBtwck and one shareholder of record
of our Class B Non-Voting Common Stock; and (2)685,524 outstanding shares of our Voting CommogiSémd 1,121,730 outstanding
shares of our Class B Non-Voting Common Stock.

Dividends on Voting Common Stock

Neither Customers Bancorp nor Customers Bank (poitine reorganization into a Bank Holding Compatrycture), historically has paid a
cash dividends on its shares of common stock. Gt Bancorp does not expect to do so in the faldeduture and Customers Bank may
begin payment of dividends to the parent in 201%y Auture determination relating to dividend poligifl be made at the discretion of
Customers Bancorp’s board of directors and willadepon a number of factors, including earningsfarahcial condition, liquidity and capital
requirements, the general economic and regulatonate, ability to service any equity or debt obligns senior to the Voting Common Stock,
and other factors deemed relevant by the boardredtdrs.

In addition, as a bank holding company, CustomenscBrp is subject to general regulatory restrigtion the payment of cash dividends.
Federal bank regulatory agencies have the authtoripyohibit bank holding companies from engagimgmsafe or unsound practices in
conducting their business, which depending onitiential condition and liquidity of the holding cpamy at the time, could include the
payment of dividends. Further, various federal statie statutory provisions limit the amount of deuids that bank subsidiaries can pay to-
parent holding company without regulatory appro@snerally, subsidiaries are prohibited from paydhgdends when doing so would cause
them to fall below the regulatory minimum capitéls, and limits exist on paying dividends in esscef net income for specified periods.

Beginning January 1, 2015, the ability to pay diwvids and the amounts that can be paid, will badiitio the extent the bank capital ratios do
not exceed the minimum required levels plus 25@haEnts, as these requirements are phased inghréanuary 1, 2019. See "ltem 1,
Business- Federal Banking Laws" for more inform@tielating to restrictions on the Bank's abilityptmy dividends to the Company and the
Company's payment of dividends.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

On November 26, 2013, the BancaBoard of Directors authorized a stock repurciméese in which the Bancorp could acquire up to 5%
current outstanding shares at prices not to exa&¥6 premium over the then current book value.r&pearchase program has no expiration
date but may be suspended, modified or discontimti@dy time, and the Bancorp has no obligatiaepoirchase any amount of its common
stock under the program. There were no common seqakrchases during 2014.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS

The following table provides certain summary infation as of December 31, 2014 concerning our cosgiem plans (including individual
compensation arrangements) under which sharesrafomomon stock may be issued.

Number of Securities

Number of Securities Remaining
to be Issued upon Available for Future Issuance
Exercise of Weighted-Average Issuance Under Equity
Outstanding Options, Exercise Price of Compensation Plans
Warrants, and Outstanding Options (Excluding Securities Reflected
Plan Category Rights (#) (%) (2 in the First Column) (#)
Equity Compensation Plans
Approved by Security Holders (1) 3,957,03 12.61 3,605,394 (3
Equity Compensation Plans Not
Approved by Security Holders N/A N/A N/A

(1) Includes shares of common stock that may hedsipon the exercise of awards granted or rigitiuad under the Amended and Restatec
Customers Bancorp, Inc. 2004 Incentive Equity aefefed Compensation Plan, the Customers Banawep2010 Stock Option Plan, the
Bonus Recognition and Retention Program ("BRRR{), the Customers Banorp, Inc. Amended and Resgited Employee Stock Purchase
Plan.

(2) Does not include restricted stock units andlstowards for which, by definition, there existsex@rcise price.

(3) Does not include securities available for fatissuance under the BRRP as there is no speaifiber of shares reserved under this plar
its terms, the plan limits the award of restricsdock units to the amount of the cash bonusestpalte participants in the BRRP.

Common Stock Performance Graph

The following graph compares the performance ofammmon stock over the period from December 31220 December 31, 2014, to that of
the total return index for the SNL Mid-Atlantic Baimdex, SNL U.S. Bank NASDAQ Index and SNL U.SnRaNYSE Index, assuming an
investment of $100 on December 31, 2012. The SN&. Bank NYSE Index was added to the performangehgbacause the Bancorp change
the listing of its Voting Common Stock to the NY8Bm NASDAQ in December 2014. In calculating tadanual shareholder return,
reinvestment of dividends, if any, is assumed. @usts Bancorp obtained the information containetthénperformance graph from SNL
Financial.
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The graph below is furnished under this Part @mt5 of this Form 10-K and shall not be deemecettsbliciting material” or to be “filedWwith
the Commission or subject to Regulation 14A or 1dQp the liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchanfyct of 1934, as amended.

Total Return Performance
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Data

Customers Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

The following table presents Customers Bancorpfsreary consolidated financial data. Customers Bgnderived the balance sheet and
income statement data for the years ended Dece®ib@014 , 2013, 2012, 2011 , and 2010 fromutiitad financial statements. The
summary consolidated financial data should be readnjunction with, and is qualified in their enetiy by, Customers Bancorp’s financial
statements and the accompanying notes and theinfbenation included elsewhere in this Annual Repm Form 10-K. Certain amounts
reported in this table have been reclassified tdaron to the 2014 presentation. These reclassifieatdid not significantly impact the

Bancorp’s financial position or results of operatio

2014 2013 2012 2011 (1) 2010 (2)
(dollars in thousands, except per share information
For the Year ended December 31,
Interest income $ 190,42 % 128,15t % 93,81 % 61,24 $ 30,901
Interest expense 38,50¢ 24,30: 21,76 22,46¢ 11,54¢
Net interest income 151,92: 103,85! 72,05: 38,78: 19,36
Provision for loan losses 14,74° 2,23¢ 14,27( 7,49t 10,397
Bargain purchase gains on acquisitions — — — — 40,25¢
Total non-interest income, excluding barge
purchase gains 25,12¢ 22,70 28,95¢ 11,46¢ 5,41¢
Total non-interest expense 98,91« 74,02« 50,65! 36,88¢ 26,16¢
Income before taxes 63,38t¢ 50,29¢ 36,09( 5,86¢ 28,46¢
Income tax expense 20,17 17,60: 12,27: 1,83¢ 4,731
Net income 43,21 32,69« 23,81¢ 4,03¢ 23,73t
Net income attributable to common
shareholders 43,21 32,69« 23,81¢ 3,99( 23,73t
Basic earnings per common share (3) (9) 1.62 1.34 1.61 0.3¢ 3.44
Diluted earnings per common share (3) (9) 1.5t 1.3C 1.57 0.3t 3.3t
At Period End
Total assets $ 682537 $ 4,153,177 $ 3,201,23. $ 207753 $ 1,374,40
Cash and cash equivalents 371,02: 233,06¢ 186,01¢ 73,57( 238,72«
Investment securities (4) 416,68! 497,57: 129,09: 398,68 205,82¢
Loans held for sale (6) 1,435,45 747,59: 1,439,88! 174,99¢ 199,97(
Loans receivable not covered by Loss
Sharing Agreements with the FDIC (5) 4,269,48 2,399,26! 1,216,94. 1,215,11 514,08
Allowance for loan losses 30,93: 23,99¢ 25,831 15,03: 15,12¢
Loans receivable covered by Loss Sharing
Agreements with the FDIC (5) 42,18: 66,72! 107,52¢ 126,27¢ 164,88!
FDIC loss sharing receivable (5) 2,32( 10,04¢ 12,34: 13,071 16,70:
Deposits 4,532,53 2,959,92; 2,440,81 1,583,18! 1,245,691
Borrowings 1,816,25 771,75( 471,00( 331,00( 11,00(
Shareholders’ equity 443,14! 386,62: 269,47" 147,74¢ 105,14(
Tangible common equity (8) 439,48: 382,94 265,78t 144,04: 105,14(
Selected Ratios and Share Data
Return on average assets 0.7¢% 0.95% 1.02% 0.24% 3.4(%
Return on average equity 10.3% 9.4% 12.6% 3.06% 41.2%
Book value per share (3) (9) $ 1657 $ 1451 $ 1327  $ 1182 $ 11.3¢
Tangible book value per common share (3)
(8) (9) $ 16.4: % 1437 % 13.0¢ % 11.5¢  $ 11.3¢
Common shares outstanding (3) (9) 26,745,52 26,646,56 20,305,45 12,482,45 9,237,81!
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Net interest margin 2.8€% 3.1%% 3.21% 2.47% 2.7¢%
Equity to assets 6.4%% 9.31% 8.42% 7.11% 7.65%
Tangible common equity to tangible assets

(8) (9) 6.44% 9.22% 8.31% 6.95% 7.65%
Tier 1 leverage ratio — Customers Bank 7.3% 10.81% 7.78% 7.11% 8.67%
Tier 1 leverage ratio — Customers Bancorp 6.6% 10.11% 9.3(% 7.31% n/e
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio — Customers

Bank 9.27% 13.3%% 8.5(% 9.6€% 19.65%
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio — Customers

Bancorp 8.3% 12.40% 10.2% 10.01% n/e
Total risk-based capital ratio — Customers

Bank 11.9€% 14.1%% 9.5%% 10.7&% 21.1%%
Total risk-based capital ratio — Customers

Bancorp 11.0% 13.2% 11.2¢% 11.1% n/e

Asset Quality — Non-covered Assets (5)

Non-performing loans $ 7487 % 13,517 % 22,347 % 29,637 % 22,24:
Non-performing loans to total non-covered

loans 0.1&% 0.5€% 1.8%% 2.44% 4.3%%
Other real estate owned $ 592t $ 531 % 4,008 % 731 $ 1,90¢
Non-performing assets 13,41 18,82t 26,35: 36,94¢ 24,14¢
Non-performing non-covered assets to total

non-covered assets 0.31% 0.7&% 2.1€% 3.02% 4.6&%
Allowance for loan losses to total non-

covered loans (7) 0.67% 0.62% 1.2(% 1.24% 2.94%
Allowance for loan losses to non-performing

non-covered loans (7) 382.8(% 109.16% 65.26% 50.7% 68.02%
Net charge-offs $ 3,12¢ % 6,89¢ % 546€ $ 9547 $ 5,25(
Net charge-offs to average non-covered loans 0.0¢% 0.3t% 0.45% 1.1(% 1.41%

Asset Quality — Covered Assets (5)

Non-performing loans $ 4,24¢ 3 565( % 10,50¢ % 6,99: $ 8,08
Non-performing loans to total covered loar 10.07% 8.47% 22.6% 16.72% 9.1&%
Other real estate owned $ 9,44t % 6,957 $ 4,10¢ $ 6,16€ 3 5,34:
Non-performing assets 13,69: 12,60: 14,61 13,15¢ 13,42¢
Non-performing assets to total covered assets 26.5% 17.11% 13.09% 9.94% 7.8%

(1) On September 17, 2011, Customers Bancorp @ietblts acquisition of Berkshire Bancorp, Incngsthe purchase accounting method
in accounting for the acquisition. The purchasehmétprovides that all transactions after the adtisdate are reflected in the
acquirers’ financial accounting records.

(2 During the third quarter of 2010, Customersi@ap acquired two banks in FDIC assisted trangastusing the purchase accounting
method.

) Effective September 17, 2011, Customers Baokganized into the holding company structure pamsto which all of the issued and
outstanding common stock of the Bank was exchangealone-for-three basis for common stock of CustsrBancorp. All share and
per share information for periods prior to the gamization has been restated retrospectively teatehe reorganization.

4 Includes available-for-sale and heldrt@turity investment securitit

(5) Certain loans and other real estate owned(ibesxl as “covered”) acquired in the two FDIC assldransactions in 2010 are subject to

loss sharing agreements between Customers BanthariDIC. If certain provisions within the loss 8hg agreements are maintained,
the FDIC will reimburse Customers Bank for 80%laf tinpaid principal balances and certain expersksss sharing receivable was
recorded based upon the credit evaluation of theieed loan portfolio and the estimated periodsrérayments. Loans receivable and
assets that are not subject to the loss shariregeamgmt are described as “non-covered”.
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(6)
(7)

(8)

(9)

In 2014 and 2013, loans held for sale included 34,19 and $740,694 of mortgage warehouse lodag atlue, respectivel
Allowance for loan losses used for this catioh excludes the portion related to purchasediehmpaired (“PCI”) loans of $7.0
million in 2014 and $9.2 million in 2013.

Customers Bancorp’s selected financial datdains non-GAAP financial measures calculated usmgrGAAP amounts. These
measures include tangible common equity and taedibbk value per common share and tangible commuoityeto tangible assets.
Management uses these non-GAAP measures to piastarical periods comparable to the current pepagbentation. In addition,
management believes the use of these non-GAAP mesagrovides additional clarity when assessindg3iduecorps financial results ar
use of equity. These disclosures should not beadeas substitutes for results determined to bedordance with U.S. GAAP, nor are
they necessarily comparable to non-GAAP performaneasures that may be presented by other entitiessomers Bancorp calculates
tangible common equity by excluding intangible &s$®m total shareholders’ equity. Tangible boakue per common share equals
tangible common equity divided by common sharestantling.

Per share amounts have been adjusted to refledOftestock divdend declared on May 15, 2014 antges®n June 30, 20:

A reconciliation of shareholders’ equity to tangildommon equity and other related amounts is stt below.

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(in thousands, except per share data)
Shareholders’ equity $ 443,14* $ 386,62: $ 269,47! $ 147,74 $ 105,14¢(
Less: intangible assets (3,669 (3,676 (3,689 (3,705 —
Tangible common equity $ 439,48: % 382,94 $ 265,78t $ 144,04. $ 105,14(
Shares outstanding 26,74¢ 26,647 20,30¢ 12,48 9,23¢
Book value per share $ 1657 $ 14.51 $ 13.27 $ 11.8¢ $ 11.3¢
Less: effect of excluding intangible assets (0.19 (0.19 (0.1¢) (0.30 —
Tangible book value per share $ 16.4: $ 1437 % 13.0¢ % 11.5¢ % 11.3¢
Total assets $ 6,825,371 $ 4,153,17. $ 3,201,23 $ 2,077,53 $ 1,374,40
Less: intangible assets (3,669 (3,676 (3,68¢) (3,70%) —
Total tangible assets $ 6,821,700 $ 4,149,49 $ 3,197,54! $ 2,073,82 $ 1,374,40
Equity to assets 6.4<% 9.31% 8.42% 7.11% 7.65%
Less: effect of excluding intangible assets (0.0%) (0.0%) (0.11 (0.16) —
Tangible common equity to tangible assets 6.44% 9.2:% 8.31% 6.95 % 7.65%
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysef Financial Condition and Results of Operations

You should read this Management's Discussion aradyAis in conjunction with “Business — Executivensuary” and the Bancorp’s
consolidated financial statements and related ntdeshe year ended December 31, 2014. Certain antsoeported in the 2013 and 2012
financial statements have been reclassified toaromto the 2014 presentation. These reclassificatidid not significantly impact tt
Bancory’'s financial position or results of operations.

Critical Accounting Policies

Customers Bancorp has adopted various accountii@gsothat govern the application of accountinmgiples generally accepted in the Un
States of America (US GAAP) and that are consistétht general practices within the banking industryhe preparation of its financial
statements. The Bancorp’s significant accountinigcigs are described in “NOTE 3 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUING POLICIES AND BASIS
OF PRESENTATION” to its audited financial statensent

Certain accounting policies involve significant gmdents and assumptions by Customers Bancorp thatdhmaterial impact on the carrying
value of certain assets and liabilities. CustonBanscorp considers these accounting policies taitieat accounting policies. The judgment
and assumptions used are based on historical exgerand other factors, which are believed to Asomable under the circumstances. Bec
of the nature of the judgments and assumptions geanant makes, actual results could differ fromeljadgments and estimates, which coulc
have a material impact on the carrying values efBancorp’s assets and liabilities and resultspefations.

The following is a summary of the policies CustomBancorp recognizes as involving critical accaumgstimates: Allowance for Loan
Losses, Stock-Based Compensation, Unrealized @Gaithd osses on Available for Sale Securities, Falu¥ Accounting, Accounting for
Purchased-Credit-Impaired (PCI) Loans, FDIC Redd&véor Loss Share Agreements, and Deferred Incbaxes.

Allowance for Loan Losse Customers Bancorp maintains an allowance for losses at a level management believes is suffiteabsorb
estimated credit losses incurred as of the repig.dManagement’s determination of the adequadtiyeoéllowance is based on periodic
evaluations of the loan portfolio and other reléviactors. However, this evaluation is inherentipjective as it requires significant estimates
by management. Consideration is given to a vanéfgctors in establishing these estimates inclgdiistorical losses, current and anticipated
economic conditions, the size and composition efltkan portfolio, delinquency statistics, criticizand classified assets and impaired loans,
results of internal loan reviews, borrowepgrceived financial and management strengths,dbquacy of underlying collateral, the depend:
on collateral, or the strength of the present valueture cash flows and other relevant factofsede factors may be susceptible to significant
change. To the extent actual outcomes differ froamagement estimates, additional provisions for loases may be required which may
adversely affect the Bancorp’s results of operatiorthe future.

Estimates of cash flows expected to be collectegdiochased-creditnpaired loans are updated each reporting periddelBank has probab
decreases in expected cash flows to be collectedafquisition, the Bank charges the provisioridan losses and establishes an allowanc
loan losses.

Stock-Based CompensatioBustomers Bancorp recognizes compensation expenskare-based awards in accordance with ASC 718
Compensation — Stock CompensatiBxpense related to stock option awards is baseteofair value of the option at the grant datehwit
compensation expense recognized over the servigedperhich is usually the vesting period. CustosnBancorp utilizes the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model to estimate the fair valuesath option on the date of grant. The Bl&dkoles model takes into consideration the exe
price of the option, the expected life of the optithe current price of the underlying stock ascetpected volatility, expected dividends on
stock, and the current risk-free interest ratetierexpected life of the option. The Bancorp’sreate of the fair value of a stock option is basel
on expectations derived from its limited historieaperience and may not necessarily equate to mmeaikee when fully vested.

Unrealized Gains and Losses on Securities Availtdl&ale. Customers Bancorp receives estimated fair valtidslat securities from
independent valuation services and brokers. Inldpirgy these fair values, the valuation services larokers use estimates of cash flows base
on historical performance of similar instrumentsiimilar rate environments. Debt securities avédldbr sale are mostly comprised of
mortgage backed securities and U.S. governmentggaturities. Customers Bancorp uses variousatatis in determining whether a
security is other-than-temporarily impaired inchugli for debt securities, when it is probable thatd¢ontractual interest and principal will not
be collected, or for equity securities, whetherrtarket value is below its cost for an extendedbpenf time with low expectation of

recovery. The debt securities are monitored fongka in credit ratings because adverse changeedit tatings could indicate a change in the
estimated cash flows of the underlying collateraksuer. The unrealized losses associated witlrisies that management does not intend to
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sell, and more likely than not will not be requitedsell prior to maturity or market price recovemere not considered to be other-than-
temporarily impaired as of December 31, 2014 ancebwer 31, 2013, because the unrealized lossesr@lated to changes in interest rates
and did not affect the expected cash flows of thaedying collateral or issuer. The unrealized ézsassociated with the equity investments
management does not intend to sell, and more likelyg not will not be required to sell, were nonsidered other-thatemporarily impaired a
of December 31, 2014 or 2013 because the decneasarket price or foreign currency exchange ratas @stimated to be temporary.

Fair Value. The fair value of a financial instrument is detfires the amount at which the instrument could lvha&xged in a current transact
between willing parties, other than in a forcediquidation sale. Management estimates the fauealf a financial instrument using a variety
of valuation methods. Where financial instrumemésactively traded and have quoted market pritesgtioted market prices are used for fair
value. When the financial instruments are not atyiwraded, other observable market inputs, sucjuated prices of securities with similar
characteristics, may be used, if available, tordeitee fair value. When observable market pricesatoexist, Customers Bancorp estimates fai
value using unobservable data. The valuation method inputs consider factors such as types ofrlyinig assets or liabilities, rates of
estimated credit losses, interest rate or discrtatand collateral. The best estimate of fair @ahwolves assumptions including, but not
limited to, various performance indicators, suclmiasorical and projected default and recoverysateedit ratings, current delinquency rates,
loan-to-value ratios and the possibility of obligefinancing. US GAAP requires the use of fair eslin determining the carrying values of
certain assets and liabilities, as well as for gjpedisclosures. The most significant uses of faitues include residential mortgage loans
acquired subject to an agreement to resell, reBalenortgage loans originated with an intent tb, $@paired loans and foreclosed property
and the net assets acquired in business combisatt@n additional information, refer to “NOTE 1IDHSCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS.”

Purchased Cred-Impaired Loans

For certain acquired loans that have experienadsterioration of credit quality, Customers Bancfmifpws the guidance contained in

ASC 310-30Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deterioda@redit Quality. Purchased credit-impaired (“PCI") loans are |otadt

were acquired in business combinations or assehpaes with evidence of credit deterioration sorbgination to the date acquired and for
which it is probable that all contractually requineayments will not be collected are considerdoktaredit impaired. Evidence of credit quality
deterioration as of purchase dates may includermdition such as past-due and non-accrual statusvier credit scores and recent loan to
value percentages.

The fair value of loans with evidence of creditedi@ration is recorded net of a nonaccretable wiffee and, if appropriate, an accretable yield
The difference between contractually required paymat acquisition and the cash flows expectectodilected at acquisition is the
nonaccretable difference, which is not includethim carrying amount of acquired loans. Subsequetredses in the estimated cash flows of
the loan will generally result in a provision foah losses. Subsequent to acquisition, estimatessof flows expected to be collected are
updated each reporting period based on updatedhasisms regarding default rates, loss severitied,ather factors that are reflective of
current market conditions. Subsequent increaseash flows result in a reversal of the provisionléan losses to the extent of prior charge

a reclassification of the difference from nonacaioét to accretable with a positive impact on a@mnedf interest income in future periods.
Further, any excess of cash flows expected airte af acquisition over the estimated fair valueciferred to as the accretable yield and is
recognized in interest income over the remainifegdi the loan when there is a reasonable expeatatbout the amount and timing of those
cash flows.

Purchased-credit-impaired loans acquired in theesfisnal quarter may be aggregated into one or poods, provided that the loans have
common risk characteristics. A pool is then accedribr as a single asset with a single compositzént rate and an aggregate expectation of
cash flows. On a quarterly basis, the Bank re-egtimthe total cash flows (both principal and Egérexpected to be collected over the
remaining life of each pool. These estimates ino@afe assumptions regarding default rates, lossrities, the amounts and timing of
prepayments and other factors that reflect theneatimarket conditions. If the timing and/or amauatt expected cash flows on purchased-
credit-impaired loans were determined not to bearably estimable, no interest would be accretédlaaloans would be reported as non-
accrual loans; however, when the timing and amoofnéxpected cash flows for purchased-credit-imgzhloans are reasonably estimable,
interest is being accreted and the loans are repmyted as performing loans. Charge-offs are exnded on purchased-credit-impaired loans
until actual losses exceed the estimated lossésvihra recorded as purchase accounting adjustraeatsjuisition date.

FDIC Receivable for Loss Share Agreeme The majority of the loans and other real estasetasacquired in an FDIC-assisted acquisition is
covered under loss share agreements with the RbVhich the FDIC has agreed to reimburse the BanB®% of all losses incurred in
connection with those assets. Management estintfa¢egimount that the Bank will receive from the Fi@ler the loss share agreements that
will result from losses incurred as the Bank diggsosf covered loans and other real estate assiteaords the estimate as a receivable from
the FDIC.
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The FDIC loss sharing receivable is measured stgipfaom the related covered assets becausadtisontractually embedded in the assets
and is not transferable if the assets are sold ag@ament estimated the fair value of the FDIC lbsging receivable using the present value of
cash flows related to the loss share agreemen¢silmasthe expected reimbursements for losses amapiblicable loss share

percentages. Management reviews and updates thafaé of the FDIC receivable prospectively aslestimates related to covered loans ani
other real estate owned change. The ultimate edadiz of the FDIC loss sharing receivable depemdthe performance of the underlying
covered assets, the passage of time, and claimddpahe FDIC. Changes in estimated cash flowsefcbvered assets likewise result in
changes in the estimated cash flows to be recgqiuesliant to the reimbursement agreement betweedBathle and the FDIC. An increase in a
cash flow estimate for a covered loan will resnlaidecrease in the indemnification asset, andtieedse in a cash flow estimate for a covered
loan will result in an increase in the indemnifioatasset. Increases to the indemnification agsete@orded as a reduction to the provision for
loan losses and decreases to the indemnificatiwet ase recorded either as an increase to thegpwovior loan losses (to the extent an increas
in the FDIC receivable balance was previously réedras a reduction to the provision for loan loseesecognized over the life of the loss
share agreements.

Deferred Income Taxe The Bancorp provides for deferred income taxetheriiability method whereby tax assets are receghfor

deductible temporary differences and deferreditdbilities are recognized for taxable temporaryed#nces. Temporary differences are the
differences between the reported amounts of aasettiabilities in the financial statements andrtkex basis. Deferred tax assets are reducec
by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion ohiaigement, it is more likely than not that someiparor all of the deferred tax assets will
not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liaksl#ie adjusted for the effects of changes in tas Bnd rates on the date of enactment.

Accounting Changes
The Fair Value Option

The Bank elected the fair value option for mortgageehouse lending transactions documented uneherséer repurchase agreement origin
after July 1, 2012 in order to more accurately espnt the short-term nature of the transactioritaridherent credit risk. The Bank also electec
the fair value option for mortgage loans originatéth the intent to sell effective October 1, 20TBese adoptions are in accordance with the
parameters established by ASC 825-10F2Bancial Instruments-Overall-Recognition: The F&ialue OptionThe interest income from the
warehouse lending transactions and mortgage ladgisated with the intent to sell are classified'limterest Income — Loans held for sale” on
the income statement. The unrealized fair valuagésa related to these loans are classified in “§éaré loan and banking income” on the
consolidated statements of income. An allowancéofan losses is not recorded for loans measur&dratalue under ASC 825 as the exit pt
(the repurchase price or sales price) used agihediue measurement considers estimated cresfieto

Change in Accounting Estimates

Estimates of cash flows from purchased-credit-imgghloans were revised during the third quarte2a#2 due to a conversion to a more
sophisticated and precise loan valuation systeractordance with the guidance in ASC 310-30, istdreeome is based on an acquired loan’s
expected cash flows. Complex models are needeal¢alate loan-level and/or pool level expected déshis in accordance with ASC 310-30.
The loan data analysis provided by the loan vabduaglystem was determined to be a more preciseitjoation of future cash flows than the
analysis that was previously calculated manuallyotyconversion to the new software, acquisitior d@an values were loaded into the
system, and the software calculated their fair @slusing a complex valuation model. Conversiomé¢onew system was completed in
September 2012. To adjust the acquisition date badainces recorded on Customers Bank’s books tartireints calculated by the new
software, approximately $4.5 million was recognizsch reduction to the provision for loan lossethénthird quarter of 2012. The revised
valuation for the purchased-credit-impaired acdjoisidate loan balances due to the conversiongméw software was accounted for
prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

When converting to the new software system, thekBeas required to calculate the estimated cashsfliwam the various acquisition dates of
the purchased-credit-impaired loans through the thet software was implemented as it was impraugc® perform these calculations on a
monthly or quarterly basis. In the third quarte26.2, approximately $4.5 million was recognizedhterest income related to this change.
impact of the revised valuation of cash flows fog purchased-credit-impaired loan activity duehddonversion to the new software was
accounted for prospectively as a change in accogiestimate.

Also during the third quarter of 2012, the Banlesgimated the cash flows for the purchased-cretiired loans using current data. The re-
estimated expected cash flows decreased from gstonated cash flows. Consistent with ASC 310-fi'elamental premise that a decrease i
expected cash flows results in accrual of a losgicgency and should not result in a
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change in yield, the Bank evaluated the adequatlysohllowance for loan losses for purchased-cietgifired loans and determined that an
additional provision for loan losses of $7.5 mifliwas appropriate. As a result of the changestimates, net income for the year ended
December 31, 2012 increased by $900,000, net phtakbasic and diluted earnings increased by $te06hare, as adjusted for 2014 stock
dividend.

Overview

Like most financial institutions, the Bancorp desvthe majority of its income from interest it ie@es on its interest-earning assets, such as
loans and investments. The Bancorp’s primary sooféends for making these loans and investmenits deposits, on which it pays

interest. Consequently, one of the key measurésedBancorp’s success is its amount of net inténesime, or the difference between the
income on its interest-earning assets and the egpemits interest-bearing liabilities, such asod@p and borrowings. Another key measure is
the spread between the yield earned on these stieaening assets and the rate paid on thesestdaearing liabilities, which is referred to as
net interest spread.

There is credit risk inherent in all loans, so @ustrs Bancorp maintains an allowance for loan b&s@absorb probable losses on existing
loans that may become uncollectible. The Bancorimtaias this allowance by charging a provisionlé@n losses against its operating
earnings. Customers Bancorp has included a detdigedssion of this process, as well as severddgatescribing its allowance for loan losses

2015 Economic Outlook

U.S. real GDP is forecasted to grow 2.5% to 3.0%s&ich of the next two years, marking the strontyastyear period since the middle of the
2001-2007 economic expansion. Growth in the U.8xjrected to be broad-based with much of the imgrent coming from a stronger labor
market. It is expected that employers will conéirta add an average of 210,000 employees per namathhat the unemployment rate will
remain below 6.0% in 2015. At the same time, tidlais expected to drift closer to the Fed’s esipliarget of 2.0%.

Consumer Spending is expected to benefit the most & stronger labor market. Consumption will bpported by better household balance
sheets, stronger income growth and lower gasoliitesa GDP should also be boosted by larger firgdstments by business. In recent
quarters, businesses have begun to shift away $lare buybacks, dividends and mergers and acquisiéind replaced those outlays with
fixed investments. A potential risk to busines®di investments is the recent decline in oil pri¢esustained decline in the price of oil could
have a material impact to business outlays. Sl@wenomic growth for many of America’s trading pars and a strong dollar mean that trade
will likely detract from U.S. real GDP for a secositaight year.

Against this favorable backdrop, it is expected tha Federal Reserve will begin raising its shiertn rate around the middle of 2015. Some
economists believe that the upper end of the Fed$@rarget Rate will be at 1.0% by the end of 28i& 2.75% by the end of 2016.

While the outlook in the U.S. remains optimistieafs of a slowdown in the rest of the world cowdetdna negative impact on the U.S. econc
While the rest of the world continues to take stepsicrease growth, the U.S. continues to chuon@in a positive direction. In the Bancorp’s
market area, management sees continued moder@@842o 3.00%) growth in 2015, the housing markeitiooing to improve and
unemployment remaining at current levels or sligitiproving during the year. Management is seeingrovement in loan demand in the
Bancorp’s commercial and industrial, muHimily and commercial real estate loan portfolind @xpects to increase lending in the coming
There continues to be some uncertainty in theipaliand external environments in 2015, and itkisly that these challenging conditions will
continue over the next few years. Overall, the Baps management is optimistic that 2015 will shewontinuation of the improving
economic environment experienced in 2014.
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Results of Operations

The following discussion of Customers Bancarponsolidated results of operations should be ireadnjunction with its consolidated financ
statements, including the accompanying notes. #¢&“CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES” and “NOTE 3 - GNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION” foanformation concerning certain significant accongtpolicies and
estimates applied in determining reported resiltgerations.

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and :

Net income available to common shareholders inext&40.5 million (32.2%) to $43.2 million for thear ended December 31, 20
compared to $32.7 million for the year ended Decam®, 2013. The increased net income resulted inoneases in net interest income of
$48.1 million and non-interest income of $2.4 roitlj partly offset by increases in provision forddasses of $12.5 million, non-interest
expense of $24.9 million, and tax expense of $2lkom

Net interest income increased $48.1 million (46.84ing 2014 to $151.9 million, compared to $10&i8ion during 2013 principally due t

an increase in the average balance of interesingsrassets of $2.0 billion (from $3.3 billion 623 to $5.3 billion in 2014), offset in part by a
decline in the net interest margin (tax equivaleft)7 basis points (from 3.14% in 2013 to 2.87%2®14). The growth in average interest
earning assets was principally driven by increasesulti-family and other commercial loan produckée decrease in net interest margin
results from a combination of changed market camnlt including decreased market interest ratesrasrdased competition on loans, and
product mix, as secured multi-family loans yieldd¢han other commercial products and was our pyigrawth area.

Provision for loan losses increased $12.5 millianirty 2014 to $14.7 million, compared to $2.2 roifliduring 2013. The increase in the
provision for loan losses during 2014 was primaaityibutable to significant organic loan growthtlire held-for-investment loan portfolio,
resulting in approximately $10.1 million of prowasi expense during 2014, and a reduced benefit &eghéx be collected from the FDIC as
collections on covered loans improved and the $bssing arrangements for the non-single family $oapproach their contractual maturity,
resulting in approximately $4.6 million of provisi@xpense during 2014.

Nor-interest income increased $2.4 million during 2€1.425.1 million compared to $22.7 million durig@13. The increase in 2014 was
attributed to the $2.3 million increase in gainssafes of loans as the Bank began selling exceksfamily loan originations, $1.9 million
increase in gains on sales of investment secuaigbe Bank shortened the duration of its investrpertfolio, a $1.2 million increase in bank
owned life insurance income as the number of inkeraployees increased, and a $0.9 million increas®ortgage loan and banking income
the Bank continues to develop that business, offisetarily by a decrease in the mortgage warehtnasesactional fees of $4.7 million.

Nor-interest expense increased $24.9 million durint2® $98.9 million compared to $74.0 million dyiB013. Expenses increased in 2014
principally for salaries and employee benefitstaffiag levels grew to support the growing businggs$10.9 million), assessments for FDIC
insurance and Pennsylvania shares tax increagbé 8ank grew (up $6.2 million), professional sees related to loan workout, litigation and
other general regulatory matters (up $2.2 millimtcupancy expense (up $2.2 million) as our needgace grew, other real estate owned
resolution expenses as we work through problemestigs (up $2.2 million), and technology, commutiarzs and bank operations expense
$1.5 million) as a result of our growth. The ineavas offset in by a provision for loss contingerecorded in 2013 of $2.0 million.

Income tax expense increased $2.6 million durintd2® $20.2 million compared to $17.6 million dgif013. The increased income tax
expense was driven primarily from increased taxaideme in 2014 (up $13.1 million to $63.4 milliomffset in part by a $1.5 million benefit
that resulted from a return to provision and defétax analysis performed in third quarter 2014.

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and :

Net income available to common shareholders inect&8.9 million (37.3%) to $32.7 million for theareended December 31, 2013, comp:
to $23.8 million for the year ended December 31,20 he increased net income resulted from a $3dll®n increase in net interest income
and a $12.0 million decrease in the provision éaml losses, offset by decreases in non-interestiamf $6.3 million, an increase in non-
interest expense of $23.4 million and a $5.3 milliecrease in income tax expense.

The increased net interest income of $31.8 mil{ibh 1%) for the year ended December 31, 2013 t&.$1@illion compared to $72.0 million
for the year ended December 31, 2012 resultedipatyg from an increase in average loan balanczen@ held for sale and loans receivable
$974.0 million to $2.8 billion, offset in part by3® basis point decrease in average yields
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on loans to 4.26% net with a 22 basis point deergathe cost of funding. The growth in averageowas principally in loans to mortgage
bankers to fund warehouse lines and multi-familgt ather commercial real estate loans. The deciieageld results from a combination of
changed market conditions, including increased editipn for loans, and product mix, as secured riaitily loans yield less than other
commercial products and was our primary growth.area

During 2013, the provision for loan losses was $Rililon, a decrease of $12.0 million from a praeisof $14.3 million during 2012. The
decrease in the provision for loan losses in 2@%8lted primarily from (i) $7.5 million increasetime provision recorded in 2012 due to the re
estimation of cash flows related to purchased-tiietpaired loans, (ii) $2.6 million reduction inetprovision during 2013 due to better
sustained performance of the Bancorp’s commeritialuding multi-family) and residential mortgagetoportfolios, (iii) $0.3 million net
reduction in the provision, including the effectaofvritedown of the FDIC receivable balance in 2013 upaalfpayoff of covered loans whi
previously had a specific allowance, and (iv) apprately $1.6 million net reduction in the provisidue to generally decreased delinquencie
and improved asset quality and market conditiomsgily offset by an increase in the provision &sset growth during 2013.

Non-interest income declined $6.3 million in the yeaded December 31, 2013 to $22.7 million compawek2.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012. The decrease in 2013 is atdbiotthe $7.7 million decrease in gains on sdl@svestment securities, offset in part by
launching of the mortgage banking business (geingr&t.1 million of income) and increased investiriarbank-owned life insurance
(generating an increase in income of $1.1 million).

Nor-interest expense increased $23.4 million durirgytbar ended December 31, 2013 to $74.0 millionpawed to $50.7 million during the
year ended December 31, 2012. Expenses increagdd 3hcompared to 2012 principally for salaries amployee benefits as staffing lev
grew to support the growing business (up $11.6onj| assessment for FDIC insurance and other asgyl fees as the bank grew and other
costs were incurred ($2.5 million), professionalies for loan workout, litigation, and developrhehmaterials to respond to regulatory
inquiries increased reflecting growth and more clexgssues ($2.1 million), occupancy as the busime@ansion into new markets and
increased activity in existing markets requireditdidal facilities ($2.0 million), and a provisidor loss contingency as a result of a fraud
perpetrated on a loan to fund a residential moggegrehouse line of credit ($2.0 million).

Income tax expense increased $5.3 million in 2@1817.6 million compared to $12.3 million in 20T2e increased income tax expense was
driven primarily from the increase in taxable in@m 2013 compared to 2012 (up $14.2 million to.$54illion) and a 1.0% increase in the
effective tax rate to 35.0% from 34.0% due to amease in pre-tax book income.
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NET INTEREST INCOME

Net interest income (the difference between ther@st earned on loans, investments and in-earning deposits with banks, and interest paid
on deposits, borrowed funds and subordinated debte primary source of Customers Bancorp’s egsiiithe following table summarizes the
Bancorp’s net interest income and related spreddvaargin for the periods indicated.

For the Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Interest Average Interest Average Interest Average
Average income or yield or Average income or yield or Average income or yield or
balance expense cost balance expense cost balance expense cost
(amounts in thousands)
Assets
Interest-earning deposits $ 228,66( $ 577 028% $ 190,29t $ 482 0.20% $ 13847' $ 352 0.25%
Investment securities, taxable (A) 451,93 10,38¢ 2.3( 260,86; 6,312 2.4: 224,07! 6,66 2.97
Investment securities, non-taxable (A) _ — — — — — 1,64: 68 4.1€
Loans held for sale 911,59 30,80: 3.3¢ 992,42: 38,14( 3.8¢ 423,88 15,95( 3.7¢
Loans receivable 3,656,89 146,38t 4.0( 1,842,31 82,58( 4.4¢ 1,436,80! 70,51( 4.91
Other interest earning assets 66,66¢ 2,27% 3.41 27,09¢ 64C 2.3¢€ 21,14( 271 1.2¢
Total interest-earning assets 5,315,75 190,42 3.5¢ 3,312,98 128,15t 3.87 2,246,02: 93,81¢ 4.1¢
Non-interest-earning assets 227,04t 142,35( 79,28(
Total assets m $ 3,455,33 $ 2,325,30:
Liabilities N
Interest checking $ 62,84 361 057 $ 4561 191 0.4z 36,70: 192 0.52
Money market deposit accounts 1,712,89 10,39: 0.61 1,106,45 7,61¢ 0.6¢ 853,65 7,402 0.87
Other savings 40,79 172 0.4z 31,74 152 0.4¢ 22,94 132 0.5¢
Certificates of deposit 1,403,77. 13,53( 0.9¢ 1,251,70: 13,05¢ 1.0¢ 935,20t 13,34¢ 1.45
Total interest-bearing deposits 3,220,30: 24,45¢ 0.7¢ 2,435,52 21,02( 0.8¢ 1,848,51. 21,07¢ 1.1<
Borrowings 1,268,20: 14,05( 1.11 278,29 3,281 1.1¢ 100,48:- 68t 0.6¢
Total interest-bearing liabilities 4,488,51 38,50¢ 0.8¢ 2,713,81 24,30: 0.9¢ 1,948,99 21,76: 1.1z
Non-interest-bearing deposits 620,38t 385,18 180,72:
Total deposits and borrowings 5,108,89: 0.7t 3,099,00 0.7¢ 2,129,72 1.0z
Other non-interest-bearing liabilities 17,90* 11,77¢ 7,94¢
Total liabilities 5,126,80! 3,110,78: 2,137,66:
Shareholders’ Equity 415,99¢ 344,55 187,63!
Total liabilities and shareholders’
equity $5,542,79 $ 3,455,33 $2,325,30
Net interest earnings 151,92: 103,85 72,05:
Tax-equivalent adjustment (C) 405 244 131
Net interest earnings $ 152,32 $ 104,09¢ $ 72,18¢
Interest spread - 2.8:% 3.0¢% 3.16%
Net interest margin (D) 2.8¢€ 3.1¢ 3.21
Net interest margin tax equivalent (C)
(D) 2.87 3.1¢ 3.21

(A)  For presentation in this table, balances d&edcorresponding average rates for investment isiesuaire based upon historical cost,
adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretibdiscounts.

(B) Includes noraccrual loans, the effect of which is to reduceytieéd earned on loans, and deferred loan

(C) Full tax equivalent basis, using a 35% statutoxyréde to approximate interest income as a taxadte

(D)  Excluding the adjustment to interest incometfe change in accounting estimate on purchassditémpaired loans of $4.5 million,
net interest margin and net interest margin taxvedgnt are 3.05% for the twelve months ended Déeerl, 2012 .

(E) Certain amounts reported in the 2013 and ZibEAcial statements have been reclassified toaranfo the 2014 presentation. These
reclassifications did not significantly impact Bancorp’s financial position or results of operato
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The following table presents the dollar amountledrges in interest income and interest expengidéamajor categories of interest-earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Informai®provided for each category of interest-earm@iggets and interest-bearing liabilities with
respect to (i) changes attributable to volume,(tlanges in average balances multiplied by therqperiod average rate) and (ii) changes
attributable to rate (i.e., changes in averagematkiplied by prior-period average balances). porposes of this table, changes attributable to
both rate and volume which cannot be segregatee hesn allocated proportionately to the changetalvelume and the change due to rate.

2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
Increase (decrease) due Increase (decrease) due
to change in to change in
Rate Volume Total Rate Volume Total
(amounts in thousands)
Interest income:
Interest earning deposits $ 2 $ 97 $ 95 $ 2 $ 131 % 12¢
Investment securities, taxable (33%) 4,407 4,07 (1,347 99¢ (349
Investment securities, non-taxable — — — (34 (34 (68)
Loans held for sale (4,389 (2,955 (7,339 34¢ 21,84: 22,19:
Loans receivable (9,687%) 73,49 63,80¢ (6,517 18,58: 12,07(
Other interest earning assets 382 1,25:% 1,63¢ 277 92 36¢
Total interest income (14,027 76,29! 62,27 (7,269 41,61 34,34:
Interest expense:
Interest checking 84 86 17C (43 42 (1)
Money market deposit accounts (99¢) 3,76¢ 2,772 (1,710 1,92¢ 21€
Savings (20 40 20 (26) 45 19
Certificates of deposit (1,040 1,51z 472 (4,130 3,84( (290
Total interest bearing deposits (1,979 5,40¢ 3,43¢ (5,909 5,85¢ (5€)
Borrowings (210) 10,97¢ 10,76¢ 757 1,83¢ 2,59¢
Total interest expense (2,187) 16,38¢ 14,20: (5,152 7,692 2,54(
Net interest income $ (11,840 $ 59,90¢ $ 48,06¢ $ (2,117 $ 33,91¢ $ 31,80:

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and :

Net interest income for the year eniDecember 31, 2014 was $151.9 million, an incre&$28.1 million, or 46.3%, when compared to net
interest income for the year ended December 313 0$103.9 million. This increase in net interestome was primarily attributable to an
increase of $1.8 billion in average loans recei@aptincipally in multi-family and other commerclahns.

The key measure of net interest income is netestanargin. While the Bancorp’s net interest madgoreased to 2.87% for the year ended
December 31, 2014 from 3.14% for the year endecdber 31, 2013 , the impact on net interest incamae secondary to the significant
increases in loan volume.

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and :

Net interest income for the year ended Decembe2@13 was $103.9 million, an increase of $31.8iamillor 44.1%, when compared to |
interest income for the year ended December 312 20$72.1 million. This increase in net interegtame was primarily attributable to an
increase of $568.5 million in average loans hetdstde, principally loans to mortgage bankers tadifinventory, and an increase of $405.5
million in average loans held receivable, drivennmreased average balances in commercial and-faaiily loans.

The key measure of net interest income is netestanargin. While the Bancorp’s net interest madgoreased to 3.13% for the year ended
December 31, 2013 from 3.21% for the year endec®ber 31, 2012, the impact on net interest income secondary to the significant
increases in loan volume.

53




Table of Contents

PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

For more information about our provision and alloa& for loan losses methodology and our loss egpes, see “Credit Risk” and “Asset
Quality” herein and “NOTE 3 — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIBI POLICIES AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION.”

Customers Bancorp maintains its allowance for loases through a provision for loan losses chaageah expense on the consolidated
statements of income. The loan portfolio is revidwearterly to evaluate the outstanding loans anddasure both the performance of the
portfolio and the adequacy of the allowance fonlazsses. The allowance for loan losses is esturedeof the end of each quarter and
compared to the balance recorded in the genergétatkt of charge-offs and recoveries. The allowas@djusted to the estimated allowance
for loan losses balance via a charge (or debif)eégrovision for loan losses.

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and :

At December 31, 2014, approximately 0.7 % of thaltman portfolio was covered under loss sharigigaments with the FDIC. Reductions in
estimated cash flows on the covered loans are takewlditional provisions, and a correspondingivabée due from the FDIC is recorded as a
reduction to the provision for loan losses for plogtion anticipated to be recovered under the $bssing agreements.

During 2014, the provision for loan losses was $Million, an increase of $12.5 million from a pigien of $2.2 million during 2013. The
increase in the provision for loan losses durinfi2@as primarily attributable to significant orgafdan growth in the held-fdnvestment loa
portfolio, resulting in approximately $10.1 milliaf provision expense during 2014, and a reduceefiteexpected to be collected from the
FDIC as collections on covered loans improved &eddss sharing arrangements for the non-singléyfdoans approach their contractual
maturity, resulting in approximately $4.7 milliof grovision expense during 2014.

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and :

At December 31, 2013, approximately 2.1% of thaltlman portfolio was covered under loss sharingaments with the FDIC. Reductions in
estimated cash flows on the covered loans are takewlditional provisions, and a correspondingivabée due from the FDIC is recorded as a
reduction to the provision for loan losses for plogtion anticipated to be recovered under the $bssing agreements.

During 2013, the provision for loan losses was $Rililon, a decrease of $12.0 million from a prowisof $14.3 million during 2012. The
decrease in the provision for loan losses in 2@%8Ited primarily from (i) $7.5 million increasetime provision recorded in 2012 due to the re
estimation of cash flows related to purchased-tiietpaired loans, (ii) $2.6 million reduction inettprovision during 2013 due to better
sustained performance of the Bancorp’s commeritialuding multi-family) and residential mortgagetoportfolios, (iii) $0.3 million net
reduction in the provision, including the effectsofvrite-down of the FDIC receivable balance, it2@pon final payoff of covered loans
which previously had a specific allowance, and &pproximately $1.6 million net reduction in the@ypision due to generally decreased
delinquencies and improved asset quality and madkeaditions, partially offset by an increase in finevision for asset growth during 2013.
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NON-INTEREST INCOME

The chart below shows the various components ofim@nest income for each of the years ended Deeeib, 2014, 2013 and 2012.

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Mortgage warehouse transactional fees $ 8,23: $ 12,96: $ 12,28¢
Bank-owned life insurance 3,702 2,48: 1,332
Gains on sales of investment securities 3,191 1,27¢ 9,017
Gains on sales of loans 3,12¢ 852 357
Mortgage loan and banking income 2,04¢ 1,142 —
Deposit fees 801 67t 481
Other 4,02¢ 3,31¢ 5,48:
Total non-interest income $ 25,12¢ $ 22,70:  $ 28,95¢

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and :

Nor-interest income increased $2.4 million during 2€1.425.1 million compared to $22.7 million durig@13. The increase in 2014 was
attributed to the $2.3 million increase in gainssates of loans as the Bank began selling excelisfamily loan originations, $1.9 million
increase in gains on sales of investment secuaigbe Bank shortened the duration of the invastpertfolio, a $1.2 million increase in bank
owned life insurance income as the number of inkeraployees increased, and a $0.9 million increas®rtgage loan and banking income
Customers continues to develop that business,tqifsaarily by a decrease in the mortgage warehtnasesactional fees of $4.7 million.

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and :

Nor-interest income declined $6.3 million in the yeaded December 31, 2013 to $22.7 million comparek29.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012. The decrease in 2013 is atdddiotthe $7.7 million decrease in gains on sdl@svestment securities, offset in part by
launching of the mortgage banking business (geingr&t.1 million of income) and increased investiriarbank-owned life insurance
(generating an increase in income of $1.1 milligxiyo, 2012 other non-interest income includesrgefieof $4.5 million resulting from an
increased estimate of cash flows to be received the FDIC for future losses on covered loans.
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NON-INTEREST EXPENSE

The below chart shows the various components ofim@nest expense for each of the years ended Desedi, 2014, 2013, and 2012.

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Salaries and employee benefits $ 46,427 $ 3549: $ 23,84¢
FDIC assessments, taxes, and regulatory fees 11,81: 5,56¢ 3,031
Occupancy 11,01( 8,82¢ 6,81¢
Professional services 7,74¢ 5,54¢ 3,46¢
Technology, communication and bank operations 5,85¢ 4,33( 2,80¢
Other real estate owned 3,601 1,36t (85)
Loan workout 1,70¢ 2,24¢ 2,24:
Advertising and promotion 1,32t 1,27¢ 1,21¢
Loss contingency — 2,00( —
Stock offering expenses — — 1,43
Other 9,42¢ 7,37: 5,86t
Total non-interest expenses $ 98,91« $ 74,02¢ $ 50,65

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and :

Nor-interest expense was $98.9 million for the yeateghDecember 31, 2014, which was an increase 09$@#lion over non-interest
expense of $74.0 million for the year ended Decerithe2013.

Salaries and employee benefits, which represerathgest component of nanterest expense, increased $10.9 million (30.8¥846.4 million
for the year ended December 31, 2014 from $35.6omifor the year ended December 31, 2013. Thegmymeason for this increase was due
to the increase in the number of employees fromf@B3ime equivalents at December 31, 2013 to #ilRtime equivalents at December 31,
2014 and a full year of expense for the growthroplyees in 2013 as we increased the number of teambers to support our growing
commercial loan, multi-family/commercial real estadnd mortgage banking businesses and the reldtethistrative support functions.

FDIC assessments, taxes and regulatory fees iradns$6.2 million to $11.8 million for the yeanded December 31, 2014 from $5.6 mill
for the year-ended December 31, 2013 due to inedeassets subject to the FDIC assessment, higi@atery fees and higher Pennsylvania
bank shares tax expense as a result of the grdtie Bank.

Occupancy expense increased $2.2 million, risirltb.0 million for the year-ended December 31, 20dsh $8.8 million for the year-ended
December 31, 2013 as a result of a full year dfifes expense from expansion into new marketsndu2013.

Professional services expense increased $2.2 mitioo$7.7 million for the year ended DecemberZf14 from $5.5 million for the yeandec
December 31, 2013 due to higher legal and congudtipenses in 2014 related to regulatory filings atiner regulatory and legal matters as
well as general growth of the Bank.

Technology communication and bank operations irsg@&1.5 million, rising to $5.9 million for thegreended December 31, 2014 from $4.3
million for the yearended December 31, 2013 related to the increasebleruof employees and increased technology imprewnésrto meet tr
needs of a larger Bank.

Larger expenses classified in other expense indhateorigination expenses, supplies, director,feleareholder relations, sponsorships, and
business development expenses. Generally thesasegcreased as a direct result of the growtheoBank.

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and :

Non-interest expense was $74.0 million for the yeateehDecember 31, 2013, which was an increase ofi$2lion over non-interest
expense of $50.7 million for the year ended Decer8the2012.
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Salaries and employee benefits, which represeratbest component of nanterest expense, increased $11.6 million (48.8/$35.5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2013 from $23.Bomifor the year ended December 31, 2012. Thegmmmeason for this increase was due
to the increase in the number of employees fromfa2i2ime equivalents at December 31, 2012 to 88Btime equivalents at December 31,
2013. This was directly related to the need foiitamithl employees to support our organic growth #Hreexpansion into new markets.
Specifically, the increased headcount is needasdipport our growing commercial loan, multi-familgfamercial real estate, and mortgage
banking businesses and the related administratippst.

Occupancy expense increased $2.0 million, risir8t&@ million for the year-ended December 31, 2@ $6.8 million for the year-ended
December 31, 2012. The increase was related tdibgithe infrastructure to support our growth adl a®the cost of expansion into new
markets.

FDIC assessments, taxes and regulatory fees imt €55 million to $5.6 million for the year-endedcember 31, 2013 from $3.0 million for
the year-ended December 31, 2012. The primary nsafso this increase were related to higher Penasyd bank shares tax expense that
resulted from legislative changes to the tax cakioh, deposit premiums and other regulatory alintjffees.

Professional services expense increased $2.1 mitiio$5.5 million for the year-ended December211,3 from $3.5 million for the yeandec
December 31, 2012. This increase was primarilybaiiable to higher legal and consulting expenseéits3 related to regulatory filings and
other matters, including responding to alleged Eairding violations.

Technology communication and bank operations irsg@&1.5 million, rising to $4.3 million for theareended December 31, 2013 from $2.8
million for the year-ended December 31, 2012. Ttmary reason for this increase was related todingl the infrastructure to support the
growth through increased technology improvementsupgrades as well as the costs related to expauedirechnological platforms into new
markets. This corresponds with our philosophy afhitouch, high tech”, whereby we provide an exieya level of customer service
supported by state-of-the-art technology.

In March 2013, a suspected fraud was discoverdkiBank’s loans held-for-sale portfolio. Totalhsanvolved in this fraud initially appeared
to be $5.2 million. The Bank determined that anraggte of $1.0 million of the loans were not invaghin the fraud, and these loans were
subsequently sold during 2013. In addition, thekB@atovered $1.5 million in cash from the allegedpetrator in 2013. During 2013, a loss
contingency expense of $2.0 million was provideduiting in a net amount of $0.7 million classifiacdbther assets as of December 31, 2013.

Other expenses increased $1.2 million to $7.0 onilfor the year-ended December 31, 2013, compar88.8 million for the year-ended
December 31, 2012. The increase was primarilybatted to the $1.2 million increase in loan origioatand servicing fees to $2.1 million for
the year-ended December 31, 2013, compared ton§illiSn for the year-ended December 31, 2012.

INCOME TAXES

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and :

The income tax expense and effective tax rate dechoth federal and state income taxes. In 20ténie tax expense was $20.2 million with
an effective tax rate of 31.83%, compared to arersp of $17.6 million and a rate of 35.00% for 20@8ome tax expense was driven
primarily by net income before taxes of $63.4 rilliand $50.3 million, for the twelve months endezt&nber 31, 2014, and December 31,
2013, respectively. In 2014, income tax expenseoffast by a tax benefit from bank-owned life irsuce of $1,269,000, or a 2.04% tax rate
reduction. In 2013, income tax expense was offget tax benefit from bank-owned life insurance 86$,000, or a 1.73% rate reduction. In
addition to the bank-owned life insurance benéfitl4 was affected by other tax benefits of $1,821,,0r a 2.88% tax rate deduction which
included a $1,526,000 benefit from a return to mion and deferred tax analysis performed in tlivel thuarter of 2014.

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and :

The income tax expense and effective tax rate dechioth federal and state income taxes. In 20t8nie tax expense was $17.6 million with
an effective tax rate of 35.00%, compared to arergp of $12.3 million and a rate of 34.00% for 20@2ome tax expense was driven
primarily by net income before taxes of $50.3 railliand $36.1 million, for the twelve months endext&nber 31, 2013, and December 31,
2012, respectively. In 2013, income tax expenseaffast by a tax benefit from bank-owned life irmuce of $869,000, or a 1.73% tax rate
reduction. In 2012, income tax expense was offget tax benefit from bank owned life insurance 466,000, or a 1.29% tax rate reduction.
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For additional information regarding the Bancorip'some taxes, refer to “NOTE 15 — INCOME TAXES".

FINANCIAL CONDITION
GENERAL

Total assets were $6.8 billion at December 31, 20hi represented a $2.6 billion, or 64.3% incegasm $4.2 billion at December 31,
2013. The major change in our financial positionweed as the result of the growth in loans reddajavhich increased by 74.9% or $1.8
billion to $4.3 billion at December 31, 2014, fr&#.5 billion at December 31, 2013.

The main driver of the increase in assets was piliyrfaom the expansion of the commercial loan faid. Multi-family loans increased by
$1.1 billion (100.0%) to $2.2 billion at Decembdr, 2014 from $1.1 billion at December 31, 2013inotuding $99.8 million of multi-family
loans held for sale at December 31, 2014. Commeeaaestate loans increased by $396.1 million§%3 to $1.1 billion from $753.6 million
at December 31, 2013. Additionally, commercial amtustrial loans increased by $246.1 million (83)a&6$542.7 million at December 31,
2014 from $296.6 million at December 31, 2013. Lohald for sale increased by $687.9 million (92.6841.4 billion at December 31, 2014
from $747.6 million at December 31, 2013.

Total liabilities were $6.4 billion at December 2014. This represented a $2.6 billion, or 69.4%réase from $3.8 billion at December 31,
2013. The increase in total liabilities was due tugher level of deposits in 2014, compared td320btal deposits grew by $1.6 billion
(53.1%), to $4.5 billion at December 31, 2014 fr$80 billion at December 31, 2013. Deposits araioled primarily from within the Bank’s
geographic service area and through wholesale ank@bnetworks. These wholesale and network soymemsde loweost funding alternative
to retail deposits and diversify to the Bank’s smsrof funds. The growth in retail deposits wamprily due to exceptional sales execution,
despite lower interest rates in 2014. Additionalding for asset growth was obtained through FHLBaades which increased by $911.5
million to $1.6 billion at December 31, 2014 from0®.5 million at December 31, 2013.

The following table sets forth certain key condehisalance sheet data:

December 31,

2014 2013

(amounts in thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 371,02: $ 233,06
Investment securities, available for sale 416,68! 497,57:
Loans held for sale (includes $1,335,668 and $ B8/ fespectively at fair value) 1,435,45! 747,59:
Loans receivable 4,312,17. 2,465,07:
Total loans receivable, net of the allowance fanléosses 4,281,24. 2,441,08!
Total assets 6,825,37! 4,153,17:
Total deposits 4,532,53 2,959,92:
Federal funds purchased — 13,00(
FHLB advances 1,618,00! 706,50(
Other borrowings 88,25( 63,25(
Subordinated debt 110,00( 2,00(
Total liabilities 6,382,22! 3,766,55!
Total shareholders’ equity 443,14! 386,62:
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 6,825,37! 4,153,17.

CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS

Cash and due from banks consists mainly of vash @md cash items in the process of collections@talances totaled $62.7 million at
December 31, 2014. This represents a $2.0 millierease from $60.7 million at December 31, 201&s€Ehbalances vary from day to day,
primarily due to variations in customers’ depositth the Bank.
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INTEREST-EARNING DEPOSITS

Interest earning deposits consist mainly of depadithe Federal Reserve Bank of Philadelphia. 8Heposits totaled $308.3 million at
December 31, 2014, which is a $135.9 million inseeom $172.4 million at December 31, 2013. Tlakbce varies from day to day,
depending on several factors, such as variationsstomers’ deposits with the Bank and the payrokahecks drawn on customers’ accounts.

INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The investment securities portfolio is an importsmrce of interest income and liquidity. It cotsisf U.S. Treasury, government agency and
mortgage-backed securities (quaranteed by an agdribg United States government and non-agencsagteed), municipal securities,
domestic corporate debt, asset-backed securitidsnarketable equity securities. In addition toegating revenue, the investment portfolio is
maintained to manage interest rate risk, provigeidiity, provide collateral for other borrowingsdadiversify the credit risk of earning assets.
The portfolio is structured to maximize net intéfi@some, given changes in the economic environplieptidity position and balance sheet
mix.

At December 31, 2014, investment securities wefes&million compared to $497.6 million at DecemB#&r 2013. The decrease was
primarily the result of the sale of securities t@tegically reduce interest rate risk by shortgrtime duration of the investment securities' term.

Unrealized gains and losses on availablestde securities are included in other compreherisa@me and reported as a separate compon
shareholders’ equity, net of the related tax effect

The following table sets forth the amortized cdshe investment securities at the last three Figear ends:

December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(amounts in thousands)
Available for Sale:
Mortgage-backed securities (1) $ 376,85 461,98¢ $ 102,44¢
Corporate notes (2) 15,00( 25,00( 25,00(
Equity securities (3) 23,07« 23,07« 6
$ 414,92t % 510,06 $ 127,45!

(1) Comprised primarily of mortgage-backed se@sitssued by governmegponsored agencies, including FHLMC, FNMA, and GN
(2) Includes subordinated debt issued by other barditgplcompanie
3) Comprised primarily of equity securities in a fgneientity

For financial reporting purposes, available-foressécurities are carried at fair value.
The following table sets forth information abou¢ tinaturities and weighted-average yield of the ses portfolio. Yields are not reported on

a tax-equivalent basis.
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December 31, 2014

Fair
Amortized Cost Value
No
< 1-5 5-10 After 10 Specific
lyr years years years Maturity Total Total
(dollars in thousands)
Available for Sale
Mortgage-backed securities  $ — % — % — 8 — $ 37685 $ 37685 $ 377,31
Yield — — — — 2.2% 2.2% —
Corporate notes — — 15,00( — — 15,00( 15,10
Yield — — 5.5¢% — — 5.5¢% —
Equity securities — — — — 23,07« 23,07« 24,27(
Yield — — — — —% —% —
Total $ — $ — $ 15,00( $ — $ 399,92 $ 414,92 $ 416,68!
Weighted Average Yield —% —% 5.56% —% 2.2% 2.26%

The mortgage-backed securities in the portfolioenssued by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, and Ginnie maecontain guarantees for the
collection of principal and interest on the underymortgages. The corporate notes in the portfalehigh-quality investments in financial
service industry companies

LOANS

Existing lending relationships are primarily wittmall businesses and individual consumers primamiBucks, Berks, Chester, Montgomery,
Delaware, and Philadelphia Counties, Pennsylvaaanden and Mercer Counties, New Jersey; and West&t@ounty and New York City,
New York; and the New England area. The loans tadgage banking companies portfolio is na-wide. The loan portfolio is primarily
comprised of loans to support mortgage banking @onigs’ funding needs, multi-family/commercial reatate, construction, and commercial
and industrial loans. The Bank continues to foausmall business loans to grow its commercial leg@ifforts, establish a specialty lending
business, and expand its consumer lending prodagsutiined below:

Commercial Lending

The Bank’s commercial lending is divided into fguoups: Business Banking, Small Business Bankingtifamily, and Commercial real
estate. This grouping is designed to allow for treeesource deployment, higher standards of riskagement, strong asset quality, lower
interest rate risk and higher productivity levels.

The commercial lending group focuses on companigsamnual revenues ranging from $5 million to $8illion, which typically have credit
requirements between $0.5 million and $10 million.

The small business banking platform originates $oamcluding Small Business Administration loamsptigh the branch network sales force
and a team of dedicated Small Business relationshipagers. The support administration of this ptatfis centralized including risk
management, product management, marketing, perfaren@acking and overall strategy. Credit and siagring has been established for the
Bank’s sales force, ensuring that it has smallri®ss experts in place providing appropriate fir@rgnlutions to the small business owners in
its communities. A division approach focuses orustdes that offer high asset quality and are digpics to drive profitability.

In 2009, the Bank launched its lending to mortgageking businesses products, which primarily pregitinancing to mortgage bankers for
residential mortgage originations from loan closimgil sale in the secondary market. Many providdrsquidity in this segment exited the
business in 2009 during a period of excessive nawkmoil. The Bank saw an opportunity to providgildity to this business segment at
attractive spreads. There was also the opporttmitytract escrow deposits and to generate feeriado this business.
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The goal of the lending to mortgage banking busiese¢ending group is to provide liquidity to moggacompanies. These loans are primarily
used by mortgage companies to fund their pipelireea closing of individual mortgage loans until ithgale into the secondary market. The
residential loans are taken as collateral for thekBs loans. As of December 31, 2014, loans intheehouse lending portfolio totaled $1.3
billion and are designated as held for sale.

The goal of the Bank’s multi-family lending produstto build a portfolio of high-quality multi-fadyi loans within the Banls covered market
while cross selling other products and servicess Product primarily targets refinancing existimguhs with other banks using conservative
underwriting and provides purchase money for neguisitions by borrowers. The primary collateral foese loans is a first lien mortgage on
the multi-family property, plus an assignment ¢fi@hses related to such property. As of DecembeRB14, the Bank had multi-family loans
of $2.2 billion outstanding, making up approximgt88.8% of the Banls total loan portfolio, compared to $1.1 billiom,approximately 33.1¢
of the total loan portfolio at December 31, 2013.

As of December 31, 2014, the Bank had $5.3 billiboommercial loans outstanding, composing appratéty 92.5% of its total loan
portfolio, which includes loans held for sale, cargd to $2.9 billion, composing approximately 90.28becember 31, 2013.

Consumer Lending

The Bank provides home equity and residential nagggoans to customers. Underwriting standardhdare equity lending are conservative
and lending is offered to solidify customer relaghips and grow relationship revenues in the lengnt This lending is important in the Bank’s
efforts to grow total relationship revenues fordtmsumer households. As of December 31, 201Ban& had $432.2 million in consumer
loans outstanding, or 7.5% of the Bank’s total lpartfolio, which includes loans held for sale. Benk plans to expand its product offerings
in real estate secured consumer lending.

Customers Bank has launched a community outreardraom in Philadelphia to finance homeownershiprban communities. As part of this
program, the Bank is offering an “Affordable MorggaProduct”. This community outreach program isgbexting the underserved population,
especially in lowand moderate income neighborhoods. As part ofctimsmitment, a loan production office was openeBriogress Plaza, 15
North Broad Street, Philadelphia, PA. The prograoiudes homebuyer seminars that prepare potemtaehuyers for homeownership
teaching money management and budgeting skillgjdity the financial responsibilities that comelwliaving a mortgage and owning a ho
The “Affordable Mortgage Product” is offered thrdwoyt Customers Bank’s assessment areas.

The composition of loans held for sale was as ¥adto

December 31
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

(in thousands)
Commercial Loans:
Mortgage warehouse loans at fair

value (1) $ 1,332,01' $ 740,69 $ 1,439,88° $ 174,99¢ $ 199,97(
Multi-family loans at lower of cost or
fair value 99,79: — — — —
Total Commercial Loans Held for
Sale 1,431,81 740,69: 1,439,88! 174,99¢ 199,97(

Consumer Loans:

Residential mortgage loans at fair
value 3,64¢ 6,89¢ — — —

Loans held for sale $ 1,435,45 $ 74759. $ 1,439,88' $ 174,99¢ $ 199,97(

(2) Prior to 2012 the Bank had not elected thevfaiue option on Mortgage warehouse loans helddte.
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During the fourth quarter of 2014, certain typeoains were reclassified due to their purpose amdadl risk characteristics. Therefore,
balances on certain loans and allowance for lossel® as of December 31, 2013 were reclassifiedrnfmon to the December 31, 2014
presentation.

The composition of loans receivable (excluding bhald for sale) was as follows:

December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)
Commercial:
Multi-family $ 2,127,03. $ 1,063,45 $ 362,68¢ $ 70,94 $ —
Commercial real estate 1,132,07. 724,75. 437,69¢ 244,10t 144,84
Commercial and industrial 540,43( 292,93 114,61! 109,98t 35,94
Construction 56,66¢ 31,31« 25,70¢ 10,73: 13,38"
Mortgage warehouse (b) — — 9,56¢ 619,31¢ 186,11:
Total Commercial Loans 3,856,20! 2,112,46; 950,27 1,055,08 380,29:
Consumer:
Residential real estate 285,00: 145,18t 110,00¢ 53,64t 28,96«
Manufactured housing 126,73: 139,47: 153,42¢ 104,56! 102,92-
Home equity / other 1,541 2,14¢ 2,072 2,20¢ 1,581
Total Consumer Loans 413,27! 286,80« 265,50¢ 160,41 133,46
Total loan receivable not covered under
FDIC loss sharing agreements 4,269,48! 2,399,26! 1,215,78. 1,215,501 513,76(
Commercial:
Commercial real estate 17,58¢ 28,83¢ 51,63¢ 61,12¢ 75,24¢
Commercial and industrial 2,23t 3,65¢ 11,71¢ 13,79¢ 22,87t
Construction 6,70¢ 11,60 19,84¢ 24,87: 38,28(
Multi-family 372 60C 647 — —
Total Commercial Loans 26,897 44,70( 83,84¢ 99,79¢ 136,40:
Consumer:
Residential real estate 12,39: 18,73: 19,95: 22,46 23,82:
Home equity / other 2,892 3,29: 3,72¢ 4,012 4,66:
Total Consumer Loans 15,28¢ 22,02t 23,68 26,47 28,48
Total loan receivable covered under FDIC
loss sharing agreements (a) 42,18 66,72¢ 107,52° 126,27t 164,88!
4,311,66. 2,465,99! 1,323,311 1,341,78, 678,64!
Unearned origination costs, net 512 (912 1,157 (389 327
Allowance for loan losses (30,937 (23,999 (25,837 (15,039 (15,129
Loans receivable, net $ 4,281,24  $ 2,441,080 $ 1,298,631 $ 1,326,36. $ 663,84

€) Covered loans receivable acquired from theérUSA Bank and ISN Bank are covered under theCHD$s sharing agreements over ¢
five to ten year period which begin to expire irl8@lepending upon the type of loan.

(b) During the third quarter of 2012, the Bancelgcted the fair value option for certain warehdeseling transactions originated after
July 1, 2012. The documentation on the loans wadified to a purchase with agreement to resell @mtiAs such, qualified warehot
lending transactions on its balance sheet at DeeeBih 2013 and 2012, were accounted for at fairevand classified as held for sale.
Warehouse lending transactions on the Bancorpanial sheet at December 31, 2011 were classifikdhas receivable not covered
under FDIC loss sharing agreements.

Loans to mortgage bank businesses and certairerggitlloans expected to be sold are classifiddass held for sale. Loans held for sale
totaled $1.4 billion and $747.6 million at DecemBér 2014 and 2013, respectively. Loans held ftr aee not included in the loan receivable
amounts. The mortgage warehouse product line pesvidancing to mortgage companies nationwide fitoentime of the home purchase or
refinancing of a mortgage loan through the salihefloan by the mortgage
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originator into the secondary market, either thioagepurchase facility or the purchase of the tyithg mortgages. As a mortgage warehoust
lender, we provide a form of financing to mortg&gekers by purchasing for resale the underlyinileedgial mortgages on a short-term basis
under a master repurchase agreement. We are stdbjbetrisks associated with such lending, inelgdbut not limited to, the risks of fraud,
bankruptcy and default of the mortgage banker ahefunderlying residential borrower, any of whodhuld result in credit losses. The
mortgage warehouse lending employees monitor timestgage originators by obtaining financial andesttelevant information to reduce th
risks during the lending period.

Loans receivable, net, increased by $1.8 billioi4@ billion at December 31, 2014 from $2.4 billiat December 31, 2013. The increase in
Loans receivable, net, was also attributable tbdndpalances for multi-family, commercial real &stand commercial and industrial loans
which increased $1.1 billion, $396.1 million, ar24$.1 million, respectively from December 31, 20IBe multi-family, commercial real
estate and commercial and industrial loan balasagcreasing due to the focus on this element@Bénk's organic growth strategy. Offsett
these increases in part was the loan runoff fochmased-credit-impaired and covered loans.

The following table sets forth certain categoriébans receivable* as of December 31, 2014, im&eof contractual maturity date:

After one
but
within After
Within five five
one year years years Total

(in thousands)
Types of Loans:

Construction $ 7200 % 14,69¢ $ 41,46¢ $ 63,37«
Commercial real estate 32,47¢ 512,36! 604,81« 1,149,65
Multi-family 11 1,266,93: 860,45 2,127,40
Commercial and industrial 131,42 230,17¢ 181,06: 542,66!

Total $ 171,12 $ 2,024,17° % 1,687,80. $ 3,883,10

Amount of such loans with:

Predetermined rates $ 36,01 % 1,716,47°  $ 1,117,60. $ 2,870,09
Floating or adjustable rates 135,10° 307,70( 570,20: 1,013,00:

Total $ 171,12 $ 2,024,17° $ 1,687,80. $ 3,883,10

* Includes covered and non-covered loans.

CREDIT RISK

Customers Bancorp manages credit risk by maintgidiversification in its loan portfolio, by estadting and enforcing prudential
underwriting standards, by collection efforts agdcbntinuous and periodic loan classification resseManagement also considers the effe
credit risk on financial performance by reviewingagterly and maintaining an adequate allowancéofm losses. Credit losses are charged
when they are identified, and provisions are adtethe allowance for loan losses when and as @apiate, but at least quarterly. The
allowance for loan losses is evaluated at leastteja

The provision for loan losses was $14.7 million,2illion, and $14.3 million for the years endedd@mber 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. The allowance for loan losses maieigifor loans receivable (excludes loans helddtea as estimable credit losses are embedde
in the fair values at which the loans are reportealy $30.9 million, or 0.7% of total non-coveredns, at December 31, 2014, and $24.0
million, or 1.0% of total non-covered loans, at Beber 31, 2013. The coverage ratio declined dudig! largely due to the decrease in non-
performing loans as a result of net-charge-offéoans resolved or transferred to other real estateed, and the growth of the multi-family
loan portfolio which draws only a 40 bps reserxelalue to its historical payment experience. Netrge-offs were $3.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2014, a decrease of $3.8 milicrpared to the $6.9 million for the year endirec@mber 31, 2013. The Bank had
approximately $42.2 million in loans that were cageunder loss share arrangements with the FDIE Becember 31, 2014 and $66.7 mill
as of December 31, 2013. Customers Bank considersavered loans in estimating the allowance fan llmsses and considers recovery of
estimated credit losses from the FDIC in the FDi@emnification asset.
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The chart below depicts the Bancorp’s allowancddan losses, excluding the effects of the FDIGheable, for the periods indicated.

December 31,
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousands)
Balance of the allowance at the beginning of ther $ 23,99¢ % 25837 $ 15,03: $ 15,12¢ $ 10,03:

Loan charge-offs (1)

Construction 89t 2,09¢ 2,507 1,17¢ 1,21¢
Commercial real estate 2,197 3,35¢ 2,462 5,77¢ 964
Commercial and industrial 1,15¢ 1,38 52z 2,54: 1,69¢
Residential real estate 667 41C 64¢ 10¢ 1,36¢
Home equity / other 33 87 26 55 22
Total Charge-offs (2) 4,947 7,33¢ 6,16¢ 9,661 5,26¢
Loan recoveries

Construction 13 — 4 2 —
Commercial real estate 1,02¢ 42 63 94 —
Commercial and industrial 511 391 514 11 6
Residential real estate 26E 2 5 — 9
Home equity / other 8 9 114 7 —
Total Recoveries 1,82: 444 70C 114 15
Total net charge-offs 3,12¢ 6,89 5,46¢ 9,541 5,25(
Provision for loan losses (3) 10,05¢ 5,05¢ 16,27: 9,45( 10,391
Transfer (4) — — — — (50)
Balance of the allowance for loan losses at the e

of the year $ 30,93: $ 23,99¢ % 25837 % 15,03: $ 15,12¢
Net charge-offs as a percentage of average non-

covered loans 0.0%% 0.3¢% 0.42% 1.12% 1.0(%

Q) Charge-offs on purchased-creiditpaired loans that are pooled are not recogningitithe pool mature

(2 The large chargeffs in 2011 were related to loans acquired in28&0 FDIC assisted transactions and the Legacygtior

(3) The 2014, 2013, 2012 and 2011provision amountsudrsl the (cost)/benefit of the FDIC loss sharengements of $(4.7) million, $2
million, $2.0 million, and $2.0 million respectiyelThere are no comparable amounts for 2010.

4 In 2010, Customers Bancorp had a reserve @j08® for unfunded commitments previously includethe allowance for loan losses.
The reserve for unfunded loan commitments was ssiflad to other liabilities.

The allowance for loan losses is based on a permdiluation of the loan portfolio and is maintairad a level that management considers
adequate to absorb potential losses. All commelaeals are assigned credit risk ratings, based apassessment of the borrower, the
structure of the transaction and the availableatetal and/or guarantees. All loans are monitoegdlarly by the responsible officer, and the
risk ratings are adjusted when considered appri@pride risk assessment allows management to f@gmtblem loans timely. Management
considers a variety of factors, and recognizesrtherent risk of loss that always exists in thallag process. Management uses a disciplined
methodology to estimate the appropriate level lofrnce for loan losses. Management’s methodologstimate an aggregate reserve is
described in “NOTE 3 — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIES AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION.” See “Asset Qualitigr further
discussion of the allowance for loan losses.

The Bank's methodology includes an evaluation s jpotential from individual problem credits, adlwe a general reserve for the portfolio
considering anticipated specific and general ecaondactors that may positively or adversely affegliectability. This assessment includes a
review of changes in the composition and volumthefloan portfolio, overall portfolio quality an@gt loss experience, review of specific
problem loans, current economic conditions that afégct borrowers’ ability to repay, and other fastthat may warrant consideration in
estimating the reserve. In addition, the Bancoiternal auditors, loan review, and various regarkaagencies periodically review the
adequacy of the allowance as
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an integral part of their work responsibilitiesexamination process. Customers Bancorp may be askedognize additions or reductions to
the allowance for loan losses based on their judgsnaf information available at the time of thetaeination.

In the covered loan table, many of the Bank’s comeiaband industrial loans have been classifiede®red real estate. Approximately 75-
80% of the Bank’s commercial real estate, commearid residential construction, consumer resideatid commercial and industrial loan
types have real estate as collateral (collectivighe real estate portfolio”). The Bank’s lien pixmn on the real estate collateral will vary on a
loan-bydoan basis and will change as a result of chang#sei value of the collateral. Current appraisatigling current value estimates of
property are received when the Bank’s credit grdefg@rmines that the facts and circumstances hguédisantly changed since the date of the
last appraisal, including that real estate valuegldeteriorated. The credit committee and loaicerf review loans that are fifteen or more
days delinquent and all non-accrual loans on ageribasis. In addition, loans where the loan effichave identified a “borrower of interest”
are discussed to determine if additional analysisecessary to apply the risk rating criteria priyp&he risk ratings for the real estate loan
portfolio are determined based upon the currerimition available, including but not limited tesdissions with the borrower, updated
financial information, economic conditions withimetgeographic area and other factors that maytdffecash flow of the loan. On a quarterly
basis, if necessary, the collateral values or distzd cash flow models are used to determine tiraa@ed fair value of the underlying
collateral for the quantification of a specific eege for impaired loans. Appraisals used withits #waluation process do not typically age more
than two years before a new appraisal is obtaiRedloans where real estate is not the primarycsgoaf collateral, updated financial
information is obtained, including accounts recbleaand inventory aging reports and relevant suppfgal financial data to determine the fair
value of the underlying collateral.

These evaluations, however, are inherently subjeets they require material estimates, includingprag others, the amounts and timing of
expected future cash flows on impaired loans, egéhlosses in the loan portfolio, and general artsofor historical loss experience,
economic conditions, uncertainties in estimatirggés and inherent risks in the various credit pliot, all of which may be susceptible to
significant change. Pursuant to ASC 45@ntingenciesind ASC 310-40roubled Debt Restructurings by Creditoirepaired loans, consisting
of non-accrual and restructured loans, are consitlierthe methodology for determining the allowafarecredit losses. Impaired loans are
generally evaluated based on the expected futwte ftavs or the fair value of the underlying callat! (less estimated costs to sell) if principal
repayment is expected to come from the sale oratiperof such collateral.

The following table shows how the allowance fomdasses was allocated among the various loanghiotfoutstanding as of December 31,

2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively. This allocatwas based on management's specific review ofriitcrisk of the outstanding loan
portfolios in each category as well as historicanhtls.

December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Percent of Percent of Percent of
Loans in Loans in Loans in
each each each
Allowance category Allowance category Allowance category
for loan to total for loan to total for loan to total
losses loans (a) losses loans (a) losses loans (a)
(dollars in thousands)
Construction $ 1,047 3.4% $ 2,38t 9.€% $ 3,991 15.0%
Commercial real estate 13,57: 43.% 11,47¢ 47.% 13,64t 52.%
Multi-family 8,49: 27.5% 4,227 17.€% 1,79¢ 6.%%
Commercial and industrial 4,74¢ 15.2% 2,67¢ 11.2% 1,47 5.7%
Residential real estate 2,69¢ 8.7% 2,49( 10.% 3,23: 12.5%
Home equity / other 114 0.4% 13C 0.5% 154 0.6%
Mortgage warehouse — —% — —% 71 0.2%
Manufactured housing 262 0.8% 614 2.6% 75C 2.%
Residual Reserve — —% — —% 722 2.8%
$ 30,93: 100.(% $ 23,99¢ 100.(% $ 25,83 100.(%
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December 31,

2011 2010
Percent of Percent of
Loans in Loans in
each each
Allowance category Allowance category
for loan to total for loan to total
losses loans (a) losses loans
(dollars in thousands)
Construction $ 4,65¢ 31.(% $ 2,12¢ 14.1%
Commercial real estate 5,44 36.2% 6,28( 41.5%
Multi-family 1,58¢ 10.5% — —%
Commercial and industrial 1,441 9.€% 1,66: 11.(%
Residential real estate 844 5.6% 3,98¢ 26.2%
Home equity / other 77 0.5% 11 0.1%
Mortgage warehouse 92¢ 6.2% 465 3.1%
Manufactured housing 1 —% — —%
Residual Reserve 54 0.4% 59¢€ 3.%
$ 15,03 100.(% $ 15,12¢ 100.(%

@) Total loans include covered and raovered loans in 2014, 2013, 2012, and 2011. Nereavloans were held prior to 20
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ASSET QUALITY

The Bank divides its loan portfolio into two cateigs to analyze and understand loan activity amtbpeance: loans that were originated, and
loans that were acquired. The Bank further divioiéginated loans into two categories: those origidarior to the current underwriting
standards in 2009 and those originated subjettaset standards post 2009, and purchased loansviniategories: those purchased at a cred
discount, and those not acquired with credit distoManagement believes that this additional infation provides for a better understanding
of the risk in the portfolio and the various tymégeserves that are available to absorb loan $o$sd may arise in future periods. Credit losse:
from originated loans are absorbed by the allowdoc®an loss reserves. Credit losses from acduaans are absorbed by the allowance for
loan losses, nonaccretable difference fair valugksjand cash reserves, as described below. Ttweaaite for loan losses is to absorb only
those losses estimated to have been incurredaaitgrisition, whereas the fair value mark and casbmwes absorb losses estimated to have
been embedded in the acquired loans at acquisifitis.schedule includes both loans held for satelaans held for investment.

Asset Quality at December 31, 2014

Greater NPL NPA
than 90 to to
Days Non- Loan Loans +
30-90 and accrual/ OREO NPA Type OREO
Loan Type Total Loans  Current Days Accruing NPL (a) (b) (a)+(b) (%) (%)

(dollars in thousands)

Legacy Loans

Legacy $ 5407f $ 50,32 $ 1,100 $ — 8 2,65: $ 495¢ $ 7,611 4.91% 12.8%
TDRs 1,06( 99¢ — — 62 — 62 5.85% 5.85%
Total Legacy Loans 55,13¢ 51,32( 1,10¢ — 2,71¢ 4,95¢ 7,67: 4.92% 12.7%
Multi-Family 2,122,47. 2,122,47. — — — — — 0.0(% 0.00%
Commercial Real Estate 1,027,18 1,025,33 — — 1,854 — 1,85¢ 0.1&% 0.1&%
Commercial & Industrial 466,65: 465,741 — — 907 33t 1,24z 0.1% 0.27%
Residential 160,22! 159,57: 492 — 161 — 161 0.1(% 0.1(%
Construction 56,51( 56,51( — — — — — 0.0(% 0.0(%
Home equity / other 57€ 567 — — 9 — 9 1.56% 1.56%
TDR's 57¢ 57¢ — — — — — 0.0(% 0.0(%
Total Originated Loans 3,834,19 3,830,77. 492 — 2,931 33t 3,26¢ 0.0&% 0.09%
Acquired Loans
Covered 30,28: 25,37: 665 — 4,24¢ 9,44~ 13,69: 14.02% 34.4%
Non-covered 332,04¢ 320,45! 6,21¢ 4,38¢ 97¢ 632 1,612 0.2% 0.4¢%
TDR's Covered 532 532 — — — — — 0.0(% 0.0(%
TDRs Non-Covered 2,85: 1,88¢ 10t — 862 — 862 30.21% 30.21%
Total Acquired Loans 365,71: 348,241 6,98¢ 4,38¢ 6,087 10,07¢ 16,16¢ 1.6€6% 4.3(%
Acquired PCI Loans
Covered 11,36° 3,93¢ — 7,43¢ — — — 0.0(% 0.0(%
Non-Covered 45,25( 38,95: 65t 5,64+ — — — 0.0(% 0.0(%
Total Acquired PCI Loans 56,61" 42,88« 65& 13,07¢ — — — 0.0C% 0.0(%
Unearned Origination Fees 51z 512 — — — — —
Total Loans Receivable 4,312,17. 4,273,73 9,23¢ 17,46¢ 11,73 15,37: 27,104 0.27% 0.6%
Total Loans Held for Sale 1,435,45! 1,435,45 — — — — —
Total Portfolio $5,747,63. $5709,19 $ 923 $ 1746¢ $ 11,73¢  $1537: $ 27,10¢ 0.2(% 0.47%

67




Table of Contents

Asset Quality at December 31, 2014 (continued)

Total Reserves Reserves
Cash Credit to Loans to NPLs
Loan Type Total Loans NPL ALL Reserve Reserves (%) (%)
New Century Orig. Loans
Legacy $ 54,07t $ 2,65: $ 154t $ — 3 1,54¢ 2.86% 58.21%
TDRs 1,06(C 62 30 — 30 2.8% 48.3%
Total Legacy Loans 55,13¢ 2,71¢ 1,57¢ — 1,57¢ 2.8% 58.0%
Multi-Family 2,122,47. — 8,491 — 8,491 0.4(% n/e
Commercial Real Estate 1,027,18 1,854 7,61( — 7,61C 0.74% 410.4¢%0
Commercial & Industrial 466,65: 907 3,41¢ — 3,41¢ 0.73% 376.81%
Residential 160,22} 161 1,171 — 1,171 0.72% 727.3%
Construction 56,51( — 424 — 424 0.7%% nle
Home equity / other 57€ 9 8 — 8 1.3% 88.8%%
TDR's 57¢ — — — — 0.0(% n/e
Total Originated Loans 3,834,19 2,931 21,12: — 21,12; 0.55% 720.6%
Acquired Loans
Covered 30,28: 4,24¢ 602 — 602 1.9% 14.2(%
Non-covered 332,04¢ 97¢ 617 3,042 3,65¢ 1.1% 373.7%
TDR's Covered 532 — — — — 0.0(% n/e
TDRs Non-Covered 2,852 862 — — — 0.0(% 0.0(%
Total Acquired Loans 365,71: 6,08 1,22( 3,04z 4,262 1.17% 70.02%
Acquired PCI Loans
Covered 11,367 — 1,66¢ — 1,66¢ 14.6¢% nle
Non-Covered 45,25( — 5,34¢ — 5,34t 11.81% n/e
Total Acquired PCI Loans 56,61" — 7,01« — 7,014 12.3% n/e
Unearned Origination Fees 512
Total Loans Held for Investment 4,312,17 11,73 30,93: 3,042 33,97« 0.7% 289.5(%
Total Loans Held for Sale 1,435,45! — — — — 0.0(% n/e
Total Portfolio $ 5,747,63 $ 11,73 $ 30,93. $ 3,042 % 33,97 0.59% 289.5(%

Originated Loans

Originated loans (excluding held-for-sale loansaled $3.8 billion, or 67.7%, of total loans at Bether 31, 2014, compared to $2.1 billion, or
64.2%, at December 31, 2013. Of the total origididdans at December 31, 2014, $3.8 billion, or 98.6/ere originated post 2009, when the
new management team adopted new underwriting stdsitlzat management believes better limits riskess. Only $2.9 million, or 0.08%, of
the post 2009 loans were npefforming at December 31, 2014. Of the total oagged loans at December 31, 2013, $2.0 billior®608%, wer
originated post 2009. Only $0.5 million, or 0.038bthe post 2009 loans were non-performing at Ddxsar1, 2013. The post 2009 originated
loans were supported by an allowance for loan e§&21.1 million (0.55% of post 2009 originatedrs) and $10.7 million (0.54% of post
2009 originated loans), respectively, at Decemhlie2814 and December 31, 2013.

Legacy loans declined $20.9 million to $55.1 miiliat December 31, 2014, compared to $76.0 millidbexember 31, 2013. Non-performing
Legacy loans also declined to $2.7 million at DelsenB81, 2014 from $10.2 million at December 31,3284 the Bank continued to workout
losses in this portfolio. The Legacy originatedrisavere supported by an allowance for loan los6&4.6 million (2.86% of Legacy loans) a
$2.4 million (3.21% of Legacy loans), respectivelyDecember 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

Acquired Loan:

At December 31, 2014, Customers Bank reported illidn of acquired loans, which was 7.4% of tdtans, compared to $0.4 billion, or
12.6%, of total loans at December 31, 2013. Noffiep@ing acquired loans totaled $6.1 million at Daber 31, 2014 and $8.5 million at
December 31, 2013. When loans are acquired, theeyeaorded on the balance sheet at fair value. itedjipans include purchased portfolios,
FDIC failed-bank acquisitions, and unassisted agstjoms. Of the manufactured housing loans purahfi®en Tammac prior to 2012, $70.6
million were supported by a $3.0 million cash reseat December
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31, 2014, compared to $74.7 million supported lbpsh reserve of $3.1 million at December 31, 20h8. cash reserve was created as part of
the purchase transaction to absorb losses andigaimed in a demand deposit account at the Batlcutrent losses and delinquent interest
are absorbed by this reserve. For the manufachoesing loans purchased in 2012, Tammac has agatibin to pay the Bank the full payoff
amount of the defaulted loan, including any priagipnpaid interest, or advances on the loans, treborrower vacates the property. At
December 31, 2014, $47.5 million of these loansaveaitstanding, compared to $53.5 million at Decer8ie2013.

Many of the acquired loans were purchased at adigc The price paid considered management’s judgaeto the credit and interest rate
risk inherent in the portfolio at the time of puasle. Every quarter, management reassesses tlamdsidjusts the cash flow forecast to
incorporate changes in the credit outlook. Gengralldecrease in forecasted cash flows for a pesthBban will result in a provision for loan
losses, and absent charge-offs, an increase mllthveance for loan losses. Acquired loans havegaifitantly higher percentage of non-
performing loans than loans originated after Sep&m2009. Management acquired these loans witexpectation that non-performing loan
levels would be elevated, and therefore incorpdrttiat expectation into the price paid. There 8pacial Assets Group that focuses on
workouts for these acquired non-performing as3ettal acquired loans were supported by reservésaahce for loan losses and cash
reserves) of $11.3 million (2.67% of total acquitedns) and $13.9 million (3.43% of total acquitedns), respectively, at December 31, 2014
and December 31, 2013.

Held-for-Sale Loans

At December 31, 2014, loans held for sale were $illién, or 25.0%, of the total loan portfolio, mpared to $0.7 billion, or 23.3% of the total
loan portfolio at December 31, 2013. The loans {fietesale portfolio at December 31, 2014 includdd3tbillion of loans to mortgage banking
businesses, $99.8 million of multi-family loans &816 million of residential mortgage loans, congohio $740.7 million of loans to mortgage
banking businesses and $6.9 million of residentialttgages loans at December 31, 2013. Helds&be-loans are carried on our balance she
either fair value (due to the election of the faifue option) or the lower of cost of fair valuen Allowance for loan losses is not recorded on
loans that are held for sale.

The Bank manages its credit risk through the difieation of the loan portfolio and the applicatiohpolicies and procedures designed to
foster sound credit standards and monitoring prastiWhile various degrees of credit risk are daased with substantially all investing
activities, the lending function carries the greatiegree of potential loss. At December 31, 20iRecember 31, 2013, n@erforming loan

to total loans were 0.20% and 0.60%, respectividyal reserves to non-performing loans were 28%6%h152.9%, respectively, at December
31, 2014 and December 2013.

The tables below set forth non-covered non-perfogiibans and non-performing assets and assetyjuetiivs:

December 31

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)
Loans 90+ days delinquent still accruing $ 4,38¢ $ 3,77 $ 1,96¢ $ — 3 5
Non-accrual loans 7,481 13,51 22,34% 29,63: 22,24;
OREO 5,92¢ 5,31: 4,00t 7,31¢ 1,90¢
Non-performing non-covered assets $ 13,41 $ 18,82t $ 26,35. % 36,94¢ $ 24,14¢
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December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Non-accrual non-covered loans to total non-covérads 0.18% 0.5€% 1.84% 2.4% 4.35%
Non-performing non-covered assets to total non-eave
assets 0.31% 0.7¢% 2.1% 3.02% 4.68%
Non-accrual non-covered loans and 90+ days delimqt
to total non-covered assets 0.28% 0.72% 1.9¢% 2.42% 4.31%
Allowance for loan losses to (1):

Total non-covered loans 0.56% 0.62% 1.2(% 1.24% 2.94%

Non-performing non-covered loans 319.4%% 109.16% 65.26% 50.7% 68.02%

Q) Excludes the impact of purchased-credit-imgzhinans and their related allowance for loan lsge7.0 million for 2014, $9.2 million
for 2013, and $11.3 million for 2012. There wasralated allowance for loan losses for 2011 and 20h@re were no purchased-credit-
impaired loans in the portfolio in 2009.

The table below sets forth types of non-coveredddhat were non-performing at December 31, 2002322012, 2011 and 2010.

December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)
Construction $ — 3 2,04¢ % 2,42 $ 563 $ 4,67
Residential real estate 84¢ 96¢ 1,66¢ 1,64: 1,12¢
Commercial real estate 3,45( 9,92¢ 17,77( 19,53¢ 15,73¢
Commercial and industrial 2,257 12z 28¢ 2,78t 70&
Manufactured housing 931 44¢ 141 — —
Consumer and other — — 56 40 —
Total non-performing loans $ 7,487 $ 13,51 $ 22,347 % 29,63 $ 22,24

The Bank seeks to manage credit risk through thersification of the loan portfolio and the apptioa of credit underwriting policies and
procedures designed to foster sound credit staadard monitoring practices. While various degrdesedit risk are associated with
substantially all investing activities, the lendifugnction carries the greatest degree of poteluss.

Asset quality assurance activities include carafahitoring of borrower payment status and the icioeview of borrower current financial
information to ensure ongoing financial strengtld anrrower cash flow viability. The Bank has estti#d credit policies and procedures,
seeks the consistent application of those pol@iesprocedures across the organization, and agjobtses as appropriate for changes in
market conditions and applicable regulations.

Problem Loan Identification and Managem:

To facilitate the monitoring of credit quality withthe commercial and industrial, commercial resthe, construction portfolio and residential
real estate segments, and for purposes of analjstayical loss rates used in the determinatiothefallowance for loan losses for the
respective portfolio segment, the Bank utilizesftiilowing categories of risk ratings: pass (thare six risk ratings of pass loans), special
mention, substandard, doubtful or loss. The risingecategories, which are derived from standagtileory rating definitions, are assigned
upon initial approval of credit to borrowers andlated periodically thereafter. Pass ratings, whiehassigned to those borrowers who do not
have an identified potential or well-defined weadses and for which there is a high likelihood afesty repayment, are updated periodically
based on the size and credit characteristics didinewer. All other categories are updated onartguly basis during the month preceding the
end of the calendar quarter. While assigning riglkgs involves judgment, the risk rating procdksas management to identify riskier credits
in a timely manner and allocate the appropriateusses to managing the loans.

The Bank assigns a special mention rating to Itlaaishave potential weaknesses that deserve maeagjsrolose attention. If left uncorrecte
these potential weaknesses may, at some futurerdatet in the deterioration of the repayment peats for the loan and our credit position
December 31, 2014 and 2013, special mention loane $34.6 million and $27.7 million, respectively.
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Risk ratings are not established for home equiiyn$y consumer loans, and installiment loans, mamtause these portfolios consist of a large
number of homogenous loans with smaller balancssedd, these portfolios are evaluated for risknipdiased on aggregate payment history,
through the monitoring of delinquency levels arentts.

A regular reporting and review process is in placprovide for proper portfolio oversight and catrand to monitor those loans identified as
problem credits by management. This process igdedito assess our progress in working towardwisno| and to assist in determining an
appropriate specific allowance for possible losgdldoan work-out situations involve the activerpeipation of management and are reported
regularly to the Board. When a loan becomes deéntj@0 days or more, or earlier if considered appate, the loan is assigned to Customers
Special Asset Group (“SAG”) for workout or othesodution.

Loan charge-offs are determined on a case-by-casie.thoans are generally charged off when prindsplékely to be unrecoverable and after
appropriate collection steps have been taken. ctbarge-offs are proposed by the SAG and approveatéBoard of Directors.

Loan policies and procedures are reviewed interriafl possible revisions and changes on a regasisbin addition, these policies and
procedures, together with the loan portfolio, @eéewed on a periodic basis by various regulatgenaies and by our internal, external and
loan review auditors, as part of their examinatiod audit procedures.

Troubled Debt Restructurings (TDRS)

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, there were $5.6amiind $4.6 million, respectively, in loans repdras TDRs. TDRs are considered
impaired loans in the calendar year of their rettning and are evaluated to determine whether sheyld be placed on non-accrual status. Ir
subsequent years, a TDR may be returned to acstatak if it satisfies a minimum sironth performance requirement; however, it will eém
classified as an impaired loan. Generally, CustsrBank requires sustained performance for nine hsooe¢fore returning a TDR to accrual
status.

Modification of purchased-credit-impaired loansttage accounted for within loan pools in accordanith the accounting standards for
purchased-credit-impaired loans do not result énrtimoval of these loans from the pool even if fications would otherwise be considered a
TDR. Accordingly, as each pool is accounted foa aingle asset with a single composite interestaat an expectation of cash flows,
modifications of loans within such pools are notRD

TDR modifications primarily involve interest ratercessions, extensions of term, deferrals of gradciand other modifications. Other
modifications typically reflect other nonstandaedms which the Bancorp would not offer in non-treabsituations. During the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, loanseegggng $1.1 million and $1.2 million were moddia troubled debt restructurings. TDR
modifications of loans within the commercial andustrial category were primarily interest rate @sgions, deferrals of principal and other
modifications; modifications of commercial realastloans were primarily deferrals of principaltemsions of term and other modifications;
and modifications of residential real estate loagse primarily interest rate concessions and daffenf principal. As of December 31, 2014
and 2013, there were no commitments to lend additifunds to debtors whose terms have been modifiedubled debt structuring.

There were no valuation losses at the time ofriligbled debt restructuring and the TDR had no ihpadhe allowance for loan losses. Dut
the twelve- month period ending December 31, 284 4TDR loans defaulted with a total recorded ittt of $0.4 million. During the
twelve-month period ending December 31, 2013, TillR loans defaulted with a total recorded investno£i$0.4 million. Since these loans
were included in the loan portfolio that is subjexthe cash reserve, they will be removed fromidla portfolio when they become ninety
days past due; accordingly, there were no defall2f loans at December 31, 2014 and 2013.

All loans modified in troubled debt restructuriry® considered impaired and measured for impairnidrt nature and extent of impairmen
TDRs, including those which have experienced aegilsnt default, is considered in the determinatfosn appropriate level of allowance for
loan losses. There were no specific allowancedtmegdrom TDR modifications during 2014 and 2013.
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Nor-performing loans and assets covered under FDIG &sring agreements

The tables below set forth non-accrual coveredd@ard non-performing covered assets covered uridlé€ IBss sharing agreements excluding
purchased-credit-impaired loans.

December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Non-accrual covered loans $ 424¢ $ 5,65(C $ 10,50«

Covered other real estate owned 9,44t 6,95 4,10¢

Total non-performing covered assets $ 13,69 $ 12,60 $ 14,61

The table below sets forth the types of coveredddhat were non-performing excluding purchaseditimpaired loans.

December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Construction $ 232 $ 3,38 $ 5,24¢
Residential real estate 1,00¢ 564 1,35¢
Commercial real estate 61% 1,691 3,71z
Commercial and industrial 165 2 10C
Home equity / other 13t 11 9C
Total non-performing covered loans $ 424¢ $ 565( $ 10,50«

FDIC LOSS SHARING RECEIVABLE

As of December 31, 2014, $42.2 million, or 0.7%pofstanding loans, and $ 9.4 million, or 61.5%ftbfer real estate assets, were covered
under loss share agreements with the FDIC in wihielFDIC has agreed to reimburse us for 80% dbafles incurred in connection with th
assets. We estimated the FDIC reimbursement thiatesult from losses or expenses incurred as wpadie of covered loans and other real
estate assets, and included qualifying incurreeteses, we recorded the total as a receivable tierkDIC. The FDIC loss sharing receivable
was approximately $2.3 million and $10.0 millionaiDecember 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. bsas in the FDIC indemnification asset
reflect an estimated decrease in cash flows orvered loan, and a decrease in the indemnificatisetaeflects an increase in the estimated
cash flows of a covered loan, and the change imat#d collections is presented net in the prowviday loan losses.

ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE

Accrued interest receivable increased by $6.8 onilor 81.8%, to $15.2 million at December 31, 26 $8.4 million at December 31,
2013. This increase was primarily associated wi¢hincrease in total loans receivable of $1.8dsillio $4.3 billion at December 31, 2014 from
$2.5 billion at December 31, 2013.

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT AND OTHER ASSETS

Our premises and equipment, net of accumulatecedigtion, was $10.8 million and $11.6 million atd@enber 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. Leasehold improvements and furnium@ equipment purchases and back office contritf@e8l million to the increase.
Technology equipment contributed $1.0 million doghte increase of additional technology faciligesl employees.

Customers Bank's restricted stock holdings at Ddmam31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 were $82.0omiind $42.4 million,
respectively. These consist of stock of the FedReslerve Bank, Federal Home Loan Bank and Atla@iatral Bankers Bank, and are requirec
as part of our relationship with these banks.
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Other assets at December 31, 2014 and Decemb2033 were $52.9 million and $41.0, respectivelytiity that contributed to the increase
of $11.9 million included $6.2 million of cash ptgetl for interest rate swaps, $3.8 million increasealue of interest rate swaps and $1.4
million of technology infrastructure related to Bdobile that was capitalized.

BOLI purchases of $30.5 million during 2014 contitdd to the increase in our BOLI cash surrendarevaf $138.7 million at December 31,
2014 from $104.4 million at December 31, 2013. B@Llised by the Bank as tax-free funding for emgéolpenefits. Included in BOLI on the
balance sheet is the cash surrender value of thpl&uental Executive Retirement Plan (“SERP”) ba¢aof $2.8 million and $2.3 million at
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

DEPOSITS

The Bank offers a variety of deposit accounts,udtig checking, savings, money market deposit atsotiMMDA”) and time

deposits. Deposits are obtained primarily from @emgraphic service area. Total deposits grew t6 Bdllion at December 31, 2014, an
increase of $1.6 million, or 53.1%, from $3.0 loifliat December 31, 2013. Note that $1.1 billiothefdeposits were brokered deposits with
the remaining generated from the retail network lgsiohg services. We experienced growth in redaibosits due to exceptional sales behan
despite continued low interest rates in 2014.

The components of deposits were as follows at #tesdndicated:

December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Demand, non-interest bearing $ 546,43t $ 478,10: $ 219,68
Demand, interest bearing 71,20: 58,01 37,26(
Savings, including MMDA 2,203,23 1,298,46: 1,003,98
Time, $100,000 and over 1,043,26! 797,32. 708,48
Time, other 668,39¢ 328,01t 471,39¢
Total deposits $ 453253 $ 2,959,92. $ 2,440,81i

Time deposits of $100,000 or more were $1.0 bilaecember 31, 2014 compared to $797.3 millidbestember 31, 2013, an increase of
$245.9 million or 30.9%. We experienced growthatail deposits, despite lower interest rates id20lon-interest bearing demand deposits
totaled $546.4 million at December 31, 2014, upnf®478.1 million at December 31, 2013. These adsouaclude deposits of students made
pursuant to a program serviced by a third parthemalf of the Bank. Deposits of students weredta#232.7 million as of December 31, 2014
and $232.8 million as of December 31, 2013. Thegmsits are seasonal, peaking in the fall and nindewand lowest in the summer.

Average deposit balances by type and the asso@atydge rate paid are summarized below:

For the Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Average Average Average Average Average Average
Balance Rate Paid Balance Rate Paid Balance Rate Paid
(dollars in thousands)

Demand deposits $ 620,38! 0.0(% $ 38517 0.0% $ 180,71 0.0(%
Interest-bearing demand deposits 62,84( 0.61 45,61 0.52 36,70 0.52
Savings, including MMDA 1,753,69. 0.4z 1,138,20! 0.6¢ 876,60! 0.8¢
Time deposits 1,403,77. 0.9¢ 1,251,70 1.04 935,20° 1.42
Total $ 3,840,69 $ 2,820,69! $ 2,029,23:
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At December 31, 2014, the scheduled maturitiegyed tleposits greater than $100,000 were as follows:

December 31,
(in thousands)

3 months or less $ 188,971
Over 3 through 6 months 264,20t
Over 6 through 12 months 236,62¢
Over 12 months 353,45
Total $ 1,043,26!

FHLB ADVANCES and OTHER BORROWINGS

Borrowed funds from various sources are generagduo supplement deposit growth and meet otheatipg needs. The Bank strategically
views the short term FHLB advances as funding dla@d to mortgage companies national business.

Short-term debt

Short-term debt was as follows:

December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
(amounts in thousands)
FHLB advances $ 1,298,00! 0.2¢% $ 611,50( 0.2¢% $ 411,00( 0.25%
Federal funds purchased — —% 13,00( 0.4&% 5,00( 0.2(%
Total short-term
borrowings $ 1,298,00! $ 624,50( $ 416,00(

For additional information on the Company’s shertt debt, refer to “NOTE 11 — BORROWINGS.”

Long-term debt

The contractual maturities of fixed-rate long-tdfidLB advances are as noted below.

December 31,

2014 2013
Amount Rate Amount Rate

(amounts in thousands)

2015 $ = —% $ 50,00( 0.37%
2016 85,00( 0.5¢ 35,00( 0.6¢€
2017 180,00 1.21 5,00( 3.0¢
2018 55,00( 1.61 5,00( 3.31

$ 320,00( $ 95,00(

Senior notes

On June 26, 2014, Customers Bancorp, Inc. clogetvate placement transaction in which it issuef.@2nillion of 4.625% senior notes due
2019. Interest is paid semi-annually in arreardune and December. The notes are unsecured obfigatf the Bancorp and rank equally with
all of its secured and unsecured senior indebtednes

In July and August 2013, the Bancorp issued $63li®Bmin aggregate principal amount of senior rsotieie 2018.
The notes bear interest at 6.375% per year wBiglayable on March 15, June 15, September 15, andrBber 15.
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Subordinated debt

On June 26, 2014, Customers Bank closed a privatement transaction in which it issued $110.0iamlbf fixed-to-floating rate
subordinated notes due 2029. The subordinated bhetesinterest at an annual fixed rate of 6.125% dune 26, 2024, and interest is paid
semiannually. From June 26, 2024, the subordinadées will bear an annual interest rate equalteetmonth LIBOR plus 344.3 basis points
until maturity on June 26, 2029. Customers Bankthasbility to call the subordinated notes, in \ehar in part, at a redemption price equal tc
100% of the principal balance at certain times ioafter June 26, 2024.

The subordinated notes qualify as Tier 2 capitatégulatory capital purposes.

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Shareholders’ equity increased by $56.5 millio$443.1 million at December 31, 2014 , from $386ilion at December 31, 2013 . The
increase in equity was primarily the result of imebme for 2014 of $43.2 million and a decreasenirealized losses (net of taxes) on available
for-sale securities of $9.3 million.

In May 2014, the Bancorp's Board of Directors dextdea 10% stock dividend to all shareholders obre@s of May 27, 2014. This special
dividend was paid on June 30, 2014 in the formnodggregate of 2.4 million additional shares of @@mn Stock.

During 2014 the Bancorp issued 91,457 shares offlamiStock, 52,770 shares were issued to direatdisu of meeting retainer fees, 34,414
shares were issued under share-based compensatingeaments and 4,273 shares under the employaesiochase plan.

During 2013, the Bancorp:

» sold 6.2 million shares of new issue Voting Coamn®tock to the public at a price of $16.75 perah@he net proceeds after deducting
underwriting discounts and commissions and offeergenses were $97.5 million;

» converted 3.7 million shares of Class B Ndoiing Common Stock into 3.7 million shares of \rgfiCommon Stoc

» authorized a stock repurchase plan in whictB#ecorp could acquire up to 5% of its current anding shares at prices not to exceed a
20% premium over the current book value. The rdmase program may be suspended, modified or dise@diat any time, and the
Bancorp has no obligation to repurchase any amafuite Common Stock under the program;

» repurchased 0.5 million shares under the stockrebise program discussed ab

e issued 23,413 shares of Common Stock under $fzes@d compensation arrangeme

» issued 31,904 shares of Class B Non-Voting ComBtock and 14,869 shares of Voting Common Stockgxercise of outstanding
warrants; and

» repurchased warrants to purchase 17,227 shiaweding Common Stock and 17,227 shares of Clasl®B-\/oting stock

During 2012, the Bancorp:

» sold 7.1 million shares of common stock in privafierings. The proceeds, net of offering costs,en&34.6 million; an
» announced that, due to market conditions, itp@gtponed its initial public offering of Voting @onon Stock. Costs related to this
postponed offering in the amount of $1.4 millionrevexpensed and are a component of non-intereshsgp.

For additional details relating to changes in tlem®&rp’s shareholders’ equity, refer to the “Coitlded Statements of Changes in
Shareholders Equity” presented in Part Il, IterkiBancial Statements and Supplementary Data ofidrisn 10-K.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Liquidity for a financial institution is a measunéthat institution’s ability to meet depositor®exs for funds, to satisfy or fund loan
commitments, and for other operating purposes. lmgadequate liquidity is an objective of the A#sability Management

process. Customers Bancorp coordinates its managerhiquidity with our interest rate sensitivignd capital position, and strives to main
a strong liquidity position.
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The Banks investment portfolio provides periodic cash flaim®ugh regular maturities and amortization, asud lse used as collateral to se
additional liquidity funding. Our principal sourcesfunds are proceeds from stock issuance, depabt issuance, principal and interest
payments on loans, and other funds from operatBosowing arrangements are maintained with theeFldHome Loan Bank and the Federa
Reserve Bank of Philadelphia to meet short-termididy needs. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013bouowing capacity with the Federal
Home Loan Bank was $3.2 billion and $1.6 billioespectively, of which $1.3 billion and $611.5 nailli respectively, was used in short-term
borrowings. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, ourdwing capacity with the Federal Reserve BanRMifadelphia was $62.7 million and
$92.3 million, respectively.

Net cash flows used in operating activities weré35 million for the twelve months ended Decemter2D14, compared to net cash flc
provided by operating activities of $722.0 millitor the twelve months ended December 31, 2013.iiipn of loans held for sale in excess
of the proceeds from the sales of loans contrib&85.1 million to cash flows used in operating\diiés during 2014. Proceeds from loans
held for sale in excess of the originations of baantributed $689.6 million to cash flows providsdoperating activities during 2013.

Investing activities used net cash flows of $118dwi for the twelve months ended December 31, 2C14chases less proceeds from sales of
investment securities provided $97.5 million whiehas offset by a net increase in loans of $1.8dmilliFor the twelve months ended
December 31, 2013, net cash flows used in investotigities were $1.6 billion.

Financing activities provided $2.6 billion for theelve months ended December 31, 2014, as incr@gasesh from deposits provided $1.6
billion. In addition, increases in short-term artdLB term borrowings of $633.5 million and $265.01on, respectively, provided sufficient
cash flows to support operating and investing & Additionally, $133.1 million in net proceed®re raised by private placement
subordinated and senior debt offerings in 2014.

Overall, based on our core deposit base and alataloirces of borrowed funds, management belidagsite have adequate resources to mee
our short-term and long-term cash requirementghieforeseeable future.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY

The Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve Byhtes adopted risk-based capital and leverageregigrements for bank holding
companies like the Bancorp and banks like CustofBark that are members of the Federal Reserve8y3tee Pennsylvania Department of
Banking and Securities also sets minimum capiglirements. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the @anoet each of our minimum capital
requirements. Management believes that the Barmoesis the regulatory “well capitalized” criteriacfDecember 31, 2014. Banking
regulators have discretion to establish an ingtitis classification based on other factors, initld to the institution’s numeric capital levels.

Management is not aware of any developments theg becurred and that could, or would be reasonidt#iy to, cause the Bancorp’s
classification to be reduced below a level of “wepitalized” for regulatory purposes. The Banceapital classification is determined
pursuant to “prompt corrective action” regulatioasd to determine levels of deposit insurance ass&sts, and may not constitute an accurat
representation of our overall financial conditiarpoospects.
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The following table summarizes the required capatibs and the corresponding regulatory capitaltfums of the Bancorp and Customers
Bank for the periods or dates indicated:

To Be Well Capitalized

Under
For Capital Adequacy Prompt Corrective Action
Actual Purposes Provisions
(Dollars in thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2014:
Total capital (to risk weighted assets)
Customers Bancorp, Inc. $ 578,64 11.09% $ 417,47 8.C% N/A N/A
Customers Bank $ 621,89 11.98% $ 415,14 8.(% $ 518,92t 10.(%
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets)
Customers Bancorp, Inc. $ 437,71 8.3%% $ 208,73 4.(% N/A N/A
Customers Bank $ 480,96: 9.27% $ 207,57 4C% $ 311,35¢ 6.0%
Tier 1 capital (to average assets)
Customers Bancorp, Inc. $ 437,71 6.6%% $ 261,62 4.C% N/A N/A
Customers Bank $ 480,96: 7.3% $ 260,46: 4C% $ 32557 5.0%
As of December 31, 2013:
Total capital (to risk weighted assets)
Customers Bancorp, Inc. $ 411,52 13.21% $ 249,19¢ 8.C% N/A N/A
Customers Bank $ 435,43 14.1%% $ 246,93 8.C% $ 308,67( 10.(%
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets)
Customers Bancorp, Inc. $ 387,52 12.44% $ 124,59t 4.C% N/A N/A
Customers Bank $ 411,43 13.3%% $ 123,46¢ 4C% $ 185,20: 6.0%
Tier 1 capital (to average assets)
Customers Bancorp, Inc. $ 387,52 10.11% $ 153,31 4.C% N/A N/A
Customers Bank $ 411,43 10.81% $ 152,19: 4C% $ 190,23 5.0%

Capital Ratios
The Bank continued to build capital during 2014gémeral, in the past few years, capital growthbdeen achieved by earnings and increas
capital from sales of common stock.

The Bank is unaware of any current recommendatigribe regulatory authorities which, if they weoebe implemented, would have a
material effect on our liquidity, capital resourcesoperations.

The maintenance of appropriate levels of capitahismportant objective of our Asset and Liabiliianagement process. Through our initial
capitalization and our subsequent offerings, weelelwe have continued to maintain a strong capitaltion.

Effective January 1, 2015, Customers Bancorp arsidtuers Bank became subject to new capital regeinésras detailed earlier in this
document. Management has reviewed these new ctidmndand requirements, and expects to comply thighrequirements when they become
effective.
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Bank is involved with financial instruments astler commitments with off-balance sheet risksaRtial instruments with off-balance
sheet risks are incurred in the normal course eirtass to meet the financing needs of our custariibese financial instruments include
commitments to extend credit, including unusedipost of lines of credit, and standby letters ofdireThose instruments involve, to varying
degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of theust recognized on the balance sheets.

With commitments to extend credit, exposures tditfess in the event of non-performance by theepfarty to the financial instrument is
represented by the contractual amount of thoseumm&nts. The same credit policies are used in ngad@mmitments and conditional
obligations as for on-balance sheet instrumentseSthey involve credit risk similar to extendintpan, they are subject to the Bank’s Credit
Policy and other underwriting standards.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the followinglafance sheet commitments, financial instrumendsather arrangements were
outstanding:

December 31,

2014 2013
(in thousands)
Commitments to fund loans $ 231,29: $ 202,80
Unfunded commitments to fund mortgage warehousasloa 713,61¢ 905,44.
Unfunded commitments under lines of credit 430,99! 177,45
Letters of credit 36,20¢ 29,11¢
Other unused commitments 7,68t 8,01(

Commitments to fund loans, unfunded commitmentsind mortgage warehouse loans, unfunded commitmenasr lines of credit and letters
of credit are agreements to extend credit to ottferbenefit of a customer in the ordinary courfseun business.

Commitments to fund loans and unfunded commitmentter lines of credit may be obligations of oursomg as there is no violation of any
condition established in the contract. Since mdrth® commitments are expected to expire withoirtddrawn upon, the total commitment
amounts do not necessarily represent future caglireenents. Commitments generally have fixed exipinadates or other termination clauses
and may require payment of a fee. We evaluate eastomer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case.bHstsamount of collateral obtained, if
we deem it necessary upon extension of crediased on management’s credit evaluation. Collatesia varies but may include personal or
commercial real estate, accounts receivable, iover@nd equipment.

Mortgage warehouse loan commitments are agreerteeptechase mortgage loans from mortgage bankatsgree to purchase the loans t
in a short period of time or to sell to third pantyrtgage originators. These commitments geneflallyuate monthly as existing loans are
repurchased by the mortgage bankers and new loamsiechased by the Bank.

Outstanding letters of credit written are condiiboommitments issued by us to guarantee the préioce of a customer to a third

party. Letters of credit may obligate us to fundwis under those letters of credit whether or maisiomer continues to meet the conditions of
the extension of credit. The credit risk involvedssuing letters of credit is essentially the sam¢hat involved in extending loan facilities to
customers.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The following table sets forth contractual obligats and other commitments representing requiregatehtial cash outflows as of
December 31, 2014. Interest on subordinated nBtésB long-term advances, and senior notes was lzdéniusing then current contractual
interest rates.

Within one After one but After three but More than
Total year within three years within five years five years
(amounts in thousands)
Operating leases $ 21,83t $ 357« % 6,74C $ 5587 $ 5,93¢
Benefit plan commitments 4,50( 30C 60C 60C 3,00(
Contractual maturities of time deposits 1,711,66. 976,05: 636,77: 98,84: 0]
Subordinated notes 110,00( 0 0 0 110,00(
Interest on subordinated notes 101,07( 6,73¢ 13,47¢ 13,47¢ 67,38(
Loan commitments 1,375,90: 1,056,86. 65,51¢ 116,36¢ 137,15¢
FHLB long-term advances 320,00( 0 265,00t 55,00( 0
Interest on FHLB long-term advances 5,322 3,55¢ 592 1,17¢ 0
Senior notes 88,25( 0 63,25( 25,00( 0
Interest on senior notes 20,23( 5,18¢ 10,37 4,66¢ 0
Other commitments (1) 7,68t 0] 0 7,68t 0]
Standby letters of credit 36,20¢ 28,29: 1,50C 6,41 0
Total $ 3,802,660 $ 2,08055 $ 1,063,82! $ 334,81 $ 323,47.

(1) Represents a commitment expiring in approximatelge years that is subject to unscheduled reqtegpayment

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

For information about the impact that recently addmr issued accounting guidance will have onefgy to “NOTE 3 — SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION".

79




Table of Contents

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure Albut Market Risk
Interest Rate Sensitivity

The largest component of our net income is netéstancome, and the majority of our financial instents are interest rate sensitive asset
liabilities with various terms and maturities. Qufehe primary objectives of management is to mazémmet interest income while minimizing
interest rate risk. Interest rate risk is deriviemhf timing differences in the repricing of assetd &abilities, loan prepayments, deposit
withdrawals, and differences in lending and fundiates. Our Asset/Liability Committee actively seé®& monitor and control the mix of
interest rate sensitive assets and interest ratitise liabilities.

We use two complementary methods to analyze andunenterest rate sensitivity as part of the dveranagement of interest rate risk. They
are income simulation modeling and estimates ofiestc value of equity. The combination of these twethods provides a reasonably
comprehensive summary of the levels of interest rigk of our exposure to time factors and chamgé#erest rate environments.

Income simulation modeling is used to measure migrést rate sensitivity and manage our interastrisk. Income simulation considers not
only the impact of changing market interest rafgsnuforecasted net interest income, but also ddwtors such as yield curve relationships, th
volume and mix of assets and liabilities, custopreferences and general market conditions.

Through the use of income simulation modeling, &eehestimated the net interest income for the gading December 31, 2014, based upon
the assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet fir@rinstruments in existence at December 31, 20d83 have also estimated changes to that
estimated net interest income based upon intemtest rising or falling immediately (“rate shocksRate shocks assume that all interest rates
increase or decrease immediately. The followindgetadflects the estimated percentage change imat&d net interest income for the year
ending December 31, 2014, resulting from changé&sémest rates.

Net change in net interest income

%

Rate Shocks Change

Up 3% (6.9%
Up 2% (1.49%
Up 1% 1.4%
Down 1% — %
Down 2% (1.9%
Down 3% (4.9%

The net changes in net interest income in all stemare within Customers Bank’s interest rate pekcy guidelines.

Economic Value of Equity (“EVE”") estimates the disated present value of asset and liability casivgl Discount rates are based upon
market prices for comparable assets and liabilitigsvard and downward rate shocks are used to measlatility of EVE in relation to a
constant rate environment. This method of measunepranarily evaluates the longer term repricingks and options in Customers Bank'’s
balance sheet. The following table reflects thevested EVE at risk and the ratio of EVE to EVE adigd assets at December 31, 2014,
resulting from shocks to interest rates.

Rate Shocks From base

Up 3% (30.0%
Up 2% (15.0%
Up 1% 3.1)%
D(F;Wn 1% 29.6;%
Down 2% (18.9%
Down 3% (11.7y%

The matching of assets and liabilities may alsarteyzed by examining the extent to which suchtass® liabilities are interest rate sensitive
and by monitoring a bank’s interest rate sensiti\giap.” An asset or liability is said to be inteteate
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sensitive within a specific time period if it withature or reprice within that time period. The ietd rate sensitivity gap is defined as the
difference between the amount of interest earngsgta maturing or repricing within a specific tiperiod and the amount of interest bearing
liabilities maturing or repricing within that timgeriod.

The following table sets forth the amounts of ia#fearning assets and interest-bearing liabildigstanding at December 31, 2014 that are
anticipated, based upon certain assumptions, ticeepr mature in each of the future time peridusven. Except as stated below, the amou
assets and liabilities shown that reprice or matluring a particular period were determined in adance with the earlier of term to repricing
or the contractual maturity of the asset or liapillThe table sets forth an approximation of thejguted repricing of assets and liabilities at
December 31, 2014 on the basis of contractual rtiegjranticipated prepayments, and scheduledadijtestments within a three-month period
and subsequent selected time intervals. The loauats in the table reflect principal balances etgxbto be repaid and/or repriced as a result
of contractual amortization and anticipated prepamyis of adjustable and fixed rate loans, and aswtrof contractual-rate adjustments on
adjustable-rate loans.

Balance Sheet Gap Analysis at
December 31, 2014

3 months 3to6 6to 12 1to3 3to5 Over 5
or less months months years years years Total
(dollars in thousands)
Assets
Interest earning deposits and federal funds
sold $ 30827 % — 3 — 3 — % — 3 61,04 $ 369,32
Investment securities 16,60¢ 16,86: 33,68¢ 115,43: 85,42¢ 206,40° 474,411
Loans (a) 2,228,33, 232,40: 337,45! 1,206,11! 1,139,26 573,13 5,716,70
Total interest-earning assets 2,553,21. 249,26 371,13 1,321,55: 1,224,68 840,58 6,560,43i
Non interest-earning assets — — — — _ 224.43( 224,43
Total assets 2,553,21. 249,26 371,13 1,321,55: 1,224,68 1,06501 $ 6,784,86
Liabilities
Other interest-bearing deposits $ 2,165,61 $ _ $ _ $ _ $ — 3 108,827 $ 2,274,43
Time deposits 335,76¢ 314,62 356,05 615,78 89,39 33 1,711,66:
Other borrowings 1,282,99 — 25,00: 260,00( 50,00 = 1,618,00!
Subordinated debt 0 — — — — 110,00( 110,00(
Total interest-bearing liabilities 3,784,37: 314,62 381,05¢ 875,78 139,39; 218,86( 5,714,10;
Non-interest-bearing liabilities — _ _ _ _ 587,46 587,46
Shareholders’ equity — — — — — 483,29! 483,76
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 3,784,37; 314,62t 381,05¢ 875,78t 139,39 1,289,62 $ 6,785,33
Interest sensitivity gap $ (1231,16) $  (6536) $ 9,927 $  44576' $ 108529 $  (224,61)
Cumulative interest sensitivity gap $ (1,296,52) $ (1,306,44) $ (860,68 $ 224,61 $ _
Cumulative interest sensitivity gap to tot
assets (18.9% (19.9% (19.9% (12.9% 3.5% 0.C%
Cumulative interest-earning assets to
cumulative interest-bearing liabilities 67.5% 68.4% 70.€% 83.€% 104.1% 114.9%

(a) Including loans held for se

As shown above, we have a negative cumulative gaplative interest sensitive assets are lower tvanulative interest sensitive liabilities)
within the next year, which generally indicatesttha increase in rates may lead to a decreasd inteeest income, and a decrease in rates
lead to an increase in net interest income. Inteats sensitivity gap analysis measures whettsataor liabilities may reprice but does not
capture the ability to reprice or the range of ptité repricing on assets or liabilities. Thus itations based on a negative or positive gap
position need to be analyzed in conjunction witheotinterest rate risk management tools.

Management believes that the assumptions and cemidrinof methods utilized in evaluating estimatetiinterest income are

reasonable. However, the interest rate sensitbfiyur assets, liabilities and off-balance shewsricial instruments, as well as the estimated
effect of changes in interest rates on estimatédhterest income, could vary substantially if di#nt assumptions are used or actual exper
differs from the assumptions used in the model.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Customers Bancorp, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Customers Bancorp, Inc. and Subsdiéhe “Bancorp”) as of

December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related cdasedl statements of income, comprehensive inconaages in shareholders’ equity and
cash flows for the years then ended. These cordetidinancial statements are the responsibilitthefBancorp’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those standard:
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtagsonable assurance about whether the finataiaiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managenewnilhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegeferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of Customers
Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December @14 2nd 2013, and the results of their operatiodstlaeir cash flows for the years then
ended, in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the Bancorp’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2014, based on criteria establishédt@mal Control — Integrated Framework
(1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrthe Treadway Commission (COSO) and our regetetd February 27, 2015
expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectigsrd the Bancorp's internal controls over finalh@gporting.

/s BDO USA, LLP
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
February 27, 2015

83




Table of Contents
Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm on Internal Controls

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Customers Bancorp, Inc.

We have audited Customers Bancorp, Inc. and Sabidi (the “Bancorp”) internal control over finaacreporting as of December 31, 2014,
based on criteria establishedimernal Control — Integrated Framework (19985ued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidgrike
Treadway Commission (the “COSO criteria”). The Bampés management is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financ
reporting, and for its assessment of the effecagsrof internal control over financial reportinglirded in the accompanying Management’s
Responsibility for Financial Statements and Repaorinternal Control over Financial Reporting. Oesponsibility is to express an opinion on
the Bancorp’s internal control over financial refpgy based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statgdof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBq&nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audintééinal control over financial reporting includdotaining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, assessing the risk thataderial weakness exists, and testing and evafy#tie design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Quit also included performing such other proceda®®/e considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provide=sagonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableamesuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statet:iéor external purposes in accordance with acéogmirinciples generally accepted in the
United States of America. A company’s internal cohover financial reporting includes those pol&cend procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detiljrately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transadi@nsecorded as necessary to permit preparatifinasfcial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, andrédraipts and expenditures of the company are bmadg only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of émepany; and (3) provide reasonable assurance lieggytevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition ef¢tbmpany’s assets that could have a materialtaffethe financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @etaisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agject to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Customers Bancorp, Inc. and Subsigls maintained, in all material respects, effeciinternal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2014, based on the COSO criteria

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the consolidated
balance sheets of Customers Bancorp, Inc. and @ahbiss as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 and tatedeconsolidated statement of inco
comprehensive income, changes in shareholderstyequid cash flow for the years, then ended andeport dated February 27, 2015
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
February 27, 2015
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Customers Bancorp, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednséatts of income, comprehensive income, changdsairelolders' equity and cash flows
of Customers Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries foryter ended December 31, 2012. These consolidiaizutcial statements are the
responsibility of the Bancorp's management. Oysoesibility is to express an opinion on these cbdated financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the staigdof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBq&nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbtagasonable assurance about whether the consdlitiaincial statements are free of mat
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disds in the consolidated financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing twiating principles used and significant estimatesle by management, as well as evalu:
the overall financial statement presentation. Weebe that our audit provides a reasonable basisdo opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteerferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the results of Customers Bancorp,
Inc. and Subsidiaries' operations and their cashdlfor the year ended December 31, 2012 in corifpmuith accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

/sl Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
Allentown, Pennsylvania
March 18, 2013
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CUSTOMERS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(dollars in thousands, except share data)

December 31,

2014 2013
ASSETS

Cash and due from banks $ 62,74¢ $ 60,70¢
Interest earning deposits 308,27 172,35¢

Cash and cash equivalents 371,02: 233,06¢
Investment securities available for sale, at faiue 416,68! 497,57
Loans held for sale (includes $1,335,668 and $B8/ fespectively at fair value) 1,435,45! 747,59:
Loans receivable 4,312,17. 2,465,07:
Allowance for loan losses (30,939 (23,999

Total loans receivable, net of allowance for loassks 4,281,24. 2,441,08
FHLB, Federal Reserve Bank, and other restricteckst 82,00: 42,42:
Accrued interest receivable 15,20¢ 8,36:
FDIC loss sharing receivable 2,32( 10,04¢
Bank premises and equipment, net 10,81( 11,62¢
Bank-owned life insurance 138,67t 104,43:
Other real estate owned 15,37: 12,26¢
Goodwill and other intangibles 3,66¢ 3,67¢
Other assets 52,91 41,02¢

Total assets $

6,825,371 % 4,153,17:

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Liabilities:
Deposits:
Demand, non-interest bearing $ 546,43t $ 478,10:
Interest bearing 3,986,10: 2,481,81
Total deposits 4,532,53 2,959,92.
Federal funds purchased — 13,00(
FHLB advances 1,618,001 706,50(
Other borrowings 88,25( 63,25(
Subordinated debt 110,00( 2,00(
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities 33,43} 21,87¢
Total liabilities 6,382,22! 3,766,55!
Commitments and contingencies (NOTES 17 and 21)
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, no par value or as set by thedhd®0,000,000 shares authorized, none issuec — —
Common stock, par value $1.00 per share; 200,00G;béres authorized; 27,277,789 and
24,756,411 shares issued as of December 31, 2@1204r8; 26,745,529 and 24,224,151 shares
outstanding as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 27,27¢ 24,75¢
Additional paid in capital 355,82: 307,23:
Retained earnings 68,42: 71,00¢
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net (122) (8,11¢)
Treasury stock, at cost (532,260 shares as of Deeel, 2014 and 2013) (8,259 (8,259
Total shareholders’ equity 443,14! 386,62:

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $

6,825,371 $ 4,153,17:

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsi@gements.
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CUSTOMERS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(dollars in thousands, except share data)

Interest income:
Loans receivable, including fees
Loans held for sale
Investment securities
Other
Total interest income
Interest expense:
Deposits
Other borrowings
FHLB advances
Subordinated debt
Total interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after provision for loan losses

Non-interest income:
Mortgage warehouse transactional fees
Bank-owned life insurance
Gains on sales of investment securities
Gains on sales of loans
Mortgage loan and banking income
Deposit fees
Other
Total non-interest income
Non-interest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits
FDIC assessments, taxes, and regulatory fees
Occupancy
Professional services
Technology, communication and bank operations
Other real estate owned
Loan workout
Advertising and promotion
Loss contingency
Stock offering expenses
Other
Total non-interest expense
Income before income tax expense
Income tax expense
Net income

Basic earnings per common share (1)
Diluted earnings per common share (1)

For the Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
146,38t $ 82,58( $ 70,51
30,80: 38,14( 15,95(
10,38¢ 6,31¢ 6,731
2,85. 1,122 627
190,42° 128,15¢ 93,81«
24 45: 21,02( 21,07¢
5,347 2,02 10
5,19¢ 1,19: 60€
3,51¢ 65 69
38,50« 24,30: 21,76
151,92: 103,85! 72,05:
14,74 2,23¢ 14,27(
137,17 101,61 57,78:
8,23: 12,96: 12,28¢
3,70: 2,48: 1,33¢
3,191 1,274 9,017
3,12t 852 357
2,04¢ 1,147 —
801 67t 481
4,02¢ 3,31¢ 5,482
25,12t 22,70: 28,95¢
46,42' 35,49: 23,84¢
11,81: 5,56¢ 3,037
11,01( 8,82¢ 6,81¢
7,74¢ 5,54¢ 3,46¢
5,85¢ 4,33( 2,80¢
3,607 1,36¢ (85)
1,70¢ 2,24F 2,245
1,32t 1,274 1,21¢
— 2,00( —
— — 1,437
9,42¢ 7,372 5,86¢
98,91« 74,02 50,65
63,38¢ 50,29¢ 36,09(
20,17« 17,60¢ 12,27:
4321 $ 32,69 $ 23,81¢
1.6: $ 132 $ 1.61
1.5t 1.3 1.57

(1) Earnings per share amounts have been adjustefléct the 10% stock dividend declared on May2lB.4 and issued on

June 30, 2014.



See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbst@Eigements.
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CUSTOMERS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands)

For the Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Net income $ 43,21 % 32,69 $ 23,81¢
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities:
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-saleisges arising during the
period (1) 17,43" (12,859 2,52:
Income tax effect (1) (6,109 4,49¢ (883)
Less: reclassification adjustments for gains omisges included in net incom (3,199 (1,279 (9,017
Income tax effect 1,115 44¢ 3,15¢
Unrealized holding gains on available-for-sale sigies transferred from the
held-to-maturity category into the available-fofeseategory — — 8,50¢
Income tax effect — — (2,979
Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities 9,26( (9,187) 1,30¢
Unrealized losses on cash flow hedges:
Unrealized losses on cash flow hedges arising duhia period (1,945 — —
Income tax effect 681 — —
Net unrealized losses on cash flow hedges (1,269 — —
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of incomesttect 7,99¢ (9,187 1,30¢
Comprehensive income $ 51,21 $ 2351: $ 25,12}

(1) Includes immaterial gains or losses on foreigmency items for the years ended December 314 2adl 2013. There were no foreign
currency items for the year ended December 31,.2012

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbstEilements.
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CUSTOMERS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 20

(dollars in thousands)

Accumulated

Shares of Additional Other
Common Common Paid in Retained Comprehensive Treasury
Stock Stock Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Stock Total

Balance, January 1, 2012 11,347,68 $ 11,39¢ $ 122,60: $ 14,49 $ (245) $ (500 $ 147,74t
Net income 23,81¢ 23,81¢
Other comprehensive income 1,30¢ 1,30¢
Share-based compensation expense 2,01¢ 2,01¢
Issuance of common stock, net of costs of
$4,970 7,111,81 7,11z 87,47 94,58¢
Balance, December 31, 2012 18,459,50 18,50° 212,09( 38,31« 1,06¢ (500) 269,47!
Net Income 32,69 32,69¢
Other comprehensive loss (9,189 (9,189
Share-based compensation expense 3,36¢ 3,36¢
Public offering of common stock, net of costs
of $5,994 6,179,10. 6,17¢ 91,32¢ 97,501
Exercise and redemption of warrants 46,77 47 217 264
Issuance of common stock under share-based-
compensation arrangements 23,41 23 22¢ 251
Repurchase of shares (484,64) (7,759 (7,759
Balance, December 31, 2013 24,224,15 24,75¢ 307,23: 71,00¢ (8,11¥) (8,259 386,62:
Net income 43,21 43,21«
Other comprehensive income 7,99¢ 7,99¢
Stock dividend 2,429,37! 2,42¢ 43,36¢ (45,80:) (8)
Share-based compensation expense 4,20¢ 4,20¢
Exercise of warrants 54¢ 1 5 6
Issuance of common stock under share-based-
compensation arrangements 91,45° 92 1,01: 1,10¢
Balance, December 31, 2014 26,74552 $ 2727¢ $ 35582] $ 6842. $ (122) $ (8,259 $ 443,14

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsi@gements.
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CUSTOMERS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)



For the Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income $ 4321 % 32,69 $ 23,81¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net casbdus) provided by operating activities:
Provision for loan losses, net of change to FDI&reable 14,74; 2,23¢ 14,27(
Loss contingency — 2,00( =
Provision for depreciation and amortization 3,60¢ 3,12¢ 2,022
Share-based compensation expense 5,237 3,36¢ 2,01¢
Deferred taxes (6,187) 2,21( (3,73)
Net amortization of investment securities premiand discounts 821 47E 3,062
Gain on sale of investment securities (3,192 (1,279 (9,017
Gain on sale of mortgages and other loans (5,349 (852) (357)
Origination of loans held for sale (18,138,33) (20,670,86) (13,410,48)
Proceeds from the sale of loans originated asfoelshle 17,553,19 21,360,46 12,145,59
Net increase in FDIC loss sharing receivable (2,409 (1,610 (3,839
Accretion of fair value discounts (279 (912) (240)
Loss on sales of other real estate owned 96€ 732 1,22¢
Valuation and other adjustments to other real estatned 1,97¢ 83¢ 20E
Earnings on investment in bank-owned life insurance (3,702 (2,487 (1,459
Increase in accrued interest receivable and osats (16,429 (15,097) (9,587
Increase in accrued interest payable and othélitied 9,60¢ 6,97¢ 4,34¢
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Operating Activities (542,499 722,03! (1,242,06)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of investment securities available fler sa (164,940 (542,110 (114,049
Proceeds from maturities, calls and principal repayts on investment securities available for sale 49,19t 25,10¢ 31,42
Proceeds from sales of investment securities dleaifar sale 213,24¢ 135,19: 309,22:
Proceeds from maturities, calls and principal repants on investment securities held to maturity — — 50,96¢
Net (increase) decrease in loans (1,814,19) (1,008,41)) 61,20:
Purchase of loan portfolios (309,92) (164,03)) (63,24¢)
Proceeds from sale of loans held for investment 162,72 11,62¢ 4,502
Net purchases of bank-owned life insurance (30,46%) (45,465 (25,465
Net purchases of FHLB, Federal Reserve Bank, admet oéstricted stock (39,579 (12,26) (8,345
Reimbursements from the FDIC on loss sharing agee&n 5,44¢ 6,72¢ 6,57°
Purchases of bank premises and equipment (1,419 (3,899 (2,719
Proceeds from sales of other real estate owned 7,991 9,50¢ 12,06:
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Investing Activities (1,921,92) (1,588,01) 262,13(
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net increase in deposits 1,572,64 519,17¢ 857,79:
Net increase in short-term borrowed funds 633,501 208,50( 91,00(
Proceeds from long-term FHLB borrowings 265,00( 35,00( 49,00(
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt, net 133,14 60,33¢ —
Repayment of subordinated debt (2,000 — —
Exercise and redemption of warrants 6 264 —
Purchase of treasury stock — (7,759 =
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock 77 97,50" 94,58t¢
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 2,602,37: 913,03: 1,092,37
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 137,95! 47,05 112,44t
Cash and Cash Equivalents — Beginning 233,06¢ 186,01¢ 73,57(
Cash and Cash Equivalents — Ending $ 371,020 $ 233,06¢ $ 186,01¢

(continued)

90




Table of Contents

CUSTOMERS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(in thousands)

For the Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Supplementary Cash Flow Information

Interest paid $ 37,58 $ 24,157 $ 21,70¢

Income taxes paid 29,84: 9,81¢ 19,36¢
Non-cash Items:

Transfer of loans to other real estate owned $ 14,04: $ 15,00¢ $ 10,457

Transfer of loans from held for investment to hieldsale 164,68: — —

Transfer of loans from held for sale to held fareéstment 18,82¢ — —

Transfer of held-to-maturity securities to avaitafr sale — — 268,67:

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsi@gements.
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CUSTOMERS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS

Customers Bancorp, Inc. (the “Bancorp” or “Custosri@ancorp”) is a bank holding company engaged inking activities through its wholly
owned subsidiary, Customers Bank (the “Bank”). Gostrs Bancorp also has made certain equity inveggnlerough its wholly owned
subsidiaries CB Green Ventures Pte Ltd. and CUBIalVentures Pte Ltd.

The consolidated financial statements have beguaped in conformity with accounting principles geaily accepted in the United States
("U.S. GAAP") and pursuant to the rules and regale of the Securities and Exchange Commission C'$E

Customers Bancorp, Inc. and its wholly owned subsis, Customers Bank and non-bank subsidiar@segesidences and businesses in
Southeastern Pennsylvania (Bucks, Berks, Chedtdadelphia and Delaware Counties), Rye, New YMdegtchester County), Hamilton, N
Jersey (Mercer County), Boston, Massachusetts idRroge, Rhode Island and Manhattan, New York. 0h12 the Bancorp purchased
Berkshire Bancorp, Inc. In 2010 , Customers Bamuaed two banks, USA Bank and ISN Bank, in FDIGisted transactions that expanded
its footprint into central New Jersey and southébest York. The Bank has 14 branches and providemuercial banking products, primarily
loans and deposits. Customers Bank provides loathugts to customers through its loan productioite$fin Boston, Massachusetts,
Providence, Long Island, Manhattan, New York anidéklphia, Pennsylvania. The Bancorp also proviigsdity to residential mortgage
originators nationwide through commercial loansiortgage companies. Customers Bank is subjecgtdaton of the Pennsylvania
Department of Banking and Securities and the Féé&serve Bank and is periodically examined by ¢hegulatory authorities.

NOTE 2 — ACQUISITION ACTIVITY

Acquisition of Loan Portfolio

In first quarter 2014, Customers Bank purchased &2million of residential adjustable-rate jumbongage loans (indexed to one-year
LIBOR) from Michigan-based Flagstar Bank. The passh price was 100.75% of loans outstanding.

In first quarter 2013, Customers Bank completedailrehase of certain commercial loans from Michipased Flagstar Bank. Under the term:
of the agreement, Customers Bank acquired $182l@min commercial loan and related commitmenfsyhich $155.1 million was drawn at
the date of acquisition. Also, as part of the agrest, Customers Bank assumed the leases for tlwlagétar's commercial lending offices in
New England. The purchase price v98.7% of loans outstanding.

NOTE 3 — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Basis of Presentation

The accounting and reporting policies of the Bap@e in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United States of
America and predominant practices of the bankinlyétry. The preparation of financial statementsiireg management to make estimates an
assumptions that affect the reported balancessetsasnd liabilities and disclosure of contingessieds and liabilities at the date of the financia
statements and the reported amounts of revenuesxgetises during the reporting period. Actual testduld differ from those

estimates. Material estimates that are particukubceptible to significant change in the near-teatate to the determination of the allowance
for loan losses, credit deterioration and expectesth flows of purchased-credit-impaired loans, Fid&mnification asset, the valuation of
deferred tax assets, determination of other-tharpteary impairment losses on securities, the falue of financial instruments, and annual
goodwill impairment analysis.

Certain amounts reported in the 2013 and 2012 §ilmhstatements have been reclassified to conforthe 2014 presentation. These
reclassifications did not significantly impact tBancorp’s financial position or results of operato
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Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiectade the accounts of the parent company anahtdly owned subsidiaries: Customers
Bank, CB Green Ventures Pte Ltd. and CUBI Indiatdess Pte Ltd. Customers Bank includes the accanfrits wholly owned subsidiary
CIC, Inc. All significant intercompany balances arahsactions have been eliminated in consolidation

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on handyjrasdue from banks, interest-bearing deposits battks with a maturity date of three
months or less and is recorded at cost. The cgrmatue of cash and cash equivalents is a reasoeabimate of their approximate fair value.

Restrictions on Cash and Amounts due from Banks

Customers Bank is required to maintain averagenbakon hand or with the Federal Reserve Bank.esehber 31, 2014 and 2013, these
reserve balances were $61.2 million and $50.1 anillirespectively.

Investment Securities

Customers Bank acquires securities, largely mogdsarked securities, to effectively utilize casH aapital and to generate earnings. Securit
transactions are recorded as of the trade dateriSes are classified at the time of acquisitiereaailable for sale, held to maturity, or trading,
and their designation determines their accountinfplows:

Available for sale: Investments securities classified as availablesébte are those debt and equity securities tieaB#ncorp intends to hold for
an indefinite period of time but not necessarilyrtaturity. Investment securities available for sake carried at fair value. Unrealized gains or
losses are reported as increases or decreasesuimaated other comprehensive income, net of tlatee deferred tax effect. Realized gain
losses, determined on the basis of the cost ddfikeific securities sold, are included in earnisigd recorded at the trade date. Premiums and
discounts are recognized in interest income ugiegrterest method over the terms of the securities

Held to maturity: Investment securities classified as held to nigtare those debt securities that the Bancorpoo#is the intent and ability to
hold to maturity regardless of changes in markad@@mns, liquidity needs, or changes in generahemic conditions. These securities are
carried at cost, adjusted for the amortizationrehmium and accretion of discount, computed by éhogtvhich approximates the interest
method over the terms of the securities. Thersarsecurities classified as held to maturity aBeember 31, 2014 or 2013.

Trading: Investment securities classified as trading asetliebt and equity securities that management intendctively trade. These
securities are carried at their current fair valuigh changes in fair value reported in income. t8oers Bank has not actively traded any
securities.

For available-for-sale and held-to-maturity sedéesitmanagement must periodically assess whetbeseiturities are other than temporarily
impaired. Other-than-temporary impairment meansrttenagement believes the security’s reductioralnevis due to factors that could
include the issuer’s inability to pay interest aridends, its potential for default, and/or othactbrs. When a held-to-maturity or available-for-
sale debt security is assessed for other-than-tempompairment, management has to first considewhether the Bancorp intends to sell the
security, and (b) whether it is more likely than tiat the Bancorp will be required to sell thews@y prior to recovery of its amortized cost
basis.

If one of these circumstances applies to a secuaityther-than-temporary impairment loss is recghin the consolidated statements of
income equal to the full amount of the declinedin f/alue below amortized cost. If neither of theBeumstances applies to a security, but the
Bancorp does not expect to recover the entire aredrtost, an other-than-temporary impairment leasiwed that must be separated into two
categories: (a) the amount related to credit lasd,(b) the amount related to other factors. lessag the level of other-than-temporary
impairment attributable to credit loss, managencentpares the present value of cash flows expeotbd tollected with the amortized cost
basis of the security. The portion of the totalestthan-temporary impairment related to credit issgcognized in earnings (as the difference
between the fair value and the present value oésienated cash flows), while the amount relateother factors is recognized in other
comprehensive income. The total other-than-tempadnapairment loss is presented in the statemeirtaafime, less the portion recognized in
other comprehensive income. When a debt securdgrbes other-than-temporarily impaired, its amodizest basis is reduced to reflect the
portion of the total impairment related to credss.
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For marketable equity securities, the Bancorp amisithe issuer’s financial condition, capital syt and near term prospects to determine
whether an impairment is temporary or other-thanperary. The Bancorp also considers the volatilfta securitys price in comparison to tt
market as a whole and any recoveries or declinésrivalue subsequent to the balance sheet dateariagement determines that the
impairment is other-than-temporary, the entire amadi the impairment as of the balance sheet datecognized in earnings even if the
decision to sell the security has not been made fdin value of the security becomes the new amexnlttost basis of the investment and is not
adjusted for subsequent recoveries in fair value.

Loan Accounting Framework

The accounting for a loan depends on managemistritegy for the loan, and on whether the loas aradit impaired at the date of acquisiti
The Bank accounts for loans based on the followatggories:

* Loans Held for Sa
* Loans at Fair Valt
* Loans Receivab

* Purchased loa

* Loans receivable covered under Loss Sharing Agratnweéth the FDI(

The following provides a detailed discussion of éizeounting for loans in these categories:

Loans Held for Sale and Loans at Fair Value

Loans originated by the Bank with the intent td sethe secondary market are carried either atdtver of cost or fair value, determined in the
aggregate, or at fair value, depending upon thetielemade at the time the loan is made. Theseslaamsold on a non-recourse basis with
servicing released. Gains and losses on the s#ébai$ accounted for at lower of cost or fair vadne recognized in earnings based on the
difference between proceeds received and the ogrgmount of the loans, inclusive of deferred omgion fees and costs, if any. As a result o
changes in events and circumstances or developmeggasding management’s view of the foreseeabledytoans not originated or acquired
with the intent to sell may subsequently be deg&phas held for sale. These loans are transfesrétbetheld-for-sale portfolio at the lower of
amortized cost or fair value.

Loans originated by the Bank with the intent td @l which fair value accounting is elected arerkeal to fair value with any difference
between the proceeds received and the carrying minodthe loan recognized in earnings. No feesostxrelated to such loans are deferred, s
they do not affect the gain or loss calculatiothattime of sale.

Certain lending transactions documented under aevi&epurchase Agreement originated after Julyp122re also carried at fair value basec
on an election of the fair value option. This dl@ttwas in accordance with the parameters estaulibly Accounting Standards Codification
("ASC ") 825-10-25Financial Instruments-Overall-Recognition: The Fafalue OptionAs a result of this election, these lending tratisas
are classified as “Loans held for sale” and areeduat fair value on the balance sheet with uizedlchanges in fair value presented in
earnings.

An allowance for loan losses is not maintainedtivetao loans classified as held for sale as eithedower cost or market or fair value has an
embedded mark for credit losses.

Loans Receivable

Loans receivable that management has the intenalitity to hold for the foreseeable future or Untaturity or payoff are stated at their
outstanding unpaid principal balances, net of Eowaince for loan losses and any deferred feesdsiténcome is accrued on the unpaid
principal balance. Loan origination fees, net atae direct origination costs, are deferred armbgnized as an adjustment of the yield (inte
income) of the related loans using the level-ymakthod without anticipating prepayments. The Bangignerally amortizing these amounts
over the contractual life of the loans.

The accrual of interest is generally discontinudatmthe contractual payment of principal or intehes become 90 days past due or when
management has doubts about further collectalfigrincipal or interest, even though the loanusrently performing. A loan may remain on
accrual status if it is in the process of collecténd is well secured. When a loan is placed orawonual status, unpaid interest credited to
income is reversed. Interest received on non-attaas is applied against principal until all gripal has been repaid. Thereafter, interest
payments are recognized as income until all unjpagatest has
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been received. Generally, loans are restored tmalcstatus when the obligation is brought cureerd has performed in accordance with the
contractual terms for a minimum of six months amel tltimate collectibility of the total contractyaincipal and interest is no longer in doubt.

Transfers of financial assets, including loan jggétions sold, are accounted for as sales whetnataver the assets has been surrendered
(settlement date). Control over transferred agseteemed to be surrendered when (1) the assetshiean isolated from the Bank, (2) the
transferee obtains the right (free of conditiors ttonstrain it from taking advantage of that rigbtpledge or exchange the transferred assets
and (3) the Bank does not maintain effective cdmver the transferred assets through an agreetmeepurchase them before their maturity.

Purchased Loans

The Bancorp believes that the varying circumstanceter which it purchases loans and the diversétguaéloans purchased should drive the
decision as to whether loans in a portfolio shdddleemed to be purchased-credit-impaired loarexefdre, loan purchases are and will be
evaluated on a case-by-case basis to determireppivepriate accounting treatment. Loans acquiratidb not have evidence of credit
deterioration at the purchase date are and wildo®unted for in accordance with ASC 310426nrefundable Fees and Other Cosisd loan:
acquired with evidence of credit deterioration sicigination and for which it is probable that@htractually required payments will not be
collected are and will be accounted for in accocganith ASC 310-30l.0ans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deterioda@¥edit Quality.

Loans that are purchased that do not have evide#medit deterioration

Purchased performing loans are recorded at fairevahd include credit and interest rate marks @s®acwith acquisition accounting
adjustments, as accounted for under the contractishl flow method of accounting. The fair valueuatipent is accreted as an adjustment to
yield over the estimated contractual lives of thenis. There is no allowance for loan losses estedli at the acquisition date for the acqu
performing loans. A provision for loan losses isaieled for any credit deterioration in these losuissequent to acquisition.

Loans that are purchased that have evidence of d&t@rioration since origination and for whichsitorobable that all
contractually required payments will not be cokett

For purchases of this type of loan, evidence ofril@tated credit quality may include past-due and-accrual status, borrower credit scores
and recent loan-to-value percentages.

The fair value of loans with evidence of creditedidration is recorded net of a nonaccretable wifiee and accretable yield. The difference
between contractually required payments at aciuis#nd the cash flows expected to be collectedtatisition is the nonaccretable differer
which is not included in the carrying amount of aiced loans. Subsequent to acquisition, estimdteash flows expected to be collected are
updated each reporting period based on updatedhasisms regarding default rates, loss severitied,ather factors that are reflective of
current market conditions. Subsequent decreadés texpected cash flows will generally result pravision for loan losses. Subsequent
increases in cash flows result in a reversal optiogision for loan losses to the extent of pribaiges, or a reclassification of the difference
from nonaccretable to accretable with a positivpant on accretion of interest income in future @asi Further, any excess of cash flows
expected at acquisition over the estimated fameréd referred to as the accretable yield anddsgeized in interest income over the remaining
life of the loan when there is a reasonable expiectabout the amount and timing of those cashdlow

Purchased-credit-impaired loans acquired in theesfisnal quarter may be aggregated into one or poods, provided that the loans have
common risk characteristics. A pool is then accedribr as a single asset with a single compositzént rate and an aggregate expectation of
cash flows. On a quarterly basis, the Bank re-egtimthe total cash flows (both principal and Egérexpected to be collected over the
remaining life of each pool. These estimates ino@afe assumptions regarding default rates, losrigies, the amounts and timing of
prepayments and other factors that reflect thereatimarket conditions. If the timing and/or amauat expected cash flows on purchased-
credit-impaired loans were determined not to bsarably estimable, no interest would be accretediaaloans would be reported as non-
accrual loans; however, when the timing and amoofhéxpected cash flows for purchased-credit-imggzhloans are reasonably estimable,
interest is being accreted and the loans are rejmyted as performing loans.
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Loans Receivable Covered Under Loss Sharing Agreemis

Loans acquired in the FDIC assisted transactio29i® from USA Bank and ISN Bank are subject tg lesaring agreements with the FDIC.
These loans are referred to as “covered loans’haddutstanding balances of 42.2 million and 66llfom as of December 31, 2014 and 2013
respectively.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established agtoare estimated to have occurred through progidar loan losses charged against net
interest income. Loans deemed to be uncollectitdecharged against the allowance for loan lossessabsequent recoveries, if any, are
credited to the allowance. The allowance for lazsés is maintained at a level considered apptegdaabsorb probable loan losses inhere
the loan portfolio as of the reporting date.

The Bank disaggregates its loan portfolio into grotor purposes of determining the allowance fanlsses.

The Bank’s portfolio groups include multi-familypmmercial and industrial, commercial real estad@struction, residential real estate,
mortgage warehouse, manufactured housing, consamei>Cl loans. The Bank further disaggregategdisiential real estate portfolio into
two classes based upon certain risk characterigtissmortgages and home equity. The remainingfplio groups are also considered classes
for purposes of monitoring and assessing credilityuzased on certain risk characteristics. Additily, within each loan group the acquired
loans that are accounted for under ASC 310-10wathdr segregated.

The total allowance for loan losses consists ddliowance for impaired loans, a general allowameddsses, and may also include residual
non-specific reserve amounts. The allowance fan loases is maintained at a level considered adedogrovide for losses that are estimatec
to have been incurred. Management performs a glyaetealuation of the adequacy of the allowanceicliis based on the Bank’s past loan
loss experience, known and inherent risks in thé&fg, adverse situations that may affect therbaer’s ability to repay, the estimated value
of any underlying collateral, composition of tharoportfolio, current economic conditions and ottedevant factors. This evaluation is
inherently subjective as it requires material eates that may be susceptible to significant remigsi® more information becomes available. Th
Bank’s current methodology for determining the @kmce for loan losses is based on historical latesr risk ratings, specific allocation on
loans identified as impaired above specified tholshand other qualitative adjustments.

The impaired loan component relates to loans fachwh is likely that the Bank will be unable tollget all contractual principal and interest
due. For such loans, an allowance is establisheshvlte (i) discounted cash flows, (ii) collateralue, or (iii) the impaired loan value is lower
than the carrying value of the loan.

The general component of the reserve for loan fosseers pools of loans by loan class including mential loans not considered impaired, a:
well as smaller balance homogeneous loans, sus@ential real estate, home equity loans, homéyelines of credit and other consumer
loans. These pools of loans are evaluated fordrpesure based upon loan risk ratings and histddsa rates for each of these categories of
loans, adjusted for relevant qualitative factofsede qualitative risk factors include:

* Lending policies and procedures, including uad#ing standards and historical-based loss/cdbectcharge-off, and recovery
practices.

* National, regional, and local economic and busimesslitions as well as the condition of various keaissegments, including the val
of underlying collateral for collateral dependerdrs.

* Nature and volume of the portfolio and terms ofilg
» Experience, ability, and depth of lending managenaed stafi
« Volume and severity of past due, classified aod-accrual loans as well as trends and other loanfroatibns

» Existence and effect of any concentrations of ¢raalil changes in the level of such concentrai

Each factor is assigned a value to reflect imprgyvgtable or declining conditions based on managémbeest judgment using relevant
information available at the time of the evaluation

A residual reserve may be maintained to cover dacgies that could affect management’s estimatgrotbable losses. The residual reserve
amount reflects the margin of imprecision inheiiarthe underlying assumptions used in the methagdesofor estimating specific and general
losses in the portfolio.

96




Table of Contents

Commercial and industrial loaase underwritten after evaluating historical andigeted profitability and cash flow to determine th
borrower’s ability to repay their obligation as agd. Commercial and industrial loans are made pilyrizased on the identified cash flow of
the borrower and secondarily on the underlyingatelal supporting the loan facility. Accordinglizetrepayment of a commercial and indus
loan depends primarily on the creditworthinesshefltorrower (and any guarantors), while liquidatbiollateral is a secondary and often
insufficient source of repayment.

Construction loanare underwritten based upon a financial analyste@flevelopers and property owners and constructist estimates, in
addition to independent appraisal valuations. Theees will rely on the value associated with thejgct upon completion. These cost and
valuation estimates may be inaccurate. Construtbians generally involve the disbursement of suttigtbfunds over a short period of time
with repayment substantially dependent upon theesscof the completed project. Sources of repaypfahese loans would be permanent
financing upon completion or sales of developegeprty. These loans are closely monitored by oms#feections and are considered to be of
higher risk than other real estate loans due tio tifgmate repayment being sensitive to generahemic conditions, availability of long-term
financing, interest rate sensitivity, and governtakregulation of real property.

Commercial real estate and miflimily loansare subject to the underwriting standards and geeEsesimilar to commercial and industrial
loans, in addition to those underwriting standdoilgseal estate loans. These loans are viewed piines cash flow dependent and secondarily
as loans secured by real estate. Repayment of litese is generally dependent upon the successérhtion of the property securing the loan
or the principal business conducted on the proprtyiring the loan. Commercial real estate andi+fauttily loans may be adversely affected
by conditions in the real estate markets or theesty in general. Management monitors and evaluwatesnercial real estate and multi-family
loans based on collateral and risk-rating critéflae Bank also utilizes third-party experts to pdevenvironmental and market valuations. The
nature of commercial real estate and multi-fanoigris makes them more difficult to monitor and eatdu

Residential real estate loaae secured by one to four dwelling units. Thisugres further divided into first mortgage and hoeggiity
loans. First mortgages have limited risk as theyaaiginated at a loan to value ratio of 86%dess. Home equity loans have additional riska
result of typically being in a second position @wer in the event collateral is liquidated.

Manufactured housing loamspresent loans that are secured by the personaégty where the borrower may or may not own theeulying
real estate and therefore have a higher risk thrasidential real estate loan.

Home equity / otheconsist of loans to individuals originated througl Bank’s retail network and are typically unseclior secured by
personal property. Consumer loans have a greaditcisk than residential loans because of thiedihce in the underlying collateral, if
any. The application of various federal and statekbuptcy and insolvency laws may limit the amatat can be recovered on such loans.

Delinquency monitoring is used to identify credsikss, and the general reserves are established bagte expected net charge-offs, adjusted
for qualitative factors. Loss rates are based eratferage net charge-off history by portfolio segimeistorical loss rates may be adjusted for
significant factors that, in managemenjtidgment, are necessary to reflect losses inhere¢ine portfolio. Factors that management considte
the analysis include the effects of the national lacal economies; trends in the nature and volafreelinquencies, charge-offs and trends in
non-accrual loans; changes in loan mix; risk manmege and loan administration; changes in the ialdending policies and credit standards
and collection practices.

Charge-offs on the commercial and industrial, cwrtsion, multi-family and commercial real estataricsegments are recorded when
management estimates that there are insufficiesit faws to repay the loan contractual obligatiasdd upon financial information available
and valuation of the underlying collateral. Additadly, the Bank takes into account the strengtanyf guarantees and the ability of the
borrower to provide value related to those guaemie determining the ultimate charge-off or resaagsociated with any impaired loans.
Accordingly, the Bank may charge-off a loan to dueebelow the net appraised value if it believed tim expeditious liquidation is desirable in
the circumstance and it has legitimate offers bepindications of interest to support a value thétss than the net appraised value.
Alternatively, the Bank may carry a loan at a vahat is in excess of the appraised value if thekB#as a guarantee from a borrower that the
Bank believes has realizable value. In evaluatiegstrength of any guarantee, the Bank evaluagertancial wherewithal of the guarantor,
the guarantor’s reputation, and the guarantor’ngihess and desire to work with the Bank. The Bugia conducts a review of the strength o
a guarantee on a frequency established as thenstances and conditions of the borrower warrant.

The Bank records a loan charge-off for the residérgal estate, consumer, and manufactured holsamg after 120 days of delinquency or
sooner when cash flows are determined to be irseiffi for repayment. The Bank may also chargetaffé loan types below the net appraise
valuation if the Bank holds a junior mortgage positn a piece of collateral whereby the risk tgquaicing control of the property through the
purchase of the senior mortgage position is degmedtentially increase
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the risk of loss upon liquidation due to the amaafitime to ultimately market the property and Hdatile market conditions. In such cases,
Bank may abandon its junior mortgage and chargéheffoan balance in full.

Estimates of cash flows expected to be collecte®€l loans are updated each reporting periodhelfBank estimates decreases in expected
cash flows to be collected after acquisition, tlmBcharges the provision for loan losses and ksitals an allowance for loan losses.

Credit Quality Factors

Commercial and industrial, multi-family, commerciahl estate, residential real estate and congirulcians are each assigned a numerical
rating of risk based on an internal risk ratingtegs The risk rating indicates management's estiofthe credit quality and the rating is
assigned at loan origination and reviewed on aopérior on an “as needed” basis. Consumer and raatwéd housing loans are evaluated
based on the payment activity of the loan. Risingatare not established for home equity loansswarer loans, manufactured housing loans,
and installment loans, mainly because these pa$fabnsist of a larger number of homogenous ledttssmaller balances. Instead, these
portfolios are evaluated for risk mainly based ggragate payment history (through the monitoringedinquency levels and trends). For
additional information about credit quality factatings refer to “NOTE 8 = LOANS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN
LOSSES.”

Impaired Loan:

A loan is considered impaired when, based on cuinéormation and events, it is probable that tlBwill be unable to collect all amounts
due according to the contractual terms of the Egneement. Factors considered by management imdeieg impairment include payment
status, collateral value and the probability ofextting scheduled principal and interest paymertemdue. Loans that experience insignifican
payment delays and payment shortfalls generallyatelassified as impaired. Management deterntimesignificance of payment delays and
payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taktogonsideration all of the circumstances surdiog the loan and the borrower, including
the length of the delay, the reasons for the dekeyborrower’s prior payment record and the amaofitihhe shortfall in relation to the principal
and interest owed.

Impairment is measured on a loan by loan basibdtr covered and non-covered loans for commerai@dic@nstruction loans by the present
value of expected future cash flows discounteti@idan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s aldble market price or the fair value of the
collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. Taie value of the collateral is measured basethervalue of the collateral securing the loans,
less cost to sell. Collateral may be in the formeafl estate or business assets including equipameentory, and accounts receivable. The vas
majority of Customers Bank's collateral is reahtstThe value of real estate collateral is deteechiutilizing an income or market valuation
approach based on an appraisal conducted by apendent, licensed appraiser outside of the Banigusbservable market data. The value of
business equipment is based upon an outside aglpifaisemed significant, or the net book valuetfmapplicable business’ financial
statements if not considered significant using oledgle market data. Likewise, values for inventangl accounts receivable collateral are b
on financial statement balances or aging reports.

Covered loans are subject to the Bank’s interndlextternal credit review and monitoring that islagpto the non-covered loan portfolio. If
credit deterioration is experienced subsequerttaartitial acquisition as indicated above, sucledetation will be measured, and a provision
for loan losses will be charged to earnings. Thpesgisions will be offset by an increase to the EDdss sharing receivable for the estimated
portion anticipated to be received from the FDIC.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over thetifitble net assets of businesses acquired. Gdlodwecognized as an asset and is reviewe
for impairment annually as of October 31 and betwesenual tests when events and circumstances teditat impairment may have occurred.
A qualitative factor test can be performed to detee whether it is necessary to perform the twe-sgigantitative goodwill impairment test. If
the results of the qualitative review indicate titad unlikely (less than 50% probability) thattbarrying value of the reporting unit is less thar
its fair value, no further evaluation needs to befgrmed. As part of its qualitative assessmeiet,Bancorp reviewed regional and national
trends in current and expected economic conditiexamining indicators such as GDP growth, interatsts and unemployment rates.
Customers Bank also considered its own historiediopmance, expectations of future performanceathdr trends specific to the banking
industry. Based on its qualitative assessment3tmeorp determined that there was no impairmenhemgoodwill balance. There was 3.7
million of Goodwill at December 31, 2014 and Decem81, 2013.
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FHLB, Federal Reserve Bank, and other restricted stck

FHLB, Federal Reserve Bank, and other restricteckstepresents required investment in the capibeksof the Federal Home Loan Bank
(“FHLB"), the Federal Reserve Bank, and Atlantion@al Bankers Bank and is carried at cost. Totstrieted stock as of December 31, 2014
and 2013 was $ 82.0 million and $ 42.4 millionsprectively. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013 the®$71.6 million and $32.1 million of
FHLB stock, respectively.

Other Real Estate Owned

Real estate properties acquired through, or indieloan foreclosure are initially recorded at fedlue less cost to sell at the date of foreclesur
establishing a new cost basis. After foreclosuadyations are periodically performed by manageraedtthe real estate is carried at the lower
of its carrying amount or fair value less the dostell. Revenue and expenses from operations lzenthes in the valuation allowance are
included in the statement of income. Certain otkal estate owned that was acquired from USA Bakl&8N Bank or through the foreclosure
of loans of those banks is subject to Loss Shakigrgements with the FDIC. As of December 31, 20dd Becember 31, 2013, other real
estate owned subject Loss Sharing Agreements hétiDIC was $9.4 million and $7.0 million , respestly.

FDIC Loss Sharing Receivable

The FDIC loss sharing receivable is measured stgipfaom the related covered assets becausadtisontractually embedded in the assets
and is not transferrable if the assets are sold.ADIC loss sharing receivable was initially re@atét fair value, based on the discounted valu
of expected future cash flows under the loss sagreements. The difference between the preserg eald the undiscounted cash flows

the Bank expects to collect from the FDIC is aemiéhto interest income over the life of the FD&Gd sharing receivable.

The FDIC loss sharing receivable is reviewed quigrend adjusted for changes in expected cash fluasgd on recent performance and
expectations for future performance of the covgredfolio. These adjustments are measured on the &asis as the related covered loans ar
covered other real estate owned. Increases in &stihtash flows on the covered assets will recue&DIC loss sharing receivable and
decreases in estimated cash flows on the covesedsasill increase the FDIC loss sharing receivdblereases to the FDIC loss sharing
receivable are recorded as a reduction to the gimovior loan losses and decreases to the FDIGslumsng receivable are recorded either as &
increase to the provision for loan losses (to tterd an increase in the FDIC receivable balance praviously recorded as a reduction to the
provision for loan losses) or recognized over tfeedf the loss share agreements.

Bank-Owned Life Insurance

Bank-owned life insurance policies insure the ligésfficers of the Bank, and name the Bank as fiegiaey. Non-interest income is generated
tax-free (subject to certain limitations) from therease in value of the policies’ underlying inwesnts made by the insurance company. The
Bank is capitalizing on the ability to partiallyfsét costs associated with employee compensatidmanefit programs with the bank-owned
life insurance.

Bank Premises and Equipment

Bank premises and equipment are stated at costdessnulated depreciation. Depreciation is compatethe straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of the related asse&asé&hold improvements are amortized over the shafrthe term of the lease or estimated
useful life, unless extension of the lease ternedsonably assured.

Treasury Stock

Common stock purchased for treasury is recordedstt No treasury stock has been reissued.

Income Taxes

The Bancorp accounts for income taxes under thditiamethod of accounting for income taxes. Thedme tax accounting guidance results
in two components of income tax expense: curredtdmierred. Current income tax expense reflecesstéx be paid or refunded for the current
period by applying the provisions of the enactedldsv to the taxable income or excess of deductomes revenues. The Bancorp determines
deferred income taxes using the liability (or balasheet) method. Under this method, the net defe¢ax asset or liability is based on the tax
effects of the differences between the book andbéeses of assets and liabilities, and enacted elsangax rates and laws are recognized in th
period in which they occur.
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A tax position is recognized if it is more likelgan not, based on the technical merits, that thedaition will be realized or sustained upon
examination. The term more likely than not mealikedihood of more than 50 percent ; the term upgamination includes resolution of the
related appeals or litigation process. A tax posithat meets the more-likely-than-not recognitimeshold is initially and subsequently
measured as the largest amount of tax benefitimt greater than 50 percent likelihood of bedadized upon settlement with a taxing
authority that has full knowledge of all relevamtarmation. The determination of whether or noda position has met the more-likely-thaat
recognition threshold considers the facts, circamsts, and information available at the reportiatg @nd is subject to management’s
judgment.

In assessing the realizability of federal or stg#erred tax assets, management considers whethenaore likely than not that some portion or
all of the deferred tax assets will not be realiZdte ultimate realization of deferred tax assetdependent upon the generation of future
taxable income during periods in which those terapodifferences become deductible. Management dersthe scheduled reversal of
deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxalsleome and prudent, feasible and permissible akasedvailable tax planning strategies in
making this assessment. Based on the level ofridatdaxable income and projections for futureatale income over the periods in which the
deferred tax assets are deductible as well asadaitax planning strategies, management beli¢vesrore likely than not that the Bancorp
will realize the benefits of these deferred taxetss

Share-Based Compensation

Customers Bancorp has four active share-based cwwafien plans. Share-based compensation accouqtidgnce requires that the
compensation cost relating to share-based-paymaméctions be recognized in financial statem@iat cost is measured based on the gran
date fair value of the equity or liability instrunits issued.

Compensation cost for all share awards is caladilatel recognized over the employees’ service pegederally defined as the vesting
period. For awards with cliff-vesting, compensatawst is recognized on a straight-line basis dveréquisite service period for the entire
award. The Black-Scholes model is used to estithatdair value of stock options, while the marketg of Customers Bancorp’s common
stock at the date of grant is used for restrictedksawards.

In 2014, the shareholders of the Bancorp approwneshaployee stock purchase plan. Since purchase pnider the plan is 85% of (a 15%
discount to) the fair market value of a share aficwn stock on the first day of each quarterly stipson period, the plan is considered to k
compensatory plan under current accounting guidartoerefore, the entire amount of the discounét®gnizable compensation expense.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging

ASC 815 Derivatives and Hedgin(fASC 815"), provides the disclosure requiremetsderivatives and hedging activities with the it
provide users of financial statements with an enbdrunderstanding of: (a) how and why an entity werivative instruments, (b) how the
entity accounts for derivative instruments andtesldhedged items, and (c) how derivative instrusiant related hedged items affect an
entity’s financial position, financial performan@d cash flows. Further, qualitative disclosuresraquired that explain the Bancorp’s
objectives and strategies for using derivativesyal$ as quantitative disclosures about the falugaf and gains and losses on derivative
instruments, and disclosures about credit-risktedl@ontingent features in derivative instruments.

As required by ASC 815, Customers Bancorp recdfdtedvatives on the balance sheet at fair valtlee accounting for changes in the fair
value of derivatives depends on the intended uslesodlerivative, whether Customers Bank has eldoctédsignate a derivative in a hedging
relationship and apply hedge accounting and whéktieehedging relationship has satisfied the ceatagcessary to apply hedge accounting.
Derivatives designated and qualifying as a hedgbhe&xposure to changes in the fair value of artaBability, or firm commitment
attributable to a particular risk, such as interata risk, are considered fair value hedges. @évigs designated and qualifying as a hedge of
the exposure to variability in expected future cialvs, or other types of forecasted transactians,considered cash flow hedges. Derivatives
may also be designated as hedges of the foreigarmy exposure of a net investment in a foreignatpm. Hedge accounting generally
provides for the matching of the timing of gainlass recognition on the hedging instrument withré@ognition of the changes in the fair ve
of the hedged asset or liability that are attribleéao the hedged risk in a fair value hedge oretlimings effect of the hedged forecasted
transactions in a cash flow hedge. The Bancorp enggr into derivative contracts that are intendeéddonomically hedge certain of its risks,
even though hedge accounting does not apply dddéimeorp elects not to apply hedge accounting.

Prior to first quarter 2014, none of Customer Baptofinancial derivatives were designated in dyalg hedge relationships in accordance
with the applicable accounting guidance. As suiichenges in fair value of the financial derivaswere
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recognized directly in earnings. In March 2014, {Goeers Bancorp entered into a $150.0 million natldralance forward starting pay fixed
interest rate swap to hedge the variable cash fémgsciated with the forecasted issuance of délst Bancorp documented and designated thi
swap as a cash flow hedge. The effective portiochahges in the fair value of financial derivatigdesignated and qualifying as cash flow
hedges is recorded in Accumulated Other Comprehemscome and is subsequently reclassified intaiegs in the period that the hedged
forecasted transaction affects earnings. The intéfke portion of the change in fair value of theafincial derivatives is recognized directly in
earnings. Amounts reported in accumulated othermpeehensive income related to financial derivatiwébbe reclassified to interest expense
as interest payments are made on the Companyablaniate debt.

Customers Bancorp purchased credit derivatives avitbtional balance of $13.4 million to hedge thefgrmance risk of one of its
counterparties during first quarter 2014. Thesévddves were not designated in hedge relationstiipaccounting purposes and are being
recorded at their fair value, with fair value chasgecorded directly in earnings.

In accordance with the FASB'’s fair value measurangeidance, Customers Bancorp made an accountiicy @bection to measure the credit
risk of its derivative financial instruments thaé aubject to master netting agreements on a 13&t by counterparty portfolio.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net inclass) and other comprehensive income (loss). Qibeprehensive income includes
changes in unrealized gains and losses on sesuitilable for sale arising during the period seaassification adjustments for realized gi
and losses on securities available for sale indudaet income. Unrealized gains and losses ouriies available for sale include a
component for unrealized changes in foreign cuyrexchange rates relating to the Bancorp’s investrimecertain foreign equity securities.
Other comprehensive income also includes the éfeepbrtion of changes in fair value of financigrivatives designated as qualifying as casl
flow hedges. Cash flow hedge amounts classifietbagrehensive income are subsequently reclassifiecarnings in the period that the
hedged forecasted transaction affects earnings.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share represents net incomeedi\iy the weighted-average number of common sloartssanding during the
period. Diluted earnings per share includes akptally dilutive common shares outstanding dutimg period. Potential common shares that
may be issued related to outstanding stock opti@ssiicted stock units, and warrants are deterthirsing the treasury stock method.

Segment Information

Customers Bancorp, Inc. has one reportable segfit@mtaimunity Banking.” All of the Company’s activés are interrelated, and each activity
is dependent and assessed based on how eachaatithiges of the Company supports the others.dxample, lending is dependent upon the
ability of the Company to fund itself with depositsd borrowings while managing the interest ratk@edit risk. Accordingly, all significant
operating decisions are based upon analysis dan& as one segment or unit.

Accounting Changes
The Fair Value Option

We elected the fair value option for loans to pdeviiquidity to mortgage bankers under a MasterURepase Agreement originated after Jul
2012 in order to more accurately represent thet$bion nature of the transaction and its inhereadit risk. This adoption is in accordance \
the parameters established by ASC 825-10-2tgncial Instruments-Overall-Recognition: The F&ialue OptionAs a result of this election,
new warehouse lending transactions are classii¢td@ans held for saledn the balance sheet. The interest income fromwvlrehouse lendir
transactions are classified in “Interest Incomeoarks held for sale” on the consolidated staten@ritecome. An allowance for loan losses is
not recorded for the warehouse lending transactidren measured at fair value since under ASC 8i5exit price (the repurchase price) for
warehouse lending transactions considers the effemtpected credit losses.

We also elected to use fair value accounting feidential mortgage loans originated after Octoh&013 with the intent to sell at time of
origination. The accounting for the residential tgage loans subject to this fair value electiotofes the
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accounting described for the warehouse loans alsigect to the fair value accounting election. Theealized fair value changes related to tl
loans are classified in “Mortgage loan and banlkitpme” on the consolidated statements of income.

Change in Accounting Estimates

Estimates of cash flows from purchased credit-imgaha(“PCI”) loans were revised during the third gaaof 2012 due to a conversion to a
more sophisticated and precise loan valuation sydte accordance with the guidance in ASC 310-8@rest income is based on an acquired
loan’s expected cash flows. Complex models areecbtal calculate loan-level and/or pool level expdatash flows in accordance with ASC
310-30. The loan data analysis provided by the sfiware was determined to be a more precise digatitbn of future cash flows than the
analysis that was previously calculated manuallgotJconversion to the new software, acquisitior d@&n values were loaded into the sys
and the new software calculated their fair valugagiits complex valuation model. Conversion torteer system was completed in Septembe
2012. To adjust the acquisition date loan balareesrded on Customers Bank’s books to the amoahtsilated by the new software,
approximately $4.5 millionvas recognized as reduction to the provision fanlmsses in the third quarter of 2012. The revisgdation for th:
PCI acquisition date loan balances due to the asioreto the new software was accounted for prdspy as a change in accounting
estimate.

When converting to the new software system, we wagaired to calculate the estimated cash flowshftioe various acquisition dates of the
PCI loans through the date the software was imphégaeas it was impracticable to perform these ¢afimns on a monthly or quarterly basis.
In the third quarter of 2012, approximately $4.3liom was recognized in interest income relatethie change. The impact of the revised
valuation of cash flows for the PCI loan activityedto the conversion to the new software was adeduior prospectively as a change in
accounting estimate.

Also during the third quarter of 2012, we re-estieathe cash flows for the PCI loans using curdata. The re-estimated expected cash flow:
decreased from prior estimated cash flows. Congistgh ASC 310-10’s fundamental premise that ae@se in expected cash flows results in
accrual of a loss contingency and should not résw@tchange in yield, we evaluated the adequatiyeollowance for loan losses for PCI lo
and determined that an additional provision fonlt@sses of $7.5 million was appropriate.

As a result of the changes in estimates, net indomine year ended December 31, 2012 increas&®8§,000 , net of tax, and basic and
diluted earnings increased by $0.06 per sharejastad for the 2014 stock dividend.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards and Updates

In November 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014Bérivatives and Hedging (Subtopic 815-10): DetelingniWhether the Host contract in a
Hybrid Financial Instrument in the Form of a ShaseMore Akin to Debt or to EquitThe guidance in this ASU requires entities thaiessr
invest in a hybrid financial instrument to sepai@teembedded derivative feature from a host conéraat account for the feature as a deriva
In the case of derivatives embedded in a hybridrfgial instrument that is issued in the form ohare, that criterion requires evaluating
whether the nature of the host contract is mora tkdebt or to equity and whether the economicaittaristics and risks of the embedded
derivative feature are clearly and closely relatethe host contract. If the host contract is akiequity, then equity-like features (for example,
a conversion option) are considered clearly andetorelated to the host contract and, thus, waolde separated from the host contract. |
host contract is akin to debt, then equity-liketfieas are not considered clearly and closely rélaighe host contract. In the latter case, an
entity may be required to separate the equity<dikdedded derivative feature from the debt hostraohif certain other criteria in Subtopic
815-15 are met. Similarly, debt-like embedded ddiire features may require separate accounting &nomquity-like host contract. The
guidance in this ASU is effective for fiscal yeamad interim periods within those fiscal years,ibaing after December 15, 2015. The Banc
does not expect this ASU to have a significant iobjpa its financial condition or results of opeoars.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014;Receivables - Troubled Debt Restructurings bydoes (Subtopic 310-40): Classification of
Certain Government-Guaranteed Mortgage Loans upareélosureThe guidance in this ASU affects creditors thattgdvernment-
guaranteed mortgage loans, including those guardritg the FHA and the VA. It requires that a mogyéan be derecognized and a separat
other receivable be recognized upon foreclosutteeifollowing conditions are met:

1. The loan has a government guarantee that is nataele from the loan before foreclos
2. At the time of foreclosure, the creditor has ittent to convey the real estate property taytierantor and make a claim on the
guarantee, and the creditor has the ability tovecander that claim.
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3. Atthe time of foreclosure, any amount of the cldlivat is determined on the basis of the fair valitne real estate is fixe

Upon foreclosure, the separate other receivableldhme measured based on the amount of the loand@{principal and

interest) expected to be recovered from the guarafihe guidance in this ASU was effective for publusiness entities for annual periods,
interim periods within those annual periods, bemigrafter December 15, 2014. The guidance may péeabusing a prospective transition
method in which a reporting entity applies the gmicke to foreclosures that occur after the datelopton, or a modified retrospective
transition using a cumulative-effect adjustmentdtigh a reclassification to a separate other rabd®) as of the beginning of the annual perio
of adoption. Prior periods should not be adjusteteporting entity must apply the same method afigition as elected under ASU 2014-04.
The adoption of this ASU did not have a significempact on the Bancorp's financial condition owuitsof operations.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014;T3onsolidation (Topic 810): Measuring the Finarddssets and the Financial Liabilities of a
Consolidated Collateralized Financing Entifjhe guidance in this ASU applies to a reportingtgtiat is required to consolidate a
collateralized financing entity under the Variabiterest Entities guidance whent § the reporting entity measures all of the finahaisets

and the financial liabilities of that consolidateallateralized financing entity at fair value iretbonsolidated financial statements based on
Codification Topics; andZ) the changes in the fair values of those finaresakets and financial liabilities are reflecte@amnings. The
guidance in this ASU is effective for public busieeentities for annual periods, and interim perigidBin those annual periods, beginning aftel
December 15, 2015. Early adoption is permittedfabebeginning of an annual period. The Bancorgsdwot expect this ASU to have a
significant impact on its financial condition oststs of operation.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-Qampensation-Stock Compensatidrhe guidance in this ASU requires that a perforceaarget
that affects vesting and that could be achievest #fie requisite service period is treated as peance condition. As such, the performance
target should not be reflected in estimating trengdate fair value of the award. Compensation costilshize recognized in the period in wh

it becomes probable that the performance targébeibchieved and should represent the compensai&girattributable to the period(s) for
which the requisite has already been renderetielperformance target becomes probable of being\ahbefore the end of the requisite
period, the remaining unrecognized cost shouldebegnized prospectively over the remaining requisérvice period. The total amount of
compensation cost recognized during and afterahaisite service period should reflect the numiiewards that are expected to vest and
should be adjusted to reflect those awards thamaitely vest. The requisite service period endsnithe employee can cease rendering servic
and still be eligible to vest in the award if therfermance target is achieved. As indicated indisfinition of vest, the stated vesting period
(which includes the period in which the performatarget could be achieved) may differ from the isit@l service period. The guidance in this
ASU is effective for annual and interim periods in@ing after December 15, 2015. The Bancorp doéexypect this ASU to have a significant
impact on its financial condition or results of cgéon.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-Trhnsfers and ServicingThe amendments in this update require that régagesto-maturity
transactions be accounted for as secured borrowimigsistent with the accounting for other repurehagreements. In addition, the
amendments require separate accounting for a &naosh financial asset executed contemporaneavitiiya repurchase agreement with the
same counterparty (a repurchase financing), whidllresult in secured borrowing accounting for tlepurchase agreement. The amendments
require an entity to disclose information abounsfers accounted for as sales in transactionatkatconomically similar to repurchase
agreements, in which the transferor retains subiathnall of the exposure to the economic retumte transferred financial asset throughout
the term of the transaction. In addition the ameehsirequire disclosure of the types of collatplatiged in repurchase agreements, securitie
lending transactions, and repurchase-to-matuysactions and the tenor of those transactionsgtiitance in this ASU was effective for
annual and interim periods beginning after Decembe?014. The adoption of this ASU did not hawsgaificant impact on the Bancorp's
financial condition or results of operations.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-&&venue from Contracts with CustomerBhis ASU establishes a comprehensive revenue
recognition standard for virtually all industriesl.S. GAAP, including those that previously folleavindustry-specific guidance such as the
real estate and construction industries. The revstandard’s core principal is built on the corttimtween a vendor and a customer for the
provision of goods and services. It attempts tdaehe exchange of rights and obligations betwtherparties in the pattern of revenue
recognition based on the consideration to whichvéiredor is entitled. To accomplish this, the staddaquires five basic steps: (i) identify the
contract with the customer, (ii) identify the parfance obligations in the contract, (iii) identifye transaction price, (iv) allocate the
transaction price to the performance obligationth@contract, (v) recognize revenue when (orfaskntity satisfies the performance
obligation. Three basic transition methods arelalbe - full retrospective, retrospective with eéntpractical expedients, and a cumulative
effect approach. Under the cumulative effect atigue, an entity would apply the new revenue steshdaly to contracts that are
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incomplete under legacy U.S. GAAP at the date itimapplication and recognize the cumulative effef the new standard as an adjustme
the opening balance of retained earnings. The gu&n this ASU is effective for annual periods amerim reporting periods within those
annual periods, beginning after December 15, 20h6.Bancorp does not expect this ASU to have dfgignt impact on its financial
condition or results of operations.

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014R¥églassification of Residential Real Estate Cotkteed Consumer Mortgage Loans upon
Foreclosure, a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues TasleFdhe guidance in this ASU clarifies that an ibstance repossession or
foreclosure occurs, and a creditor is considerdtht@ received physical possession of residemlastate property collateralizing a consu
mortgage loan, upon either (1) the creditor obtagriegal title to the residential real estate prigpepon completion of a foreclosure or (2) the
borrower conveying all interest in the residentéll estate property to the creditor to satisfy than through completion of a deed in lieu of
foreclosure or through a similar legal agreemehe ASU also requires additional related interim andual disclosures. The guidance in this
ASU was effective for annual and interim periodgibeing after December 15, 2014. The adoption isf 45U did not have a significant
impact on the Bancorp's financial condition or tesaf operations.

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014Axcounting for Investments in Qualified Affordablleusing Projects a consensus of the
FASB Emerging Issues Task Force. This ASU provgigdance on accounting for investments by a repgeitity in flow-through limited
liability entities that manage or invest in affobifahousing projects that qualify for the low-ina®imousing tax credit. The guidance in this
ASU was effective for annual periods and interimarting periods beginning after December 15, 20 adoption of this ASU did not have
a significant impact on the Bancorp's financialdition or results of operations.

NOTE 4 — EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following are the components and results oBarcorp’s earnings per share calculation for #@ogs presented. Share and per share
amounts have been adjusted to reflect the 10% slioakend declared on May 15, 2014 and issued oe 30, 2014.

For the Year Ended
December 31,

2014 2013 2012

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Net income available to common shareholders $ 4321 % 32,69: $ 23,81¢
Weighted-average number of common shares outstgrdiasic 26,719,62 24,485,07 14,758,03

Share-based compensation plans 968,67 464,05: 275,77

Warrants 250,70° 198,52( 131,97¢
Weighted-average number of common shares — diluted 27,939,00 25,147,65 15,165,78
Basic earnings per share $ 1.6z $ 132 $ 1.61
Diluted earnings per share 1.5t 1.3C 1.57

The following is a summary of securities that coptdentially dilute basic EPS in the future thateveot included in the computation of dilu
EPS because to do so would have been anti-diltdivine periods presented. Sh&i@sed compensation awards and eligible warrants hest
adjusted to reflect the 10% stock dividend declamed/lay 15, 2014 and issued on June 30, 2014.

For the Year Ended
December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Anti-dilutive securities:
Share-based compensation awards 135,86: 819,53¢ 167,47t
Warrants 118,74! 118,74! 129,94t
Total anti-dilutive securities 254,60¢ 938,28:- 297,42.
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NOTE 5 - CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) BY COMPONENT (1)

The following tables present the changes in accatadlother comprehensive income (loss) by compdpetite years ended December 31,
2014 and 2013.

Unrealized Gains

(Losses) on Available- Unrealized Losses on
(amounts in thousands) for-sale Securities (2) Cash Flow Hedges Total
Balance, January 1, 2013 $ 1,06 $ — 3 1,06¢
Other comprehensive loss before reclassiboati (8,359 — (8,359
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income to net income (3) (828) — (828
Net current-period other comprehensive loss (9,187) — (9,187)
Balance, December 31, 2013 (8,11¢) — (8,119
Other comprehensive income (loss) before
reclassifications 11,33« (1,264 10,07(
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income to net income (3) (2,079 — (2,079
Net current-period other comprehensive
income (loss) 9,26( (1,269 7,99¢
Balance, December 31, 2014 $ 1,142 § (1,269 $ (122)

(1) All amounts are net of tax. Amounts in paresfeindicate reductions to accumulated other camepisve income.
(2) Includes immaterial gains or losses on foragmency items.
(3) Reclassification amounts are reported as gairsales of investment securities on the Conse@li8§tatements of Income.

NOTE 6 — INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The amortized cost and approximate fair value eégtment securities are summarized as follows:

December 31, 2014

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

(in thousands)
Available for Sale:

Mortgage-backed securities (1) $ 376,85: $ 2,80t % (2,34¢) $ 377,31
Corporate notes (2) 15,00( 104 — 15,10«
Equity securities (3) 23,07« 1,197 (0] 24,27(
Total $ 41492¢ $ 410¢ $ (2,349 $ 416,68!
December 31, 2013
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

(in thousands)
Available for Sale:

Mortgage-backed securities (1) $ 461,98¢ $ 207 $ (10,659 $ 451,53¢
Corporate notes (2) 25,00( 344 (22) 25,32
Equity securities (3) 23,07 — (2,360 20,71«

Total $ 510,06 $ 551 $ (13,040 $ 497,57:
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(1) Comprised primarily of mortgage-backed se@sitssued by governmesgponsored agencies, including FHLMC, FNMA, and GN
(2) Includes subordinated debt issued by other barditgplcompanie
3) Comprised primarily of equity securities in a fgeientity

The following table shows proceeds from the salawaifilable-for-sale investment securities, grossggand gross losses on those sales of
securities:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

(in thousands)
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale investrsentirities $ 213,24¢ % 135,19 $ 309,22:
Gross gains $ 3,191 $ 1,27« $ 9,017
Gross losses — — =
Net gains $ 3,191 § 127 $ 9,017

These gains and losses were determined using dedfispdentification method and were included onrinterest income.

The following table shows investment securitiestated maturity. Investment securities backed bytgages have expected maturities that
differ from contractual maturities because borraaave the right to call or prepay, and are, tlieegfclassified separately with no specific
maturity date:

December 31, 2014
Available for Sale

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
(in thousands)

Due in one year or less $ —  $ —
Due after one year through five years — —
Due after five years through ten years 15,00( 15,10«
Due after ten years — —
Mortgage-backed securities 376,85: 377,31:
Total debt securities $ 391,85 % 392,41!

The Bancorp’s investments’ gross unrealized loasésfair value aggregated by investment categadylemgth of time that individual
securities that have been in a continuous unrehlass position were as follows:

December 31, 2014

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

(in thousands)
Available for Sale:
Mortgage-backed securities (1) $ 60,38 % 81 $ 80,42¢ $ (2,267 $ 14081 $ (2,349
Corporate notes — — — — — —
Equity securities — — 5 D 5 (@)}
Total $ 60,38¢ $ 81 $ 80437 $ (2,26¢) $ 140,81¢ $ (2,349
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December 31, 2013

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

(in thousands)
Available for Sale:

Mortgage-backed securities (1) $ 425620 $ (10,06) $ 527¢  $ (596) $ 430,890 $ (10,659
Corporate notes 4,98 (18) 4,997 3 9,97¢ (22)
Equity securities (2) 20,71« (2,360 — — 20,71« (2,360
Total $ 45131¢ $ (12,439 $ 10,271 $ (601) $ 461,59 $ (13,040

Q) Comprised primarily of mortgage-backed se@sitssued by governmesgponsored agencies, including FHLMC, FNMA, and GN
(2) Comprised primarily of equity securities in a fgeientity

At December 31, 2014, there were eight availabteséde investment securities in the less-than-tesehonth category and eighteen available-
for-sale investment securities in the twelve-monitimore category. The unrealized losses on thegaget backed securities are guaranteed b
government-sponsored entities and primarily ralatehanges in market interest rates. All amourgseapected to be recovered when market
prices recover or at maturity. The Company inteindsold these securities for the foreseeable futamd does not intend to sell the securities
before the price recovers. Customers considersiieikely than not that it will not be requiredgell the securities. Accordingly, Customers
has concluded that the securities are not other-tn@porarily impaired as of December 31, 2014.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, Customers Bank lealdjpd investment securities aggregating $376.8omiand $451.1 million fair value,

respectively, as collateral against its borrowipgmarily with the FHLB and a unused line of credith another financial institution. These
counterparties do not have the ability to sellepledge these securities.

NOTE 7 — LOANS HELD FOR SALE

The composition of loans held for sale was as Vato

December 31,

2014 2013
(in thousands)
Commercial Loans:
Mortgage warehouse loans at fair value $ 1,332,01' $ 740,69
Multi-family loans at lower of cost or fair value 99,79: —
Total Commercial Loans Held for Sale 1,431,811 740,69:
Consumer Loans:
Residential mortgage loans at fair value 3,64¢ 6,89¢
Loans held for sale $ 1,435,45' $ 747,59:

Effective September 30, 2014, Customers Bank teared $164.7 million of multi-family loans from Ina receivable to held for sale because
the Bank was actively marketing these loans anldmger had the intent to retain these loans ipattfolio. Effective December 31, 2014,
Customers Bank transferred 18.8 million of thesatoback to loans receivable because the Bankngeildas the intent to sell the loans.
Customers Bank transfered these loans at theirtez@drcost, which was lower than the estimatedviaiue at the time of transfer.
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NOTE 8 — LOANS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LO SSES

During the fourth quarter of 2014, certain typeoains were reclassified due to their purpose amdadl risk characteristics. Therefore,
balances on certain loans and allowance for lossel® as of December 31, 2013 were reclassifiednimien to the December 31, 2014
presentation.

The following table presents loans receivable d3exfember 31, 2014 and 2013:

December 31,

2014 2013
(in thousands)

Commercial:
Multi-family $ 2,127,03 $  1,063,45!
Commercial real estate 1,132,07 724,75:
Commercial and industrial 540,43( 292,93
Construction 56,66¢ 31,31«
Total Commercial Loans 3,856,20! 2,112,46:

Consumer:

Residential real estate 285,00: 145,18t
Manufactured housing 126,73: 139,47:
Home equity / other 1,541 2,14¢
Total Consumer Loans 413,27" 286,80:
Total loan receivable novered under FDIC loss sharing agreements (1) 4,269,48 2,399,26!

Commercial:
Commercial real estate 17,58¢ 28,83¢
Commercial and industrial 2,23t 3,65¢
Construction 6,70t 11,60:
Multi-family 372 60C
Total Commercial Loans 26,891 44,70(

Consumer:

Residential real estate 12,39: 18,73
Home equity / other 2,89z 3,29:
Total Consumer Loans 15,28¢ 22,02t
Total loan receivable cacunder FDIC loss sharing agreements (1) 42,18: 66,72¢
Total all loans 4,311,66. 2,465,991
Deferred (fees) costs and unamortized premiuns&/gdints), net 512 (912
Allowance for loan losses (30,939 (23,999
Loans receivable, net $ 428124 $ 2,441,08!

(1) Loans that were acquired in the tIC assisted transactions and are covered ungesttaring agreements with the FDIC are reft
to as “covered” loans throughout these financiateshents.
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Non-Covered Loans

The following table summarize®n-coveredloans by loan type and performance status as oéfber 31, 2014 and 2013:

December 31, 2014

Purchased-

90 Or Total Past Credit-

30-89 Days More Days Due Still Non- Impaired
Past Due (1) Past Due (1) Accruing (1) Accrual Current (2) Loans (3) Total Loans (4)

(in thousands)
Commercial real estate  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 345( $1,101,11 $ 27,500 $ 1,132,07.
Multi-family — — — — 2,124,44: 2,58¢ 2,127,03.
Commercial and industrial 36€ — 36€ 2,251 536,32t 1,481 540,43(
Construction — — — — 56,51( 15¢ 56,66¢
Residential real estate 1,22¢ — 1,22¢ 84¢ 273,56! 9,36: 285,00
Home equity / other — — — — 1,33: 20¢ 1,541
Manufactured housing (5) 6,324 4,38¢ 10,71: 931 111,07. 4,01¢ 126,73:
Total $ 791¢ $ 438t $ 12,30 $ 7,487 $4,204,37. $ 4531¢ $ 4,269,48
December 31, 2013
Purchased-

90 Or Total Past Credit-

30-89 Days More Days Due Sitill Non- Impaired
Past Due (1) Past Due (1) Accruing (1) Accrual Current (2) Loans (3) Total Loans (4)

(in thousands)

Commercial real estate  $ — % — $ — % 594¢ $ 68599 $ 32,808 $ 724,75.
Multi-family — — — — 1,060,13 3,32: 1,063,45!
Commercial and industrial 10 — 1C 4,56¢ 284,76 3,59¢ 292,93
Construction — — — 1,58¢ 29,48: 24¢ 31,31«
Residential real estate 55k — 55E 96¢ 133,15¢ 10,50¢ 145,18t
Home equity / other — — — — 1,72¢ 41¢€ 2,14¢
Manufactured housing (5) 7,921 3,77 11,69: 44¢ 122,41¢ 4,91¢ 139,47:
Total $ 8,48t $ 3,772 $ 12,25¢ $ 1351¢ $2,317,68 $ 55807 $ 2,399,26!

(1) Includes past due loans that are accruing intéexsiuse collection is considered prob:

(2) Loans where next payment due is less thare$8ftbm the report dat

3) Purchased-credit-impaired loans aggregatedargool are accounted for as a single asset vdthgée composite interest rate and an
aggregate expectation of cash flows, and the peessthtus of the pools, or that of the individaalis within the pools, is not
meaningful. Because of the credit impaired natdith®loans, the loans are recorded at a disca&lietcting estimated future cash flows
and the Bank recognizes interest income on eachgbdmans reflecting the estimated yield and pgesaf time. Such loans are
considered to be performing. Purchased-credit-inepdbans that are not in pools accrete interestwvthe timing and amount of their
expected cash flows are reasonably estimable, r@iported as performing loans.

(4)  Amounts exclude deferred costs and fees, unamdrgzemiums and discounts, and the allowance far losse:

(5) Manufactured housing loans purchased in 20&&apported bycash reserves held at the Banlatbatsed to fund past-due payments
when the loan becomes 90 days or more delinquabsegjuent purchases are subject to varying proxisiothe event of borrowers’
delinquencies.
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Covered Loans

The following table summarize®veredloans by class and performance status as of De¢e3ib2014 and 2013:

December 31, 2014

Purchased-
90 Days Total Past Credit-
30-89 Days Or More Due Still Non- Impaired Total
Past Due (1) Past Due (1) Accruing (1) Accrual Current (2) Loans (3) Loans (4)
(in thousands)
Commercial and industrial $ 51€ $ — % 51¢ $ 165 $ 361 $ 1,191 $ 2,23t
Multi-family — — — — 372 — 372
Commercial real estate — — — 61% 11,88 5,08¢ 17,58¢
Construction — — — 2,32¢ — 4,38( 6,70¢
Residential real estate — — — 1,00¢ 10,78: 604 12,39:
Home equity / other 147 — 147 13t 2,57( 4C 2,89:
Total $ 66 $ — % 665 $ 424¢ $ 2596¢ $ 11,30 $ 42,18:
December 31, 2013
Purchased-
90 Days Total Past Credit-
30- 89 Days Or More Due Still Non- Impaired Total
Past Due (1) Past Due (1) Accruing (1) Accrual Current (2) Loans (3) Loans (4)
(in thousands)

Commercial and industrial $ 17¢  $ — % 17¢  $ 151 $ 1,067 $ 2,26 $ 3,65¢
Commercial real estate 362 — 362 2,59¢ 17,05¢ 8,81¢ 28,83¢
Multi-family — — — — 60C — 60C
Construction — — — 2,32t — 9,27¢ 11,60:
Residential real estate 90 — 9C 564 14,10° 3,971 18,73:
Home equity / other 56 — 56 11 3,081 14t 3,29:
Total $ 68€ $ — % 68 $ 565( $ 3591: $ 2447 $ 66,72t

Q) Includes past due loans that are accruing intéexsiuse collection is considered prob:

(2) Purchased loans in FDIC assisted transactionsneittvidence of credit deterioration since origio®a.

€)) Purchased-credit-impaired loans aggregatedarmiool are accounted for as a single asset vdihgie composite interest rate and an
aggregate expectation of cash flows, and the pessthtus of the pools, or that of the individaalis within the pools, is not
meaningful. Because of the credit impaired natfith@loans, the loans are recorded at a discadiletcting estimated future cash flows
and the Bank recognizes interest income on eachgbdmans reflecting the estimated yield and pgssaf time. Such loans are
considered to be performing. Purchased-credit-inepdbans that are not in pools accrete interestwvthe timing and amount of their
expected cash flows are reasonably estimable, r@iported as performing loans.

(4)  Amounts exclude deferred costs and fees, unamdrti;Emiums and discounts, and the allowance for losse:

Allowance for Loan Losses and FDIC Loss SharingeReble

Losses incurred on covered loans are eligible &otigl reimbursement by the FDIC. Subsequent tgpthrehase date, the expected cash flows
on the covered loans are subject to evaluationrdases in the present value of expected cash fiovise covered loans are recognized by
increasing the allowance for loan losses with ategl charge to the provision for loan losses. Atsame time, the FDIC indemnification asset
is increased reflecting an estimated future cabbecfrom the FDIC, which is recorded as a reductmthe provision for loan losses. If the
expected cash flows on the covered loans incraadethat a previously recorded impairment can bersed, the Bancorp records a reduction
in the allowance for loan losses (with a relateztitrto the provision for loan losses) accompaitigd reduction in the FDIC receivable
balance and a charge to the provision for loaredsicreases in expected cash flows of coveratlaad decreases in expected cash flows o
the FDIC loss sharing receivable, when there angrawviously recorded impairments, are considergdtteer and recognized over the remai
life of the loans as interest income. The FDIC lgisaring receivable balance will be reduced thraugharge to the provision for loan losses,
with no offsetting reduction to the allowance foah losses, as the FDIC loss sharing arrangemesnth their contractual maturities and the
estimated losses in the covered loans have naryetged or been realized in a final dispositiomévEhe FDIC loss sharing arrangements for
non-single family loans expire in third quarter 80The loss sharing arrangements for single fatodys expire in third quarter 2020.
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The following table presents changes in the allaxedor loans losses and the FDIC loss sharingvabks for the years ended December 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012.

Allowance for Loan Losses
For The Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

(in thousands)
Beginning Balance $ 23,99¢ $ 25837 $ 15,03:
Provision for loan losses (1) 10,05¢ 5,05¢ 16,27:
Charge-offs (4,94%) (7,33¢) (6,166€)
Recoveries 1,82 444 70C
Ending Balance $ 30,93 $ 23,99¢ $ 25,83’

FDIC Loss Sharing Receivable
For The Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Beginning Balance $ 10,04¢ $ 12,347 $ 13,077
Increased (decreased) estimated cash flows (2) (4,689 2,81¢ 2,001
Other activity, net (a) 2,40¢ 1,61( 3,83¢
Cash receipts from FDIC (5,446 (6,726 (6,579
Ending Balance $ 2,32 $ 10,04¢ $ 12,34:
(1) Provision for loan losses $ 10,05¢ $ 5,05t $ 16,27:
(2) Effect attributable to FDIC loss share agaments 4,68¢ (2,819 (2,009

Net amount reported as provision for loan losses $ 14,747 $ 223t $ 14,27(

(a) Includes external costs, such as legal feabestate taxes and appraisal expenses, thatytalifeimbursement under loss share
arrangements.
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Impaired Loans— Covered and Non-Covered

The following tables present a summary of impaloeths as of the years ended December 31, 2014C481 Purchased-credit-impaired loans
are considered to be performing and are not incua¢he tables below.

December 31, 2014

Recorded
Investment Unpaid Average Interest
Net of Principal Related Recorded Income
Charge Offs Balance Allowance Investment Recognized
(in thousands)
With no related allowance recorded:
Commercial and industrial $ 13,82F $ 15,34¢ $ — 3 13,32¢ $ 674
Commercial real estate 18,971 19,12: — 17,97« 887
Construction 2,32t 2,32t — 2,41¢ 41
Home equity / other 21 21 — 26 —
Residential real estate 1,45¢ 3,691 — 1,92t 13
With an allowance recorded:
Commercial and industrial 1,83 1,83: 81¢ 1,72¢ 28
Commercial real estate 1,41C 1,41C 304 2,08¢ 39
Construction — — — 851 —
Home equity / other 114 114 32 82 1
Residential real estate 36¢ 36E 18¢ 29€ 1
Total $ 40,32 $ 4423 % 1,34: $ 40,70¢ $ 1,68¢
December 31, 2013
Recorded
Investment Unpaid Average Interest
Net of Principal Related Recorded Income
Charge Offs Balance Allowance Investment Recognized
(in thousands)
With no related allowance recorded:
Commercial and industrial $ 13,097 $ 13,15¢ $ — 8 9,95: $ 603
Commercial real estate 14,391 15,24¢ — 22,47 97¢
Construction 2,771 4,04¢ — 6,40¢ 6
Home equity / other — — — 90 8
Residential real estate 2,831 2,831 — 2,52 31
With an allowance recorded:
Commercial and industrial 2,46¢ 3,73¢ 82¢ 1,61¢ 44
Commercial real estate 2,261 3,167 94¢ 7,491 2
Construction 1,132 1,132 351 5,05¢ —
Home equity / other 64 64 17 48 5
Residential real estate 252 252 19¢ 87t 4
Total $ 39,28( $ 43,63¢ $ 2,342 $ 56,53¢ $ 1,681

Troubled Debt Restructurings

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, there were $5.0amiind $4.6 million , respectively, in loans catéped as troubled debt restructurings
(“TDRs"). TDRs are reported as impaired loans ia ¢hlendar year of their restructuring and areuatatl to determine whether they should bt
placed on non-accrual status. In subsequent y@di®R may be returned to accrual status if it Hasa minimum six-month performance
requirement; however, it will remain classifiediepaired. Generally, the Bancorp requires sustapstbrmance for nine months before
returning a TDR to accrual status.

Modification of purchased-credit-impaired loansttage accounted for within loan pools in accordanith the accounting standards for
purchased-credit-impaired loans do not result énrétmoval of these loans from the pool even if fications would otherwise be
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considered a TDR. Accordingly, aach pool is accounted for as a single asset vathghe composite interest rate and an aggregatectatior
of cash flows, modifications of loans within suatofs are not considered TDRs.

The following is an analysis of loans modified itr@ubled debt restructuring by type of concessipBecember 31, 2014 and 2013. There
were no modifications that involved forgivenessiebt.

December 31, 2014

TDRs in TDRs in
Compliance Compliance with
with Their Their Modified
Modified Terms and
Terms and Not
Accruing Accruing
Interest Interest Total
(in thousands)
Extended under forbearance 46C $ — 46C
Multiple extensions resulting from financial diftitty — — —
Interest-rate reductions 231 38¢ 62C
Total 691 $ 38¢ 1,08(
December 31, 2013
TDRs in TDRs in
Compliance Compliance with
with Their Their Modified
Modified Terms and
Terms and Not
Accruing Accruing
Interest Interest Total
(in thousands)
Extended under forbearance —  $ — —
Multiple extensions resulting from financial diftitty — — —
Interest rate reductions 79C 44¢ 1,23¢
Total 79C $ 44¢ 1,23¢

The following tables provide by class the numbeloahs modified in troubled debt restructurings ssxbrded investments at December 31,

2014 and 2013.

December 31, 2014

TDRs in Compliance with
Their Modified Terms and

TDRs in Compliance with Their
Modified Terms and Not

Accruing Interest Accruing Interest
Number Recorded Number Recorded
of Loans Investment of Loans Investment
(dollars in thousands)

Commercial and industrial — 3 = — 3 =
Commercial real estate — — — —
Construction — — — —
Manufactured housing 4 231 6 38¢
Residential real estate — — — —
Home equity / other 11 46C — —
Total loans 15 $ 691 6 $ 38¢
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December 31, 2013

TDRs in Compliance with TDRs in Compliance with Their
Their Modified Terms and Modified Terms and Not
Accruing Interest Accruing Interest
Number Recorded Number Recorded
of Loans Investment of Loans Investment
(dollars in thousands)
Commercial and industrial — 3 = — $ =
Commercial real estate — — — —
Construction — — — —
Manufactured housing 8 75€ 5 44¢
Residential real estate — — — —
Home equity / other 1 32 — —
Total loans 9 % 79C 5 $ 44¢

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, there were naribmnents to lend additional funds to debtors whesms have been modified in TDRs.

For the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2018etleded investment of loans determined to be TRD&s$1.1 million and $1.2 million ,
respectively, both before and after restructuridigring the year ending December 31, 2014, six Tod$ defaulted with a recorded
investment of $0.4 million . During the year endibgcember 31, 2013, five TDR loans defaulted witk@rded investment of $0.4 million .
Since these loans were included in the loan pdotfoht is subject to the cash reserve, they wlldmoved from the loan portfolio when they
become ninety days past due.

Loans modified in troubled debt restructuringseraluated for impairment. The nature and extemnpfirment of TDRs, including those
which have experienced a subsequent default, isidered in the determination of an appropriatellefallowance for credit losses. There
were no specific allowances resulting from TDR nfiedtions during 2014 or 2013.

Credit Quality Indicators

Commercial and industrial, commercial real estasidential real estate and construction loandased on an internally assigned risk rating
system which are assigned at the loan originati@hraviewed on a periodic or on an “as needed’sh&bnsumer, mortgage warehouse, mult
family and manufactured housing loans are evalubésgd on the payment activity of the loan.

To facilitate the monitoring of credit quality withthe commercial and industrial, commercial resthte, construction, multi-family and
residential real estate classes, and for purpdsasadyzing historical loss rates used in the deieation of the allowance for loan losses for the
respective portfolio class, the Bank utilizes tbliofving categories of risk ratings: pass/satisiac(includes risk rating 1 through 6), special
mention, substandard, doubtful, and loss. Therdaskg categories, which are derived from standegiilatory rating definitions, are assigned
upon initial approval of credit to borrowers andlafed periodically thereafter. Pass/satisfactatipga, which are assigned to those borrowers
who do not have identified potential or well-defin@eaknesses and for whom there is a high liketihafoorderly repayment, are updated
periodically based on the size and credit charesties of the borrower. All other categories arelated on a quarterly basis during the month
preceding the end of the calendar quarter. Consloaas are not assigned to a risk rating. Whiléyagsg risk ratings involves judgment, the
risk-rating process allows management to identify riskredits in a timely manner and allocate the appate resources to managing the lo

The risk rating grades are defined as follows:

‘1" — Pass/ Excellent

Loans rated 1 represent a credit extension of ifteelst quality. The borrower’s historic (at leasefyears) cash flows manifest extremely large
and stable margins of coverage. Balance sheetoaservative, well capitalized, and liquid. Aftemsidering debt service for proposed and
existing debt, projected cash flows continue tetbeng and provide ample coverage. The borroweacaly reflects broad geographic and
product diversification and has access to alteradthancial markets.
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‘2" —Pass/ Superior

Loans rated 2 are those for which the borrowerahstsong financial condition, balance sheet, opmraf cash flow, debt capacity and coveragg
with ratios better than industry norms. The borrsaef these loans exhibit a limited leverage positborrowers are virtually immune to local
economies in stable growing industries, and whearagement is well respected and the company hdg aeaess to public markets.

“3" — Pass/ Strong

Loans rated 3 are those loans for which the borrdveis above average financial condition and fléikjhimore than satisfactory debt service
coverage, balance sheet and operating ratios asstent with or better than industry peers, hétle Industry risk, move in diversified
markets and are experienced and competent initttkistry. These borrowers access to capital margdimited mostly to private sources,
often secured, but the borrower typically has a&tes wide range of refinancing alternatives.

“4" — Pass/ Good

Loans rated 4 have a sound primary and secondargesof repayment. The borrower may have accealidmative sources of financing, bust
sources are not as widely available as they aaehigher grade borrower. These loans carry a ndewal of risk, with very low loss exposure.
The borrower has the ability to perform accordioghte terms of the credit facility. The marginscath flow coverage are satisfactory but
vulnerable to more rapid deterioration than thénbigquality loans.

“5 " — Satisfactory

Loans rated 5 are extended to borrowers who argrdted to be a reasonable credit risk and denatedine ability to repay the debt from
normal business operations. Risk factors may irehediability of margins and cash flows, liquidiggpendence on a single product or indu
cyclical trends, depth of management, or limiteckeas to alternative financing sources. The borraaestorical financial information may
indicate erratic performance, but current trendsparsitive and the quality of financial informatimnadequate, but is not as detailed and
sophisticated as information found on higher goaths. If adverse circumstances arise, the impatitehorrower may be significant.

“6" — Satisfactory Bankable with Care

Loans rated 6 are those for which the borrowertigiser than normal credit risk; however cash flowd asset values are generally intact. T
borrowers may exhibit declining financial charastiées, which increasing leverage and decreasmgdity and may have limited resources
access to financial alternatives. Signs of weakirefsese borrowers may include delinquent taxeslet slowness and eroding profit margins.

“7" —Special Mention

Loans rated Special Mention are credit facilitiesttmay have potential developing weaknesses ssehdeextra attention from the account
manager and other management personnel. In the #natmpotential weaknesses are not corrected tigated, deterioration in the ability of 1
borrower to repay the debt in the future may octhis grade is not assigned to loans that beaaiogpeculiar risks normally associated with
the type of financing involved, unless circumstaniave caused the risk to increase to a level hifjla@ would have been acceptable with the
credit was originally approved. Loans where siguaifit actual, not potential, weaknesses or problemslearly evident are graded in the
category below.

“8" — Substandard

Loans are classified Substandard when the loansadequately protected by the current sound wamthpayment capacity of the obligor ol
the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classifiaegst have a well-defined weakness or weaknesaegethpardize the liquidation of the debt
and are characterized by the distinct possibiligt the Company will sustain some loss if the weakes are not corrected.

“9" — Doubtful

The Bank assigns a doubtful rating to loans thaelal the attributes of a substandard rating Withadded characteristic that the weaknesses
make collection or liquidation in full, on the basif currently existing facts, conditions, and ealuhighly questionable and improbable. The
possibility of loss is extremely high, but becao$eertain important and reasonable specific pepéistors that may work to the advantage of
and strengthen the credit quality of the loangliéssification as an estimated loss is deferredl itmtmore
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exact status may be determined. Pending factorsimesyde a proposed merger or acquisition, liqguataproceeding, capital injection,
perfecting liens on additional collateral or reficang plans.

“10" —Loss

The Bank assigns a loss rating to loans considemedllectible and of such little value that theintinuance as an active asset is not warrante

Loss estimates in excess of 30% will result inss lolassification. Amounts classified as loss emaédiately charged off.

Risk ratings are not established for home equiiyn$y consumer loans, and instaliment loans, mamtause these portfolios consist of a large

number of homogenous loans with smaller balancssedd, these portfolios are evaluated for risknipdiased upon aggregate payment
history through the monitoring of delinquency levahd trends and are classified as performing angearforming.

The following presents the credit quality table®aBecember 31, 2014 and 2013 for tlum-coveredloan portfolio.

December 31, 2014

Commercial Home
and Commercial Residential equity / Manufactured
Industrial Real Estate Multi-family Construction Real Estate other Housing Total
(in thousands)
Pass/Satisfactory $ 524,84¢ $ 1,109,56! $2,127,03- $ 56,66¢ $ 283,24( $ — — $ 4,101,35
Special Mention 13,23¢ 16,00: — — 242 — — 29,48:
Substandard 2,34 6,50¢ — — 1,52( — — 10,36¢
Performing (1) — — — — — 1,541 115,08t 116,62
Non-performing (2) — — — — — — 11,64: 11,64:
Total $ 540,43( $ 1,132,07. $2,127,03- $ 56,66¢ $ 28500 $ 1541 $ 126,73: $ 4,269,48
December 31, 2013
Commercial
and Commercial Residential  Home equity/  Manufactured
Industrial Real Estate Multi-family Construction Real Estate other Housing Total
(in thousands)
Pass/Satisfactory $ 277,49. $ 703,63t $ 1,062,41 $ 29,70 $ 142,58t $ — % — $ 2,215,82
Special Mention 10,17¢ 11,99t 90t 29 94C — — 24,04«
Substandard 5,271 9,121 143 1,58¢ 1,66( — — 17,77¢
Performing (1) — — — — — 2,14¢ 127,33l 129,47.
Non-performing
2) = = = = = = 12,14 12,14:
Total $ 292,93 $ 724,75. $ 1,063,45 $ 31,31 $ 14518t $ 2,14 $ 139,47. $ 2,399,26!
(1) Includes home equity, consumer, and other instaitio@ans not subject to risk ratin
(2) Includes loans that are past due and stiliuaieg interest and loans on nacerual statu
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The following presents the credit quality table®bBecember 31, 2014 and 2013 for toeeredloan portfolio.

December 31, 2014

Commercial
and Commercial Residential Home equity /
Industrial Real Estate Multi-family Construction Real Estate other Total

Pass/Satisfactory $ 1,10¢ $ 10,207 $ 372 $ — $ 10,98 $ — 3 22,66¢
Special Mention — 5,07¢ — — — — 5,07¢
Substandard 1,131 2,30z — 6,70¢ 1,407 — 11,54t
Performing — — — — — 2,61( 2,61(
Non-performing
1) — — — — — 28z 282

Total $ 223 $ 1758 $ 372 % 6,70t $ 12,39: $ 2,89 $ 42,18

December 31, 2013
Commercial
and Commercial Residential Home equity /
Industrial Real Estate Multi-family Construction Real Estate other Total

Pass/Satisfactory $ 1,582 $ 17,80: $ 60C $ — $ 14,13 % — 3 34,12;
Special Mention 10¢€ 3,107 — — 45k — 3,66¢
Substandard 1,97( 7,92¢ — 11,60 4,14( — 25,64:
Performing — — — — — 3,22¢ 3,22¢
Non-performing (1) — — — — — 67 67

Total $ 365¢ $ 2883 $ 60C $ 11,600 $ 18,73. % 3,29: $ 66,72t

Q) Includes loans that are past due and stilitagg interest and loans on nacerual statu

The changes in the allowance for loan losses foy#ars ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 andathse &md allowance for loan losses by
class and impairment method as of December 3Jprasented in the tables that follow. The amourgsgmted below for the provision for loan
losses do not include expected benefits resultimg the FDIC loss share arrangements for the cdvesmns.
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Commercial Home
Twelve months ended December 31, and Commercial Residential Manufactured equity /
2014 Industrial Real Estate Multi-family Construction Real Estate Housing other Total

(in thousands)
Beginning Balance, January 1,

2014 $ 267¢ $ 1147¢ % 4,227 $ 238 $ 2490 $ 614 ¢ 13C $ 23,99¢
Charge-offs (1,158 (2,197 — (895) (667) — (33 (4,947
Recoveries 511 1,02¢ — 13 26¢ — 8 1,82:
Provision for loan losses 2,71¢ 3,26¢ 4,26¢€ (45€) 61C (352) 9 10,05¢

Ending Balance, December 31,

2014 $ 4,746  $ 13,57. $ 8,49: % 1,047 $ 269 $ 26z $ 114  $ 30,93:

Loans:

Individually evaluated for
impairment $ 1565¢ $ 2038 $ — $ 2328 $ 182( $ — $ 13t 3 40,32t
Collectively evaluated for
impairment 524,33! 1,096,68 2,124,821 56,51( 285,60t 122,71} 4,05( 4,214,711
Loans acquired with credi
deterioration 2,672 32,58¢ 2,58¢ 4,53¢ 9,967 4,01¢ 24¢ 56,617

$ 542,66!f $ 1,149,65 $ 2,127,400 $ 63,37 $ 297,39! $ 126,73. $ 4,43 $ 4,311,66

Allowance for loan losses:

Individually evaluated for

impairment $ 81 % 304 $ — 3 — 3 18t 8 — 3 32 3 1,342
Collectively evaluated for
impairment 3,76¢ 8,33¢ 8,49: 424 1,43¢ 92 28 22,57¢
Loans acquired with credit
deterioration 16z 4,932 — 625 1,07¢ 17C 54 7,01t
$ 4,746  $ 13,57. $ 8,49: % 1,047 $ 269 $ 26z $ 114  $ 30,93:
Commercial Home
Twelve months ended and Commercial Multi- Residential Manufactured equity / Residual
December 31, 2013 Industrial Real Estate family Construction Real Estate Housing other Reserve Total

(in thousands)
Beginning Balance,

January 1, 2013 $ 154¢ $ 1364 $ 1,79 $ 3,991 $§ 323 $ 75C $ 154 ¢ 72z $ 2583
Charge-offs (1,387) (3,35¢) — (2,096 (410) — (87 — (7,33¢)
Recoveries 391 42 = = 2 = 9 = 444
Provision for loan
losses 2,12; 1,15( 2,43 49C (339) (136) 54 (722) 5,05¢

Ending Balance,

December 31, 2013 $ 267¢ $ 1147¢ $ 4227 $ 2,388 $ 2490 $ 614 $ 13C $ — $ 23,99

Loans:

Individually

evaluated for

impairment $ 15,56¢ $ 16,65¢ $ — ¢ 3,90¢ $ 3,08 $ — ¢ 64 $ — $ 39,28(

Collectively

evaluated for

impairment 275,17 695,30¢ 1,060,73 29,48: 146,36: 134,55 4,812 — 2,346,42:

Loans acquired witt

credit deterioration 5,85¢ 41,62« 3,322 9,52¢ 14,477 4,91« 561 — 80,28:
$ 296,590 $ 753,59: $1,064,05 $ 42917 $ 163,92: $ 139,47. $ 5437 $ —  $2,465,99

Allowance for loan

losses:

Individually

evaluated for

impairment $ 82¢ $ 94€ $ — 3 351 % 19¢ % — 3 17 % — $ 234
Collectively

evaluated for

impairment 1,61( 5,41¢ 4,22 267 767 84 38 — 12,40¢
Loans acquired with

credit deterioration 23t 5,117 — 1,767 1,52¢ 53C 75 — 9,24¢

$ 2,67 $ 11,47¢  $ 4227 $ 238 $ 2490 $ 614 $ 13C $ — $ 23,99¢

The non-covered manufactured housing portfolio prashased in August 2010. A portion of the purchasse may be used to reimburse the
Bank under the specified terms in the Purchaseekgeat for defaults of the underlying borrower attteo specified items. At December 31,
2014 and 2013, funds available for reimburseméngdgessary, were $3.0 million and $3.1 millioespectively. Each quarter, these funds are



evaluated to determine if they would be sufficienabsorb probable losses within the manufactucessing portfolio.
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The following table presents the changes in acbletgeld related to purchased-credit-impaired $an

December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Accretable yield balance, beginning of period $ 22557 $ 32,17: $ 45,35¢
Accretion to interest income (3,207 (6,217 (11,727
Reclassification from nonaccretable difference disgosals, net (1,750 (3,409 (1,46))
Accretable yield balance, end of period $ 17,60¢ $ 2255 % 32,17«

NOTE 9 — BANK PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

The components of bank premises and equipment agei@lows:

December 31,

Expected Useful Life 2014 2013
(in thousands)
Leasehold improvements 3to25years $ 11,68 $ 11,50:
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5to 10 years 4,50¢ 4,35:
IT equipment 3to 5 years 4,69¢ 3,74(
Automobiles 5to 10 years 174 17z
21,05« 19,77
Accumulated depreciation (10,249 (8,147
Total $ 10,81( $ 11,62¢

Future minimum rental commitments under non-cafdelleases were as follows:

December 31, 2014
(in thousands)

2015 $ 3,574
2016 3,47¢
2017 3,26t
2018 3,03¢
2019 2,54¢
Subsequent to 2019 5,93¢
Total minimum payments $ 21,83t

Rent expense, which includes reimbursements ttetiser for real estate taxes, was approximatelly S@8llion , $2.5 million and $2.1 million
for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 an?l, 284pectively. The Bancompleases are for land and branch or office spaceajrity of
the leases provide for the payment of taxes, maémee, insurance and certain other expenses aplgplitathe leased premises. Many of the
leases contain extension provisions and escalaliwses. These leases are generally renewable andmctertain cases, contain renewal
provisions and options to expand and contract spadderminate the leases at predetermined con#ladates. In addition, escalation clauses
may exist, which are tied to a predetermined rat@ay change based on a specified percentage s&cogadhe Consumer Price Index.
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NOTE 10 — DEPOSITS

The components of deposits at December 31, 2012618 were as follows:

December 31,

2014 2013
(in thousands)
Demand, non-interest bearing $ 546,43t $ 478,10:
Demand, interest bearing 71,20: 58,01
Savings, including money market deposit accounts 2,203,23 1,298,46:
Time, $100,000 and over 1,043,26! 797,32.
Time, other 668,39¢ 328,01t
Total deposits $ 453253 $ 2,959,922,

Time deposits scheduled maturities at Decembe2@14 were as follows:

December 31, 2014
(in thousands)

2015 $ 976,05:
2016 438,341
2017 198,43:
2018 53,927
2019 44,91«

Total time deposits $ 1,711,66:

The aggregate amount of demand deposit overdraftsiere reclassified as loans were $0.8 millioBetember 31, 2014, compared to $1.0
million as of December 31, 2013.

Included in the savings balances above were $682lien and $277.7 million of brokered money markleposits, respectively, as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013. Also, included in tiotieer balances above were $483.2 million and $86lldn of brokered time deposits,
respectively, as of December 31, 2014 and 2013.

NOTE 11 —- BORROWINGS
Short-term debt
Short-term debt at December 31, 2014 and 2013 sé&dlaws:

December 31,

2014 2013
Amount Rate Amount Rate
(amounts in thousands)
FHLB advances $ 1,298,00! 0.2% $ 611,50( 0.26%
Federal funds purchased — — 13,00( 0.4¢
Total short-term debt $ 1,298,00! $ 624,50(
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The following is a summary of additional informaticelating to the Bancorp’s short-term debt:

December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(amounts in thousands)
FHLB advances:
Maximum outstanding at any month end $ 1,383,000 $ 769,75( $ 411,00(
Average balance during the year 898,39t 120,30¢ 74,33¢
Weighted-average interest rate during the year 0.4€% 0.55% 0.3¢%
Federal funds purchased:
Maximum outstanding at any month end 35,00( 125,00( 55,00(
Average balance during the year 13,31: 32,35 4,33¢
Weighted-average interest rate during the year 0.31% 0.31% 0.24%

At December 31, 2014 and 2013 , the Bank had agtgeyailability under federal funds lines total®p.0 million and $35.0 million,
respectively.

Long-term debt
FHLB advance:

The contractual maturities of long-term advancemfthe FHLB were as follows:

December 31,

2014 2013
Amount Rate Amount Rate

(amounts in thousands)

2015 $ = —% $ 50,00( 0.37%
2016 85,00( 0.5¢ 35,00( 0.6€
2017 180,00( 1.21 5,00( 3.0¢
2018 55,00( 1.61 5,00( 3.31

$ 320,00( $ 95,00(

Of the $320.0 million of long-term advances enurtextabove, all but $10.0 million are fixed rate.

The Bank had a total maximum borrowing capacithwlite Federal Home Loan Bank of $3.2 billion anthwie Federal Reserve Bank of
Philadelphia of $62.7 million at December 31, 20T4e Bank had a total borrowing capacity with fiesleral Home Loan Bank 81..6 billion
and with the Federal Reserve Bank of Philadelph#0&.3 million at December 31, 2013 . Amounts barborrowed as short-term or long-
term. As of December 31, 2014 , advances undee thieangements were secured by certain assetd) inlgsloded a blanket lien on securities
of $342.0 million and qualifying loans of Customé&ank of $2.9 billion .

Senior notes

On June 26, 2014, the Bancorp closed a privateepiaat transaction in which it issued $25.0 milladrt.625% senior notes due 2019. Interes
is paid semi-annually in arrears in June and Deegmb

In July and August 2013, the Bancorp issued $63li®Bmin aggregate principal amount of senior rsotlie 2018. The notes bear interest at
6.375% per year which is payable on March 15, Iime&eptember 15, and December 15.

The notes are unsecured obligations of the Barnmodrank equally with all of its secured and unsedisenior indebtedness.
Subordinated debt

On June 26, 2014, Customers Bank closed a privatement transaction in which it issued $110.0iamlbf fixed-to-floating rate
subordinated notes due 2029. The subordinated hetesinterest at an annual fixed rate of 6.125% dune 26, 2024, and interest is paid
semiannually. From June 26, 2024, the subordinadées will bear an annual interest rate equalteetmonth LIBOR plus 344.3 basis points
until maturity on June 26, 2029. Customers Bankthasbility to call the subordinated
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notes, in whole or in part, at a redemption prigead to 100% of the principal balance at certaimes on or after June 26, 2024.

The subordinated notes qualify as Tier 2 capitatégulatory capital purposes.

NOTE 12 — SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

In May 2014, the Bancorp announced that its Bo&iikectors had declared a 10% stock dividend kslzéreholders of record as of May 27,
2014. This special dividend was paid on June 30420 the form of an aggregate of 2,429,375 additichares.

In November 2013, the Bancorp announced that itg@of Directors had authorized a stock repurcipéese in which it could acquire up &%
of its current outstanding shares at prices nektieed a 20%remium over the current book value. The repurcipagsgram may be suspend
modified or discontinued at any time, and the Bapdws no obligation to repurchase any amounsafatmmon stock under the program.
There was no stock repurchased during 2014 or 2013.

At December 31, 2014 , there were warrants outstgrid purchase 635,274 shares of the Bancorp’sraamstock. At December 31, 2013,
there were warrants outstanding to purchase 635B2(es of the Bancorp’s common stock. The purcpases at December 31, 2014 and
2013 ranged from $9.55 per share to $73.01 peeshar

NOTE 13 — EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
401(k) Plan

Customers Bank has a 401(k) profit sharing planredneeligible team members may contribute amoupt®uhe annual IRS statutory
contribution limit. Customers Bank provides a matghcontribution equal to 50% of the first 686the contribution made by the team mem
Employer contributions for the years ended DecerStie014 , 2013, and 2012 were $1.0 million 634illion , and $0.3 million ,
respectively.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plans

Customers Bank entered into a supplemental exectgtrement plan (SERP) with its Chairman and Chiecutive Officer that provides
annual retirement benefits for a 15-year periodnughe later of his reaching the age of 65 or whetehminates employment. The SERP is a
defined-contribution type of deferred compensatimangement that is designed to provide a targaiametirement benefit of $300,000 per
year forl5 years starting at age 65 , based on an asswnsthot rate of return of 7% per year, but tha¢llef retirement benefit is not
guaranteed by the Bank, and the ultimate retirerbenéfit can be less than or greater than thettafge Bank intends to fund its obligations
under the SERP with the increase in cash surreralee of a life insurance policy on the life of tBhairman and Chief Executive Officer
which is owned by the Bank. The present value efatmount owed as of December 31, 2014 was $3.®mahd was included in other
liabilities.

NOTE 14 — SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS
Summary

During 2010, the shareholders of Customers Bankoajep the 2010 Stock Option Plan (*2010 Plan”), dndng 2012, the shareholders of
Customers Bancorp approved the 2012 Amendment asthiement of the Customers Bancorp, Inc. AmendddRastated 2004 Incentive
Equity and Deferred Compensation Plan (“2004 Plaflie purpose of these plans is to promote theesscand enhance the value of the
Bancorp by linking the personal interests of thembers of the Board of Directors and employeescef§, and executives of Customers Bank
to those of the shareholders of the Bancorp angrdwiding such individuals with an incentive fortstanding performance in order to generat
superior returns to shareholders of the Bancorp.2010 Plan and 2004 Plan are intended to proléaéility to the Bancorp in its ability to
motivate, attract, and retain the services of membgthe Board of Directors, and employees, officand executives of Customers Bank.
Stock options and restricted stock units normadigtwon the third or fifth anniversary of the grdate provided the grantee remains employed
by the Bancorp or continues to serve on the Baafith respect to stock options granted under thédZ@an, vested options shall be exercis
only when the Bancorp’s fully diluted tangible boedue will have increased by 50% from the datgraht. Certain share-based awards
provide for accelerated vesting if there is a cleaingcontrol (as defined in the Plans). No stockanms may be exercisable for more than 10
yearsfrom the date of grant.
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The 2010 and 2004 Plans are administered by thep€osation Committee of the Board of Directors. Z820 Plan provides exclusively for
the grant of stock options, some or all of whichyrba structured to qualify as Incentive Stock Omicto employees, officers and executives.
The maximum number of shares of common stock wimiall be issued under the 2010 Plan is 3,666,66 ésh@ihe 2004 Plan provides for the
grant of options, some or all of which may be duued to qualify as Incentive Stock Options if gethto employees, stock appreciation rights
restricted stock, restricted stock units, and uriceed stock to employees, officers, executives] members of the Board of Directors. The
maximum number of shares of common stock which b&issued under the 2004 Plan is 2,750,000 shar&ecember 31, 2014 , the
aggregate number of shares of common stock avaifabigrant under these plans was 2,510,117 shares.

On January 1, 2011, the Bancorp initiated a BoresoBnition and Retention Program (“BRRP”). Thig isestricted stock unit plan.
Employees eligible to participate in the BRRP inlduhe Chief Executive Officer and other manageraadthighly compensated employee:
determined by the Compensation Committee in its d@cretion. Under the BRRP, a participant magtdtedefer not less than 25%0r more
than 50% , of his or her bonus payable with resmmeetch year of participation. Shares of Votingn@won Stock having a value equal to the
portion of the bonus deferred by a participantadi@cated to an annual deferral account, and alimf@mount equal to an identical number o
shares of common stock is also allocated to theardeferral account. A participant becomes 100%teckin the annual deferral account on
the fifth anniversary date of the initial fundinfjtbe account, provided he or she remains contislyamployed by the Bancorp from the date
of funding to the anniversary date.

Vesting is accelerated in the event of involuntarynination other than for cause, retirement atftar age 65 death, termination on account
disability, or a change in control of the BancdPprticipants were first eligible to make electiamsler the BRRP with respect to their bonuses
for 2011 which were payable in the first quarteR612. The BRRP does not provide for a specific Inemnof shares to be reserved; by its te
the award of restricted stock units under this jddimited by the amount of cash bonuses paithégparticipants in the plan. At December 31,
2014 , restricted stock units outstanding undes ptan totaled 170,429 .

Share-based compensation expense relating to spiicins and restricted stock units is recognized straight-line basis over the vesting
periods of the awards and is a component of salarid employee benefits expense. Total share-lcaseplensation expense for 2014 , 2013 ,
and 2012 was 5.2 million , 3.4 million , and 2.0limn , respectively. At December 31, 2014 , thewes $9.3 million of unrecognized
compensation cost related to all non-vested shaseébcompensation awards. This cost is expecteel tecognized through December 2017 .

In 2014, the shareholders of Customers Bancorpoapprthe 2014 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (thePESThe ESPP is intended to
encourage team member participation in the owngmsihd economic progress of the Bancorp. This gamténded to qualify as an employee
stock purchase plan within the meaning of the lrebRevenue Code and is administered by the CoraiensCommittee of the Board of
Directors.

Under the ESPP, team members may elect to purchases of the Bancorp's common stock through plagediuction. Since the purchase
price under the plan is 85% of (a 15% discounthe)fair market value of a share of common stockherfirst day of each quarterly
subscription period, the Bancorp's ESPP is consitiey be a compensatory plan under current aceaugtiidance. Therefore, the entire
amount of the discount is recognizable compensatipense. ESPP expense for 2014 was $12.0 thousand
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Stock Options

The Bancorp estimated the fair value of each optiothe date of grant using the Black-Scholes aptiacing model. The riskee interest rat
was based upon the zero-coupon Treasury rategeict @h the grant date of the options. Expectedtility was based upon limited historical
information because the Bancorp’s common stoclohfsbeen traded since February 2012. Expectedviife management'’s estimate which
took into consideration the five -year vesting riegqment and the fact that there have been no esergince 2010. The following table present
the weighted-average assumptions used and theingswkeighted-average fair value of an option.

2014 2013 2012
Weighted-average risk-free interest rate 2.1€% 1.42% 1.15%
Expected dividend yield —% —% —%
Weighted-average expected volatility 18.0(% 13.7% 17.4%
Weighted-average expected life (in years) 7.0C 7.0C 6.9¢
Weighted-average fair value of each option granted $ 452 % 3171 % 3.04
The following summarizes stock option activity the year ended December 31, 2014 :
Weighted-
average
Weighted- Remaining
average Contractual Aggregate
Number Exercise Term Intrinsic
of Shares Price in Years Value
(dollars in thousands, except Weighted-averagedisesPrice)
Outstanding, January 1, 2014 3,051,93 $ 12.4:
Issued 130,97¢ 17.7¢
Forfeited (22,650 17.7:
Expired (2,200 27.9¢
Outstanding, December 31, 2014 3,168,060 $ 12.6] 720 $ 21,73t
Exercisable at December 31, 2014 13,680 g 16.67 253 $ 65

A summary of the status of the Bancorp’s non-vesigibns at December 31, 2014 and changes durngaar ended December 31, 2014 is a
follows:

Weighted-
average
Options exercise price
Non-vested at January 1, 2014 3,036,051 $ 12.4:
Granted 130,97¢ 17.7¢
Forfeited (12,650 17.7:2
Non-vested at December 31, 2014 3,154,38. 12.5¢

Restricted Stock Uni

The fair value of restricted stock units grantedemthe 2004 Plan is determined based on the mpricet of the Bancorp’s common stock on
the date of grant. The fair value of restrictectktonits granted under the BRRP is measured dweaddte on which such portion of the bonus
would have been paid but for the deferral.

In February 2012, the Compensation Committee recema@d and the Board of Directors approved a réstristock reward program that has
two vesting requirements. The first requiremeriha the recipient remains an employee or dirgttaugh December 31, 2016. The second

requirement is that the Bancorp’s Voting Commorcktwill have traded at a price greater than $ 1 pd8share (adjusted for any stock splits
or stock dividends) for at least 5 consecutiveitrgdiays during the five-year period ending Decen#de 2016. This second requirement was
satisfied during the fourth quarter of 2013.
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The table below presents the status of the restristock units at December 31, 2014 and chang@sydine year ended December 31, 2014 :

Weighted-

Restricted average grant-

Stock Units date fair value
Outstanding and unvested at January 1, 2014 675,63t $ 11.81
Granted 156,62« 17.6¢
Vested (37,857 10.91
Forfeited (5,439 13.8i
Outstanding and unvested at December 31, 2014 788,97. g 13.0C

Customers Bancorp has a policy that permits igsatiirs to elect to receive shares of Voting Com®tmtk in lieu of their cash retainers. In
January 2014, Customers Bancorp issued 28,095ssbfxéoting Common Stock with a fair value of $@dlion to the directors as
compensation for their services during 2013. Duthmgyyear ended December 31, 2014, Customers Barssared 28,235 shares of Voting
Common Stock with a fair value of $0.5 million twettors as compensation for their services du2iotd. The fair values were determined
based on the opening price of the common stockemay the shares were issued.

NOTE 15 - INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax expense were as fsllow

For the Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Current $ 26,36. $ 15,39 $ 16,00:
Deferred (6,187%) 2,21(C (3,73))
Total $ 20,17¢ % 17,60¢ % 12,27:

Effective tax rates differ from the federal statytoate of 35% , which is applied to income befmeome tax expense, due to the following:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
% of % of % of
pretax pretax pretax
Amount income Amount income Amount income

(dollars in thousands)

Federal income tax at statutory rate $ 22,18t 35.00% $ 17,60¢ 35.00% $ 12,63: 35.0( %
State income tax 1,35¢ 2.14 353 0.7¢ 184 0.51
Tax-exempt interest (260) (0.41) (15%) (0.31) (85) (0.2
Interest disallowance 11 0.0z 7 0.01 4 0.01
Bank-owned life insurance (1,296 (2.09) (86¢) (1.79) (46€) (1.29)
Other (1,82)) (2.8¢) 663 1.3¢ 4 0.01

Effective income tax rate $ 20,17 318:% $ 17,60¢ 35.00% $ 12,27 34.0( %

Deferred income taxes reflect temporary differerindbe recognition of revenue and expenses forgprrting and financial statement
purposes, principally because certain items, sadhaallowance for loan losses and loan feesesmgnized in different periods for financial
reporting and tax return purposes. A valuationvedince has not been established for deferred t@tsas®ealization of the deferred tax assets
dependent on generating sufficient taxable incohitbough realization is not assured, managemeiri¢wes it is more likely than not that all of
the deferred tax asset will be realized. Defereadaissets are recorded in other assets.
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The Bancorp accounts for income taxes under thditiamethod of accounting for income taxes. Thedme tax accounting guidance results
in two components of income tax expense: curredtdmierred. Current income tax expense reflecesstéx be paid or refunded for the current
period by applying the provisions of the enactedlaav to the taxable income or excess of deductaues revenues. The Bancorp determines
deferred income taxes using the liability (or balasheet) method. Under this method, the net defeax asset or liability is based on the tax
effects of the differences between the book andémes of assets and liabilities, and enacted elsandax rates and laws are recognized in th
period in which they occur.

A tax position is recognized if it is more likelgan not, based on the technical merits, that thedaition will be realized or sustained upon
examination. The term more likely than not mealikedihood of more than 50 percent ; the terms eixaoh and upon examination also include
resolution of the related appeals or litigationgarss, if any. A tax position that meets the mdteli-than-not recognition threshold is initially
and subsequently measured as the largest amotax bénefit that has a greater than 50 percerithiked of being realized upon settlement
with a taxing authority that has full knowledgeatifrelevant information. The determination of whet or not a tax position has met the more-
likely-than-not recognition threshold considers thets, circumstances, and information availablhateporting date and is subject to
management’s judgment.

December 31,
2014 2013

(in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for loan losses $ 1155 % 8,39¢
Net unrealized losses on securities — 4,371
OREO expenses 58¢ 40z
Non-accrual interest 541 1,23¢
Net operating losses 1,892 2,00:
Deferred compensation 5,112 4,25(
Fair value adjustments on acquisitions — 2,06:
Cash flow hedge 681 —
Incentive compensation 1,55¢ 947
Other 1,047 64t
Total deferred tax assets 22,97 24,31
Deferred tax liabilities:
Tax basis discount on acquisitions (1,899 (7,999
Net unrealized gains on securities (615) —
Deferred loan costs (4,529 (2,439
Bank premises and equipment (991) (1,1872)
Other (1,189 (819
Total deferred tax liabilities (9,217 (12,437
Net deferred tax asset $ 13,757 % 11,87

The Bancorp had approximately $5.4 million of feaderet operating loss carryovers at December 314 2hat expire in 2023 through 2031 .
The Bancorp and its subsidiaries are subject to féderal income tax as well as income tax of wegistates primarily in the mid-Atlantic
region of the U.S. Years that remain open for padaéreview by the Internal Revenue Service arel2bitough 2013 and the state taxing
authorities are 2010 through 2013.

The Bancorp’s policy is to record interest and tésin other expense. Interest and penalties vengaterial for the years ended December
31, 2014 and 2013.
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NOTE 16 — TRANSACTIONS WITH EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, DIR ECTORS, AND PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

The Bancorp has had, and may be expected to hdke fture, banking transactions in the ordinayrse of business with its executive
officers, directors, principal shareholders, thigimediate families and affiliated companies (comipoeferred to as related parties), on the
same terms, including interest rates and collatasathose prevailing at the time for comparalaadactions with others. The activity relating
loans to such persons was as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Balance — January 1 $ 727 $ 3,27 $ 3,651
Additions 5 9,28( 14
Repayments (7,269) (5,279 (399
Balance — December 31 $ 9 3 727 $ 3,272

Some current directors, nominees for director attetive officers of the Bancorp and entities ayamizations in which they were executive
officers or the equivalent or owners of more th@folof the equity were customers of and had traiwsactvith or involving the Bancorp in the
ordinary course of business during the fiscal yated December 31, 2014 . None of these transadtisolved amounts in excess of 5% of
the Bancorp’s gross revenues during 2014 nor wa8#mcorp indebted to any of the foregoing perswmntities in an aggregate amount in
excess of 5% of the Bancorp’s total consolidategtzsat December 31, 2014 . Additional transactidgtis such persons and entities may be
expected to take place in the ordinary course sirtass in the future.

For the year ended December 31, 2013 and 2012ahedBp has paid approximately $0.2 million , aBd#$nillion , respectively to Clipper
Magazine and its division, Spencer Advertising Mdirkg as well as Jaxxon Promotions, Inc. A direofahe Bancorp was the Chief
Executive Officer of Clipper Magazine until retigrin June 30, 2013. The director remains a 25%e$twdder of Jaxxon Promotions, Inc.,
which the Bancorp paid $46,900 for services fonytbar ended December 31, 2014.

For the year ended December 31, 2014 , 2013, @h?l the Bancorp has paid approximately $11,30080kB, and $6,400 , respectively to
Jastrem Premium Landscapes. An immediate family lneerof an Executive Vice President of the Bankésdole proprietor of Jastrem
Premium Landscapes.

NOTE 17 — FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE-SH EET RISK

The Bancorp is a party to financial instrumentshvatf-balance-sheet risk in the normal course difess to meet the financing needs of its
customers. These financial instruments include caments to extend credit and letters of credit. hmstruments involve, to varying
degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of theust recognized in the consolidated balance sheets

The Bancorp’s exposure to credit loss in the esénbnperformance by the other party to the finahicistrument for commitments to extend
credit is represented by the contractual amoutiade instruments. The Bancorp uses the same padites in making commitments and
conditional obligations as it does for on-balanbeet instruments.

The following financial instruments were outstarglimhose contract amounts represent credit risk:

December 31,

2014 2013

(in thousands)
Commitments to fund loans $ 231,29: $ 202,80¢
Unfunded commitments to fund mortgage warehousasloa 713,61¢ 905,44
Unfunded commitments under lines of credit 430,99! 177,45
Letters of credit 36,20¢ 29,11¢
Other unused commitments 7,68t 8,01(
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Commitments to extend credit are agreements totteaccustomer as long as there is no violatioanyf condition established in the

contract. Since many of the commitments are expdctexpire without being drawn upon, the total atitment amounts do not necessarily
represent future cash requirements. Mortgage wasshlman commitments are agreements to purchasgagerloans from mortgage bankers
that agree to purchase the loans back in a shoddpef time. These commitments generally fluctuatenthly as existing loans are repurchase
by the mortgage bankers and new loans are purchwystbeé Bancorp.

Commitments generally have fixed expiration datestber termination clauses and may require paymkatfee. The Bancorp evaluates each
customer’s credit worthiness on a case-by-casa.bBlse amount of collateral obtained, if deemecdeasary by the Bancorp upon extension of
credit, is based on management’s credit evaluaGofiateral held varies but may include personal@nmercial real estate, accounts
receivable, inventory and equipment.

Outstanding letters of credit written are condiiboommitments issued by the Bancorp to guarahe@érformance of a customer to a third
party. The majority of these standby letters oflidrexpire within the next year. The credit riskdtved in issuing letters of credit is essentially
the same as that involved in extending other lmanmitments. The Bancorp requires collateral supppthese letters of credit as deemed
necessary. Management believes that the procee¢gisieth through a liquidation of such collateral eblbe sufficient to cover the maximum
potential amount of future payments required uridercorresponding guarantees. The current amouhedfabilities as of December 31, 2014
and 2013 for guarantees under standby lettersedftdssued is not material.

NOTE 18 - REGULATORY MATTERS

The Bank and the Bancorp are subject to variouslaggry capital requirements administered by tlefal banking agencies. Failure to meet
the minimum capital requirements can result inarrnandatory, and possibly additional discretignactions by regulators that, if
undertaken, could have a direct material effedh@Bancorp’s financial statements. Under captialg@macy guidelines and the regulatory
framework for prompt corrective action, the Bankl @ancorp must meet specific capital guidelinegithalve quantitative measures of their
assets, liabilities and certain off-balance shteens, as calculated under the regulatory accouptiagtices. The capital amounts and
classification are also subject to qualitative jundmts by the regulators about components, riskhtigigs and other factors. Prompt corrective
action provisions are not applicable to bank hadiompanies.

Quantitative measures established by regulati@nsare capital adequacy require the Bank and Bprioanaintain minimum amounts and
ratios (set forth in the following table) of tothd Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets andief T capital to average assets (as defined in th
regulations). At December 31, 2014 and 2013, thakBand Bancorp met all capital adequacy requiresienivhich they were subject.
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To be categorized as well capitalized, an insttuthust maintain minimum total risk based, Tieisk based and Tier 1 leveraged ratios as se
forth in the following table:

To Be Well Capitalized

Under
For Capital Adequacy Prompt Corrective Action
Actual Purposes Provisions
(dollars in thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 2014
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets)
Customers Bancorp, Inc. $ 578,64 11.0% $ 417,47 8.C% N/A N/A
Customers Bank $ 621,89« 11.98% $ 415,14 8% $ 518,92 10.(%
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets)
Customers Bancorp, Inc. $ 437,71. 8.3%% $ 208,73 4.(% N/A N/A
Customers Bank $ 480,96: 9.27% $ 207,57 4C% $ 311,35¢ 6.C%
Tier 1 capital (to average assets)
Customers Bancorp, Inc. $ 437,71 6.6 $ 261,62 4.C% N/A N/A
Customers Bank $ 480,96: 7.3%% $ 260,46. 4C% $ 325,57 5.C%
December 31, 2013
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets)
Customers Bancorp, Inc. $ 411,52 13.21% $ 249,19¢ 8.C% N/A N/A
Customers Bank $ 435,43. 14.11% $ 246,93 8.C%n $ 308,67( 10.(%
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets)
Customers Bancorp, Inc. $ 387,52 12.4%% $ 124,59t 4.(% N/A N/A
Customers Bank $ 411,43 13.3% $ 123,46¢ 4C% $ 185,20: 6.C%
Tier 1 capital (to average assets)
Customers Bancorp, Inc. $ 387,52 10.11% $ 153,31 4.C% N/A N/A
Customers Bank $ 411,43 10.81% $ 152,19: 4C% $ 190,23¢ 5.0%

NOTE 19 — DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Bancorp uses fair value measurements to réaordalue adjustments to certain assets and iiedsiland to disclose the fair value of its
financial instruments. FASB ASC 82%,inancial Instruments requires disclosure of the estimated fair vali@anoentity’s assets and liabilities
considered to be financial instruments. For thed®gm as for most financial institutions, the méajoof its assets and liabilities are considered
to be financial instruments. However, many of theseruments lack an available trading market asatterized by a willing buyer and willing
seller engaging in an exchange transaction. Fovédile disclosure purposes, the Bancorp utilizthin fair value measurement criteria unde
the FASB ASC 820Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures explained below.

In accordance with ASC 820, the fair value of afidial instrument is the price that would be reedito sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between margatticipants at the measurement date. Fair valbegsdetermined based upon quoted marke
prices. However, in many instances, there are tegumarket prices for the Bancorp’s various finahostruments. In cases where quoted
market prices are not available, fair values ametian estimates using present value or othertiafuichniques. Those techniques are
significantly affected by the assumptions useduitiog the discount rate and estimates of futush dlows. Accordingly, the fair value
estimates may not be realized in an immediateesedtht of the instrument.

The fair value guidance provides a consistent definof fair value, focusing on an exit price in arderly transaction (that is, not a forced
liquidation or distressed sale) between markeigpants at the measurement date under currentahagkditions and establishes a fair value
hierarchy to rank the quality and reliability oktinformation used to determine fair values. lir¢ghieas been a significant decrease in the
volume and level of activity for the asset or lidhj a change in valuation technique or the useaftiple valuation techniques may be
appropriate. In such instances, determining theepat which willing market participants would transat the measurement date under curren
market conditions depends on the facts and ciramass and requires the use of significant judgniére.fair value is a reasonable point
within the range that is most representative afJfalue under current market conditions. The failue hierarchy is defined as follows:
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Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markieat are accessible at the measurement datgefatigal, unrestricted
assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Quoted prices in markets that are ndvacor inputs that are observable either directlyndirectly, for
substantially the full term of the asset or lialili

Level 3: Prices or valuation techniques that remjiriputs that are both significant to the fairmeameasurement and
unobservable (i.e., supported with little or no ketractivity).

A financial instrument’s level within the fair vadthierarchy is based on the lowest level of inpat ts significant to the fair value
measurement.

The following methods and assumptions were usestimate the fair values of the Bancorp’s finaniriatruments at December 31, 2014 and
2013:

Cash and cash equivalents:

The carrying amounts reported in the balance gbeetsh and short-term instruments approximatedlassets’ fair values. These assets are
included as Level 1 fair values, based upon thettvevel of input that is significant to the faalue measurements.

Investment securities:

The fair value of investment securities availaloledale are determined by obtaining quoted markeég on nationally recognized and foreign
securities exchanges (Level 1) and matrix priciceyél 2), which is a mathematical technique usedkelyiin the industry to value debt
securities without relying exclusively on quotedrked prices for the specific securities but rathgrrelying on the securities’ relationship to
other benchmark quoted prices. These assets dueléacas Level 1 and 2, based upon the lowest thiaput that is significant to the fair
value measurements.

The carrying amount of FHLB, Federal Reserve, ahdraestricted stock approximates fair value amusers the limited marketability of
such securities. These assets are included in 2efegt values, based upon the lowest level of irthbat is significant to the fair value
measurements.

Loans held for sale - Residential mortgage loans:

The Bancorp generally estimates the fair valudeanis held for sale based on commitments on hama finvestors within the secondary
market for loans with similar characteristics. Thassets are included as Level 2 fair values, based the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurements.

Loans held for sale - Mortgage warehouse loans:

The fair value of mortgage warehouse loans is theumt of cash initially advanced to fund the mogegaplus accrued interest and fees, as
specified in the respective agreements. The loasdsl by mortgage companies as short-term bridgading between the funding of mortgage
loans and the finalization of the sale of the lo@mnan investor. Changes in fair value are not etgabto be recognized since at inception of the
transaction the underlying loans have already lse&hto an approved investor or they have beendtdy the mortgage company.
Additionally, the interest rate is variable, and thansaction is short-term, with an average lifB®daysfrom purchase to sale. These asset
included as Level 2 fair values, based upon theewevel of input that is significant to the faalue measurements.

Loans held for sale - Multi-family loans:

The fair values of multi-family loans held for saee estimated using pricing indications from lettaf intent with third party investors or
recent sale transactions within the secondary nefke loans with similar characteristics. Thesgets are included as Level 3 fair values,
based upon the lowest level of input that is sigaift to the fair value measurements.

Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses:

The fair values of loans are estimated using distamlicash flow analyses, using market rates atdlace sheet date that reflect the credit an
interest rate-risk inherent in the loans. Projedt#tdre cash flows are calculated based upon comimbmaturity or call dates, projected
repayments and prepayments of principal. Generaltwariable rate loans that reprice
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frequently and with no significant change in credik, fair values are based on carrying valuegsehassets are included as Level 3 fair va
based upon the lowest level of input that is sigaift to the fair value measurements.

Impaired loans:

Impaired loans are those that are accounted foerud8C 450Contingencies in which the Bancorp has measured impairment gdipdased
on the fair value of the loan’s collateral. Faitueais generally determined based upon indeperttedtparty appraisals of the properties that
collateralize the loans, or discounted cash floasell upon the expected proceeds. These assatsladed as Level 3 fair values, based upon
the lowest level of input that is significant tetfair value measurements.

FDIC loss sharing receivable:

The FDIC loss sharing receivable is measured stgpafaom the related covered assets, as it icantractually embedded in the assets and i
not transferable with the assets should the abgedsld. Fair value is estimated using projectesth é@ws related to the loss sharing agreen
based on the estimated losses to be incurred dndhe and the expected reimbursements for lossiag the applicable loss share percentage
These cash flows are discounted to reflect thenaséid timing of the receipt of the loss share reirsbment from the FDIC. This asset is
included as Level 3 fair value, based upon the &iwerel of input that is significant to the faeslue measurements.

Other real estate owned:

The fair value of OREO is determined using apptsjsghich may be discounted based on managemevisw and changes in market
conditions (Level 3 inputs). All appraisals mustgeeformed in accordance with the Uniform Standafd3rofessional Appraisal

Practice. Appraisals are certified to the Bancaomp performed by appraisers on the Bancorp’s apprtseof appraisers. Evaluations are
completed by a person independent of managemeatcdifitent of the appraisal depends on the complekihe property. Appraisals are
completed on a “retail value” and an “as is valudiese assets are included as Level 3 fair vahaesgd upon the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurements.

Accrued interest receivable and payable:

The carrying amount of accrued interest receivahltaccrued interest payable approximates itvédire. These assets are included as Level
fair values, based upon the lowest level of inpat ts significant to the fair value measurements.

Deposit liabilities:

The fair values disclosed for deposits (e.g., @geand noninterest checking, passbook savingsnameéy market deposit accounts) are, by
definition, equal to the amount payable on demanteareporting date (i.e., their carrying amount$jese liabilities are included as Level 1
fair values, based upon the lowest level of inpat s significant to the fair value measurements.

Fair values for fixed-rate certificates of dep@s# estimated using a discounted cash flow caloul#that applies interest rates currently being
offered in the market on certificates to a schedfileggregated expected monthly maturities on tiejgosits. These assets are included as
2 fair values, based upon the lowest level of irthat is significant to the fair value measurements

Federal funds purchased:

For these short-term instruments, the carrying arhsuconsidered a reasonable estimate of fairevalbese liabilities are included as Level 1
fair values, based upon the lowest level of inpat ts significant to the fair value measurements.

Borrowings:

Borrowings consist of long-term and short-term FHidB/ances, senior unsecured notes, and subordideli¢dFor the short-term borrowings,
the carrying amount is considered a reasonablmatgiof fair value and is included as Level 1. Falues of long-term FHLB advances are
estimated using discounted cash flow analysis,dbeasejuoted prices for new FHLB advances with simiredit risk characteristics, terms and
remaining maturity. These prices obtained from #itisve market represent a market value that ismééeo represent the transfer price if the
liability were assumed by a third party. Fair vawé privately placed subordinated and senior wrsetdebt are estimated by a third-party
financial advisor using discounted cash flow analysased on market rates currently offered on slati with similar credit-risk
characteristics, terms and remaining maturity. €Hiebilities are included as Level 2 fair valubased upon the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurements. The $&3llion senior unsecured notes issued duringlthuarter 2013 are traded on the New
York Stock Exchange, and their price can be obthdaly. This fair value measurement is classifisd_evel 1.
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Derivatives (Assets and Liabilities):

The fair values of interest rate swaps are detexchirsing models that incorporate readily observataleket data into a market standard
methodology. This methodology nets the discountkuaké fixed cash receipts and the discounted egpedriable cash payments. The
discounted variable cash payments are based owrtexipas of future interest rates derived from obalele market interest rate curves. In
addition, fair value is adjusted for the effecnohperformance risk by incorporating credit valoatadjustments for the Bancorp and its
counterparties. These assets and liabilities ataded as Level 2 fair values, based upon the loleesl of input that is significant to the fair
value measurements.

The fair values of the residential mortgage loameatments are derived from the estimated fair valiat can be generated when the
underlying mortgage loan is sold in the secondaayket. The Bancorp uses commitments on hand frineh plarty investors to estimate an exit
price, and adjusts for the probability of the cortmant being exercised based on the Bancorp’s iatexperience. These assets and liabilities
are included as Level 3 fair values, based upototivest level of input that is significant to tharfvalue measurements.

Off-balance-sheet financial instruments:

Fair values for the Bancorp’s off-balance-sheearfirial instruments (lending commitments and letbéiredit) are based on fees currently
charged in the market to enter into similar agre@s)daking into account the remaining terms ofageeements and the counterparties’ credit
standing. These financial instruments are incluaetevel 2 fair values, based upon the lowest lef/glput that is significant to the fair value
measurements.

The following information should not be interpreteslan estimate of the fair value of the entired®am since a fair value calculation is only
provided for a limited portion of the Bancorp’s etssand liabilities. Due to a wide range of valoatiechniques and the degree of subjectivity
used in making these estimates, comparisons betiheeBancorp’s disclosures and those of other companay not be meaningful.

The estimated fair values of the Bancorp’s finanicistruments were as follows at December 31, 2412013 .

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2014

Quoted

Prices in

Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Carrying Estimated Assets Inputs Inputs
Amount Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(amounts in thousands)
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 371,020 $ 371,020 $ 371,020 % — 3 —
Investment securities, available for sale 416,68! 416,68! 24,27( 392,41! —
Loans held for sale 1,435,45! 1,436,406l — 1,335,66:! 100,79:
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan
losses 4,281,24. 4,285,53 — — 4,285,53
FHLB, Federal Reserve Bank and other
restricted stock 82,00: 82,00: — 82,00: —
Accrued interest receivable 15,20¢ 15,20¢ — 15,20¢ —
FDIC loss sharing receivable 2,32( 2,32 — — 2,32(
Derivatives 7,552 7,552 — 7,50¢ 43
Liabilities:
Deposits $ 4532531 $ 454050 $ 546,43t $ 3,994,07. $ —
FHLB advances 1,618,00! 1,619,85: 1,298,00! 321,85¢ —
Other borrowings 88,25( 92,06¢ 66,94« 25,12t —
Subordinated debt 110,00( 111,92! — 111,92! —
Derivatives 9,71¢ 9,71¢ — 9,71¢ —
Accrued interest payable 2,59¢ 2,59¢ — 2,59¢ —
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Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2013

Quoted

Prices in

Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Carrying Estimated Assets Inputs Inputs
Amount Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(amounts in thousands)
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 233,060 $ 233,06¢ $ 233,06¢ $ — % —
Investment securities, available for sale 497,57 497,57 20,71« 476,85¢ —
Loans held for sale 747,59 747,59: — 747,59 —
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loa
losses 2,441,08I 2,444 ,90! — — 2,444 90!
FHLB and Federal Reserve Bank stock 42,42 42,42 — 42,42¢ —
Accrued interest receivable 8,367 8,367 — 8,362 —
FDIC loss sharing receivable 10,04¢ 10,04¢ — — 10,04¢
Derivatives 3,767 3,767 — 3,52 24C
Liabilities:
Deposits $ 295992, $ 291993 $ 478,10 $ 2,44183 $ —
Federal funds purchased 13,00¢( 13,00( 13,00( — —
FHLB advances 706,50( 708,02! 596,50( 111,52! —
Other borrowings 63,25( 64,76¢ 64,76¢ — —
Subordinated debt 2,00( 2,00( — 2,00( —
Derivatives 3,537 3,537 — 3,537 —
Accrued interest payable 1,67¢ 1,67 — 1,67¢ —

For financial assets and liabilities measured iatvi@ue on a recurring and non-recurring basie,féir value measurements by level within the
fair value hierarchy used at December 31, 2014281@ were as follows:

December 31, 2014

Fair Value Measurements at the End of the Reportinderiod Using

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets for Significant Other Unobservable
Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(amounts in thousands)
Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis:
Assets
Available-for-sale securities:
Mortgage-backed securities $ — 3 377,31, % — $ 377,3L
Corporate notes — 15,10 — 15,10
Equity securities 24,27( — — 24,27(
Derivatives (1) — 7,50¢ 43 7,552
Loans held for sale — fair value option — 1,335,66! — 1,335,66:
Total assets - recurring fair value measurements $ 24.27C % 1,735,59. $ 43 $ 1,759,90!
Liabilities
Derivatives (2) $ — 3 9,71¢ $ — 3 9,71¢
Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis:
Assets
Impaired loans, net of specific reserves of $1,342 $ — 3 — 3 2,380 % 2,38(
Other real estate owned — — 9,14¢ 9,14¢
Total assets - nonrecurring fair value measurements $ —  $ —  $ 11,52¢ $ 11,52¢
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Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets for Significant Other Unobservable
Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(amounts in thousands)
Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis:
Assets
Available-for-sale securities:
Mortgage-backed securities $ — 451,53t $ — 8 451,53t
Corporate notes — 25,32 — 25,32
Equity securities 20,71« — — 20,71«
Derivatives (1) — 3,52 24C 3,76:
Loans held for sale — fair value option — 747,59: — 747,59:
Total assets - recurring fair value measurements $ 20,71 % 1,227,970 $ 24C $  1,248,92
Liabilities
Derivatives (2) $ — % 3531 $ —$ 3537
Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis:
Assets
Impaired loans, net of specific reserves of $2,382 — — 3,83t $ 3,83¢
Other real estate owned — — 33t 33t
Total assets - nonrecurring fair value measurements  $ — % — % 4,171  $ 4,171

Q) Included in Other Asse
(2 Included in Other Liabilitie

December 31, 2013

Fair Value Measurements at the End of the Reportindgeriod Using

The changes in Level 3 assets and liabilities nreasat fair value on a recurring basis at DecerBie2014 and 2013 are summarized as

follows:

(amounts in thousands)
Balance at January 1, 2014
Issuances

Settlements

Balance at December 31, 2014

(amounts in thousands)

Balance at January 1, 2013
Transfer from Level 2 to Level 3(1)
Recoveries

Sales

Transfer from loans held for sale to other assBts (

Issuances
Balance at December 31, 2013

Residential
Mortgage Loan
Commitments

$ 24C
23t
(432)
$ 43
Loans Residential
Held for Mortgage Loan
Sale (1) Commitments Total
$ — — $ —
3,17: — 3,17¢
(1,469 — (1,467)
(1,019 — (1,019
(697) — (697)
— 24C 24C
$ — 24C % 24C

(1) For additional information, refer to “NOTE 21.OSS CONTINGENCY.”
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The Bancorp’s policy is to recognize transfers leetwlevels when events or circumstances warramfees.

The following table summarizes financial assets famghcial liabilities measured at fair value addafcember 31, 2014 and 2013 for which the
Bancorp utilized Level 3 inputs to measure faitueal

Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

Fair Value Range (Weighted
December 31, 2014 Estimate Valuation Technique Unobservable Input Average) (3)
(amounts in thousands)
Impaired loans $ 2,38( Collateral appraisal (1) Liguidation expenses (2) (8)%
Other real estate owned 9,14¢ Collateral appraisal (1) Liguidation expenses (2) (8)%
Residential mortgage loar
commitments 43 Adjusted market bid Pull-through rate 80 %

Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

Fair Value Range (Weighted
December 31, 2013 Estimate Valuation Technique Unobservable Input Average) (3)
(amounts in thousands)
Impaired loans $ 3,83¢ Collateral appraisal (1) Liguidation expenses (2) -3% to -8% (-5.5%)
Other real estate owned 33t Collateral appraisal (1) Liguidation expenses (2) -3% to -8% (-5.5%)
Residential mortgage loar
commitments 24C Adjusted market bid Pull-through rate 80%

Q) Obtained from approved independent appraiggpraisals are current and in compliance with itneolicy. The Bancorp does not
discount appraisals.

(2) Fair value is adjusted for costs to ¢

) Presented as a percentage of the value determynagoaisal for impaired loans and other real estatnec

NOTE 20 — DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVI TIES

Risk Management Objectives of Using Derivatives

Customers Bancorp is exposed to certain risksngrisom both its business operations and econoomditions. Customers Bancorp manages
economic risks, including interest rate, liquidiand credit risk, primarily by managing the amowotjrces, and durations of its assets and
liabilities. Specifically, Customers Bancorp entit® derivative financial instruments to managpasures that arise from business activities
that result in the receipt or payment of futurewnand uncertain cash amounts, the value of whieldatermined by interest rates. Customer
Bancorp’s derivative financial instruments are usethanage differences in the amount, timing, am@tibn of Customers Bancogknown o
expected cash receipts and its known or expectddmayments principally related to certain fixete borrowings. Customers Bancorp alsc
interest-rate derivatives resulting from a serpoavided to certain qualifying customers, and tfae they are not used to manage the Bank’:
interest-rate risk in assets or liabilities. ThexBaanages a matched book with respect to its al@revinstruments used in this customer
service in order to minimize its net risk expostgsulting from such transactions.

Cash Flow Hedges of Interest Rate Risk

Customers Bancorp’s objectives in using interet-gerivatives are to add stability to interestemge and to manage exposure to interest rat
movements. To accomplish this objective, the Bgmgoimarily uses interest rate swaps as part ohitgest-rate-risk management strategy.
Interest-rate swaps designated as cash flow hédgalse the receipt of variable amounts from a degparty in exchange for the Bancorp's
making fixed-rate payments over the life of theesgnents without exchange of the underlying notianabunt.

The effective portion of changes in the fair vatdelerivatives designated and qualifying as casi thedges is recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income and is subsequently recladsifto earnings in the period that the hedgedctmted transaction affects earnings. D
2014, such derivatives were used to hedge theblar@ash flows associated with a forecasted issuahdebt. The ineffective portion of the
change in fair value of the derivatives is to beognized directly in earnings. During 2014, Custmsriancorp did not record any hedge
ineffectiveness.
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Amounts reported in accumulated other comprehernsoame related to derivatives will be reclassifiednterest expense as interest paymen
are made on the Bancorp’s variable-rate debt. Tdre8rp does not expect to reclassify any amouats &#ccumulated other comprehensive
income to interest expense during the next 12 nsoashCustomers Bancorp’s derivatives are effeetitex April 2016.

Customers Bancorp is hedging its exposure to thiabitity in future cash flows for forecasted traons over a maximum period of 24
months (excluding forecasted transactions relaie¢td payment of variable interest on existingriitial instruments).

At December 31, 2014 , Customers Bancorp had otstamding interest rate derivative with a notiosmalount of $ 150.0 million that was
designated as a cash flow hedge of interest rsite The hedge expires in April of 2019.

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments

The Bank executes interest rate swaps with comaddyanking customers to facilitate their respectisk management strategies (typically the
loan customers will swap a floating rate loan fixed rate loan). The customer interest rate sveapsimultaneously offset by interest rate
swaps that the Bank executes with a third partyrdier to minimize interest rate risk exposure msglfrom such transactions. Since the
interest rate swaps associated with this programodoneet the hedge accounting requirements, clsangdhe fair value of both the customer
swaps and the offsetting third-party market swapsecognized directly in earnings. At December2gl4 , the Bancorp had 44 interest rate
swaps with an aggregate notional amount of $ 251l#n related to this program. At December 31120 the Bancorp had 28 interest rate
swaps with an aggregate notional amount of $ 180®n related to this program.

The Bank enters into residential mortgage loan camenmts in connection with its mortgage bankingwdii¢s to fund mortgage loans at
specified rates and times in the future. These cionmemts are short-term in nature and generallyrexpi 30 to 60 days . The residential
mortgage loan commitments that relate to the oaim of mortgage loans that will be held for sale considered derivative instruments ur
applicable accounting guidance and are reportéairatalue, with changes in fair value recordecdily to earnings. At December 31, 2014
and December 31, 2013, the Bank had an outstamditignal balance of residential mortgage loan ciments of $ 3.8 millionand $ 7.1
million , respectively.

During first quarter 2014, the Bank purchased ¢réeliivatives to hedge the performance risk assettiaith one of its counterparties. These
derivatives are not designated as hedging instrtsyand are reported at fair value, with changdaiinvalue reported directly in earnings. At
December 31, 2014 , the Bank had an outstandirigmadtbalance of credit derivatives of $ 13.4 roitii.

Fair Value of Derivative Instruments on the BalanceSheet

The following table presents the fair value of Bencorp’s derivative financial instruments as veallthe classification on the balance sheet.

December 31, 2014

Derivative Assets Derivative Liabilities
Balance Sheet Balance Sheet
Location Fair Value Location Fair Value
(amounts in thousands)
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges:
Interest rate swaps Other assets $ — Other liabilities $ 1,94t
Total $ — $ 1,94t
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:
Interest rate swaps Other assets $ 7,33z Other liabilities $ 7,771
Credit contracts Other assets 177 Other liabilities —
Residential mortgage loan commitments Other assets 43 Other liabilities =
Total $ 7,55z $ 7,771
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(amounts in thousands)

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:

Interest rate swaps
Residential mortgage loan commitments
Total

December 31, 2013

Derivative Assets Derivative Liabilities

Balance Sheet Balance Sheet

Location Fair Value Location Fair Value
Other assets $ 3,52¢ Other liabilities $ 3,537
Other assets 24C Other liabilities —
$ 3,762 $ 3,531

Effect of Derivative Instruments on Comprehensive mcome

The following table presents the effect of the Bapts derivative financial instruments on compretiea income for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013 . Interest rate swapria@mounts include premiums received from Bankocusrs.

(amounts in thousands)

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:

Interest rate swaps

Credit Contracts

Residential mortgage loan commitments
Total

(amounts in thousands)

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:

Interest rate swaps
Residential mortgage loan commitments
Total

December 31, 2014

Amount of income (loss)

Income Statement Location recognized in earnings

Other non-interest income $ 55C
Other non-interest income (92)
Mortgage loan and banking income (197)
$ 262

December 31, 2013

Amount of income

Income Statement Location recognized in earnings

Other non-interest income $ 711
Mortgage loan and banking income 24C
$ 951

December 31, 2014

Amount of Gain (Loss)
Reclassified from
Accumulated OCI into
Income (Effective
Portion)

Location of Gain

Amount of Loss (Loss) Reclassified
from Accumulated
OCl into Income

(Effective Portion)

Recognized in OCI on
Derivatives (Effective
Portion) (1)

(amounts in thousands)
Derivatives in cash flow hedging relationships:

Interest rate swaps $

(1,269 Interest expense $

(1) Net of taxes

Credit-risk-related Contingent Features

By entering into derivative contracts, the Bankxposed to credit risk. The credit risk associat@l derivatives executed with Bank
customers is the same as that involved in exterti@gelated loans and is subject to the same atdrmledit
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policies. To mitigate the credit-risk exposure tajon derivative dealer counterparties, the Banomiy enters into agreements with those that
maintain credit ratings of high quality.

Agreements with major derivative dealer counteipartontain provisions whereby default on any efBancorp’s indebtedness would be
considered a default on its derivative obligatioftse Bancorp also has entered into agreementsahégdin provisions under which the
counterparty could require the Bancorp to setfi®liligations if the Bancorp fails to maintainstatus as a well/adequately-capitalized
institution. As of December 31, 2014 , the fairueabf derivatives in a net liability position (whiincludes accrued interest but excludes any
adjustment for nonperformance-risk) related to¢regreements was $ 9.9 million . In addition, tla@&rp has collateral posting thresholds
with certain of these counterparties and at Decer®be2014 , had posted $ 10.0 million of cashaieral. The Bancorp records posted cast
as a reduction in the outstanding balance of cadtcash equivalents and an increase in the bat#ratber assets.

Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities

The following tables present derivative instrumeht are subject to enforceable master nettirmngements. The Bancorp’s interest rate
swaps with institutional counterparties are subjechaster netting arrangements and are includétkitable below. Interest rate swaps with
commercial banking customers and residential mgeadaan commitments are not subject to mastemugettirangements and are excluded
from the table below. The Bancorp has not maddiaypelection to offset its derivative positions.

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Derivative Assetat
December 31, 2014

Gross Amounts Not Offset in
the Consolidated Balance Sheet

Net
Amounts of
Gross Assets
Amounts Presented
Gross Offset in the in the
Amount of Consolidated Consolidated Cash
Recognized Balance Balance Financial Collateral Net
Assets Sheet Sheet Instruments Received Amount
(amounts in thousands)
Description
Interest rate swap derivatives ; B ;
with institutional counterpartie$ 192 § — § 192 $ 192§ — § —

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Derivative Assetat
December 31, 2013

Gross Amounts Not Offset in
the Consolidated Balance Sheet

Net
Amounts of
Gross Assets
Amounts Presented
Gross Offset in the in the
Amount of Consolidated Consolidated Cash
Recognized Balance Balance Financial Collateral Net
Assets Sheet Sheet Instruments Received Amount
(amounts in thousands)
Description
Interest rate swap derivatives B B B
with institutional counterpartie $ 39z § — $ 39z % 39z % — 3 —
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Offsetting of Financial Liabilities and Derivative Liabilities at
December 31, 2014

Gross Amounts Not Offset in
the Consolidated Balance Sheet

Net
Amounts of
Gross Liabilities
Amounts Presented
Gross Offset in the in the
Amount of Consolidated Consolidated Cash
Recognized Balance Balance Financial Collateral Net
Liabilities Sheet Sheet Instruments Pledged Amount
(amounts in thousands)
Description
Interest rate swap derivatives . . )
with institutional counterpartie$ 9,70 $ — § 9,70:  §$ 192 § 9511 § —

Offsetting of Financial Liabilities and Derivative Liabilities at
December 31, 2013

Net
Amounts of
Gross Liabilities
Amounts Presented
Gross Offset in the in the
Amount of Consolidated Consolidated Cash
Recognized Balance Balance Financial Collateral Net
Liabilities Sheet Sheet Instruments Pledged Amount
(amounts in thousands)
Description
Interest rate swap derivatives B
with institutional counterpartie $ 3191 § — $ 3191 $ 39z % 2,79¢ $ —

NOTE 21 — LOSS CONTINGENCY

During the first quarter of 2013, a suspected fraad discovered in the Bank’s loans held-for-salfplio. Total loans involved in this fraud
initially appeared to be $5.2 million , and manageirbelieved the range of possible loss to hava beeveen $1.5 million and $3.2 million .
Accordingly, management provided a loss contingasfc§2.0 million at March 31, 2013. During the sed@uarter of 2013, the Bank
determined that an aggregate of $1.0 million ofltt@®as were not involved in the fraud, and thesmsowere subsequently sold. In addition, th
Bank recovered $1.5 million in cash from the alktgerpetrator. Since it was resolved that the loenlonger met the definition of “a loan,”
and since the Bank is pursuing restitution throtighinvolved parties, the Bank determined thisd@breceivable. As a result, the remaining
aggregate of $2.7 million of loans and the rel&2d million reserve were transferred to other @sges of December 31, 2014, the net amour
of the receivable and reserve of $0.6 million remean other assets.
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NOTE 22 — CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PARENT COMPANY

Following are the condensed balance sheets of @astoBancorp, Inc. as of December 31, 2014 and a0d3he income statements and
statements of cash flows for each of the threesyeading December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 :

Balance Sheets

December 31,

2014 2013
(amounts in thousands)
Assets
Cash in subsidiary bank $ 16,46 $ 13,25¢
Investment securities available for sale, at faiue 5 5
Investments in and receivables due from subsidiarie 509,46! 432,06
Other assets 6,67¢ 5,04«
Total assets $ 532,61. $ 450,36
Liabilities and Shareholders’ equity
Borrowings 88,25( 63,25(
Other liabilities 1,21¢ 494
Total liabilities 89,46¢ 63,74
Shareholders’ equity 443,14! 386,62:
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 532,61: $ 450,36

Income Statements

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

(amounts in thousands)
Operating income:

Other $ QN 3 75¢ 3 —

Total operating income a0 75€ —
Operating expense:

Interest 5,251 1,92 —

Other 5,611 3,39¢ 2,70¢

Total operating expense 10,86: 5,31¢ 2,70¢
Loss before taxes and undistributed income of siido$es (10,779) (4,560 (2,709
Income tax benefit 3,791 1,59¢ 94¢
Loss before undistributed income of subsidiaries (6,975 (2,969 (1,760
Equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries 50,18¢ 35,65¢ 25,57¢

Net income $ 43,21 % 32,69 $ 23,81¢
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Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(amounts in thousands)
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income $ 43,21 $ 32,69¢ $ 23,81¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net casll useperating activities:
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries (50,189 (35,65¢) (25,57%)
Increase in other assets (1,359 (1,46%) (12
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 1,497 (2817) 372
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (6,837) (4,710 (1,400
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of investment securities available fler sa — — (6)
Payments for investments in and advances to salosidi (15,037 (177,069 (53,500
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (15,037 (177,069 (53,50¢)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 77 97,501 94,58¢
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 25,00( 60,33¢ —
Exercise and redemption of warrants 6 264 —
Payments on partial shares for stock dividend (8) — —
Purchase of treasury stock — (7,759 —
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 25,07t 150,35! 94,58¢
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalent 3,211 (31,424 39,68(
Cash and Cash Equivalents — Beginning 13,25« 44,67¢ 4,99¢
Cash and Cash Equivalents — Ending $ 16,46 $ 13,25 $ 44,67¢
NOTE 23 — SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDI TED)
2014
Quarter Ended December 31 September 30 June 30 March 31
(amounts in thousands, except per share data)
Interest income $ 57,16. $ 51,29¢ % 45,09 $ 36,87¢
Interest expense 12,17t 11,08 8,16: 7,08
Net interest income 44,98¢ 40,21 36,93( 29,79:
Provision for loan losses 2,45¢ 5,03¢ 2,88¢ 4,36¢
Non-interest income 5,80¢ 5,10z 6,911 7,30¢
Non-interest expenses 27,86 24,67¢ 25,20¢ 21,16¢
Income before income taxes 20,46" 15,60: 15,75( 11,56¢
Provision for income taxes 7,28¢ 3,94( 5,517 3,42¢
Net income available to common shareholders $ 13,17¢  $ 11,66: $ 10,237 % 8,13¢
Earnings per common share:
Basic (1) $ 0.4¢ $ 044 $ 03¢ $ 0.31
Diluted (1) 0.47 0.4z 0.37 0.2¢
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Quarter Ended
(amounts in thousands, except per share data)
Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Non-interest income
Non-interest expenses
Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net income available to common shareholders
Earnings per common share:

Basic (1)

Diluted (1)

2013
December 31 September 30 June 30 March 31

34,717 33,74F $ 31,670 $ 28,02:
6,80: 6,541 5,557 5,394
27,91« 27,19¢ 26,11¢ 22,62°
(512 75C 2,11¢ (119
7,69¢ 4,661 5,55( 4,79
22,30: 18,34 16,89t 16,48:
13,82( 12,76: 12,65¢ 11,06:
4,81( 4,49, 4,42¢ 3,871
9,01( 8,26¢ $ 8,22t $ 7,19(
0.3¢ 0.3C $ 03 $ 0.3t
0.3z 0.3C 0.34 0.3t

(1) Per share amounts (where applicable) have adjeisted to reflect the 10% stock dividend declamed/ay 15, 2014 and issued on June 3C

2014.
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MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENT S AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of Customers Bancorp, Inc. (the “CusterBancorp”) is responsible for the integrity arjectivity of all information
presented in this report. The consolidated findrst&tements were prepared in conformity with Ushiféates generally accepted accounting
principles. Management believes that the cons@alfihancial statements of Customers Bancorp,faidy reflect the form and substance of
transactions and that the financial statementlyfedpresent Customers Bancorp’s financial posiéiad results of operations. Management ha
included in Customers Bancorp’s financial statem@nbounts that are based on estimates and judgmkicis it believes are reasonable unde|
the circumstances.

The independent registered public accounting fifB@O USA, LLP audits Customers Bancorp’s consdbdafinancial statements in
accordance with the standards of the Public Compaepunting Oversight Board (United States).

The Board of Directors of Customers Bancorp ha8uwait Committee composed of three independent Darsc The Committee meets
periodically with financial management, the intdraaditors and the independent registered pubkowating firm to review accounting,
internal control, auditing, corporate governance famancial reporting matters. The Audit Committeeesponsible for the engagement of the
independent auditors. The independent auditorsraachal auditors have access to the Audit Comamitte

Management of Customers Bancorp, Inc. is respan$iblestablishing and maintaining adequate interoatrol over financial reporting,
as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13&-18nder the supervision and with the participatof management, including the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, wentlucted an evaluation of the effectiveness ofimernal control over financial reporting
based on the framework internal Control — Integrated Framework (1998sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatigrike
Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation utigeframework irinternal Control — Integrated Frameworknanagement concluded t
our internal control over financial reporting wdteetive as of December 31, 2014. The effectiverndéssir internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2014 has been auojt&DO USA, LLP, an independent registered pubticoaunting firm, as stated in their
report which is included herein.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Acuntants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and ProceduiWe have established disclosure controls and praesda ensure that material information
relating to us, including our consolidated subsidi is made known to the officers who certify éimancial reports and to other members of
senior management and the Board of Directors.

We carried out an evaluation, under the superviaimhwith the participation of our management,udiig our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, of the design and opergtiifectiveness of our disclosure controls and @iloces, as defined in Exchange Act Rule
13a-15. Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Bkee®fficer and Chief Financial Officer conclud#iwat, as of December 31, 2014, our
disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

Management’s Responsibility for Financial Stateraemtd Report on Internal Control over Financial &t8pg are included in Part I, Item 8,
“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,”aedncorporated by reference herein.

Our independent registered public accounting fBRO USA, LLP, also attested to, and reported oa dffiectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2014. BDQAURLP's attestation report, which appears in Plaittem 8, "Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data," is incorporated herein byresfee.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repogin

During fourth quarter 2014, there have been no gbaim the Bancorp’internal control over financial reporting thavbanaterially affected «
are reasonably likely to materially affect the Bams internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and CorpoeaGovernance

The information required by this Item will be indled in the Proxy Statement for the 2015 annual img@t the sections titled “Our Board of
Directors and Management,” and “Board Governanaad’ is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensatic

The information required by this Item will be indied in the Proxy Statement for the 2015 annual imgé@t the sections titled “Director
Compensation,” “Executive Officer Compensation,tldBoard Governance,” and is incorporated hereimdfgrence.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficiaMders and Management and Related Shareholder Mat

The information required by this Item will be indled in the Proxy Statement for the 2015 annual imgét the sections titled “Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managgfrend “Equity Compensation Plan Information” asdncorporated herein by
reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Trandaas, and Director Independenc

The information required by this Item will be indled in the Proxy Statement for the 2015 annual imgét the sections titled “Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions” and “B@uwdernance” and is incorporated herein by reference

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Servic

The information required by this Item will be indled in the Proxy Statement for the 2015 annual imgét the section titled “Proposal 2 —
Ratification of Appointment of Independent RegistePublic Accounting Firm,” and is incorporatedédirmy reference.
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PART IV
ltem 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedeb

€) 1. Financial Statemer
Consolidated financial statements are included ulidm 8 of Part Il of this Form 10-K.
(b) 2. Financial Statements Sched
Financial statements schedules are omitted bethesequired information is either not applicalvlet required or is shown
in the respective financial statements or in thiesithereto.

(c) Exhibits
Exhibit
No. Description

2.1 Plan of Merger and Reorganization, dated Septerihe?011, incorporated by reference to Exhibittd.the Customers Bancorp
Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 22, 2011

2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Augus2@B80, by and among Customers Bank, CustomersdBanioic., Berkshire
Bank and Berkshire Bancorp, Inc., incorporateddignence to Exhibit 2.2 to the Customers BancommF8-1/A filed with the
SEC on January 13, 2011

2.3 Purchase and Assumption Agreement, dated as 0BJ@§10, by and among Customers Bank, the FDIReagiver of USA Banl
and the FDIC acting in its corporate capacity, ipooated by reference to Exhibit 2.3 to the CustenBancorp Form S-1/A filed
with the SEC on January 13, 2011

2.4 Purchase and Assumption Agreement, dated as oé®ept 17, 2010, by and among Customers Bank, th€ BB Receiver of
ISN Bank, and the FDIC acting in its corporate cayaincorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.4he Customers Bancorp Form S-
1/A filed with the SEC on January 13, 2011

25 Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Merger, datesf April 27, 2011, by and among Berkshire Bancadng,, Berkshire Bank,
Customers Bancorp, Inc., and Customers Bank, irncated by reference to Exhibit 2.5 to the CustormBanscorp Form S-1/A filed
with the SEC on June 13, 2011

2.6 Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Merger, dateaf 8eptember 16, 2011, by and among Berkshire &andnc., Berkshire
Bank, Customers Bancorp, Inc., and Customers Ban&rporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to thetGuoers Bancorp Form 8-K
filed with the SEC on September 22, 2011

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation e$tGmers Bancorp, Inc., incorporated by refereadexhibit 3.1 to the
Customers Bancorp Form 8-K filed with the SEC onilA30, 2012

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Customers Bancocp,ihcorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 t® @ustomers Bancorp
Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 30, 2012

3.3 Articles of Amendment to the Amended and Restateitlas of Incorporation of Customers Bancorp, Jfrwcorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Customers BancamF8-K filed with the SEC on July 2, 2012

4.1 Specimen stock certificate of Customers Bancom, Wtoting Common Stock and Class B Non-Voting Comrfitock,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to thetGoners Bancorp Form S-1/A filed with the SEC on May012

4.2 Form of Warrant issued to investors in New CenBayk’'s March and February 2010 private offerindg¥)2private offering, and
in partial exchange for New Century Bank’s shafes086 Series A Non-Cumulative Perpetual Convertireferred Stock in June
2009, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 €Customers Bancorp Form S-1 filed with the SE@pril 22, 2010

4.3 Warrants issued to Jay S. Sidhu, June 30, 2008¢dncated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to the CusianBancorp Form S-1 filed
with the SEC on April 22, 2010

4.4 Indenture, dated as of July 30, 2013, by and betvestomers Bancorp, Inc., as Issuer, and Wilmimgtwst, National

Association, as Trustee, incorporated by referémdexhibit 4.1 to the Customers Bancorp 8-K filethathe SEC on July 31, 2013



4.5

4.6

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July28@3, by and between Customers Bancorp, Inc.sagtsand Wilmington Trust,
National Association, as Trustee, incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 4.2 to the Customers Bancokpfiied with the SEC on
July 31, 2013

6.375% Global Note in aggregate principal amour58,000,000, incorporated by reference to ExHil8tto the Customers
Bancorp 8-K filed with the SEC on July 31, 2013
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Exhibit
No.

4.7

4.8

4.9

10.1+

10.2+

10.3+

10.4+

10.5

10.6+

10.7

10.8

10.9+

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14+

10.15+

Description
Amendment to First Supplemental Indenture, dateguau27, 2013, by and between Customers Bancarpaid Wilmington
Trust Company, National Association, as trusteegriporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Cu&lis Bancorp 8-K filed with
the SEC on August 29, 2013

6.375% Global Note in aggregate principal amour&®50,000, incorporated by reference to Exhildttd the Customers
Bancorp 8-K filed with the SEC on August 29, 2013

Form of Note Subscription Agreement (including fosfrSubordinated Note Certificate and Senior Natetiicate) incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Customers Bgm&aK filed with the SEC on June 26, 2014

New Century Bank Management Stock Purchase Plaorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Guslrs Bancorp Form S-
1 filed with the SEC on April 22, 2010

Amended and Restated Customers Bancorp, Inc. 2bl ®ption Plan, incorporated by reference to BitHi0.2 to the
Customers Bancorp Form 10-K filed with the SEC caréh 21, 2012

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefiMarch 26, 2012, by and between Customers Bandoc. and Jay S.
Sidhu, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8® Customers Bancorp Form S-1 filed with the SIa@/arch 28, 2012

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefiMarch 26, 2012, by and between Customers Bandoc. and Richard
Ehst, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.theoCustomers Bancorp Form S-1 filed with the SEG/arch 28, 2012

Agreement, dated as of May 19, 2009, by and betiesm Century Bank and Jay Sidhu, incorporated Bsreace to Exhibit 10.6
to the Customers Bancorp Form S-1 filed with th&€Si April 22, 2010

Amended and Restated Customers Bancorp, Inc. 2@@hiive Equity and Deferred Compensation Plargripmrated by reference
to Exhibit 10.7 to the Customers Bancorp Form 1fildd with the SEC on March 21, 2012

Lease Agreement, dated January 5, 2007, by ancebatilew Century Bank and Gateway Partnership Lh€rporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Customers Ban&ampn S-1 filed with the SEC on April 22, 2010

Amendment to Lease, dated May 4, 2007, by and ketwew Century Bank and Gateway Partnership LLErporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Customers Ban&ammn S-1 filed with the SEC on April 22, 2010

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement fonfiloyees relating to the 2012 Special Stock Rewaogram, incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the Customers Bgmé&orm S-1/A filed with the SEC on May 1, 2012

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Septemb2030, by and between Customers Bancorp, Inc. afeiR Tambur,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to thust@mers Bancorp Form S-1/A filed with the SEC gmilA25, 2012

Subscription Agreement, dated May 19, 2009, bylatd/een New Century Bank and Jay S. Sidhu, incatpdrby reference to
Exhibit 10.13 to the Customers Bancorp Form S€ldfilvith the SEC on April 22, 2010

Amendment to Subscription Agreement, dated Jun@@®9, by and between New Century Bank and JaydBusSincorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Customers Ban&ampn S-1 filed with the SEC on April 22, 2010

Amendment #2 to Subscription Agreement, dated dsioé 30, 2009, by and between New Century BanKlapd. Sidhu,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to thistGmers Bancorp Form S-1 filed with the SEC onil/&#, 2010

Amended and Restated Customers Bancorp, Inc. BRaosgnition and Retention Plan, incorporated bgregfce to Exhibit 10.15
to the Customers Bancorp Form 10-K filed with ti&CSon March 21, 2012

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan of Jay &hgiincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18h® Customers Bancorp
Form S-1/A filed with the SEC on April 18, 2011



10.16 Form of Stock Purchase Agreement used in the hdyfaigust 2012 private placement of voting commtogls incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Customers BancammFS-3 filed with the SEC on October 22, 2012
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Exhibit
No.

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20+

10.21+

10.22+

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26+

10.27+

10.28

16.1

211

23.1

23.2

31.1

31.2

32.1

32.2

Description
Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of August 112, 2y and between Customers Bancorp, Inc. and=Bidnce Investment
Fund, L.P., incorporated by reference to Exhibitté.the Customers Bancorp Form S-3 filed with$iiC on October 22, 2012

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of Septemp2012, by and among the Corporation and thehgisers party thereto,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thestGmers Bancorp Form 8-K filed with the SEC on 8ayfier 17, 2012

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Septedbe2012, by and among the Corporation and thehasers party thereto,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to thestGmers Bancorp Form 8-K filed with the SEC on 8ayfier 17, 2012

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement fardators relating to the 2012 Special Stock RevwRnahram, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.26 to the Customers Ban€&ammn S-1/A filed with the SEC on May 1, 2012

Form of Stock Option Agreement, incorporated byrefice to Exhibit 10.18 to the Customers BancormFO-K filed with the
SEC on March 21, 2012

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement, incorpedaby reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Customensddrp Form 10-K filed
with the SEC on March 21, 2012

TARP Letter Agreement, dated as of September 161 20y and among Customers Bancorp, Berkshire Bantmc. and Treasury,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CustsBancorp’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on Sepgien22, 2011

ARRA Letter Agreement, dated as of September 17120y and among Customers Bancorp and Treasuysgarated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Customer Bancorp’s18¢K filed with the SEC on September 22, 2011

Letter Agreement dated as of December 28, 201hbyamong Customers Bancorp and Treasury, incogubiat reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Customers Bancorp’s Form 8-K fileih the SEC on January 4, 2012

Change of Control Agreement, dated as of Januarg@@®@D3, by and between Customers Bancorp, IncGiedn Hedde,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to Costos Bancorp’s Form 10-K filed with the SEC on Muid, 2013

Change of Control Agreement, dated as of Januarg2@®03, by and between Customers Bancorp, IncVéaden Taylor,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to Comds Bancorp’s Form 10-K filed with the SEC on Muid, 2013

Termination and Non-Renewal Agreement, dated #paf 4, 2013, by and among Customers Bancorp, iscacia Life
Insurance Company, and Ameritas Life Insurance Corporporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to @ustomers Bancorp Form
8-K filed with the SEC on April 10, 2013

Letter dated July 2, 2013 from ParenteBeard LCthédSecurities and Exchange Commission, incorpotayeeference to Exhibit
16.1 to the Customers Bancorp Form 8-K filed with SEC on July 3, 2013

List of Subsidiaries of Customers Bancorp, Inc.

Consent of BDO USA, LLP, filed herewith

Consent of Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP, file@irewith

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Purstido Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a)
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursudo Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a)

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursiido 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, ad Adopted Pursua8ettion 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursiido 18 U.S.C. Section 1350. ad Adonted Pursim8ettion 906 of th



Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101 Interactive Data Files regarding (a) Balance Shastsf December 31, 2014 and 2013, (b) Stateméhtsame for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, (c) Statemer@smwiprehensive Income for the years ended Decegihe&014, 2013 and
2012, (d) Statements of Cash Flows for the yeads@ecember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, (e) Staterné@thanges in
Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended DecembgeP@14, 2013 and 2012 and (f) Notes to Finanditeghents for the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.
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Exhibit
No. Description
+ Management Contract or compensatory plan or arraage
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Section 13€t)lof the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, thggsteant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigtteereunto duly authorized.

Customers Bancorp, Inc.

February 27, 2015 By: /sl Jay S. Sidhu
Name: Jay S. Sidhu
Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Customers Bancorp, Inc.

February 27, 2015 By: /sl Robert E. Wahlman
Name: Robert E. Wahiman
Title: Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bblptine following persons on behalf of 1
Registrant and in the capacities and on the dathsated.

Signature: Title(s): Date:
/sl Jay S. Sidhu Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Director fmipal executive officer) February 27, 2015
Jay S. Sidhu
/sl Robert E. Wahlman  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offig@incipal financial officer) February 27, 2015

Robert E. Wahlman

Senior Vice President - Chief Accounting Officedd@ontroller (principal accounting  February 27, 2015
/sl Carla A. Leibold officer)

Carla A. Leibold

/s/ Daniel K. Rothermel Director
Daniel K. Rothermel February 27, 2015

/s/ Bhanu Choudhrie Director

Bhanu Choudhrie February 27, 2015
/sl John R. Miller Director
John R. Miller February 27, 2015
/sl T. Lawrence Way Director
T. Lawrence Way February 27, 2015

/sl Steven J. Zuckerman Director
Steven J. Zuckerman February 27, 2015
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Exhibit 21.1
List of Significant Subsidiaries of Customers Banag, Inc.

Name: Jurisdiction
1. Customers Bank Pennsylve



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referéndbe Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N@-B33040 and No. 33884536) an
Form S-8 (No. 333-197997 and No. 3B36554) of Customers Bancorp, Inc. of our repotéeddebruary 27, 2015, relating to the consolic
financial statements and the effectiveness of @uste Bancorp, Inc.'s internal control over finahoéporting, which appear in this Form KO-

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
February 27, 2015



Exhibit 23.2

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referéndbe Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N@-B33040 and No. 33884536) an
Form S-8 (No. 333-186554 and No. 3B37997) of Customers Bancorp, Inc. of our repotediaMarch 18, 2013 relating to the consolid
financial statements, which appears in this ForaK10

/sl Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP

Allentown, Pennsylvania
February 27, 2015



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULES 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

I, Jay S. Sidhu, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on ForniKL6f Customers Bancorp, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented
in this report;

4. The registran$ other certifying officer(s) and | are responsiloleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedure
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repagtias defined in Exchange
Act Rules13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduiies tiesigned und
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entiti@stigularly during the period in which this rep@tbeing prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdorting, or caused such internal control oveafitial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presentad report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discisantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an atmaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrafes financial reporting;
and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dainhave disclosed, based on our most recent e@iuaf internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorglahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardioéctors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrgistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inke$ management or other employees who have aisamtifole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

/s/ JAY S. SIDHU
Jay S. Sidhu

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: February 27, 2015
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

RULES 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

I, Robert E. Wahlman, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on FornikL0f Customers Bancorp, In

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortaémstate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented
in this report;

The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsiioleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedure
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repagtias defined in Exchange
Act Rules13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand have:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned und
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entiti@stigularly during the period in which this rep@tbeing prepared;

Designed such internal control over finanogdorting, or caused such internal control oveairfirial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntbds report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discisantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an atmaport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrafes financial reporting;
and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dainhave disclosed, based on our most recent e@iuaf internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorglahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardioéctors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions):

(@)

(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal oboirer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrgistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that inved management or other employees who have aisamtifole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

/sl ROBERT E. WAHLMAN

Robert E. Wahiman

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: February 27, 2015
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Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarban&xley Act of 2002

In connection with the annual report of Customessdrp, Inc. (the “Corporation”) on Form K0for the period ending December 31, 2014
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the “Report”), |, Jay S. SidBbairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Corporation, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.5{1.3s adopted pursuant to 8906 of the Sarbane=sy@xt of 2002, that to the best of my

knowledge and belief:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementseétion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoA 1934; an

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finanmialdition and results of operations of the
Corporation.

Date: February 27, 2015
/sl Jay S. Sidhu

Jay S. Sidhu, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
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Exhibit 32.2

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarban&xley Act of 2002

In connection with the annual report of Customessdrp, Inc. (the “Corporation”) on Form K0for the period ending December 31, 2014
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the “Report”), |, Robert E. Wiaah, Chief Financial Officer of the
Corporation, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 813&adopted pursuant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-OxdepfR002, that to the best of my
knowledge and belief:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementseétion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoA 1934; an

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finanmialdition and results of operations of the
Corporation.

Date: February 27, 2015

/s/ Robert E. Wahlman
Robert E. Wahlman, Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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